_ .0\
= A~V
M~ II D ( \Jjuv
) 1 . N
\ N | o o
'.\ '.\( { WA O\ N\ AN \_E’/\
T = \ \\‘- \ \ Y |
\ 70\ (WO
= PRRRTIAR R R s -
/:/ Y e S ~ \\ A\ A .o
~ % A ==F
“‘ ,'\ i‘\\ ‘.\ \ l'. \\‘_

Baseq]mll\lﬁibn;l Cﬁrrlculum of Pakistan 2022-23.
Textbook of

Enghsh

Grade

AN NN :
N J' N National Curriculum Council
Ministry of Federal Education and Professional Training

Natlonal Book Foundatlon ~ G

-\ “ ~~ NN |Ir O \ O
\ ~\ \ r\J 3

Federal \Tgxtptmk Bbard

"h - Islémabad
\\“ \"
[|

N

\j lr\JI



\RRRLRER
~\\\/\\\"
)

,--ﬂ {
‘ \\ “ . r \ ( \I '. ™ \ \ _I:._ N
\ \\ 1‘Bavlrmnlnthpgmnl
cumhmntomul {NCC), Minlstry of Federal Education and Professional Training, Islamabad
Jvid:ktt:r No. F.No.1-2/2024/NBF/English, dated: November 05, 2024

© 2025 National Book Foundation (NBF) as Federal Textbook Board
I:Ilmion are strictly reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or
recording, or otherwise—without the prior express

All rights to this
transmitted In any form or by any means—electronic, mechanical, p
written consent of the publisher. Unauthorized use, duplication, or distribution ls strictly prohibited and may result in legal action.
A Textbook of English for Grade 12
based on National Curriculum of Pakistan (NCP) 2022-23

Authors
Ruhl Zaka Malik {Managing Author|
Amber Kashif (Co-Author)

Contributors/Collaborators
Inam Uliah lan (Designer)

7

Supervision of Curriculum and Review Process
Dr. Shafquat Ali Janjua

Jgint Educational Advisor, National Curriculum Council {NCC)
Ministry of Federal Education and Professional Training, Govemment nf Pakisun;{shm;hﬁ_ O‘ \ , \
] ' / o) \ﬁ O

N%ci;ﬂ ?m\m W A&u Hanan, M:s Zehra Khushal

Yaseer Arfat, Saima Mafeez, Imran Khalid
O\ /\ w/“\’
Mrs, Zchr¥ Iéﬂusm q:kﬁppt E&ﬁﬁml Advisor), National Curriculum Councl (NCC)

¥

AL LA
NBF Textbooks Development Supervision
Dr. Kamran Jahangir
Managing Director, National Book Foundation (NBF)

In-Charge, NBF Textbooks Development
Mansoor Ahmad, Assistant Director

e

Printed In Pakistan
First Edition: First Impression: June, 2025 | Pages: 194 | Quantity: 100000

Price; PKR 270/-, Code: STE-732, ISBN: 978 969-37-1833-1
Printer: Top Mountain Printers, Lahore
Natienal Book .Foundltlon, please visit our website at www nbf.org.pk
051 9261125 or via emall at books@nbf.org.pk
,com' and ‘textbooks @snc.gov. pk'

For details on additional publications from the
You can also reach us by phone at
For foadback or corrections, kindly send your comments to nbl‘tmhnoksemil

Note
Al illustrations, artwork, and images in this book are Intended solely for educational
and promotional purposes, benefiting the public interest.
e o 'k,/_-\.\ ,/ )r' '\\l\\ \ '\ '.

NN b
B ‘\\ \ll./(/ _'f““—’




Preface Vee 1

Text Book of Grade 12: An Introductinn to t.he structure and purpose

This book is second book of the group \of four textbooks (IX-X11) developed on a similar pattern and in
accordance witp N@ﬂonal Curriculum of Pakistan IX-XIl (NCP) 2022. This book is aimed to provide
students n* et%mtary grades a range of activities to help them achieve students learning objectives of
theirappropriate age/grade. The book provides the students with a range of fiction and non-fiction texts
which are acquired from both authentic sources as well as exclusively produced for this age group of
Pakistan students. The selection/development of contents of books has been purposely carried out in
the context of multilingual communities where English is treated as second or third language.

This unique arrangement of textual materials provide a platform where students can improve their
reading, writing, speaking and listening skills. Themes of the selected texts are selected in accordance
with list of themes provided across the wide range of genre indicated in NCP. The ethical concepts
embedded in the texts will engage students to think and relate with real concerns of their lives and
reflect upon their own personality development towards becoming a responsible citizen. This book is
designed to provide a wide range of readings with a variety of local, national and international contexts
which will enable students to learn about their identity and connection to the world. The variety of
activities will help them to make these connections and to think critically.

This book is structured in a way to provide in-depth knowledge and exposure to different types/genres
of literary texts. Units are grouped together in a section with a specific tﬁéme 1&'& naﬁatives poetry or
drama. Each section has set of activities towards the end: to*engagd qhés;uﬂ!nts in high order thinking
skills, critical evaluation, differentiate an&éxtended ‘activities\all set in the backdrop of contextual
needs. Each unit begins with a pre-reading activity and hiave while reading activities to keep students
engaged in the reading qndk hblri them\ln toﬁprehenslon of the text. Each unit has a range of questions
based on different  sfages\ of understanding and comprehension and students will have to answer
questi 1584 |d|4 'reading for detail to reading for inferences and ideas. Use of dictionary and
pronunt ‘tion is taught through direct and indirect usages of dictionary sources.

There is strong focus of writing activities and for that, a range of writing assignments are introduced
which demand outcomes both as independent writers as well as in pairs/group work. The variety of
writing assignments has been designed to expose studants with different types of texts like
informational texts, expository text and imaginative work of writing. Activities like role-plays, debates,
one-minute speech, drama and poetry recitals are introduced to provide students with the
opportunities of listening and speaking English. These activities are designed with special focus on
listening and speaking for different audiences and different situations. The purpose of these activities is
to provide backdrop to develop effective communication skills in English. The difficulty level of all
activities is varied to cater for learning needs of students from multilingual backgrounds and multiple
local/national context.

The targets of all planned activities can be achieved fully with an active support of teacher. Evidently all
such activities shall require diligent effort of teacher to guide the students in appropriate manner as
well as to provide them with continuous support. Activities requiring searching for additional
information through library and/or online sources shall also need special assistance from teacher. This
active support from the teacher shall help ;tudenta to fully benEﬁt from. thiis purposely designed text
book of English to acquire better English language skills 0,

A0 VWV Y- Dr. Kamran Jahangir
NS .




Objective Analysis of the Textbook (@

The textbook comprises 16 chapters and is anal‘ﬂeﬂm thejighl: nf t:hecklist based on Curriculum
2016. The provided parameters, desired learnlng objectives are addressed. The textbook fulfills
and qualifies standards establlshed by thea curriculum to enable learners to use English language
for social and acaderr,if: pui'posés

Lingkuan Gorge It gives a lesson to live peacefully and understand other's viewpoint.

Responsibility towards one's job is of prime importance. The unit provides a guideline to live a
congenial, peaceful, and caring life with full co-operation for those around us.

Unit2
Population Explosion in Pakistan: Discussion on a sensitive issue is coherently explained, which

will give awareness to students. They will understand how over-population affects the progress of
a country, It would enable students to focus on spreading the literacy programmes/suggestions
across.

Unit3
The Income-Tax Man: Students will get an idea how to focus on the choice of a profession. Income

tax generates revenue for a country and students will get a fairly good idea of the income tax
related issues. The extended discussion between the two characters would reveal how
responsible peoplée perform their duties. They can have a dehate irktlie class’ m d1s¢uss the
importance of tax collection. . s N (elo
Unit4 \ 20\ ( ) |

Rubayiat of Omar Khayam (po\em}v lttenh mtémngsk'lls would improve and help students in
communication in daily lif The ﬂleasuke Of reading a poem can best be derived by reading it. The
belief in deter N ‘Hh l@ \d disbelief in immortality portrays the true meaning of life. It would
_ certainly shaw y to the readers to have full faith in what they decide to do. Glossary will
certainly add up to their vocabulary enabling them to write better English. Summary writing skills
would help in understanding the main points of any narration.

Unit5

The Blanket: The respect of human relationships holds top priority in families. The grandson's
love and wisdom plays an important role in the twist in the story. There’s a lesson that we must
respect and facilitate our elders in their old age. A sense of hope and renewed appreciation for
the special moments we share with our loved ones is a lesson.

Unité
Stay Hungry---Stay Foolish: Comprehension, eloquence, articulation and oration are exemplary

in this unit, which will help students to improve their skills and focus on their objectives. The
efforts, determination, perseverance and never giving up are the guideline for the readers.

Students will learn the value of taking risks and viewing failures as an opportumty tu learn and
grow. R _ T

Unit7 B\

Tobacco and your Health: This unit defines that srmking ls iniurioﬂs to health It increases the
risk of heart disease besides-the highly recognlzed role\of eigarette smoking to cause cancer. It
implicates many other chronic diseases like bronchitis and pulmonary malfunction. Students

would understaTd to falgg ¢care of one's health and never get into the hablt of smoking.




Unit8 WO

The Sea (poem): The poet's imagination and perception descﬁbes t’o remain calm If the sea can
calm itself, why can't we, The ocean i beautifui, mystenausand the central image. It symbolizes
a great journey and can eam ly be relatedw\th humanlife and likely to change the perception.

Unit9 N3
First Year at The author‘s experience as a student is of great interest and lays stress on

the importi nce of hard work while studying. He emphasizes that all students should prioritize to
learn English to avoid all difficulties in the affairs of our daily life. This knowledge proved
extremely useful for him to earn his livelihood and pursue a promising career.

Unit 10

There's A New Planet in Sight: The lesson opens up the knowledge of new vistas concerning
_space. Students’ enthusiasm to have knowledge about space will get a direction. Latest science
discoveries about planefs and ozone will compel students to search and gain more knowledge
about the subject.

Unit 11

Harvest Hymn (poem): Farmers damage the environment through overuse of chemicals. It's a
lamentation on modern man's exploitation of nature for selfish gains. The land becomes polluted
and infertile. Students will understand that natural resources should not be depleted for the
fulfilment of personal desires. Students will be able torelate it with their dait/v lives.

Unit 12 [
Kaghan Valley: The readers will be fami}iarized with the plttdrésque w.valleyl surrounded by

majestic mountains, fascinating terralﬁ Mtﬁ fqre*sts rivers and glaciers. It wo..d enhance the
students’ interest to see- these beautifql areas of Pakistan, and observe how people live in those
areas. They would kno haw to'ptan these trips and do the preparations. Students can give
suggestmqstodhpf' vetourism in Pakistan, which can be very profitable.

Unit 13"

After Twenty Years: Honesty towards duty, truthfulness, abiding law and valuing sincere
friendship are masterfully highlighted in the unit. Fulfilling his promise, Jimmy came to the
decided place after twenty years, but his loyalty has changed. He is now more loyal to his job as a
police officer. His friendship with Bob is secondary. Students will be able to configure if it was right
to be loyal to his duty. The writer has left the decision to readers.

Unit 14
The Solitary Reaper: The poem is about the power of human imagination to transform common,

everyday events into representations of a large reality. The poet does not understand the
language of the girl singing, but he was much fascinated by the music. It was an ecstatic
environment. The girl was happily ‘cutting and binding' the yield. It gives a lesson to perform one’s
work happily and that creates happiness for the listeners too.

Unit 15

The Pearl (Novel): The Pearl is a novel that demonstrates the evils of greed and ambition It
reflects Steinbeck's keen interest in socio;economic ISSUGS “The novet isa rich narrative that
explores themes of greed and the strugglﬁ against adversuty Stbdents will comprehend that the
narrative serves as a critique of inequalky, There is a lesson that one should take care of one's
desiresina pusitive way Yl

N -.]__ | || WNJ

“:r.
'*.,,




Contents

S.No Units 'Y Theme Sub-Theme
1 LINGKUAN GORGE Peaceful Success stories
(Tu Peng Cheng) Co-existence narrative stories
T :?:E#:HON EXPLOSION IN Entrepreneurship Magazine article
3 THE INCOME-TAX MAN Literature & Poetry Industrial Revolution
Mark Twain (1835-1910) Soft Skills Moral stories
Rubaiyat of Omar Khayam : ] :
4 Edward Fitzgerald (1809-1883) Literature & Poetry Spiritualism (Rubaiyat)
THE BLANKET ; .
2 Floyd Dell (1887-1969) J Literature & Poetry Human Relationships
STAY HUNGRY - STAY FOOLISH | . AN YN
6 (Excerpts from...... ) Soft sf_‘_“""‘ o Decwiunmaking
| 7 .(T:e‘;gﬁ? AND. YOUR HIEAIILTH v DrugEducaticn "~ M1 Pprevention {‘lf drugs
THE SEA . N Nature and natural .
8 s Ré e vés I\ Phoneyislon Poetry/ literature
9 First Year At Harrow Soft Skills Autobiography
Sir Winston S. Churchill Literature & Poetry short stories
10 THERE'S A NEW PLANET IN SIGHT] Innovation and Innovation & creativity
Catherine Clark Fox (1917-2008) Creativity in science
HARVEST HYMN H Nature and .
" John Betjeman (1906-1984) natural resources E""""’.‘”“-‘“‘ Matters
THE KAGHAN VALLEY . / T
12 Tahir Jahangir Travel and Tourism Travel writing/ travel log
AFTER TWENTY YEARS » . :
& Poet Human Relationship:
13 | o' Henry (1862-1910) e e v
The Solitary Reaper (Nature! and _ ~Connecting People and
14 William Wordsworth (1 770 1850) natural resnurces U Nature, Poetry/ literature
The Pearl TRER! " -" .I" =SDG-mineum PeaCﬁ, j;atice. fre_edtti?“
JRRI R t Goals, for all and strong institutions
15 | John Stqinback ‘(IJDVEI) Eﬁ;ﬁ;‘:ﬂgeg Pogfrl; Human Relationships/small pllays




Reading and Voubullry :
critical thinking Commumcquon indGrammar wntlng Page#
Glossary, Comprehension qummona Ravision of Tenses, Gerunds, v L skils 0 a
Auwsdmoomom pommunicative — infitves and paricipis, Wulbgs parsgraphs esbaysakree: 8
uam [
| hmmmwm mﬂmmw b o mmmm_mm
NN : . dm‘nn,mm
| o ampmasiontos  formomrendl ouememts | o
' Patiems in a Text, Activty ; e S
_' 1 lmwm -
S [ —
gL mm .'|I
conlempor- | Otreciive Summary, Actwity 43

Paraphvasing Skdls, Achity

Ediling and procirsading skills o a range of
different hexis and contexts

51

Glossary, Comprehension,
inta
H e

views on reading
Informed

Glossary, Comprehension,
personal and analytical responsa fo
textual reference in supp

awﬂdyoilmhmdptwﬂea e




-
L]

" - 3

llmtﬂtul'l’“DUGHTS ~\ | ] 2/

) P nm o,

s ml E'Il“lm.'l =\ R ] Ry “nlt‘

-:."‘ M[IHW\HUN - 'l ‘ OITRI LA
UMMUN'TYwm. \ \ | ""ﬂm
B?: mg s - T ENCLUSION Y

su!llvr-swnl n ml ! uu\m Y all m\lY";lS -
1 !

T

—

::%

—l’*f"f

_Ewiiwi m

e e EQUALITY =%

LF E TEAMWUORK -
Suil\!!l:ll]lﬁ? ".l“.".ﬁl... ["f's ‘RSE
‘ fl’]a[tlfl_[ A ) m‘m'(;a

i ae ' R

LINGKUAN GORGE

(Tu Peng Cheng)

After completing this lesson, you will be abla to:” \ () [ (
* respond to questions on a range of pdmmumcative putposes ..... LJ
¢ analyse how an authnfis chmcc‘s come.m\qg how to structure specific parts of a text (e.g., the
choice of where to bégin m* énd a\story, the choice to provide a comedic or tragic resolution)
contribute TQSJ verall structure and meani ng as well as its aesthetic impact........
. prel[l mg and while-reading strategies to analyse and explore different layers of meaning
within texts including biases and opinfons. Read and use inference and deduction to recognise
implicit meaning (e.g. look for supporting details within a text/paragraph) using prior "
knowledge and contextual cues effectively. Link new facts, terms, and concepts with prior
knowledge. Choose words and phrases for effect.......
» evaluate the particular elements of a story or drama (e.g., how the setting shapes the
characters or plot).......
« clarify the meaning of unknown and multiple-meaning words and phrases based on grades 9-10
and 11 & 12 reading and content, choosing flexibly from a range of strategies.
» Use context (e.g., the overall meaning of a sentence, paragraph, or text; a word's position
or function in a sentence) as a clue to the meaning of a word or phrase.
Identify and correctly use patterns of word changes that indicate different meanings or parts
of speech (e.g., analyze, analysis, analytical; advocate, advocacy).
Consult general and specialized reference materials (e.g., dictionaries, glossaries,
thesauruses), both print and digital, to find the pronunciation of a word or deterrmne or
clarify its precise meaning, its part of speech, or its etymology, P=Ta) W\
+ Verify the preliminary determination of the meaning: of a word or phms& (E g DY checking
the inferred meaning in context or in. a dlchonary)
»  use all types of tenses correctly-in speed‘\ and writing: USE gerunds, infinitives, and participles.
Use the aspect of time corre'ctly in speech and writing
apply editin arn}:l moof readmg 'skills to a range of different texts and contexts
* write n1u!ti 2 paragraphs essays/stories; multi-stanza poems or play script usin_v, mechanics of
correct writing



o Pre-Reading . .I-"'-II -"". ,I-"- ’_ 3 \‘ \‘-_‘ | I’/‘r\ ".5_ b \."_.-\"\' 3
a) What would make aper rson an rdeal cho:ce torammumca te with?
b) How does nespansw:htysharing contribute to peaceful living?

RS

e e e

N 1|“ N
Bﬂllll’

The snow, already half a foot deep, obliterated the line between earth and sky, behind a hazy
white curtain. | had been following the path of the future railway for forty kilometers. Although |
could hear the roar of machinery further back in the hills,| had seen neither work sites nor
workers.

Entering Lingkuan Gorge, my irritation increased. Even in clear weather, the sun never shone on
this gorge, it didn't matter where you looked up along the twisting course:«=««+«.- the most you
could see of the sky was a patch, no bigger than the palm of your hand. Now it was dusk, and the
swirling snowflakes and the gale made every step a struggle.

Construction in the gorge was going on feverishly. Everywhere people were at work. Generators,
cement-mixers and air compressors shook the ground. Hundreds of light bulbs gleamed dim and
yellow. Electric wires, criss-crossing like a spider web were scarcely visible; ‘bu, | could see the
overhead cables and their pulley cars, slidi ng back and fertl} [aaded Wi;h imaterials.

Hungry and cold, I tripped and fell, scrapirl’g rﬁyhanda EnoLIgh! I'd find some place under a cliff
and rest a few hours. If rréatheﬂfhemntrEals depot tomorrow morning by ten 0'clock, that still
wouldn't be too late, tumbling around in the dark like this, | was liable to fall into some deep
ravine, an Lnapw ould be the end of this Materials
Develomt 1ef I'd have to be put on the ‘Used up’ | while-reading

list! What indicates that the cave was
I noticed a path leading to a cave in the cliffside. A door | undoubtely occupied by the workers?
curtain, hanging in the way, showed that the cave was
undoubtedly occupied by workers, Grasping branches
along the steep path, | hauled myself up to the door and entered,

_ Strangel Seated on a small stool in the doorway was a little boy, seven or eight years old, elbows
on his knees, supporting his face in his hands, his cheeks were red with cold. He had been peering

at the opposite cliffside through a rent in the curtain. He glanced at me briefly as | came in, then
went back to his observation.

The cave was large, but quite warm. It had a stove and cooking utensils. On the walls above a bed,
- was a colored New Year picture of ‘Chubby Children Pulling the Turnip All the walls had been
prepared with old newspapers, now blackened by smoke of the stove A0\

“Why isn't anybody home?" | asked, sha king the snow fmm mymal: and hat. —

The little boy turned his head. His eyes ﬂashed "Arent | anybody, uncle?” He rose and walked
towards me, his hands behind h:s hack his chest éxtended, as if to say: Not on ly am | somebody,
I'm a very grown-up somebody} \\-

1 cupped his lmundﬂlt;l@ facein my hands “You're pretty sharp, young imp!

W -




He pushed my hands aside. Doubling up his fists, he cocked his ﬁead to or;te srde and demanded
“Who are you calling me imp? | have a namei" Pointing at. the baby girl asleep on the bed, he
informed me: “Her name lsPaokchenghminie is Cheng YU L2

No doubt about it, these kids Were like-thousands of others | had met, born and raised on
canstruction s \Jbr:kers liked to name their children after the projects where they were
born. ChengLyll prbbably had first seen the light of day, on the railway project between Chengtu
and Chungking, also known as Yu. His baby sister Pao-cheng, very likely had been born right here
at the future Paoki-Chengtu railway.

| sat by the stove, smoking and rubbing the drying mud frommy hands.
Cheng-yu crawled on to my lap and looked into my eyes, “Is it going to snow tomorrow, uncle?”

| pressed his little icy red nose. “As soon as we get our telephone line connected up with heaven,
I'lask foryou.”

Angrily, he leaped down and stood a meter away, scowling at me.” Quit your kidding! You've got a
newspaper inyour pocket. Why don't you look at the weather report?”

He resumed his seat in the doorway, clamped his elbows on his knees, rested his face in his hands,
and peered out through the rent in the curtain. When | asked him where the kettle was, he
ignored me. .1 certainly was sorry | had offended my small host. A\

“Why do you want to know about the snow, Cheng- yu "1 asked him [ﬂtbécausayﬁucan t goout
and play when it's snowing?" O __~,. \ \ (O O J L O

._-. Ve

He didn't even bother to leok at me, “Papa samf it s‘ sﬂf&snwngtomonow, we'll have to quit
work ] \ \ \ \ '. \'. ."-. \ \ '-‘\\__

\

“What dqeswurﬁa ':Iui"F
“I-Iedoﬁb\né up mountains!” The child replied |While-reading
- proudly. “He opens up mountains!” The child
9 replied proudly. What does this reply
“Where? Glan?
Cheng-yu pointed with pursed lips at the work site
opposite.

I looked. All | could see was a searchlight beam, shining through the drifting snowflakes straight
up into the heavens. In its light | could vaguely discern a few dozen men, who seemed posted to
the side of the towering cliff, drilling holes for dynamic charges. The holes were like the stepsof a:
ladder to the sky.

“How can you tell which one is your father at this distance?” | asked.

“| can't see him plainly, but pa says he can see me. He says all he has to do is turn around. | oftensit
here so that he can see me."”

Ah! So that was it. A\ O\
- The icy snow melted from my boots. My nurnbed legsu thawmg ﬂut ached pami’ully I Stampeu to
help the circulation.

Cheng-yu waived his hand wamlhg{y. l undefstood He was af raid I'd wake his baby sister.
“Your ally t@kq good care of your sister,” | commended.
Mabiasays my job is to look after her. When mama comes home, | can knock off.”

e S

10



“Soyou are on the job every day?” | hugged him. "What does marna do?"
He pointed to the road below the cave., - - \ et

I could see a person, standing byatelephonepoll Keﬁllde the road Cnvered with snow, she looked
like a white stone image. Apparentlgi she was directing traffic. The road, not very wide, had been
blasted thro t.hqrqck Ordinarily, carts, mules, donkeys, people------no doubt steamed in both
directionih ng- ‘the road, twenty-four hours a day. Someone had to keep the traffic.

Today, because of the heavy snow, there weren't many people or vehicles on the road. She could
have very well spent the day at home. But there she stood and there she would remain, three
months, five months or three years, if need be. Perhaps, from time to time, she raised her head to
gaze up at her child, or at her husband who was scaling the cliffs, between the mountains and the
sky. When he paused to swipe the sweat from his brow,
could he see the determined figure of his wife, or the |whjle-reading

tiny image of his little boy? Even though in this tough, | Why was the mother raising her head
snowy, windy night, his wife and children couldn't see |from time totime?

one another clearly, | was sure they could feel a mutual
loving encouragement, and sense that each was looking
forward to the moment of family reunion.

I glanced at Cheng-yu. The child had placed his hands in his sleeves, and pullegthis;qeik into his
collar. He kept dozing off. — (12 L

NN .' o\, \ \f,N ~

“You are liable to catch a chill. Better ge; intohed ar\d %qm;‘eephl 1 (&

He looked at me dreamily, fqr“a mom&n% broQably“thinkin”g that his parents had returned.
When he realized who| wds he sHook his hiead violently, “No. | won't]”

“Why not F\J \\][\H WNJ o\ .

He rubbed his eyes with his fists. “Papa and mama say a man should never leave his post”.

I hugged him tightly and pressed my cheek against his. Then | rose, buttoned my coat, pulled my
hat down firmly, left the cave and walked down the path. Following the road that had been
blasted through the rock, | pushed on, the words of the child echoing in my head: “Aman should

never leave his post”. A job was waiting for me. | wanted to reach my destination without any
further delay.

Y S

(= A
@ Post-reading |
1. After reading the first two paragraphs what do you think are the feelings of the
narrator?

2. What do you understand by the following descriptions in the unit?
a) = Hazywhite curtain b) cnsscm;smglike aspider web
a) clamped his elbows on hiﬂmees d}. f- «t‘o vaguety discern
Are you impressed by tl}ewisdong of theboyz Explam with examples.

4. Do you think the ﬂarrator learnt. a lesson from the young boy's sense of
wﬁwhwkv

J




Notes and com ments 2 - I."‘ \'I i‘l II'-.II { '“-I II".---‘I' I';I "'.-_ .I'._ .".II [ z /_:f‘ -EI & e

Tu Peng-Cheng, born in 1921 in the prawnce of She nsn 1n£h| na worked as a war correspondent
for the New Chinese News dunhg the Chinese civil war in 1940's. He is acclaimed for his war
novel, “Defend Y, fnanthith was published in 1954. “In Peacetime” is anather famous novel to
his credm \J

Theme

Sense of responsibility, as portrayed by the author is the main theme. A7 or 8 years old boy is
exemplary. No matter what the nature of one's duties or responsibillties may be, one should
attend to those assiduously and faithfully.

O clossary

Words Meanings Synonyms
clamped to put securely in place B sl / tqhg&d{&ighlly
cocked tilted 0 2 WY ST
criss-crossing | a network of li rj&s" \ \ \ \‘F Q=

discern \(1\] {;@J recc;g}ﬁie: distinguish

gale v strong wind

hauled pulled with effort or difficult

imp a child who misbehaves but not in a serious way

pulley a wheel on which a rope can pass to lift heavy objects

pursed lips brought together in little folds

ravine deep, narrow valley

rent split |

scaling climbing a ladder, cliff, etc. _ ) 20
scowling looking in a bad temper or ahgrgway O = .
séraping rubbmgagamstwmetmngsharp or rough

swirli LN \__?ndvihg-qmckly with a whirling motion

12




Comprehension e
a. Answer the following quesﬂons. A\ R\ A®
1. Describe the narrator’s ‘jbbhnd the purpose of his juurney
Explain the reas whlch compelled the narrator to take rest for few hours.
W"{h“-&(&ﬁ Cheng -yu's reply when the narrator asked, “Why isn't anybody home?”
Describe the nature of the job of Cheng-yu's parents.
Give an account of Cheng-yu's responsibility in the absence of his parents.
What was Cheng-yu's reply to the narrator’s advice to go to sleep?
- Howdoes the narrator act in the final paragraph? What is waiting for him?
What ideas were conveyed in the story about work?
Do you think it is an inspirational story? If so, support you answer with evidence,

- el

b. Choose the best option,
i- Constructien in the gorge was going on .
a- feverishly b-childishly c-slowly ¢ d- patiently A0
' ii- | noticed a path leading to a o in heﬁ\i{fsj Ko ‘p' e
: a- city b- home c~\‘c§v;e{: \( \d-\ wagé an =
iii-“As soon as we get 6|Jr \ e\ % ‘hdemonnected up with heaven, I'll ask for you.”
a- stra1ght bT teieph&neu’c c\ear d- weak

c. A chp}&éﬁ cér\'rcermng how to structure specific parts of a text

Authors wield a lot of power in how they
‘ structure their writing. Their choices about
[ ¢ specific parts of a text can affect the reader in
[ many ways

« Beginning (Hook, Setting the
Scene): An author can grab your
attention from the first sentence with

| ~ agripping scene, a thought-provoking
question, or even a mysterious
character. This opening sets the tone
for the entire story and creates your
initial impression of the world and R
characters. AT

* Point of View and Narrative Ydiqe. T\( f_\ \\UJ‘) v J
The autnor's oecaswa on wha tells ‘the\"-.f' s

story (first- -per n. trﬂrd person,
etc. )a\rrd qhém they use (serious,

13



funny, etc.) heavily shapes how you perceive the events and ¢haratters.

 Plot Structure (Linear, Flashbacks, FareshaduwingL The order in which events unfold
can create suspense, swprise. ora sense of mystéry. Authors may use flashbacks toreveal a
character's past of fi oreshadow future events to keep you guessing.

. Pacl t¢P$ted Slow Burn): The speed at which the story progresses can create a
gency, calmness, or build tension.

. Ending (Resolution, Cliffhanger): The way a story concludes can leave you feeling
satisfied, shocked, or wanting more. An author’s choice of ending can significantly impact
the overall meaning of the work.

| A
Activity : Read the above story carefully and answer the following questions.

Text Title:
Author:
» Beginning (Hook, Setting the Scene):

1. How does the author grab your attention at the beginning? (e.g., Action
scene, question character introduction).

2. What is the initial irnpression you get of the wnr;g and characters hased on
the opening? \ o A CTANY (oo

5 PointusiewandNarrative‘Vaicq A\
1. Whoistalhnqtﬁestm? G.tg ﬁ‘rs: person third person)?

H ' doas- the voice used by the narrator (serious, funny, etc.) affect your
yerception of the events and characters?

. Plot Structure (Linear, Flashbacks, Foreshadowing):

1. Is the story told in a linear fashion (from beginning to end) or does it use
flashbacks or flash-forwards?

2. Are there any hints or clues (foreshadowing) suggesting future events? If
so, what are they? -

3. How does the order in which events unfold affect the suspense, surprise, or
overall mystery of the story?

e Pacing (Fast-Paced, Slow Burn):

1. Would you describe the pacing of the story as fast-paced or slow burning?
Provide examples from the text to support your answer.

2. How does the pacing affect the mood or tension of the story?
* Ending (Resolution, Cliffhanger): NI E O
1. Doesthe story havea clearr rescluﬂdn oris it len tprn-ended?
2. How does theendmg make you feel (satisfied, ‘shocked, wanting more)?

g‘does the ‘author's choice of ending impact the overall meaning of the

»

e -

14




1. The reader’s curiosity remains amused till theend ls it because of the:
a) Effective subslarlce A=
b) lpterfftlnﬂdlalogues -
) \'strdng character of the little boy
d) Good beginning
e) Well- knitend

7 Elements of Story Writing
1. Plot: Build a sequence of events that is straightforward but also able to surprise the reader
with twists.
2. Characters: Create complex and relatable character types and traits.
3. Setting: Tell the reader where and when your story is taking place.
4, Conflict: Decide where the interests of the protagonist and antagonist will collide.
5. Theme: Sprinkle your story’s “big idea” or underlying message about life into the details,
6. Point of view: Pick who is telling your story.
7. Tone: Establish a general feeling for the story with vivid word choice

All these are the necessary parts to make a story forcefyl, Wmﬂ and knov)iedgeable

\ .,-‘.--
'|I\-’r.".'."\

Activity: Evaluate thef—’panjmlar etelﬁehts of this story that how the setting shapes the
characters or ?IQ AR\S

.‘-

Respond to questions on a range of comrnunicattve purposes
Discussin groups:
* What challenges are faced by families in Pakistan to raise their children?
* Have you ever heard or seen a family like the one above?
¢ Compare the social status of this family with an§ family that you know .

1. Howcan struggle and persistence pave the way to prosperity? _ L
2. Responsibility towards duty can save people from embarrassment. Doyou agree?

Vocabulary and Il‘lllllll‘ GLLA N

Tenses \ NN '

Since your schoo sqcﬁion. you haVe been learning and practicing all types of tenses. There is
a chart glptdn . Revise all the tenses and their formation

15



Tenses aﬂd thalr Fotmulas
R T M\'\ i .'.'a*‘w Ui éganipne
| Present Si-mple Subject + base verb | She reads books.
Present Continuous Subject + am/are/is + verb-ing They are studying.
Present Perfect g:?giec?;l; has/have + past | have finished my work.
Ezist?::;rfect ?:gbjed + has/have + been + verb' He has been working all day.
Past Simple Subject + past verb ook ?e;e{lt .t& !\cﬁia a‘tqré

Past Continuous

,——'~ [:_) / "\ \ “‘ ‘\\ \ I". "\I

| subject + was/Were Qveming

. Lwas reading when you

AN AN called.

N} N o . , They had left before |
Past Perfﬁﬁq A\ N [\I |\ | Subject 4 had + past participle oy
Past Perfect : - He had been waiting for an
Continuous Subject + had + been + verb-ing b
Future Simple Subject + will + base verb | will go tomorrow.
Future Continuous | Subject + will be + verb-ing She will be studying at 8 PM.

' Subject + will have + past

Future Perfect participle 1 will have finished by then.
Future Perfect Subject + will have been + verb- By next year, wemll have
Continuous ing F<EN l;ée;n workingbere

Activity: Give two

|

eﬁ;{'\pleé A tovse accordmg!y forfrtherprogres

J\I J|
\\] ]I“-' \

16




Gerunds, infinitives and particip_les

\ ar‘e\refbals that function

Gerunds

are verbals ending in * “‘9"
A

Example: He enjoys reading mystery
novels before bed. _

as adjectives and can

end in “-ing” (present

~ participles) or “-ed” - .
(past participles).

-.JI__'I.. -

Infinitives

are verbals that are formed
using the base form of a

- verb with the word “to”
_ before it. It can function as

nouns, adjectives, or
adverbs

mwmmmnnem | mlmwmmuw

alerted us to the Intruder.

'SOme groceries.

In this sentence, “reading mystery In this sentence, -hamwnf ::“uumamnce “to buy some
novels before bed” 15 a gerund phrase pam:bludlmemdlmthem | groceries” 15 an infinitive phrase that
functioning as the direct object of the "dug" 2 functions a3 the purpose of the action
verb “enjoys”, T expressed by the main verb “went”,
Ending in “-ing” that function as .

a) Underline the gerunds in each sentence. _ x \ \ N TCAL

1. Raising the funds pruved to heaﬁ(fﬁcqlt \task SRS,

2. Ahmad hoped tanbtﬁin a job bﬂéamiﬁg the welding trade.
3. The Khan fﬂl‘pity lwes cooking for relatives.

4 ]Mmlaﬂé to-earn money by working in the campus library.

b) Underline the infinitives in each sentence.
1. Zain goes to his grandmother’s house to eat homemade sweets.
2. The purpose of the class was to teach children how to swim.
3. The hostess asked Jamil to refill the custard bowl.
4, To clean the house seemed like an impossible task.
5. Doris was asked to host the function.

c) Complete the following sentences using the past or past participle form of the
verb given in the brackets.

1. They were badly ......coueeeee in the battle. (beat)

2. Recently the prices of essential commodities have e

J: HE immesaca . us good-bye. (bid) - A 00 WY (@
C N [re— him g last nzght, [rmg) A\BRY

5. 1 will carefully RS my duty:. {do)

v ¥ isol

17




" d) Aspect of time (correctly used in speech and wﬂting} ."'

location of an action or

an event in time.

There are two tenses
in English: past and

present,

Tense is a major
grammatical
category.

Aspect indicates how

an action, state or an

event is related to the
flow of time.

There are four aspects
in English: simple,
progressive, perfect
and progressive
perfect.

Aspect is a sub-
category of tense,

(

)

)

)

)

NS

"

Activity: [-'nh eﬁtﬂ séntence idermfy the verb tense (past, present, future) and the time
period it refers to (specific point in time, ongoing, habitual).

1. | woke up early this morning. (Tense:

\

, Time:

2 We usually go to the park on weekends. (Tense: ~_, Time:
3. She will be traveling to Europe next summer. (Tense: ,Time:
4. The train leaves every hour on the scheduled time. (Tense: _, Time:

5. They were working on a project when | arrived. (Tense: ___ _, Time:

N N T 7
v |

a) Editing and proofreading sklus to a range of dlfferent texts and contexts

Editing and proofreading shl[s arg ‘essential for ensuring clear, accurate, and polished
communicatmn aqrcjss ay ride range of texts and contexts.

ui 18

'




Editing:

* Formal Writing: Academic j:iapé"rs',.;_
business proposals, reports. and essays'
require metlcnrluus edittng to ensure
proper. gi‘alhmar. punctuation, and
adherernice to style guides (e.g., APA,
MLA, Chicago). An editor would check

| for clarity, flow, and logical structure.

r ¢ Creative Writing: Novels, poems, and
’ short stories benefit from editing that

focuses on enhancing the author's
! voice, strengthening sentence
| o structure, and ensuring consistency in
| tone and character development.

| * Technical Writing: Manuals, instructions, and user guides require editing for accuracy,
technical correctness, and conciseness. The editor should ensure the mfcrmatwn is easy
tounderstand for the target audience. Woy

* Marketing and Advertising: Editing marke ting | copy. mvnlvgs ensunng clear rnessagmg,
persuasive language, and ad herence té brand von::e and target audience.

¢ Social Media and W&b Content. Edmngfor onlme content focuses on readability, keyword
optimizatlon ?nd errbr free communication while maintaining the platform’s specific

SWlEr ; l N \] I\
i Proofreadmg

Proofreading is the final step, focusing on catching surface-level errors after the editing process.
This includes:

* Grammar and Punctuation: Misspelled words, incorrect verb tenses, punctuation
mistakes, and subject-verb agreement issues.

* Formatting: Inconsistency in font size, spacing, margins, and adherence to style guides.

» FactualAccuracy: Checking dates, figures, and proper names for accuracy.

Tem:her s Note

* Ask students to analyse how an author's choices concerning how to structure specific
parts of a text (e.g., the choice of where to begin or end a story, the chioice to provide a
comedic or tragic resolution) cnntnhute to lts ovaral[ strutture and fmeaning as well as
its aesthetic impact. :

* Help them to evaluate the particular elements Gf a story or drama (e.g., how the setting
shapesthe characters or plot)

19



Activity: i \ \7

Instructions: 0\ \\ ( = U

1. Readthe followfng pamge carefu‘[ly

J\l hnﬂn ﬁ'ors ing grammar, punctuation verb, spelling, or sentence structure
rite the paragraph.

Passage:

maria's cat fluffy were always getting into mischief one day he sneaked into the neighbors
garden and dug up their vegetables maria had to apologise profusely and pay for the
. damages after that she decided to keep fluffy indoors more often to avoid any more
l problems

e N
— 1 O\
e ,»(:;. £ ,---.\ ‘1 \\ \ A '~.J U
| |
= “‘\'.& >\ (WY /
A \\ —\‘\\T |"C/ ‘ D~

{
\

- \\ A\ -
b) Multiple paragr aphs esmgmmnes, \rnyl i:ét i a&m\s«w pfay script using mechanics

of correct writing ‘\'\'\ '\\ W\ KNS
\ \\ L\

\_

- ‘(\ N\ B ‘\ 2
ahi&s bg ntlng [
. Sbeiling grammar, capntallzationfpunctuation and
Bramdwer b 2o 1o et P
» Best taught through direct inss:rucuon. practiced and
used within the context of authentic wﬁtmg

experiences
» Often embedded in the Writing Workshop
* May be taught in isolated lessons g

* Observe students’ needs-what mechanics are weakand =
need more focus? I ——
+ Give students opportunities to use, apply and improve ::"E‘:" sl
mechanics within their own writing g

Activity: ]

Using all necessary types af, terises cnrreftly and elements of story writing, write a story
on handling 15531&@ Qh sharing responsibilities in our daily life.

'\j\\] :

20



i )\ s 1 e o
L ' hd .

Ponmmmﬁ Explosion in Pakis aﬁ“

by LubnaNaz
"j:.;Pubhshed inDawn.on Jul M

EI S L

After completing this lesson, you will be able to:
* use complex questions for a range of audiences

* ask and answer higher-order questions to guide/assess reading(e.g., Why is the author saying
this right now? Why did the author choose this word? How is this different from what | read
somewhere else?

« analyse organisational patterns in a text:
a. list/ sequence of ideas/ events comparison-contrast
b. cause-effect
¢. problem-solution
d. reasons/ assumptions-conclusion

* demonstrate knowledge and appllcatlon of parts of spee-ch in oral and written communication in
varying degrees of complemty IVZARIR O R\

¢ comprehend and use contemporary ldlams and proverbs in the different texts and in their
speech. \ L

il mdqce qléhr énd c:oherent writing in which the development, organization, and style are
appropriate to the task, purpose, and audience.



I am S W T N T P—

L)

| O Pre-reading N AN [ (Blo
a) How does population exptasion aﬁect the ecom:my of a cauntry? |
b) Whichplan shou!ﬂbe adopted to create awareness among masses against this th reat?

] I JI I o
As Paklstans populatlan surges past 240
million, the nation grapples with a
demographic crisis demanding urgent
reforms to stave off the looming threats of
poverty and inequality.

Imagine a world with just five billion people.
It was on July 11, 1987, when this milestone
was reached, marking the first World
Population Day (WPD). Fast forward to 2023,
and our planet now teems with a staggering
eight billion inhabitants. This explosive
growth shines a light on the pressing challenges and opportunities that come with such a rapidly
expanding global population, impacting sustainable development, heattlpand weu bemg.

In the heart of this numerical growth lies SouthAsia,(home toéverz 2 btllion peaple Among these
nations, India leads with a population of 1 { bilhan foilaWed by Pakistan's 240 million, and
Bangladesh's 172 million. Ihese ﬁgures are n\ot JUSE- numbers; they are the pulse of a region
undergoing significant dﬁ-mbgraphic shifts, demanding urgent and effective policies to manage
these changes N (NN

Pakistan, in bartlcular faces an astounding scenario. The quality of human resources is under
strain, resources are stretched thin to meet the growing demands, and the nation remains
vulnerable to extremism and climate change shocks.

Literally speaking over population arises when the resources in a country fall short of meeting the
needs of its people. Since its inception Pakistan had to face the problems of illiteracy, poverty,
pollution, unemployment, lawlessness and terrorism, inflation, loans, corruption, defective tax
structure, government instability and many more serious threats. Unless we control our
population increase, these elated problems will not be easily solved.

From 2010 Fo 2015, Pakistan's population i_ncrease rgte While-reading
stood 69pc higher than that of Turkey, Iran, India, Indonesia,
and Bangladesh. Today, its increase rate of 3.6 remains the
highest in South Asia, painting a rather bleak picture of its

demographicrealty,.
It is, therefore, imperative to scrutinise polu:les that have failed to txurb skyrockettng populatlon
growth, A 2~ WLV WA

Even after 74 years of its grwth Paktstan is. stﬂl struggling to ﬁnd a respectable place in the

comity of nations. All. tl'-elrh orts made in the past seem to have gone in vain. Every sector of life
today tells a § rry taté e problem that could be blamed for this bad state of affairs is over
population in the country Over population emerges as the main villain in Pakistan for a number of
reasons, Pakistan's progress, though commendable, is a tale of uneven strides.

How does population arise?

22




Birth rate is the most common indicator that the countries teday use\td keep/a'check on over
population. Pakistan today suffers from a high birthratein the countryand we must be mindful of
it. Aserious thought should be given today tothé factors which have translated the high birth rate
into over population. The advancements in the medical field have led to a sharp decline in the
deathrate. a VWU

\[
The life..g '

ectancy has increased due to the use of improved health technologies. So the decline
in deathrate has in other words led

to the problem of over population. While-reading

Fanistan It » develping country What is the reason of a sharp decline in the death rate?
and like many other countries, it is : ,

trying hard to survive in the
developed world. A huge population of over 180 million that could have been an asset, is today a
huge liability. Fast increasing population is thus a source of constant danger to Pakistan.

Over population has badly hampered the economic growth in the country. This leads to a decline
in the purchasing power of the people. As the demand for the goods decreases, then by “demand
and supply” law, the investment in the country also suffers. Such a stagnant economy will lead to
closing of factories and businesses, and in return add to joblessness and poverty. Even if the
country is somehow successful in attracting foreign investments, still over population will not
allow these investments to have a positive effect on coun_;g‘s..‘g_cgnprr:qn—-;ﬁﬁﬁtﬁf@opulation
means a greater number of hungry souls tolfgled.(‘-._ A CANY [ ( 0 \oNT

Agriculture is also adversely affectedbytﬁer;ﬁidhctense of over population. More population
means smaller farms, and leads toa decline in productivity. People having small farms have no
choice but to migratﬁ-l-iri-,lI"i{:g@‘gf\a‘e better life. This leads to urbanization, which itself is a major

Many sociat evils like lawlessness, crime and corruption are all the result of over population. The
fight over resources has divided the society into two groups i.e. those who have all and are not
willing to share it and second group that is fighting for its mere survival. The fight between haves
and have-nots has the seeds of conflict in it, which, if erupted could imperil the peace and order
in society. Over population has also contributed to toxic pollution. A greater number of vehicles
on the roads means the emitting of poisonous gas for people to inhale. Sewa ge problem and lack
of clean drinking water can also be attributed to the population problem.

Proper measures and decisions should be taken to ensure increase in our literacy rate. In 2016-
17, 13.7pc of children aged 10-17 were trapped in child labour, as reported by the International
Labour Organisation. What's more alarming is that 5.4pc of these children were engaged in
hazardous work which endangered their lives and futures, This exploitation isn't just a tragedy for
the children — it's a ticking time bomb for the country's workforce — setting the stage for a
generation of illiterate and unskilled laborers. s 00

The United Nations Children's Fund (Unicef) sheds light ofi an even darker-reality; 22.8 million
children between the ages of five and 16 are out of school in Pakistan. Instead of learning in
classrooms, these kids are\ tojling away’in car-mechanic shops, selling vegetables on street
corners, or begging for their next meal. This dire situation is alarming and needs to be addressed
on priority basis Eq;qtllﬂlcat&aﬁd aware children of the importance of education.

3



The unchecked population growth, coupled with inadequate planning, speilsdisaster for a
country already strained by scarce resources, \a rising debt bu én ‘poor growth, and
development scenarios. This precarious sltuatlon heighte‘ns disappointment and fuels hatred.

The role of media can help aInt in hrfnging awafe‘ness among masses. With most of the population
of illiterate peuplt:1 a[e‘itronic media can prove to be a huge success in getting the message
across. Print tded a'too needs to emphasize the problem of over population on a more regular
basis. h

According to a report by Population Action International Washington, a great reason for
population increase in Pakistan is that the Government has made a very insignificant investment
in social sector. It is a very serious problem because it leads to frustration, which means chaos.
Chaos means danger to state.

The problem must be tackled pragmatically. Otherwise our dream of a bright and glorious future

will just remain a wish. Astrong Pakistan should be our top priority, and if we have to make certain
hard decisions, no one should hesitate to co-operate. Pakistan comes first even before our

personal vested interests.

Pakistan stands at a crossroads. The future of the nation depends on it. Addressing these
multifaceted challenges is not just an option — it's a necessity.

The population is divided into three basic groups. o /\(\ \
A ara || .;*Ef; \o =+
Children. . ‘ dodin L. Aged
sto-1ayears (||| 1111 Hllgatin

VA

o) vosi-reading
What is needed to implement the checks to over population?

Reference (Dawn 11 July 2024 Theme: Population Education)

The theme is to influence challenges which occur due to over-population, understand the
impact and take measures accordingly.

ﬁ!ﬂﬂqaw ____~60)

vulnerae capable of belng ald:tacjtedt damagacl WU
milestone breakthrough S\t

staggering_l AR mlﬂ.%i ng

sustainable viable, continual

24



demographic | analytical, numerical ' o2
astounding overwhelming, stunmngty surpnsmu b

scrutinize analyze, to inquire, @spm

comity _ }courteousness, Civility

crnssroads" "™ at an important point of someone’s life

hamper to prevent someone from easily doing something

stagnant dormant, inactive, static

hazardous full of risk, perilous, unhealthy

inadequate meager, lacking

Comprehension

a) Answer the following question.

Describe the indicator affecting the challenges and opportunities of population growth.
Identify the astounding scenario of Pakistan regarding population growth.

Explain the importance to scrutinise policies that curb population growﬂ't ,,,,,,

Assess the hampering of economic growth by over populatldd AL

Write down the social evils which are ;hg rexutt of o\rerpnpulation

‘Demand’ and suppl{ fonhul*a play,r- ﬁn}mportant role in the economy of a country, Devise a
plan to resolve ths issue. ) |

Descrﬂied'ie&:king time bomb for the country’s work force.
How can the role of media bring awareness among people?

O WU o W N -

b) Circle the correct meani ng of the following words.

1) toxic

a) dangerous b) septic c) precise
i) hamper

a) flatten b) hinder ¢) connect
a) hazard | bytpotution - |\ ||\ ) /) mischief
iv) stagnant N

a) ﬁlthy] | b) static c) difficult

25




Description,
Explanation

v
A tople, idea,
person,
m, or
thing is
described or
explained,

Patterns of Organization

Compare &

Contrast

L i

Problem & ™

Solution

k2

Shows how
2 or more
things are
alike and/eor
how they are
different.

. ;..M ‘U.-'-

mm_
wrong and

how t was
or could be

1.

6‘

7.

To analyze urganizational patterns in a text, you typically look at how the authprstfuctures the
information. . .

Chronological: Information isrpresentgd m t,hE or\der f: &cui’red often using time
markers like “first,”"then,” “next,” etc.| This \pattern‘is'common in historical texts,
biographies, and nrxesmssa;‘s. \\ WS
Spatial: | ation\ s organized based on physical location or arrangement. This
P@mﬂ&ﬁzlﬂmon in descriptive writing, travel guides, and spatial analysis.

Cause and Effect: This pattern explores the relationship between events, actions, or
phenomena. It presents causes followed by their effects or vice versa. Signal words
might include *because,” "consequently,” “as a result,” etc.

Problem and Solution: The text presents a problem or issue and then proposes one or
more solutions. This pattern is common in persuasive essays, policy papers, and articles
addressing social issues.

Compare and Contrast: Information is presented by highlighting similarities and
differences between two or more subjects. Signal words might include "similarly,” "in
contrast,” "on the other hand,” etc.

Classification and Division: Information is organized into categories, subcategories, or
groups based on shared characteristics. This pattern is common in scientific
classification, taxonornfes, and organizational structures.

Sequential or Process: Similar to chronological, but focuses specifically on the steps or
stages in a process or procedure. This pattem ls commqn in, instructional wﬂting,
technical manuals, andrecipes. - (' ‘0, \o=
“Problem-Solution: This pattern ouﬂinesa prohlem o issue and then presents one or
more solutions. (it's' commonly used in_persuasive writing, policy proposals, and
araumentati\reemys

TOP‘FHP* Géneral-to-Speciﬁc The text starts with a broad overview and then narrows
down to specific details or examples. This pattern is common in academlc essays,
research papers, and some types of journalism.

26




Unit 2: Popu!ation Explosion in Pakis!_an

rActivity' Analyze the! urganl:ational patterns in text of this unit and gather the
relevant informatior WA\
. Jlisqi beduence of ideas!event_s comparison-contrast
. cause-effect
¢. problem-solution

\ d. reasons/ assumptions-conclusion | : r

- = Discuss how some communities are experiencing the effects of population growth, such
as lack of food and space.- Same can be said for housing. Over population also puts
pressure on the environment. ‘

¢ What can we do to minimize the impact of population growth?

* Make groups to discuss this drastic population increase since the inception of Pakistan.
» Discuss the cause of this population increase, and how can it be taken care of.

¢ Compare and contrast the population of Pakistan with lndia,, China, Malaysia.

— A\ .."" |' ."\‘
> ‘e -, \ '. .I ‘. [ L _,/\-

Inference -~ O A\ .
1.  Doyouthink illiteracyaffecﬁﬂle economyof’z country’
2. Will 1tbeadvisablé *tovimitthesrzeofthe family?

Iolllulwihd Grammar
a) Parts of speech in oral and written communication in varying degrees are as given under.

Parts of Speech

Parts of speech are the fundarnen tal building blocks of language, and understanding their roles is
crucial for effective communication.

- e BT T ; the fastest car
Naming people, places, Mahmud owns the
Nouns . | = They decided to buy the house
things & ideas/concepts * | believe in free speech _
Adjectives Describing nouns and b That was an m“‘ Y
pronouns N AR ARG
Modifying verbs » She is completely wrong _
Adverbs : . They are extremely happy,
adjacﬂves & advarbs . .F The driver arrived. vem guicklz
| Federer plays R
. ) T&kﬂ timﬂth'. b.ie ST anTE 5&»
. G Is onthe ta
Prepositions a \\ "-._ﬁmirﬂae;ﬁggzg‘ps Df * He went into the room
NI NS S . Ima ainst eating at night
NNV 2 gave hera
Pronouns - Replacing nouns . Whydid you push me? - '-& N
s Please look after you rsalf e,

27



- ""3{"-."\".
\ ( \{\)

o HG{S‘QH 4'- IS“ITI
Conjunctions i'omlng ufgrds}j):hrasas &1 wait (< she arrives
WSS M\ v\ ) . To@‘%ck IIh‘ses not here
il s brilliant news!
Interjections .mng\ strohg amonons . , that really hurt
1 g~ . lHow are you doing?

NN M
Why are thd parts of speech important?
These building blocks allow us to construct sentences and communicate complete ideas. Each

part of speech plays a specific role. They also unlock more advanced grammar and writing
concepts.

As we move into a little bit more advanced English lessons about sentence structure, we will start
to discuss the different types of sentences, like complex sentences, simple sentences, and
compound sentences. It also includes how to identify the direct object and indirect object of a
sentence. There is also a difference between an independent clause and a dependent clause and
adifference between a main verb and a helping verb.

This might all seem like boring grammar topics now, but learning all of these building blocks will
make your life so much easier when you try to speak and write fluently in English.

Proper sentence structure A \

The order words appear in a sentence depends on their paﬁofspdéﬁh Krmwing i ii Wrd isa
noun, verb, adjective, etc. allows you tu;.truclure sentei\c:ﬁs properl ~"

For example, English sentences qftenfol,lb\'(a sub}é;t verb- obj ectorder. The subject is usually a
noun or pronoun, the verst an a&itiun word=\and the object receives the action. Parts of speech
tell you which wnrq:p]lﬁm those roles.

Using the Hﬁwﬁteme structure makes your writing clear, coherent, and easy to understand.
Correct punctuation

Punctuation like periods, commas, and semicolons belong in certain places around parts of
speech.

For instance, commas go between items in a list of adjectives. Periods indicate the end of a
sentence containing a subject and predicate. Knowing parts of speech guides you to use
punctuation correctly.

Proper punctuation makes writing flow smoothly and conveys ideas clearly.

More engaging writing style

Relying too much on one part of speech makes writing boring. Overusing nouns and verbs leads to
a repetitive, unsophisticated style.

Varying your parts of speech adds flavor to your writing. Well-placed adjectiyes am:l aclverbs add
vivid description. Astrategically used lnterjecti oncan grabthe reade r'srattendon

Understanding parts of speech unlocks your aﬁihtﬂo craft more erlgaging prose.

\..
L L

Improved reading comprehenslen

When reading, :?eﬁtif ying! the rote each word plays as a part of speech helps you analyze the text
cﬂﬁcally .

28



_— _'--\. -,"\".
O\

Seeing how the author uses nouns, verbs, adjectives, and aﬂ'ler }:larlsrof ‘speecl'r prcwides deeper
insight into the meamng lt allnws you m tﬁscern subtletles and |patterns that create a richer
reading experience. O\ \ VWD

SlmpleCommunIcation VL3
. Oral i tﬂll‘WnaénelsKamran (Noun)lcan help you today. (Verb)"
&en' “The cat sat on the mat. (Noun, Preposition, Noun)”

Descriptive Communication:
» Oral;: "Wow, that (Interjection) sunset is (Adjective)! The fiery orange and purple hues
(Adjectives) create a breathtaking view. (Adverb)”
+ Written: “The ancient (Adjective) castle loomed on the hilltop (Noun), its crumbling
(Adjective) towers are a stark contrast to the vibrant (Adjective) wildflowers blanketing
the slopes below. (Adverb)"

Complex Communication:

« Oral: "While artificial intelligence has revolutionized (Verb) many industries, it's
important to consider the ethical implications (Noun) as well. (Conjunction) On the one
hand, it can improve efficiency, but on the other hand, it raises questions about job
displacement. (Conjunction)" W\

* Written: "Although the protagonist's journey was- fraugm; Wil; pirﬂ (Nuun), her
determination (Noun) and resaurcsfulneks\(ﬂoun\ yltimately 1&d her to triumph (Verb).
(Conjunction) Thg story se serves\ a\s a/ powerful réfmhder that even in the face of advemty,

perseverance can prﬂvaj I (Cbnju

= -,

\

ﬁcﬁﬂtxl\%té hs@nteﬁe for each of the eight parts of speech:
A
Noun:

Verb:

Adjective:

Adverb:

Pronoun:

Preposition:

Conjunction:

Interjection: —

A0 L 'u- J

b) Comprehend and use cuntemporan; Idiqms and proverbi in the diﬁereﬁt texts and in their
speech : i~ \ U

Idioms:

Anidiomisa eEah ur éxpression whose meaning is not predictable from the usual meanings of its
constituent elﬁents, often having a figurative rather than literal meaning. ldioms are unique to

29



specific languages or cultures and are commonly used in e XThgﬁm& add color,

humor, or emphasis to language. \ r \
Example: "Kick the bucket|i ;p-«i{% hgg‘ t&) ts li eral meaning would suggest
t&?{ t

physically kicking a bucket ng is understood within the context of the idiom

itself. \D .\\,
Proverbsw,\‘g\ \”\ :

Aproverb is a short, well-known saying that imparts wisdom, advice, or a universal truth based on
common sense or cultural experience. Proverbs are often handed down through generations and
encapsulate societal values and beliefs. They are meant to provide guidance or convey moral
lessons.

Example: "A stitch in time saves nine" is a proverb advising that addressing a problem early can
prevent it from becoming larger or more difficult to solve later.

IDIOMS VS PROVERBS
Idioms are a fixed expression that contain | Proverb is a short, well know saying that
a figurative meaning. contains an advice.

Proverb contains a moral or an a based
Idioms do not contain a moral.
v enral (01

Idioms are phrases not complete sentences, /ﬁﬁmﬁg@#\@#@ o~
Idioms do not make i \%(\g\, @o}\eﬁs‘\:\ﬁnﬁ’ﬁe understood even if you are
familiar with it. ﬂ : \\E : \ \hearing it for the first time.

I ™
AcnvltyW this unit we will learn to make sentences with the contemporary
idioms. Make meaningful sentences after using these idioms given below.

Hit the nail on the head:  To do or say something exactly right.

Piece of cake: Something very easy to do.

Break the ice: To initiate conversation in a social setting.

Bite the bullet: To endure a painful or difficult situation with courage.
Cost an arm and a leg: To be very expensive.

On cloud nine: To be extremely happy.

Cut to the chase: To get to the point without wasting time.
.Burn the midnight oil: To work late into the night.

Break the bank: To spend more money than one can afford.

Jump on the bandwagon: To join or support something that is already popular.

A piece of the pie: A share of something, usually profits or benefits.

Beat around the bush: To avoid addressmg the main topic mspeagg@gqﬂg
Let the cat out of the bag: To reveal a secre T ?

Take it with a grain of salt: To not aﬁz Q{n \t \ssméu\sw obe skEptzcal
Hit the sack: q .g,ge—[é\

A dime a dozen: J \\\ hmﬁ commun or easy to obtain.

\ \

\ Get cold fee\tr\lx\] \IE ?Tsddenly become nervous or hesitant, U

\T‘\VF b

S

30



Clear and coherent writing in,wh;ctlx the de«relop]'nent organization, and style are
appropriate to the task; purpqse‘ ‘ahd audience.

\ Y T
\.'-. \ T\ O\ VN =

A\ '3-_»] ) WAL Y

Writing. tpg!q |ﬂth clear and cohesive is
necessary to effectively communicate -
concepts, details, or arguments to a | .
particular audience. .
Clarity: Easy reading for the target |
audience is a sign of clear writing. It stays
clear of jargon, ambiguity, and =
complicated language. Clear writing &
ensures that readers Understand the | ™
intended message without difficulty by P&,

using simple language, accurate |
terminology, and logical explanations.

Coherence: Writing that is coherent
builds a coherent story or argument by ATAN [ (@

making sense transitions betwee h;nent\ wnnng keeps tone, style, and
structure constant throughout\;he t )&{ allb ng readers to navigate the information
easily and logically. By \hdk%tihg \changes in topic or emphasis, transitions between
paragraphs af @Wﬁ‘ai&m the coherence of the text.

Develap\nént Well-developed writing goes in-depth into the selected subject or thesis
and offers enough proof, examples, and analysis to back up its assertions. Development is
the process of arranging concepts logically, building on earlier ideas to produce a
thorough comprehension of the topic at hand. Every paragraph advances the main
concept farther, highlighting the author’s intent and piquing the reader's curiosity.
Structure: Writing that is well-organized has a distinct outline that improves reading
comprehension. To do this and to help readers navigate the content, headings,
~ subheadings, and bullet points may be used to break up the text. Depending on the type

of writing assignment, effective organization also entails placing data in a logical order,
either chronologically, spatially, or thematically.

Appropriateness to Task, Purpose, and Audience: Writing is adapted to satisfy the
particular demands of the assignment, fulfill the purpose that is intended, and connect
with the intended audience. This entails taking into account aspects mcbudmhthe writing
task's aims and objectives in addition to the audjence‘s dembgraphicr past knowledge,
and expectations. The appropriate\ adjustmmts Jare) made to the style, tone, and
formality level to guaranneé efﬂcacy\and{elevanq

N

)\
\\] ]I ]|| ™

3



a) Activity: Read the following passage- qnd lmswer the questiqﬁ& beluw hased on thew
principles of clear and coherent wrlﬂng A\ =N

Passage: = RIS

"Many people te hpve comerns about the environment. There are various environmental
issues that L ed to be addressed. These issues include pollution, deforestation, and climate
change. Pollution is harmful to the envi ronment. Deforestation involves the cutting down of
trees. Climate change is a global issue.”

Questions:

Clarity:

a) Identify any ambiguous or unclear phrases in the passage.

b) Rewrite one unclear sentence to improve clarity.

Coherence:

a) Does the passage flow logically from one idea to the next? Why or why not?
b) Identify any transitions that could improve the coherence of the passage.
Development:

a) Does the passage provide sufficient detail and explanatinn abouuhe enyivmmeﬁtal issues
mentioned? _q,- N\ N . | A e

c: Yo~

' b) Suggest one additionat detail or\exgnmle that CQuld enhanqe the development of the
passage. o\ ~~= \ K M

| Organization: ‘\"'\"\'- n‘u\‘-. r\\': ‘\ Ao

a) Describe th&veﬂl ofganization of the passage. Is it effectively structured?

b) Prnpoke one way to reorganize the passage to improve its clarity and coherence.

b) Writing a Clear and Coherent Essay

« Choose a topic related to environmental conservation, such as recycling, renewable
energy, or endangered species.

« Write an essay (approximately 5 paragraphs) about the chosen topic, ensuring clarity
. and coherence in your writing.

 Pay attention to the organization of your paragraph, use of transitions, and
development of ideas to create a well-structured and cohesive piece of writing.

+ Review and revise your essay to improve clarity, coherence, and overall effectiveness. j
e, - . -
Teacher's Note
' Hel students to ask and answer higher-order questions to guide/assess rea c;i\%[e 8., Why is the
uthor saying this right now? Why did the author choose this word? How is this emnt from what
l read somewhereelse? 0 20000
« Encourage them to demonstrate knowledge and appli;atianoi par&spr spgeeh fn ural and written
communication in varying degrees of complexity, (| A\
« Let them comprehend and use cuntemmrv ldaoms and pmver’bs in the different texts and in
their speech.
+ Encourage them to \pruduce clear and toherent writing in which the development, organization,
and style areappm:nate tothe task, purpose, and audience,

NINANA

A

32




THE INCOME-TRAK MAN

Mark Twain (1835-1910)

After completing this lesson, you will be able to:

engage in extended discussions and critique taking into account other speakers’ viewpoints and
presenting one’s own with clarity and coherence.

analyse how an author's choices concerning how to structure specific parts of a text {e.g., the
choice of where to begin or end a story, the choice to provide a comedic or tragic resolution)
contribute to its overall structure and meaning as well as its aesthetic impact

use pre-reading and while-reading strategies to analyze and explore different layers of meaning
with in texts including biases and opinions.

pravide an objective summary of a range of texts.

demonstrate knowledge and application of parts of speech in oral and wntten q:ommtmicatnon in
varying degrees of complexity. ~ XN [ o \oo~-

identify and use compound preyositmns and preposftfanal phrases. in wntmg

use summary skills to/ wﬁte an obj ective summary of the given text and poems.



T — . ——— A Cafl L A AA ALY
. - - -

flc“" S\

) Pre-Raading N oY (8o~ |
a) Whyare we socially and maraNy obi:guted to pay aur taxes honest!y?
b) Would yau like toba apqrt of th&thx collect?on system?l:'xplaln

The first notice thﬁ ﬂas tﬁken of me, when | settled down " recently, was by a gentleman who
said he was an assessor, a word that | did not understand very well. | said | had never heard of his
branch of business before, but | was very glad to see him in spite of that_would he settle down? He
sat down. | did'not have anything particular to say, but | felt that people, who have arrived at the
important position of keeping a house, must be conversational, must be easy and friendly in
society. So, as | could think of nothing else to say, | asked him if he was opéning his shop in our
neighborhood. He said he was. (I did not wish to appear to know nothing, but | had hoped he would
mention what he had for sale. )

How is trade?” | asked him and he said, “Fair”. While-réadlnl

| then said we would visit his shop and if we liked | wiiie the narrator talks and the visitor

i; a: well as any other, we would give him oUr | 3ughs what is the narrator thinking about?
usiness.

‘_ He said he thought we would like his place of business well enough, to use no other- he said he had
ever met anybody who would go off and hunt up another man, in the samekind of, bus.ine:ss1 after
trading with him once. That sounded rather too conﬁl:lent bu.t.the l‘ﬂﬁw lpnrlgecl hnn:es\t enough.

| do not know how it happened exactly, bquradual.lv we appeare\d to becnme more friendly in our
conversation and then everything went along very tmnfartaﬁly We talked and talked and talked-
atleast | did; and we laughed hﬁd taughedand laughed-at least he did.

~ But all the time. mih& Warked hard. 1 was determined to find out all about his business in spite

of his mysterfous answers, and | was determined that | would get it out of him, without him
knowing, what | was doing. | intend to trap him with a deep , deep trick. | would tell him all about
my business and he would naturally grow to be like me so much that he would forget to be careful,
and he would tell me all about his affair before he realized what | was trying to do.

| thoug'ht of saying to him, “Sir, you little know what a clever person you are dealing with.” But |
said: “Now you would never get how much money | made, giving talks to people thi= winter, and
last spring”. “No-| don't believe | could, to save my life. Let me see-let me see. About two
thousand dollars, perhaps? But no; no, sir, | know you couldn'c have made so much as that. Say
seventeen hundred?

“Hal Ha! | knew you couldn't guess. | received for my talks last spring, and this winter, fourteen
thousand seven hundred fifty dollars, What you think of that?”

“Well, it's very surprising-that's a very large amount of money, | will make a note of it. And you say
even this wasn't all?” R

“All! My dear sir, there was my income from the newspaper-The Dml;f Warwhmp-‘abaut about-
well what would you say to about eight thuusanddollafs for bxarnplé”’ |

“Say! Well, | say | should hketo seemyself rulling ln just such an ocean nf money. Eight thousand!

I'll make a note of it. Well.l manl And in addition to all this, am | ta understand that you had still
more. | I YNJ o\-
NN

W

34



“Hal Ha! Ha! You're only at the beginning of it. | wrote a book-The| innacence Abmad pﬁce three
and a half to five dollars, according to the caver. Listen to'me. Lomt me'inthe ¢ eye. During the last
four months and a half we've sold ninety-five' thousand copies of that book. Ninety-five thousand}
Think of it, Average four dbllaﬁ a cupy. perhaps At’s nearly four hundred thousand dollars, my
dear sir, | get half". W\

“Good Heqvemsi ﬂil erite that down Fourteen-seven-fifty---eight---two hundred. Total, about

-well, | can hardly believe it_ the total is about two hundred and thirteen or fourteen thousand
dollars! Is that possible?”

) While-reading

“Possiblel If there is any mistake, it's
the other way. It's more. Two hundred |How does the narrator feel when the visitor stands
and fourteen thousand is my income for \Up without telling anything about his business?
this year, if | knowhow to add up.”

Then the gentleman got up to go and handed me a large envelope, and said that t contained
everything. | might like to know about his business would in fact be proud to have the business of a
man with such a large income.

As soon as he had gone, | opened his envelope. | studied the papers carefully. | then called the
cook and said! “Hold me while | faint”.

Ah, what an evil man he was! His envelope contained nothing in r.he wortd, excepta, fDm'l on which
to report my income, for the purpose of income tax, a long'tismf Hnﬁolltequeﬁmns about my
private affairs, filling the best part of four lépg pageg uf srnall print questions, | may say, formed
with such wonderful skill,-that’s, tbeﬂdést and wisest—
man in the world couldn't’ uﬂd&rttand the meaning of | While-reading

most of them_questiors, too, that were designed to | what does the narrator find inside

make a rem ut four times his actual income, to | the envelope the visitor gives him?
stop himself telling a lie. | looked for a way out of my T

troubles, but there did not appear to be any. :
Inquiry number 1 covered my case generously and completely. | know a very wealthy man whose

" house is a palace, who spends a great deal, but a man who as no income, as | have often noticed

when looking at the list of taxes paid by other citizens. And | went to him for advice.

He took my papers, picked up his pen and suddenly, | was a very poor man. It was the neatest thing
that ever was. He did it simply by cleverly arranging the list of allowances. He wrote down my
“state, national and city taxes” as so much; my “losses by flood, fire and so on” as so much; my
“losses on sales of property”, and “animals sold”, on “payments for rent of home”, on “repairs
and improvements” as so much. He wrote down “salary, already axed, as an officer of the United
States army or other services” as so much. He wrote down other things. He found unbelievable
amounts to set against my income from each one of these allowances each and every one of them.
And when he had finished he handed me the paper, and | saw immedlately that during the* year my
income, as my profits, had been one thousand two bundred and ﬁﬂy daftars andforty cents.

“Now, he said, “The thousand dollars is free from tax by la\m What you must do is to go and swear
that this information is true and then pay taxon the two titindred and fifty dollars.” (While he was -
making this speech, his litt!e boy, Willie lifted a two_dollar note out of his pocket and
disappeared, and|{ feeq duite sure that if my stranger went to see that little boy tomorrow the boy
would tell ltei abﬁut hisincome.) '

35



“Do you, said |, do you always arrange the allowances in thjs way! fnr youmwn incerne srr?"

“Well, of course. If we did not have these. ete'fewquestions under the headmg of allowances, |
would become a beggar every yearmorder to suppOrt this hateful and evil, this cruel and terrible

government. This gentleman standk very high among the very best of the rich men of the city the
* men of moral va!qg de high business standards, of great social standing-and so accepted his
suggestion,/ |y sent down to the tax office, and under the cold eyes of my previous visitor | stood up
* and swore to the after lie, trick after trick, under my soul was coated with a thick layer of lies and
my self-respect was gone forever.

g
& Post-reading
What does the narrator decide to do from then on about his income?

Notes and Comments

Mark Twain was the pen name of Samuel Langhorne Clemens (1835-1910). He was one of
America’s greatest and most beloved writers. He had travelled widely, and was a man of many |
talents, known for his outspoken opinions and humour of which, “The Income-Tax Man" is a fine
example. “There is no one who does not exaggerate, “Ralph Waldo- Emerson ha.ua\d \but there
is no one who did it as well as Mark Twain Besides addrqss‘ing perit)hs {ssues; he has lefta legacy
of joy and laughter. « \ A0 (A WV Y ]

Theme ] [|‘J|]

The Incon{e Li'ak Man is a typical example of placing a burning social issue at a high pedestal for
the readers. After reading it the curiosity arises to be a part of the system. The story holds the
reader’s interest all along on a subject that concerns almost every citizen.

Glossary

Words Meanings Synonyms

assessor g‘r‘fh‘;r;:nﬁ;ﬂaotg: :)ha? dva e/t of something toestablisha charge
cold-eyes . not friendly, without emotion

conversational adopt a conversational manner _ |
determined firm, resolute ' N : _}_.;_f_;‘g__;:"-,_-.
drop in the ocean gr‘i"-::f‘g}ggo small Lomake ény |mpfovement

mysterious .\__difﬁcult to understand or explam

swear NN take an oath

36



a) Answer the following, quesﬂon. QWAL - U
1 Whatisthe author‘s ﬁrst impresswn of the \nsltor?
Do If.!'u![' oHempﬂg lines of the unit contain any hidden implication? Describe briefly.
" Why did he start asking the stranger about his business?
Is the author against paying taxes or just criticizing people who do not pay taxes?
Why did the author call his cook and say “Ho |d me while | faint?”
In what way was the author able to save income tax?
What did the envelope contain?
How was the author able to save income tax? ;
9 Whatisyour impre'ssion about the “very best of the rich men of the city”?

b) Complete the blanks by using the appropriate answers.

0 ~N O s W N

1. lwas to find out all about his business in spite of his
answers,
2. 1 to trap him with a deep, deep tnck ~A0
3. The gentleman to go and hande;lme 3 largie envehbpe, and said that
| eVErythlng., Q A \WWNWLY,
4. He found - ’ a\mbuhts to\séf agalnst my income fro:+ each one of
these QL) each\and every one of them.
5. “N w.] hﬁ sqﬂ! “The thousand dollars is free from by law. What you must do
\isto gJ) and that this information is true and then pay tax on the

two hundred and fifty dollars.”

c) Analyse through the story “The Income Tax Man” that how an author’s choices concerning
how to structure specific parts of a text means how did the story begin or ended. Whether the
choice was to provide a comedic or tragic resolution and how did it contribute to its overall
structure and meaning as well as its aesthetic impact,

Engage in extended discussions and critique taking into account other speakers’ viewpoints
and presenting one's own with clarity and coherence.

Engaging in extended discussions and critiques is a valuable skill that allows us to explore
complex issues, learn from others, and refine our own thinking.

1. Active Listening and Understanding Viewpoints: ~ER\

* Payclose attention: This means not just wai*ingfor ydqr turn to speak but trul)Ir absorbing
the other person's arguments and reasomng WY

*» Acknowledge their per&pectlvv Show them you ve heard them by summarizing their key
points or concerns, P‘Iwases like. That's an i mportant point” or “l understand where you're
conlﬂ ng fpml éstaiblish aioundation for respectful dialogue.

WY

37



2. Presenting Your Own Perspective Clearly: O\ . \ ([CONLY

* Articulate your ideas: Once you‘vé acknnwledged the other speaker it's your turn to
. present your stanf.e. Clearly state gqur position and support it with evidence or logical
reasoning. SRR R L=

» Use ﬁxa le ind ﬂlustrations Real-world, scenarios or data can make your argument
more l‘eldtable and impactful,
3. Building on |deas Through Collaboration:

¢ Find common ground: Look for areas of agreement, even if minor. This can help establish
a sense of teamwork in exploring the issue.

» Explore solutions together: Instead of simply opposing each other, see if you can
brainstorm solutions that address both perspectives. This collaborative approach can lead
to more creative and nuanced solttions.

4. Maintaining Respectful Discourse:

» Focus on ideas, not personalities: Even when disagreeing, avoid personal attacks or
insults. Critique the argument, not the person makingit,

» Acknowledge limitations: Be open to the possibility that you might not have all the
answers. Show your willingness to learn from others.

» Use a professional tone: This means avoiding overjy empﬁﬁnak Iariguage of dISITIlSSIVE
phrases. A O A\ | (&6
Additional Consideratiops: \ . — | 70\ (08
« Consider the context: 1‘he 1evel oﬁormahty and the specific topic will influence your
cmnmunrcypaphlyle =
» Bel % Iof nonverbal cues: Maintain eye contact, use open body language, and avoid
interrupting to establish rapport and show you're engaged.

* Ask clarifying questions: If something is unclear, don't hesitate to ask for clarification.
This ensures you're both on the same page and avoids misunderstandings.

Activity: Engage in a nuanced discussion about the benefits and potential
drawbacks of paying taxes. _ X

Preparation:
1 Brainstorm individually: Before the discussion, take 5 minutes to write down your
thoughts on the following questions:

a. What are the main benefits of paymg taxes? (rmnu 1nfrastmcture, soc:lal
programs, etc.) ~ DA ta b N[ (o)c

‘|-"\

- b. Are there any situations where taxes seem unfa|r or lnefﬁcient?
L Hnw can the tao: system be. ‘mproved to be more equitable?

38



Y '\‘
~ M\ \
r ‘|

2 Choose roles {optional): For an added layer af comple*ity. clmsewles fur the
discussion. Here are some nptions AN N

a. Taxpayer :\dvocate
b. Government, Ofﬁc:ial
Edm{bmist )

d “Business Owner
e. Social Worker

Parts of speech
Noun

‘\,I‘\

Noun is the name of a person ,place or thing. For example:Apple, Ali ,chair, book ,house, etc.

h-/Countable Nouns

Proper Nouns
: Nouns that can be
Specific names of
people, place, or toun‘ted ars:l ha\rel
things. si:ztdar and plura
forms.
E.g. Book (singular),
J \__books (plural). /

Nouns for groups or
collections of
people, animals, or
things.

E.g. Team, family,
\_ flock.
(" Activity: E
Write three examples for these followfng parts of speech.
Prepar o R~/
Common Noun I, ﬁ (C @Ok

Collective Noun Vel VL VN
ConcreteNoun. o |\ |\ ||\

Absmctﬂé“n S ' : )

39



Phrasal Verbs are combinations of a verb and one or more particles (preposimns or adverbs}
that, when used together, create a meaning different from the individual words. They are
widely used in English and cam, be challengmg to master due to their idiomatic nature.

Types of Phrasal Verbs (| |\ (||~

1 Transltfve Phra‘SJF VErbs Require an object.
o Example She gave up her job.

2. Intransitive Phrasal Verbs: Do not require an object.
o Example: He woke up late. -

3. Separable Phrasal Verbs: The object can come between the verb and the particle.
o Example: She turned off the tights. or She turned the lights off.

4. Inseparable Phrasal Verbs: The verb and particle cannot be separated.
o Example: We ran into an old friend.

Commonly used Phrasal verbs
Learn and practice these commonly used phrasal verbs in your daily routine.

Phrasal Yerb Meaning Example Sentence
Break down | Stop functioning Q B Thecarbque' dawn on'the highway.
Bring up Mention or raise a tamc \( (| She-brought up the issue in the
' \ \\ \_\__\_'-,__5‘ | meeting.
Call off Capcﬂ :rpmet.hing The match was called off due to rain.
Find out | \'/| Discover information | need to find out where he lives.
Give up Quit or stop trying Don't give up on your dreams.
Look after | Take care of someone or I'm looking after my younger brother
something today.
Look forward |Anticipate something with I'm looking fo-rward to the holidays.
to excitement
Put off Postpone or delay The meeling was put off until next
week.
Run into Meet unexpectedly I ran into my teacher at the mall.
Take off Remove clothing or leave the The plane took off on time.
ground
Turn down Reject an offer or request She turned down the job offer ._
Work out Exercise or find a solution | They finally wnrked nut thear
e differences. -
Make up Reconcile-or inyent a-s"tdrii [\ U They made up’ after their argument.
Back out wuhdqw frum a commitment She backed out of the agreement (ast
; AR minute,
Cut down on-~ Reduce the amount of something |You should cut down on sugar.

40



Summary skills to write an objective summary V) |
a) Summary Skills )\ | 70| o

A summary is a brief }statement or restaterrrent of main points, especially as a conclusion to a
work: a surrgrn‘aﬁ of & chapter. Abrief is a detailed outline, by heads and subheads, of a discourse
'1 (usuallylegal) tobe completed: a brief for an argument.

How to write a summary

b * Read the text thoroughly. Read the text several times to ensure you understand
I e everything about the author's message. ...

B » Take notes to identify the main idea. ...
b * |dentify the main arguments. ...

* Prepare your draft, ...

| ¢ Write the summary, ...

f ~* Quote the author. ...

, * Conclude the summary.

' b) Objective Summary f._( .‘.,

-y

An objective summary is a brief description of adacument ﬂd&o of attlar pi‘ece of media. The
summary quickly describes the main thesu‘.;if the work belng summarﬁed along with a few key
supporting points coverediin the dnqument. The bh]ective summary allows a reader to assess a
piece of media qurckly and detﬁe if tﬁﬁy weant to examine it in full.

Benefits of Qb ‘Summaﬁes.

' Veidtomprehension. By summarizing a text, you solidify your understanding of the
key ideas and relationships between them.

* Enhanced Memory Retention: Summarizing helps consolidate information in your
' memoary, making it easier to recall later.

* Effective Communication: You can use summaries to accurately represent a source when
discussing it with others or writing research papers.

¢ Critical Thinking: The process of summarizing requires you to analyze the text and
identify the most importa nt'mformati on.

Characteristics:

* Accuracy: An objective summary faithfully represents the original source, reflecting its
main arguments, claims, or events,

* Neutrality: It avoids expressing persenal opinions, Judgments, or buases Thefocus ison
presenting the information in a neutral and unbiased manner. ANGEOLL

* Conciseness: It's a shortened versmn of the origmal text, Captmng the essence in a
fraction of the origlnal lengzh \( \ \\

* Completeness: Wh!ke mnclse, t-shbultl still cover the essential supporting details that
) ' explmn the maj p pol nts. Unnecessary information or tangents are excluded.

\IA
: :_-.__] ] \ |

T —————. p—

4




How to Write an Objective Summary: .~ N[\ O
1. Read actively: Pay close attention to tha main puints supponlng details, and overall
structure of the text \\ o
2, I|dentify key idfar Underlkle nrhigh light important sentences, phrases, or passages.
Fu;ujs an tlﬂe “what" not the "why™; Stick to descnbing the content, not analyzing it.

. Paraphrase: Use your own words to express the main points, but maintain the original
meaning.

5. Check for accuracy: Ensure your summary accurately reflects the original source and
doesn't introduce any unintended biases.
Applications of Objective Summaries:
s Academic Settings: Summarizing is crucial for studying, note-taking, and writing research

papers.

 Professional Settings: When presenting information from a report, meeting minutes, or
email chain, an objective summary can be a helpful tool.

* Personal Use: Summarizing articles or books can help you quickly grasp the key takeaways
and decide if further.exploration is needed. -

A w

— o ™ '|' T L=k

Activity: Use summary skills to. wﬂ*é an nﬁ]eCﬂVU summa ' ry of this story “The Income
Tax Man”, '. . 0\ \~. \ ™ \ ‘

Teacher's Note
« Ask students to engage in extended discussions and critique taking fnto account other

speakers' viewpoints and presenting one’s own withclarity and coherence. .
+ Let them analyse how an author’s choices concerning how to structure specific parts of a

text (e.g., the choice of where to begin or end astory, the choice to provide a comedic or
tragic resolution) contribute to its overall structure and meaning as well as its aesthetic
impact

+ Help them to demonstrate knowledge and application of parts of speech in oral and

written communication in varying degrees of complexity.
« Encourage them to identify and use compound prepusitionsf anc] Drepositmnal ph rases i

writing
* Introduce them to use .wmmarv sl-;llls to wrﬂ;e an db]ecnve summary of the given text
j l N | ! ..l ¥

42



Rubaiyat of Omar Khayam

Edward Fitzgerald (1809-1883)

T

) After completing this lesson, you will be able to:

’ * use pre-reading and while-reading strategies to analyse and explore different layers of meaning
» listen to texts and carefully analyse the situations/events

» examine anauthor's point of view or purpose in a text

* .demonstrate attentive listening skills while working in a whole class setting and taking turns to
speak with standard pronunciation

* _demonstrate understanding of figurative language, word relationships, and nuances in word
meanings.

* provide an objective summary of arange of texts.

* demonstrate knowledge and application of parts of speech in oral and written com municatinn in
varying degrees of complexity. TAREY

¢ comprehend and use Contempnrar‘y Idiams antl prcwerbs in the different texts and in their speech,
¢ use paraphrasing skltls tu paraphrase apoem.



, "w“‘\ ’\\ “t. n.;n\ :’_h“ﬂ'g E;L \/‘ @@@E 1‘ '
! ,‘ ). © Pre-Reading \ @ \J;i e

',. s :;.- ' a) What doyou
try help you in understunding about the |

| i
3 ’f, .'._ ? A
hisp )
R \“}’}}I;ﬁf:'f@“.‘.mﬂﬁ-fm\

Awake for morning in the Bowl of Night

Has flung the Stone that puts the Stars to Flight:
And Lo! the Hunter of the East has caught

The Sultan’s Turret in a Noose of Light.

The Worldly Hope men set their Hearts upon
Turns Ashes - or it prospers ; and anon,

Like snow upon the Desert’s dusty Face
Lighting a little Hour or two - is gone.

While-reading
What happens t

of gh [\ 1\

awhile of Me and Thee
em'd-----and then no more of Thee and Me.

Wy %
Sy

&
-

W

The Moving finger writes; and having writ,
Move on: nor all thy Piety nor Wit

Shall lure it back to cancel half a Line,
Nor all thy Tears wash out a Word of it.

5

While-reading
What does the Key mean here?

Yet Ah, that spring should vanish with the Rosel

That Youth's sweet - scented manuscript should close
The Nightingale that in the branches sang,

Ah whence, and whither flown again, who knows! Wﬁ '

"%mw“

nk the message of the poet has been forcefully conveyed? Discuss.

BEY TR I ‘\——' i i ¥ . L F e = Ry TaeerEE g s e A Y

¥
! e
2l e il aa® ol

]‘ v - ﬂr g -:;ruf {r.q_,/f b j{r't l ,' v
l'-.l,._ AR ~f A R T -‘
b ﬁ'r. N vy \1\‘; o S i
vog N N \. A



Notes and Comments

Edward Fitzgerald (1809-1883) was an Englnsh wnter, bf.*st known for his Rubaiyat Of Omar
Khayam, which stands-onits own gs a classic of English Literature. It is one of the most

frequently quoted or lync poems.

Fitzgerald is béit hnown for his translation of "The Rubaiyat of Omar Khayyam," a collection of
Persian-poems attributed to the 11th-century poet and mathematician Omar Khayyam.
Fitzgerald's translation, first published anonymously in 1859, became lmmensely popular andis
considered a classic of English literature.

Philosophical and lyrical qualities in the translation of Rubatyat stand out abundantly. It added
a distinct Victorian flair in capturing the essence of Khayyam's original work. Fitzgerald's
version often focused on themes of mortality, the transience of life, and the pursuit of pleasure
in the face of uncertainty.

Fitzgerald's translation gained recognition and acclaim over time, eventually becoming one of
the most widely read and celebrated English translations of Persian poetry. It has been
appreciated for its beautiful language, evocative imagery, and thought-provoking themes.
Edward Fitzgerald's translation of the Rubaiyat of Omar Khayyam remains influential and
continues to be studied and enjoyed by readers around the world.

- 3 R
N \ ] -~ \ Ay

4 \ — LY g | . \ ' i
L T T

Theme A 2 A WU WY
The main theme revolvés arohndthe shcgt lived and ﬂeeting nature of life, the inevitability of
death, and the p uit, of pleasure and knowledge. The message is to encourage readers to
embrace thepi esent moment, find joy in life's pleasures, and consider the deeper mysteries of
existence. R igious belief about life is also there, presenting humans as helpless. Our deeply
held beliefs about God and heaven have also been focused. It contains pithy observations on

love, death, fate and the existence of God and the afterlife.

The poem remains a timeless work of literature that invites readers to ponder the mysteﬁes of
life, love, and the transient nature of human existence.

'Elomn

Meanings Synonyms

awake to getup from sleep arise
bowl basin, drinking vessel
flung . threw, hurled
lo look, see, behuld
Hunter of the East |- the sun— AR\ A N
Turret Al "srnal! tower connected with the building; tower
Noose, of L]gh[fjl NIP the sun rays
45



N A\l ]

hope for worldly gaiﬁs ) T WY/ M To~>

worldly hope i
Turns ashes burnsto the gml.bnd of no use atall f utihs-r
prosper succged =
TSy
- N1 piece of transparent material attached to a
woman's head-dress
past which beyond which
the Moving finger fate, destiny
writ written
moves on refers to hnending appearance of forms
piety quality of being pious
wit wisdom, intelligence, understanding
lure entice, recall
it fate, destiny
tears sufferings, pain, repentance N o A0S \
wash out wipe out e 1Pl “‘t\' (epo=
ah expression nisol*rdw\ \\ {,'._j, \ \ ‘_/\ \BR P
sweet-scented Plﬁﬁﬂht,\happi '
should close [\ |/1\'should come to an end
* Youth's manuscht manuscript: a book, document
nightingale suggests the spirit of joy and youth
whence . from where, from what place or source
whither to what place or point
Comprehension

a) Answer the following questions.
1 What is the overall theme or message of the poem “Rubaiyat of Omar Khayam"?

L% I N T

o

I

7 Name the onlfy qeqtain thing inlife.
8 What tis H\é 'narratwe perspective used in the poem?

How does the poem explore the concept of mortality and the fleeting nature of life?
Highlight the attitude of the poem about fate and destiny.
Explain the way the idea of ‘Seize the moment'is expressed in the poem., W\

Discuss the role of nature in Rubalyat How dnes Khayam use natural imagery to
convey his ideas? 2 o

How does the poem' partray the ﬁelatmnﬁhp between the mdmdual and the universe.ﬂ

46




b) Figurative Language ~Q\ /A2 \
“The Rubaiyat of Omar Khayyam" is filled wil:i'l rich irnagery, metaphors, and poetic devices. Here
are some of the prominent poetic devices used in “The Rubaiyat of Omar Khayyam'":

Metaphor: Metaphors are used tb \convey “abstract ideas in vivid and imaginative ways. For
- example, T ving finger writes, and having writ, Moves on” employs the metaphor of a
moving finge erto }epresent the passage of time and the inevitability of fate.

Simile: Similes are comparisons that use "like" or "as" to create vivid imagery. An example from
the Rubaiyat is "Like Snow upon the Desert's dusty Face, / Lighting a little Hour or two— is gone."
Here, the fleeting nature of life is compared to snow melting on the desert's surface.

Rhyme: Rhyme is the repetition of similar sounds at the end of lines. The Rubaiyat is known for its
quatrain structure/ The rhyme scheme adds a musical quality to the verses.

Hyperbole: Hyperbole is the use of exaggerated statements or claims for emphasis or dramatic
effect. The Rubaiyat employs hyperbole to emphasize the fleetingness of life and the inevitability
of death. For example, “The Worldly Hope men set their Hearts upon / Turns Ashes—or it prospers;
and anon, / Like Snow upon the Desert's dusty Face, / Lighting a little Hour or two—is gone.”

The poem is rich in its use of language and imagery, providing athought-provoking exploration of
themes such as life, love, mortality, and the pursuit of pleasure,

Paradox: A paradox fs a statement that appears to be self-contradictory but maymeata deeper
truth. In Rubaiyat paradoxical statements are used to explore comptex philesophical themes. For
instance, "The Moving Finger writes; and, hdﬂngwﬁt ! Moves on:nor aﬁhy Piety nor Wit / Shall
lure it back to cancel half a'Line, Nor‘ a\ hy Tears ‘wash out a Word of it.” This paradoxical
statement reflects on the madtahﬂlty of time and the inability to change the past.

These variou pne]:]c qfévices and elements contribute to the beauty, depth, and contemplative
nature of " Rdbatyat of Omar Khayyam." The poem remains a timeless work of literature that
invites readers to ponder the mysteries of life, love, and the transient nature of human existence.

_Attentive Listening Skill
1.  Discuss the meanings of the following lines taken f rom the poem.
‘Look to the Rose'. What is its significance?
‘Like snow upon the Desert's dusty face/Lighting a little Hour or two----is gone----'
2. Whatdoesit referto?
'Ah, whence and whither flown again, who knows—discuss the mood of the line and
underlying questions'.
Inference . )
1. Howwould you justify that man is the architect of hisown fate? — = \(7\(\\
2. Canlamenting over misfortune do any good tq us fnr the years to come’tmscuss

a) Parts of Speech

Verb: Averb isa wardl U'Lat describes what the subject of a sentence is doing. Verbs can indicate
(physical 6rl ntal) actions, occurrences, and states of being.

47



\

Verbs Types Definition Example

Linking Verbs ~ Connects the subject to a ioun, pronoun, or adjective, The flowers smell sweet. &
Auxiliary Verbs Helps lhemairwgrb express {eme.mu-ud.urvnlr_e She is going to the party.

Action Verbs WanaMMt the subject is doing.  The dog chased the cat.
Helping Verbﬁ. J N .| h-ltlllpsthe main verb in a sentence. I should have studies for the test.
many Expresses necessity, possibiity. ability She can speak Spanish fluently.
Tra. Verbs Takes an object in a sentence The student wrote an essay.
Intra. Verbs Does not take an object in a sentence The bird sings in the morning.

Regular Verbs Forms past tense and past participle by adding “.ed” He walked to the store yesterday.
Irregular Yerbs Forms past tense and past participle irregularly  She ate breakfast this moming. (past tense of “eat™)

N

(Activity : Use each type of verb to make a complete sentence. k
Linking verb
Auxiliary verb
Action verb _
Helping verb . i
Transitive verb TN A B ()
Intransitive verb a Qo VRN \ il
Reqular verb 77 \ SN

Irregular verb

= | A 11y L2
-~ [ANAN T ) )

\.

4

Note: Auxiliary verbs and Helping verbs or essentially the same. They are further divided into\
Primary auxiliary verbs and Modal auxiliary verbs.
Primary Auxiliary verbs work together with main verb to create different verb forms “do”,
“have”, “be".
Example: | do not understand his instructions.

They have already left for the function.
Modal auxiliary verbs are used with a main verb to express possibility, ability, permission,
necessity.

Example: She can complete all these tests alone. can could may
The discovery ride may be dangerous. might must shall
You ﬁhm!ld_helppthers. should will would
It might rain today. ought (to) | need (to) | -have (to)

/

b) Comprehend and use contemporary idioms and proverbs in t;he different texts and in their

Proverbs are traditional sayings that aré particular to a certain country. They are short, wise
sayings that usua!byqﬁg: some kindof advice, or capture an idea found in life.

Native Eng’_tjhhij,;jj akers frequently use proverbs in their conversations, and they often do this
without even realizing it. Proverbs sometimes reveal more about the culture of a country than

48



any textbook can. The values of the population are reﬂected m 1&& prwerbs

Most popular proverbsinEnglish - )

There are probably a thnusand prcwerba out there‘* m wfeturate fhis list of the most popular need-
to-know proverbs in Enghsh

1. Many hands make !1ght wul‘k
When many pﬁle work together to accomplish a difficult task, it doesn’ t seem so difficult. That
isthe general meaning of this English proverb. In other words, if people work together, the work is
easier and is completed more quickly.

2. Strike while the iron is hot

This proverb means that you should take advantage of a favorable situation before it changes.

3. Honesty is the best policy

It is best to always be honest and tell the truth. By doing so, you will win the trust and respect of
others. )

4. The grass is always greener on the other side of the fence

Other people's lives always seem better, happier, and more successful than yours, even if your life is
going well.

5. Don't judge a book by its cover

Don't form an opinion or make a judgment about someone or something based on its outward
appearance.

6. An apple a day keeps the doctor away = e \.i \
Since apples are rich in vitamin C - which is vitat-to our, heatth-\'thlsfprqvel:b‘means that proper
nutrition contributes to good health and fe@ér,vtslt\ﬁ bmthe @o(:tqr In"this English proverb, apples
are a symbol of healthy foods, andpmgqr\uh‘itiqﬂ.

A )

7.Betterlatethanneveg;\\ \Cay Q) U N
Itis better to dosometfing & late'than not do it at all,
8.Don'tt and that feeds you

Don't treat badly the person or people on whom you depend on, or who take care of you in some way.

9. Rome wasn't built in a day

Time is needed to do great or important things.

10. Actions speak louder than words

A person's true character can be seen by what he does, not by what he says. A person can talk as

much as he wants, but he may not actually do anything to back up his words.

11. It's no use crying over spilled milk

This funny English proverb means you shouldn't waste time crying or complaining about something

bad that has happened that canrot be changed.

12. Still waters run deep

This is said about a person who tends to be quiet and does not say much Such a person often has a
“deep,” interesting personality.

13. Curiosity killed the cat

You could be harmed by belngtooanwsabnutortmmterestedmsomem Mdmmtmmanyw

14. My hands are tied

This saying is not to be taken literally. It has 1dilj’erent meaming Ii: means that a persun is unable to

change things or render help i ina gwen s;matmm U\

15. Out of sight, out of mind |’ \\ DU

When you don t see or hear ahout sOméthing, you tend to forget about it,

C W NN 'Actiwty. Use the above given proverbs in your sentences. )
m

49




How to Wrte an Obective Summary, /|| ()| |
Step1 || Identify the text i'md the author.

Step 2| 7.Choose a verb that fits with the text, -
d)d , describe, explains, discusses, lists, explores, fllustrates, teaches, compares, states)

Step 3 " Name the theme or central idea.
Step 4 " Identify transition words to include in your summary.

Step 5 Choose 3-5 key details from the text that st?port the theme. Then, put it into
your own words.

[ Step 6 Write your objective summary. (free of personal thoughts)

( Activity: Provide an objective summary of a range of Rubaiyat Of Omar Khayam. J

Paraphrasing Skills
To paraphrase a poem means to rewrite the poem using your own words. A paraphrased poem is
not a summary. Instead, you are going through the poem line by line and ;ewrlﬂng each line
completely in your own words. Be careful not to slmply subsqtute S}qgonmns \That is not true
paraphrasing. D~ N\
Paraphrasing skills are all-about exp ésslng, spmeahe '.else s Ideas in your own words. It's a
superpower for writers becausa it lets you avoid plagiarism and showcase your understanding of a
topic. Here are son qpstoﬁharpenyour paraphrasing skills:
. Gra;p thélm'eahing first: Before you rewrite, make sure you understand the original
content thoroughly.
* Thesaurus time: Synonyms are your friends! Swap out words with similar meanings while
keeping the core ideaintact.
+ Sentence makeover: Play with sentence structure. Change active voice to passive or vice
versa. Break up long sentences or combine short ones for a fresh look.
« Mix and match: Don't be afraid to combine techniques. Use synonyms, change sentence
structure, and maybe even reorder the information to create a truly unique paraphrase.
+ Double check: After paraphrasing, compare it to the original to ensure you've captured
the essence without copying.

( Activity: Paraphrase the “Rubaiyat Of Omar Khayam"” stanza wise. )

hcr‘s Note A { "i'"i‘ 3
Ask students to examine an author's point of view or purposeinatext i \
+ Encourage them to demonstrate attentive llstemng skilts \\dﬂle wtktng in a wholédass settlﬂe and taktng turns to
speak with standard pronunciation
+ Helpthem todemonstrate mdersund'imcf ﬁgurame Lamgmge word retatiohships, and nuances in word meanings.
+ Mativate them to provide anobjective summary of a rangeof texts.
tehimvledgeandappﬁtnhon of parts of speech in oral and written communication in varying

. yer compreher andusemntemporaryId1mrsandpmverb:mmedﬂferenttextsanﬁntheirspeech
i Encangethemtouseparapmsingskillstapuaphrnseapoem

50



THE BLANKET

Floyd Dell (1887-1969)

After completing this lesson, you will be abie to:

.

respoﬁq to questions on a range of communicative purposes

analyze multiple interpretations of a story, drama, or poem (e.g., recorded or live production of a
play or recorded novel or poetry), evaluatirg how each version interprets the source text

examine how an author develeps and contrasts the points of view of different characters or
narrators in a text. Critique tie plot development with respect to different aspects of the story

distinguish between the connotative and denotative meanings of words, both similar and dissimilar
denotations and their appropriate use in a variety of writing and texts

demonstrate knowledge and application of parts of speech in oral and written communication in
varying degrees of complexity 8 . :

comprehend and use contemporary Idiornsand proverbs lﬂ the d:fferent texts and in their speech
apply editing and pruofrending ﬂdlls to a range of different texts and contexts



‘ O Pre-Reading - ~ \anlin) (C
| a) Doyouthink theelders leavea fesspn for the’ youngers at every step they take?
|.. b) What featuresdo ywrnmk dgoadstoryshauld have?

N N,
Note: An éxéellent example of the moral “As you sow, so shall you reap”.
It was a fine September night. A thin white moon rose over the valley. Peter, eleven years old, did

not see the moon. He did not feel the cool September breeze blow into the kitchen, for his
thoughts were fixed on a red and black blanket on the kitchen table.

The blanket was a gift from his dad to his Granddad... a going away gift. They said that Granddad
was going away... that's why they called it “going away.”

Peter had not really believed that his dad would send Granddad While-reading

away. But now—there it was—the going-away gift. Dad had

brought it that very morning. And this was the last evening he | WhY is the blanket called
and his Granddad would have with each other. the going away gift?

= kb -~ R,
N [ (o \o=

Together, the old man and the young boy washed the supper dishes. Dad had gone out... with that
woman he was to marry. He would not be back for some time. When thedishes were ﬂnished the
old man and the boy went outside and sat under themoon, ~ -f:? [ 7 C 'j A

“I'l get my harmonicaand play for you™ tl;le?ﬁld mqn smd “llll play some of the old tunes.”
- But instead of the hannonica \ nheﬁi'ought oﬂtthe blanket, It wasa big, double blanket.

“Now, isn't that a fine anket?"jaid 1he old man, smoothing it over his knees. “And isn't your
father a ki ﬂ pH »-be giving the old man, a blanket like this, to go away with? It costs

something; it did—Look at the wool in it! And warm it will be in these cold winter nights to come.
There will be no other blanket like it up there.”

It was like Granddad to be saying that, he was trying to make it easier. Ever since they talked
about “going away,” Granddad has said it was his idea. Imagine—leaving a warm house and friends
to go to that building... that government place, where he would be with so many other old fellows,
having the best of everything. But Peter had not really believed that dad would do it... until this
night when he brought home this blanket.

“Oh. Yes, it's a fine blanket, ” Peter said and got up and went into the house. He wasn't the kind to
cry, and besides he was too old for that. He had just gone in to get Granddad's harmonica.

The blanket dropped to the floor as the old man took the
harmonica. It was the last night they would have supper [ While-reading

together. Neither the old man, nor the young boy had to Why both the grand dad and the
say a word. Granddad played a few notes and then said, boy did not have a Wn!d m \say?
“You'll remember this one.”

The thin moon was high overhead, and the gentle breeze

blew down the valley. The last time;- Peter thought Hemﬁl.lld never have Granddad play again. It
was well that dad was moving| to a new hduse away from here. He did not want to sit here outside
on fine evenings, under a white moon, with Granddad gone. The music ended, and the two sat for
two min ute'ih iileﬁce Then Granddad spoke, “Here is something happier.”

\..(_/.
A =

52



Peter sat and looked out over the valley, Dad would marry t.hat glrl Yes, that g1rl who had said she
would try to be a good mother to him, and all thnt. N

The tune stopped suddenly, and Granddad sald “It's a poor tune, except to be dancing to.” And
then, “It'sa ﬁne rl cerr dad'is going to marry. He will feel young again with a pretty wife like
that. And. wﬁat me old fellow like me do around the house... getting in the way... an old fool
with all the talk about backaches and pains!

“And then there will be babies coming, and | don't want to be around listening to them cry all the
hours of the night. No, it's best that | leave. Well, one more tune or two, and then we will get to
bed, get some sleep. In the morning, I'll get my new blanket, and take my leave. Listen to this. It's
a bit of a sad tune but a nice one for a night like this.” They did not hear the two people coming

‘ down the road, Dad and the pretty girl with a hard bright doll like face. But they heard her laugh
and the tune stopped suddenly.

J Dad did not say a word, but the girl walked up to Granddad and said prettily, “I'll not be seeing you
k- in the morning, so | came over to say good-bye. “It's kind of you,” said Granddad, looking down at
|
|

the floor; and then seeing the blanket at his feet, he bent down to pick it up. “And will you look at
this,” he said, sounding himself like a little boy. “Isn’t this a fine blanket my son has given me to go
away?”
“Yes," she said, “it's a fine blanket.” She felt the wool again... and said; A ﬂne’ Elanket indeed.”
} She turned to Dad and said to him coldly, “Must have cosLaprettypertnat. A g
Dad cleared his throat... “I... | wanted hirh tok I'rave lfhe best A\ )
The girl stood there, still ldoldngat tha bl@ﬁl\et "ﬂlrmnm it sa duuble one, too.”
“Yes,” the old man 'faYd “its a doubte one... a fine blanket for an old fellow to be going away
with.” N
o ] VN
t The boy suddenly walked in the house. He could hear the girl, still talking about the expensive
blanket. He heard his Dad get angry in his slow way. And
now, she was leaving. As Peter came out, the girl turned

: and called back, “No matter what you say, he doesn't
e need adouble blanket!”

Dad looked at her with a funny look in his eye.

“She s right, Dad,” the boy said. “Granddad doesn't need a double blanket. Here, Dad,” and held
out a pair of scissors - “Cut it, Dad...cut the blanket in two.”

Both of them looked at the boy, surprised.
“Cutitintwo, I tell you Dad. And keep the other half!”
“That's not a bad idea, ” said Granddad gently. “I don't need such a big blanket.”

“Yes,” the boy said, “a single blanket is enough for an old man when he ssent away We‘ll save the
other, Dad; it will come useful later.” cQ M

“Now what do you mean by that?” asked Dad,, \ - Whl[l-rtldlﬂl

“Imean,” the boy said slowly, “that ' gwmt to you Bad Yy Why does Peter ask his father to
whenyou're old and I'm sending you away =N\ W cut the blanket in two?

QAN N NN N

While-reading
Why does Peter’'s dad get angry
with the girl he is going to marry?




There was a big silence, and then Dad went over to Granddad and Stood before hlrn,. not saying a
word. \ ~ A\ U ) |
But Granddad understood, for he put oub hls hand and laid it on Dad's shoulder. Peter was

watching them. And h heard ‘Granddad ‘whisper softly “It's alright son. | knew you didn't mean
it...."” And thﬁn Pﬁtﬁr c ed: But it didn't matter because all three were crying together.

(o) Post-reading
Why doall three Peter, dad and grand -dad cry at the end of the story’

N o o

Notes and comments

Floyd Dell was an American poet, novelist, playwright, literary editor and the author of several
books, He began his literary career as a newspaper man. He first served as a reporter for the
Davenport Daily Times, and then as editor of various papers. Through 1920's, he continued
writing novels and poetry, and a number of books and articles based on various themes.

He retired in 1947, but continued writing during the remaining years Qih;s llf e tlll 1969

<0

___\‘
2|\ 'ﬁ‘-. A

._J

Theme . H\f 'U\_AUD U

(") #

Taking great care of our vall ﬁ\;l% . The Blanket is a sad and heart: rendlng story.

The story manite M jocrisy, the modern day callous attitude towards the elderly. and

how at 2an instincts can overtake o\a'ﬂlbldutlﬁ

The masterly cmftsrnanship of Floyd Dell is ev . ':l;heflne stn.n;ture of this tale. He makes

aneffectiveuseofdlaloweandhasasuperbplmstw ' .
Glossary

breeze a gentle wind gust

coldly inaway thatis not fﬁendlyorenthusiéstic

harmonica | amusical instrument

a note is a single sound of a certain pitch and length L A0

L made by the voice, or a musu:al mstrument —~\4a )\ _

tune musical notes put togethe\r in a pleasms Ofdﬁrr él ;elody - - L
supper light evemng meal taken latein the evenmg

whi sper_ | -.-_tqﬂ\;pe#lklih soft sound, undertone

54



- W
.

..,_.._._.__._..._.._
- -

a) Answer the following questions (| O ANWWANNY T
1. Describe the conveﬁaﬂqrr betWeen Peterand Granddad at the beginning of the story.
Why was Pet&rl 3 Dad sending Granddad away and where to?
-Giv@ thie }éaslon of the girl's mind change, who was marrying Peter’s dad.
Wasita surprise when Peter asked his father to cut the blanket in two?
Peter’s attitude towards his father and Granddad was unusual, Elaborate.
What moral lesson about human relationship do you learn from this story?
How would you describe the problems of the characters of the story?
What sort of person is Peter’s father?

Examine how the author has developed and contrasted the points of view of different
characters in the story. Critique the plot development with respect to different aspects of
the story.

:nswr-l?.me:wrﬂ

b) Tick (/) the right statement and (X) the false one.

A thin gray moon rose over the valley. . ;—- v 2O\
The blanket was a gift from his dad to his\ Grandmbthei; R Al
The young man and the little bormshea t‘he shpper dishes

He wasn't the kmd td cr)fIl and besﬁles he was too old for that.

The thin aﬂl‘i !nras high nverhead and the gentle breeze blew down the valley.

T!\%é\v}?as a low silence, and then Dad went over to Granddad and stood before him,
not saying a word.

B D s s

Respond to questions on a range of communicative purposes.
@ Discuss in class the advantages and disadvantages of joint family system.

% Survéy the class to know how many students are living in nucleus family and how many in |
joint family.

@ Discuss what your reply would be to the fact ‘why young people today do just what they
like? (refer to the text)

Inference (K
1. Doyou think peaceful living dependsincaring for theva!ues?
2. “Asyousow, so shall you reap" Do )tnu agree?

55




a) Parts of Speech \ \/7{\

Adjective: Adjectives are the words that mochfy or descnbe nouns and pronouns, praviding
more mformatmq ath Irhelr quatitres, states of being, or quantities.

Descriptive Describes a noun’s quality or characteristic| Red car, happy child

Quantitative Indicates the quantity of a noun | Three dogs, some water
Demonstrative Points out a specific noun ‘ This book, that house

Possessive Shows ownership or possession My phone, their car

Interrogative Used in questions to ask about a noun What color, whose jacket
Indefinite Refers to an unspecified noun Any person, several options
Distributive Refers to members of a group individually | Each student, every day
Comparative Compares two nouns Bigger house, mare expensive car
Superlative Compares three or more nouns ' Biggest house, most expensive car
Proper Derived from a proper noun and used to describe it | Chines&cﬂshmmearean play

7 '. \ -~ | '. '. y -
|| |f\.,..-|.|-\"/“

rActwity Go through the fquawini segtence;. andidentify the type of adjective
used in them. \R\R

1. Sara JM“ @eaplher messy room today

My sister brought some French pastries.

The miser lost all his money.

There haven't been sufficient crops to sell this year.

Collecting coins is an interesting hobby.

The boy did not have any soup.

There's no milk left in the bowl.

Either boy was present there.

9. This bag is heavier than the suitcase.

10. The food was delicious.

11. Whose pencil box is this?

12. These apples are pretty sweet.

13. Ali came second in the marathon. PP

14. | saw it with my own eyes. -~ N\ (@A

15. What a splendid piece of art! - ’3'_:3.‘, QLN VYN~
16. Emily Bronte was a' Vlctoriari novelist

17. The Atlantic 0 an is the largest ocean in tne world.

18.1 did]noqﬂnd e books.

ol

@ N oa

-

e ——————————————————————
56




b) Connotation and denotation

CONNOTATION VERSUS DENOTATION

Connetation relers to Denotation refers to
the primary, literal

1he [T SO

INEARINGS 10 addition | meaning or the
theldr primary, litet dictionary meaning of
meaning of a wo a word.

Connotation can b
classinied as positive

connotation and

Denotation is not
thus classified.

"“Lf‘” Ve connotation

Denotation remains the
same regardless of
culture and personal
experience.

Connotation can change
Ace csil‘11l|i{ to culture

and personal expericnces

QNN |--..__l__| \JjN

Word: Cheap

« Denotation: Low in price. (literal meaning)
« Connotation: Negative - poor quality, stingy.

Word: Smart

* Denotation: Having or showing a high degree of intelligence. (literal meaning)
* Connotation: Can also mean stylish or fashionable depending on context.

’f'

\

Activity : For each sentence, choose the word in parentheses that best fits the
context, considering both denotation and connotation.

. The children were feeling very (excited/agitated) during the wait for Sana
2. The old house had a very (agedfdecrepit) appearance. </ \ GOME
3. The aroma of freshly baked bread ﬁlled the, air with a (pleasantfpungent) smell.
4. The detective gave, thesuspect a (stﬁmlsevere) look
5. The athlete shnw«a-d great (perseverance!stubbomness) in completing the race.

||]I.

"

N

57



1. Easy come, easy g0 - N\ A D (o \o=

This English proverb means- that maney is ea(stly earned and just as easi ly spent or lost (on
gambling, for example). |\ \| (\ |

2. You can't make qthelette without breaking a few eggs

It is 1mposs{ﬁlé to dn something good or accomplish an important task without encountering
some problems or making some sacrifices.

3. The forbidden fruit is always the sweetest

Things that are prohibited seem very attractive or desirable.

4, If you scratch my back, I'll scratch yours

If you do something to help me, | will do something to help you.
5. It's the tip of the iceberg

As everyone knows, only a small part of an iceberg is visible above the water. The rest is
underwater.

6. Learn to walk before you run

Learn basic skills before you attempt to do something more difficult. For example, don't start
to learn English with difficult subjects such as articles or gerunds. Start with- eésier materlal
slowly increase your knowledge, and gradually work twardﬁtudyiﬁg nm;g difficult topics.

7. First things first \ \ - (O \\ _;- \J -

The most important thingssl'lomﬁhe Mebéfore everything else

8. Don't bite off qthau ynuchn chew

Don't take mﬁ&b wﬁrk or responsibility than you can handle at one time.
9. It's better to be safe than sorry

Be careful and exercise caution - even if it seems unnecessary and it takes longer to complete
something - and you will avoid potential problems that could arise later.

10. The early bird catches the worm

If you arrive early or do something before other people do it, you have a greater chance of
succeeding.

11. Don't make a mountain out of an anthill (or molehill)

Don't make a minor problem or difficulty into a major one; don't exaggerate the significance
of a small problem.

12. Where there's a will, there's a way
If your desire to accomplish something is strong enough, you will ﬁnd a way to do it
13. Always put your best foot forward ; SSNH AR 2

The meaning of this English proverb is thatyau shmld always tty your best to rnake a good
impression on others; show your best traﬂ:s and qualities

14. The squeaky wheﬂ[ get.s the grease

The person th tﬁx‘hphhins the most or is most vocal about something that he needs is usually
the one who receives help or attention

58



15. Arolling stone gathers no moss NI AN EOL S

The last proverb on our list has twameamngs 1) a\ persm v;ho is ﬂways muvi ng - never living in
one place very long - cannot be sw:t;essful or make alotof money, and 2) a busy person will not
become stagnant but witl remain| créative and productive.

16.Whenin Re A\ .rdoasthenomansdo

This pmvérb rheans that you should follow the local customs of whichever place you happen to be
(even if it seems odd or unsavory).

17. Birds of a feather flock together

This proverb refers to people who have similar, overlapping interests, and how they often tend to
be friendly or may be found together.

18. Astitch in time saves nine

This proverb refers to procrastination: it means that getting your work done ahead of time or
completing some simple task earlier rather than later, will save you effort down the road.

19, Beauty is in the eye of the beholder

This English proverb refers to the fact that everyone sees beauty differently, and what is ugly to
one person may be beautiful to another.

20. Those in glass houses shouldn't throw stones PO ,/-:_--.\_- \ i ‘-.,
This proverb refers to hypocrisy: it means that j(ou sl'lauh'lnqtacmse g;omebne of a charge that
you yourself are guilty of 0\ A AW \\ \ WY/

21, Absence makesthé]\m RVWFPQM \~ '--./ Y hen

This proverb mean tl'\pf ydu* tend 'to have a fonder memory and feeling about someone or
somethlqga{;:gﬂ{‘] y have been gone for a period.

( Act vity : Use the above used proverbs in meaningful sentences. )

—

Editing and proofreading
skills to a range of different
texts and contexts

0 m;uﬂhmdumh . ‘

Source: Prim-Ed Proofreading and-Editing Skills

29



|

i !5\ cOW

* Focuses on the big picture: Editing invdves a broader look at the structure clarity, and
content of a text.

* Improves overall quality Editors ensure the wntmg achieves its purpose effectively. They
might: ]| NJ =)
R

Reélne the structure: This could involve rearranging paragraphs, adding transitions, or
improving the flow of information.

» Strengthen the argument: In persuasive or informative writing, editors might check
for logical flow of ideas, evidence, and clarity of the main point.

* Enhance language and style: Editors might suggest impro;rements to sentence
structure, word choice, and overall tone to make the writing more engaging or
lmpactful

« Fact-check and ensure accuracy: This is eshecially important for academic or
technical writing.

General Editing and Proofreading Tips:

» Accuracy: Check for typos, grammatical errors (subject-verh agreemm punctuation
mistakes), and spelling inconsistencies. . [ \

/ :’ C"' —
« Clarity: Ensure the writing is clear, conasaf and easv,‘ tct undérstand Ellminate wordiness
and confusing sentent! simc(dre..‘-\l'-.,. A\ k

\ \

» Consistency: m;ain consistent style throughout the text, following guidelines like
preferrepil tion (APA, MLA, Chicago) or voice (formal, informal).

« Flow: Read the text aloud to check for awkward phrasing or choppy sentences. Ensure a
smooth and logical flow of ideas.

Editing for Different Text Types:

* Formal Writing (Academic papers, Business reports): Focus on proper grammar, formal
vocabulary, and adherence to style guides. Check for logical arguments, referencing, and
proper formatting.

* Informal Writing (emails, blog posts, social media): Maintain a conversational tone while
ensuring clarity and avoiding slang or overly informal language. Check for appropriate
emojis or hashtags depending on the platform.

» Creative Writing (fiction, poetry): Here, style takes center stage. Look for consistency in
tone, voice, and point of view. Check for effective use of ﬁgurative language and
adherence to specific literary elements. ~ 1S\ (CON

Activity: (i) Read the paragraph below aud ldemify ‘the issues’ that would be addressed
dunngmeedftingstage \\ \\
3 I




The weather was terrible yesterday. Rain poured down all Jday, mnklng it irnposslbie to go
outside. It was so boring because lcouldn't phv wtth my frbends 1 ended up watching TV most
of the day, which Wasrl't:\n‘!'i'ydm;i‘tjrig,t

1. Whatissue mlight an ed itor address regarding the overall structure of the paragraph?
2.5 ﬂdw &oﬂd an editor improve the clarity of the writer’s feelings?
3. Suggest an edit to make the language more engaging.

(if) The following paragraph contains grammatical errors, typos, and formatting
inconsistencies. Find and correct the mistakes as you would during the proofreading stage.

We went to the beach last weekend, it was a beautiful day. The sand was warm between our
- toes, and the waves crashed loudly against the shore, We built a sand castle and then went for
a swimin the refreshing ocean water. Overall, it was a perfect experience!

Teacher's Note

» Encourage students to examine how an author develops and contrasts the points of view of
different characters or narrators in a text and to critique the plot development with respect to
different aspects of the story.

« Ask them to distinguish between the connotative and denotative meanings of words, both
similar and dissimilar denotations and their appropriate use in a variety of writing and texts.

« Encourage them to demonstrate knowledge and application of parts of speech tn cﬂ‘al and
written communication in varying degrees of cnmp!exity NI ARGEOMN

+ Ask them to comprehend and use contemporary ldtorns and promti; in the different texts and
in their speech. ) \
*+ Motivate them to apply ediﬁnu andpmnfre&ding skills to a range of different texts and

contexts. N\ RIPRS
EWNININ

NNAVA:

[ i i L e T e ettt
61




'STAY HUNGRY - STAY FllﬂlISH

(Excerpts from Steve Jobs address at Stanford University on June 12, 2005)
(1955-2011)

After completing this lesson, youwillbea. .o:
= engage effectively in a range of collaborative discussions(one-on-one, in groups, and teacher-led)
withdiverse partners on grade-level topics, texts, and issues
+ critique reading interpretations, taking account of others' views on reading

* use pre-reading and while-reading strategies to analyse and explore different layers of meaning
within texts including biases and opinions

» explain whether predictions about the content of a text are acceptable or should be modified and

why
» demonstrate knowledge and application of parts of speech in oral and wntten communmanon in

varying degrees mplexity N AN GO .
+ useall typesof tenses correctly In speech andwnttng \ N '_-“_j Vo=
» apply the techniques of wrlting the ﬁrst draft with 5ufﬁcm [ Js; proofreading and editing

details to suit the purpose and audlence

NN No



a) Whatcomesto your mind after reading the he:uhng of the lesson? ’

! b) Howdnesreﬂdina about theliﬁaexperlences of Steve Jobs inspire?

| R A \ AL VL
“Thank I am honoured to be with you today at your commencement from one of the finest
universities of the world. Truth be told I never graduated from college.”

| was an adopted child of parents who had not graduated from college. However, they decided to
send me to college. | was naive to choose a college as expensive as Stanford and all my working
parents savings were spent on college tuition. After six months, | could not see the value in it. |
had noidea of what | wanted to do with my life and how college is going to help me figure it out. So
| dropped out and thought it will work out. It was pretty scary at that time, but looking back it was
the best decision, I've made. The minute | dropped out | could stop taking the required classes
that didn't interest me and begin dropping at taking the one's that looked interesting.

I didn't have a dorm room, so | slept on the floor in a friend's room. | returned coke bottles for 5
cents deposits to buy food with.

| decided to take a calligraphy class, where | learnt about serif and san serif type faces about
varying the type of space between different letter combinations -

about what makes topography great. It was beautiful, wh' M’d'“‘
historical, and beautifully subtle, in away that science cw\dn': What did Steve Jobs learn
capture and i found this fasﬂnatmg,\ 2R\ ' in calligraphy class?

'-.\‘\ \\-_‘ N

None of this had any. rppe of prar:tical application in my life, but ten years later, when we were
designin tlpp ﬂFJt Macintash Computer, it all came back to me. And we designed it all. It was the
first ¢ r with beautiful topography. If | had not dropped out from college, Mac would not
have had multiple type spaces or proportionally spaced fonts. Of course it was impossible to
connect the dots looking forward then, but it was very clear 7~ A
looking backwards ten years later.Again you can't connect the | While-reading
dots looking forward, but you can connect them looking | Steve Jobs thought that
backwards. You have to trust in something, your gut, your | being fired from Apple was
destiny, life and opportunities. This approach has never let me | the best thing that

down and it has made all the difference in my life. L happened to him. Why?

/

I was lucky - | found what | loved to do early in life. Woz and | started Apple in my parent's garage,
when | was twenty. We worked hard and in ten years Apple grew up into 2 billion $ company with
4000 employees. We had just released our finest creation Macintosh a year earlier and | had just
turned thirty. And then | got fired, how you can get fired from the company you started. Well as
Apple grew | hired someone, who | thought was talented enough to run the company with me and
for the first one year the things went well. But then our visions for the- future mvarged and we had
afalling out. Our Board of directors sided with him and \ was Dut‘at 30 What had been the focus of
my entire life was gone and it was very, devastaﬂng U

| didn't know what to do for few months. | had felt that | had led the previous generation of

entrepreneur’s duwnq that lhaddropped the baton as it was being passed to me. | met with David
Packard anq aqPINuSace and apologized for screwing up the things so badly, | was a very public

63



figure and | even thought of running away from the valley. Butsomﬂrng;tm!y_dawned 'U_l;Wﬂ me,
Istill loved what | did. The turn of events at Apple hadiniot changed one bit. | had been rejected,

but wasstill in love and sol decided tostartover.| | | |\~

| couldn't see it then, butgett’ingﬁred fromApple was the best thing that ever happened to me.
The heaviness of ble ' aubcessfut was replaced by the lightness of being beginners again, less sure
about evemh'lhn It freed me to enter one of the most productive periods of my life.

During the next five years, | started a company named Text, and another company Pixar. Pixar
went on to create the first computer animated film, Toy Story and is now the most successful
video in the world. In the remarkable turn of events Apple bought Next. | returned to Apple and
the technology we developed at Next is the heart of current Apple renaissance.

| am pretty sure none of this would have happened, if | had not been fired from Apple. It was an
awful tasted medicine, but | think the patient needed it. Sometimes life hits you on the head with
abrick. Do not lose faith. | am convinced that only thing that kept me going was that | loved what |
did. Your work is going to fill a large part of your life and the only way to be truly satisfied is to do
what you believe is great work. If you haven't found it yet, keep looking. Don't settle. As with all
matters of the heart, you will know when you find it. While-readin

And like any other great relationships, it keeps getting 8
better and better as the years roll on. So keep looking | According to Steve Jobs what.is going
until you find it. Don't settle. to fill a large part of une's life.

T\ . A WY [ C.-/\ NCy
Your time is limited, so don't waste it lmngsomeﬁne elses life, don*i‘ be trapped with dogma,
which is living with someone else's thinking. Dan't let the rioise of other’s thinking drown out your
inner voice. And most importantly; have the courage to follow your own heart and intuition; they
somehow already kl'n:'v(ﬁhat you want to become. Everything else is secondary,

When | wéi:y&jﬁ\\é[\there was an amazing whole earth catalogue, which was one of the religious
books of my age, written by Stephen Band with his poetic touch. That was late 60's, before
personal computers and desk top publishing, so it was all made with type writers, scissors and
Polaroid camera. It was sort of like Google and great notions, in paperback form, 35 years before
Google came along. It was idealistic and overflowing with neat tools.

Stewart and his team put out several issues of the Whole Earth Catalogue, and when it had run its
course they put out a final issue, it was mid 90's and | was your age. On the back cover of their final
issue was a photograph of an early morning country road, the kind you would find, if you were
hitch hiking. Beneath it were thé words, “Stay Hungry, Stay Foolish.” And | have always wished
that for myself, | wish that for you.

Stay Hungry, Stay Foolish,
“Thank you all very much”,

Onnans o 20 (II00Y™
| What did Steve wish for himself and for others?




Notes and Comments

Steve Jobs (1955-2011) was an American entrepretwur 1nventor and business magnate, He
co-founded Apple Inc: wltl'r Ste*(e Wozhtak in 1976, and his vision and leadership played a
pivotal role in tranffonmrrg Apple into one of the most influential technology companies in the
world.J bs,, iloﬁg with Wozniak, is credited with popularizing the personal computer with the
*| Appleilin the late 1970s. He then revolutionized the industry again with the Macintosh in the
1980s, introducing a user-friendly graphical interface that made computers more accessible to
everyday users. He was instrumental in the development of the iPod, iPhone, and iPad, all of
which redefined their respective categories and had a lasting impact on how we consume
music, communicate, and interact with technology. Steve Jobs was known for his relentless
pursuit of innovation, his focus on design and user experience, and his strong marketing skills.
He is remembered as a visionary leader who forever changed the landscape of technology and
continues to inspire entrepreneurs and technologists today. This is a part of Steve Job's speech
at Stanford University in 2005.

Theme

Main theme is to guide youth to be successful in life by utilizing their time, rather than wasting
it. The speech has all the necessary lngredients useful for yqutfh lls wﬂl enabte 'youth to learn
life skills to achieve their goals _ 0 A\ TW QNN

Glossary

Meanings Synonyms

calligraphy | handwriting, penmanship longhand script
diverged to move or extend in different directions from a
common point
dogma specific principles or doctrine authoritatively laid
down
dorm dormitory
entrepreneur | person whoorganises and manages a business
font a receptacle or holy water. The reservoir for oil in a
lamp
gut courage and fortitude, nerve, determination, stamina
hitch-hiking | soliciting rides from passing vehicles o
naive having or showing lack of experience, judgment or | e\
information -
renaissance | activity, spirit or ‘time, of the great revival af art,
literature and leamiﬂs :
subtle _deljcate famt andmysterious
topography | \/| detaited mapping or charting of the features of a small

65




Comprehension TS\ O
a) Answer the following questions. | | - WU Y
1. Describe the impresﬁqanthespea kerynu géﬁffér reading the first two paragraphs.
Identiﬁ(, th]e“aaﬁoh Steve.iobsused tosleep ina friend's room.
\dentify the wisdom in joining calligraphy classes.
Explain the significance of Macintosh Computer.
Getting fired from Apple turned out to be the best for Steve Jobs. Discuss.
Describe the meaning of “sometimes life hits you hard on the head with a brick”.
Identify the paragraph containing Steve Jobs' message.
Explain the importance of the Whole Earth Dialogue.
Write the main point of the speech.

. Describe whether or not it is appropriate to make predictions about the idea to be
successful in life by utilizing one's time rather than wasting it. If you agree then why?

. What do you understand by these statements of the speaker?

a) “The heaviness of being successful was replaced by the lightness o?hgl g ‘beginners

® B NS AW N

-
(=

—
—

b) “Yourworkis goingto il alargegart of younlite® -~
12. Write down the names of atherrenowned universities like Stanford.
13. With thehelFof ternecwrte adetalled note o Stanford University
b) Critiquéﬁading interpretations, taking account of others’ views on reading.

Critiquing reading interpretations requires actively considering others' viewpoints. Listen
attentively and acknowledge their ideas. When presenting your critique, focus on the text itself
and use evidence to support your reasoning. Frame the discussion respectfully, seeking
understanding rather than simply pointing out flaws. Look for common ground and use the
exchange to explore the text's complexity. By valuing diverse interpretations and engaging in
open dialogue, you can create a richer understanding of the literature you're analyzing.

Activity: Briefly summarize the text of this unit as a resource for this activity. What is your
initial interpretation of the text's meaning? Why do you think this?

Oral Communication Ao
Engage effectively in a range of collqbaratiyédj;g@&sjénﬁ;‘{[ﬂﬁéiﬁﬁ-ﬁrié‘l in groups, and
teacher-led) with diverse partners on grade-level tapics; texts; and issues.

« Form different groups inthe class and discuss who is Steve Jobs and where is Stanford,

* Giveyour uiFwsabEu:thefauures Steve Jobs had to face inlife.

¢ Hope'and ‘despair are part of life. How would you relate this with Steve Job's life?

66



* Apple'computersare the result of aman's determlnatmn D\scuss, o=
* Ingroups of three or four, chnose one statement and prepare a short conversation based on
it. Memorise your dnalogues and practise saying them with the appropriate tone, , according
tothe emotiuq heing conveyed. Present the conversation in the ¢lass,
InfergngeuN V-
1. Isit pnssible to achieve one's goal without hard work?
2. Istoday’s highly competitive world a big challenge for youth?

GrammarandVocabulary

Pronoun

A pronoun is a word that takes the place of a noun. They are used to avoid repetition and make
sentences flow more smoothly. Pronouns stand in for nouns or noun phrases.They prevent
repetitive use of the same noun and make sentences more concise.

Examples: "l went to the store. | bought milk there In the second sentence, "I" replaces "the
store” to avoid saying it twice.

Pronouns Types

Personal ._ Rgfﬂ t@ SPH?' ic héPsoris or 't'h'i'hgs Lﬂy%hm it, we, they, me, him,
Possesslyg] Y _|'--.I..| v “Show ownership or possession Mine, your, his, hers, its, ours, theirs
Reflexive Reflect back to the subject of the sentence| Myself, yourself, himseif, herself, itself, ourselves
Demonstrative Point to specific persons or things Thig, that, these, those
Interrogative Used to ask questions Who, whom, whose, what, which
Relative Used to introduce a relative clause Who, whom, whose, which, that
Indefinite Refers to nonspecific person, things or amount me'l:"“m"g' S, Snaing,
everything
Activity: Choose the correct pronoun and use it in the sentence ......

1. (Me/1) feel like taking a short trip to the Maldives | ' [ (.10~

2. (I/me) think you should participate inthe debate |

3. Wuthering Hetghts is {herlhers} favourite book,

4. Those pa?ers are, (mmelmy) : ,

5. The *hox was lying around. Is (it/its) yours? |

| i

67



ﬂsnrasr-i-

The dog almost choked (himself/itself}_. W[ (& yo=
Natasha was all by, (yourselvesfhaself) SR\ AL =
I got (me/myself) all wet, | S
. (That/ l;hw hobk lying here is mine
10 (Ebd‘n!neither) of us were given a gift hamper.
11. Do you want (that/it) pen?

12. | lost the toy you gave (me/myself)
13. This house is (ours/our).
14. It was (their/theirs) car.
15. Do you know (his/him)?

b) Tenses

Present Tense and its kinds

su_bflll N ] Iﬂ'\/’(’s/

Sul:u has/have +

Sub+ V1 + obj. 3‘:":'!”‘%‘(9;*.. -\ ‘has/have + " ['been + V1 + ing +
"B’* \ W\ / "‘- \V.‘! +obj.- obj + since/for.
She is dnves 7 car She 1sdﬁwﬁga car. | She has driven a car. :hfa: a5 been driving
Srlid gdhl JJs.chool She going to school.| She has gone to school. Sh}';-'n';iilﬁ been going to
‘\ LY sc \ .

Activity: Make two sentences with each type of present tense,
Simple Present Tense

\

i

Present Continuous Tense

Present Perfect Tense

Present Perfect Continuous Tense |\ (U

1\ TWrt I'. VL

N ]|[|

——— -.-—-..Jl—.w-u\_

68




Correction of Errors in English Writing

Correction of errors is the process of ldentifying and reclifying mist;alles or inaccuracies in
any given context. It involyes: |\ \ 71 \[ () |\ L 0

1.

Detection: Recognizmg the presehce Df 4n error.

2. Identifi tluq.; Pinpmrmng the specific nature of the error.
e 9 I.',qﬂneét n: Implementi ng the necessary changes to rectify the mistake.
Common contexts where error correction is applied

Language learning: Identifying and correcting grammatical, spelling, and vocabulary
errors in written or spoken language.

Data entry: Ensuring accuracy in data input by identifying and correcting
inconsistencies or typos. .

Proofreading: Reviewing written material to identify and correct errors in grammar,
spelling, punctuation, and style.

Scientific research: Identifying and correcting errors in data collection, analysis, and
reporting.

Software development: Identifying and correcting bugs or glitches in software
programs.

Benefits of effective error correction [0

Examp

-’._'.".’ VIV
'\_ 5\'\ (OPARRS

Improved accuracy: Minimizes the occurrence of. mistakes \ A

Enhanced quality: Ensures that tl‘le’ ﬂnal nrodutm br output fs free from errors.
Increased efficienicy: Redutes qu\’time and resources required to fix errors later on.
Enhanced cr?di i“ty" Bultdilmﬂ and confidence in the accuracy and reliability of the

Q \\1 [|“J|

1. Grammatical Errors:

.

2. Syntactical Errors: > A\ T\ O .

Incorrect: He go to school everyday.
Correct: He goes to school everyday.

o Explanation: The subject "He" is singular, so the verb should be * goes” (singular
third person present tense).

Incorrect: The books is on the table.

Correct: The books are on the table.

o Explanation: “Books" is plural, so the verb should be “are.”
Incorrect: Me and my friend went to the park.

Correct: My friend and | went to the park.

o Explanation: In a subject-verb construction, the prmoun “I" should be used after
the other person. ~ 1\ (CIO\N

N N o e,

— Rt | \ 5 J
\ N O \NO~—
At

Incorrect: Running in the park, the dog chased its tail

Correct: While runmng in the park “the dog chased its tail.

o_Explanation : The phrase "Running in the park" needs to be modified to a
iubdrd‘inate clause using a subordinating conjuucﬁon like “While.”

69



» Incorrect: He likes to read, to write, and to play sports ~ 1) O\
« Correct: He likes to read, to write, and to play sports. | Y [ Guo=""-
o Explanation: The sentence 15 alre‘ady parattel All three vérbs are in the infinitive
form. A\ O
3. Lexical Errors; _ ) \] -
. Incorrg‘&t‘ Jﬁhéir gorng to the store.
. Correct They're going to the store.
o Explanation: "They're" is a contraction of "they are.”

» Incorrect: Its raining outside.
« Correct: It's raining outside.
o Explanation: "It's" is a contraction of "it is.”
« Incorrect: | feel bad for him.
« Correct: | feel sorry for him.
o Explanation: "Bad" and "sorry” have slightly different meanings in this context.
"Bad” implies that something is wrong with him, while "sorry” expresses sympathy.
4. Punctuation Errors:

* Incorrect: The boy said "l want to go home.” N R0
» Correct: The boy said, "I want to go home.” _ A~ W g 2 _x':\;‘;\i HUBE
o Explanation: A comma is needec;l tol sepal*ate the intr‘oductbfrﬁhrase "The boy said"
from the direct quqte | \ /N m U x, s

¢ Incorrect: He is a kmd\aﬁd éénﬂqusbél’mn

Correct: He. 1F|\a1§0Hd and-generous person.

o ERi:ﬂgh ion: No punctuation is needed between adjectives when they are
coordinate (i.e., they could be joined by "and’).

rActIvity : Each sentence contains one or more errors in grammar, punctuation,
or usage. Identify and correct the errors by rewriting the sentences properly.

1. She don't know where is her book. '

2. The dog chased it's tail around the yard.

3. Me and my friend is going to the park later.

4, Each of the children were given their own pencil.
5. He has gave the book to his teacher yesterday.
6.
T
8.
9.

The car, along with the bicycles, are in the garage.
I saw a flock of birds flying over the field, it were beautiful.
My mother made me to clean my room before | went outside.
The teacher told to us that the exam was postponed. @
10. Neither Ali nor his friends likes playing video garnes PN NG
~ 11.If | was you, | would never let that happen. | 0\ '.;f— 3 [ (0 o=
12. The student didn't knew the answer to ﬁ'le que‘stibn
13. She have lived in thi&cit}* forﬁve years.
14. A number of students, was absent fram the class today.

L 15. The. ngmﬁ ab&dlt the | pandemlc were very disturbing. . J

70




{
% ] \ { \
! —~5S N\ | | — Vs -
v’ \\_ hY I| (’J .‘\‘ O
\‘ \ ‘. \ Y ki

Apply the techniques of writing the‘firsf I:quftxwiih éumtlent detalls' proofreading and editing
details to suit the purppqe w .-elfménﬂ;\ \ \\ A~

\ I \\]| “
VUM THE WRITING PROCESS

PRE-WRITING

PUBLISHING

EDITING/
PROOFREADING

REVISING

Please note that the writing process is not linear. Steps may be repeated, just
like the arrows in the diagram above circle back through earlier steps,

. A

Activity: Follow the above mentioned writing technique and write an essay to
guide youth to be successful in life by utilizing their time, rather than wasting it.

c

Teacher’s Note N\ \\.\j \ \. ;
+ Ask students to demonstrate knowledge and applicaum of par!s uf speeciﬁn a;ral and written
communication in varying degreqt chﬂ;p!exuty‘. N '\ WY

)\‘

* Let them use all typeshf ;ensﬁ c? ly\in \ speech and writing.
+  Ask them to apply the \ter,tln\qbes of writing the first draft with sufficient details; proofreading

and editm\ghquﬂs ) suit the purpose and audience.

-

\\wa N

A



After conipleting this lesson, you will be able to:

speak confidently and fluently in a wide range of contexts, For example, (conflict resolution, panel
discussion, role-play, dialogue, etc.) to fulfil different purposes (exposition, argumentation etc.).
analyse organisational patternsin a text:

a, list/ sequence of ideas/ events comparison-contrast

b. cause-effect

c. problem-solution

d. reasons/ assumptions-conclusion
give an informed personal and analytical response to a variety of texts and prov'lde a textual
reference in support. W\ ([ \
demonstrate knowledge and apphcatlon of_-parts n[ speech m oral amd w;itterrcommumcatwn in
varying degrees of cnmplexity N J L) W
use all types of tenses car;rectty in Speech and writing

gather relevanf inro.qmatmn frommultiple authentic available resources following research
ethics Fo ]writa and present their assignment




e - ——m s = =t ————— — S N P T [ e T LT N T |

O Pre-Reading Nt
a) Doyouknow thmmportanc\eofhealth? LR\
b) I-Iowdoesone feelongéttingslck?
¢) Hav yougverbeenhospitalised?
d} J Hdve ynu ever heard “healthis wealth™?

The next time you see a packet of cigarettes, notice what is Risks from Smoking
written on the label. It is a warning about the dangers of T e S
cigarette smoking to your health. Most governments require T s
cigarette makers to warn people about the risks of smoking.

In the past people did not know about the dangers of cigarette
smoking. But medical experts have learned that the smoke
from tobacco contains poisonous substances which can
damage your body. Smoking tobacco in pipes or cigars is just
as harmful as smoking cigarettes. Smoking tobacco is also
harmful. Tobacco in any form damages your health.

L

# Aot riptre
o Hrgm Jungp
* Py

o Mardeemg of M mrwner

+ Chrare ooy Sutowe
L patyes

* Rydicad lormry

. e

From Wikipedta, the free encyeiopedia

While reading

pr can peaple be warned
\ | labout the risks of smoking?

Three seconds after a person starts smoking a cigarette, his
heart beats faster, his blood pressure rises, and a purtion of -
the oxygen in his blood is replaced bya hagmful gas. | Cancer
causing chemicals also fill his lungs every timé fie inhales the
smoke. Nicotine, cafbo,n nwnoxide\ and\tal' are the most

dangerous substanqefirgcagarettesmﬂke While-reading
Nicotineqdakés ﬁe blood vessels narrower so that the heart How do the cancer calls
destroy the healthy cells?

must work harder to pump blood through the body. The flow of
blood in a smoker’s body is reduced because of nicotine.

Carbon monoxide is the harmful gas that replaces part of the oxygen in blood. The oxygen level n
a smoker’s blood is lowered by this poisonous gas. Tar damages lung tissues. It affects the hair like
parts of cells, called cilia that line the breathing tubes. By moving back and forth, the cilia sweep
dust and particles out of the lungs to the throat and mouth so they can be breathed or coughed
out. When tar from cigarette smoke builds up in the lungs, it forms a sticky brown mass which
slows down the action of the cilia. Smoking one pack of cigarettes every day puts a cup of tarinto
the lungs each year. Cigarette smoke also causes a lung disease known as chronic bronchitis. It
occurs when smoke irritates the lining of the bronchial tubes, making them produce too much
mucus. The mucus blocks the air tubes, and a person with bronchitis coughs a lot to get rid of it. As
tar builds up on the walls of the air tubes and lungs over the years, it can cause cancer cells to
grow. Cancer cells multiply and destroy the healthy cells, and after sometlmel.he lungs will not
function correctly. \

The only way to treat lung cancer is toremave all ar paﬂ of the dhéased lung This type of cancer
is the second highest cause of deathamnngpeople wha smoke. Non-smokers rarely get cancer,

Even though smoking is dangemm to health, smokers often find it very difficult to quit the habit.
Smokers’ bodies beqome so\used to nicotine that they have a nervous reaction when they don't get
. QNNN

73



Quitting smoking is the hardest during the first &8
few days. The body tells the brain that it wants B |
nicotine. It takes a lot f will power for a personto'-
resist smoking at that point Evenl:ua[ly,_
however, the body will l?arn how to get along I~
without nicotinF. NN P

Some people thmk that chewing tobacco (i.e. | !
paan and naswar) won't harm their health, but
they are wrong. &

Nicotine can enter the body through blood ' . 2

vessels in the mouth. It then makes the heart ' = . N
speed up and chewing tobacco also leads to | =~
other health problems. It can cause mouth .}
cancer or damage the gums so that the teeth |RUGIFEEESE
become loose and fall out. i

In many countries it is against the law to cell | |- .
tobacco to young people. Evenif a persondoesn't
use tobacco, he or she still can be harmed by it.
Every time you breathe/inhale near people who
are smoking, you breathe in poisonous |
substance. Nearly two-third of the smoke froma |
cigarette goes into the air around the srﬁoker f R
When you breathe it in, thé smoke can damage "~ -

your body in the same. ay that, it harms the |
smoker's body. ldal erts have learned that
people who live with smokers have a greater risk of getting lung

cancer than people who live with non-smokers.
Because of the danger to non-smokers, many countries have laws
prohibiting smoking in public places. The picture of a burning

cigarette with a single or double line drawn across it is the
international No Smoking symbal,

Irl & Post-reading
Why is smoking prohibited in public places?

Notes and Comments

This report has been taken from a journal published in Turkaye The Istanbul based journal
didn't have the name of the author. However, the extract is a part of the lengthy report

] R i
P G2 W)~

\ II". \ 1 \ \ - 15 f, (S
Theme 7\ O U
Awareness and recognition nf smokins related problems 1s the theme. Health care is of prime

irnportance ltts hi;tﬂlghted that prevention is better than cure.

N -.‘

74




Glossary L QTA\CO

Meanings Synonyms
bronchitis illness that affects the bronchial tubes leading to | bronchial infection
it
carbnnmdnoa’dﬁe a poisonous gas formed when carbon partly burns
chronic lasting for a long time
inhale to take smoke, gas into your body as you breathe
mass large amount of a substance without a definite shape
or form
mucus thick liquid produced in parts of the human body
nicotine a poisonous substance in tobacco that people become
addicted
sticky ° substance used to paste or stick things when touched
substance solid, liquid or gas having particular qualities
(chemical) ~ LTl
tar a substance fonned by buming tobacao o\~
eumluslll

a]Answert fof[ovflhgquesﬂons

r X Desch'be tﬁe warning written on the packet of cigarettes.

2. |dentify the dangers of cigarette smoking.

3. Explain the ways tobacco damages health.

4, lllustrate the three most dangerous substances in cigarettes.
5. Explain the reason of blood vessels becoming narrower.

6. Write down the reason of oxygen level lowering in a smoker’s body.
7. Mention the way a smoker suffers from chronic Bronchitis.
8.1t’s difficult to quit smoking. Discuss.
9.In which way a non-smoker gets affected by smoking?

10. Restate the International Smoking Symbol.

b) Find the definition of each word as used in the text: P

1 require (line-3) O\ CANY (2
a) make somebody do something b]‘wantstrongly '
c) give advice on a subjnct “ d) let something to be done
2 vessel ( line, -+~16) '

a) soméﬂhlng in whlch liquid is kept

b) body cells that contain proteins

75




c) narrow tubes in the body _d) co_gﬂ.t_la_i,r__x_e(_@f\_ mmething_ WL
3 quit (line--34) A O AWWNY [~
a) seem b) stOP \(c) quarrel " d) link

4 fall out (line—--s )

a) drop |, J l N b]pack c) break up d) come down

5 prohibit ( line---ba )
a) refuse b) forbid c) protect . d) hide

c) Mark the statement as true or false:
i) In the past people knew a lot about the dangers of cigarette smoking. TIF
ii) Smoking tobacco in pipes and cigars is not at all harmful like smoking cigarettes. T/ F
jii) Nicotine makes the blood vessels narrower. T/F
iv) The flow of blood in a smoker's body is not reduced because of nicotine. T/F
v) Carbon monoxide is a harmful gas. 3
vi) Tar damages lung tissues. T/F

vii) Cigarette smoke does not cause a lung disease known as chronic bronchltls f\Tf F
viti) In many countries it is against law to sell tobacco to young, pdgpge xf!': , W\ TIF

d) Give an informed personal and anaMiﬁnQespon;é to\a hriety of texts and provide a

textual reference in support.\ .~ AR\ SA\
VAL 5,\ \\ '\\\ \».._,

It's the ability to read anﬁlal\\alw& text in' away that goes beyond just understanding the surface

meaning. _ - \\J[ NN

. Analydi s: Critically examining the text to understand the author’s purpose, arguments, and

potential biases.

« Evaluation: Assessing the evidence used to support claims and the overall credibility of the

source.

« Interpretation: Considering the context in which the text was written and its potential

impact on the reader.
« Inference: Drawing conclusions that are not explicitly stated but implied by the text.

« Synthesis: Connecting the text to your own knowledge and experiences, and to other texts

you've encountered.

Why is critical literacy important?
In today's information age, we are bombarded with messages from various suurces Cntlcal
literacy empowers you to: ~

« Distinguish fact from opinion: Not everything you, read is ob]ecﬁve tmth Critical
literacy helps you identify the authofs pefspectlm and pnrentnat biases.

« Evaluate informatian sourpés II: equlps you to assess the credibility of websites, articles,

and other forms o rnedna.

. Fnrm mmnﬁwﬂ oplnionr By critically analyzmg mformation you can develop well-

76



informed beliefs and avoid blindly accepung what you read lprfbem',

* Become an active participant'in society. Critl;:al hteracy skills enable you to engage in
meaningful discussionsanddehates around important issues.

.\.-.'-'.\---

[Actlvig 4[!: 35 Hn hctivity about informed personal and analytical response to a variety of J

texts provide a textual reference in support.

1. Choose a text: Select a piece of writing to analyze, such as a news article, blog post, poem,
or short story.

2. TextualInformation:

« Title:

= Author (if available):

* Source (website, book, etc.):

» Date Published (if available):
Text Analysis:
1. Understanding the text: - ]\‘ \p_\f\ \)

* Briefly summarize the main ideas and 2r21 rrnent.i presented in'the text.

* Whatisthe authof\s\purpqs,einwﬂttng thas te‘xtﬁ'\"omfonn persuade, entertain?)
2, Analyzing the author’steﬂhmques' N

. Idep ift P” Jlﬂﬂérary devices used by the author, such as metaphors, similes, or imagery.
How do these elements contribute to the meaning of the text? (For non- literary texts,
analyze persuasive techniques or language choices) \

+ Consider the tone of the text (formal, informal, humorous, serious), How does it impact
the reader?

3. Evaluating the source:
* Isthe author an expert on the topic? (For non-literary texts, is the source credible?)
* What evidence does the author use to support their claims? Is it reliable and unbiased?
* (Canyou identify any potential bias in the author’s perspective?
4. Critical thinking:
* Does the text make any assumptions about the reader’s knowledge or beliefs?
* Whatare the underlying messages or values conveyed by the text? ,_
* Does the text raise any questions orchallenges to your existing beliefs? ----- \\v
5. Connecting to the world: o M\ W\ LCAL
* How does this text relate to current éven ts or broadersociai issues? :
* Haveyou encountéred srmihar ideﬁ orarguments elsewhere?
. How m|_v1h thg ﬁextbemterpreted differently by people from different backgrounds?




« What did youlearn from critically analyzing thistext? NNTACE
+ How will youapply critltalllteracy sk!llswyuurfuture reading and research?

OralCommunication

Speak cc:n"i‘i‘i:lt‘er"htl‘y| and fluently in a wide range of contexts, For example, (conflict resolution,
panel discussion, role-play, dialogue, etc.) to fulfill different purposes (exposition,
argumentationetc.).

« Create aninformational display about the health hazard. Use internet and library to gather
statistics, photos and other information about how many people all over the world have
fallen prey to this injurious habit. :

+ Find out about the medical facilities in your area---doctors, clinics, hospitals. It would be
ideal if you visit your local hospital.

« Speak confidently in a role-play or in panel discussion about the side effects of smoking to
fulfill different purposes (exposition, argumentationetc.). g

Inference
1. Why is it important to do exercise daily?

2. Do you think regular medical check-ups can save us from many ailments?0)\\ -
a) Parts of Speech i R\R\B1eA Time Preposttions || Place Prepositions
Prepositio___q \\JIJ [\II \NJ o w’;mmwm'w“ R ":':“??_. g,
AYING : " Two -
A preposition is a word or group of words used == e
before a noun, pronoun, or noun phrase to show mrﬁ‘ﬁ’fﬁﬂm 5,,'3,?,5,5 ,"m
direction, time, place, location, spatial |Gametes: e the sore, “rom the e T
relationships, or to introduce an object. Some [ ——2—— e
examples of prepositions are words like "in," "at,” wm:, ’m: : h: Al T
“on,""of," and "to.” ‘ wmm Eeamgten by oo el |
# Possession Prepositions ||  Agent Prepositions b
Activity: Draw a circle around the correct |" "~ o e o ot
preposition in parentheses in the following |Exnetes "o the campany™, "witha | Examples: "oy e asthr”, with s
| paragraphs: R T —
1. John Doe, who graduated (of, from) the : 'u..mmm-. s " A -
University of North Carolina two years ago, is o vonbingi v Examples; for cooking”, "to leam”

now doing graduate work (in, on) engineering _ .
(at, to) Georgia Tech. He expects to receive his Master’s degree (by, in)next June, After that,
he plans to accept a job (as, like) a technician (by, with) gqqilqump:ahy‘_{jq,_:ag) South America.
2. Jim was walking (across, over) the campus,(jn, at) noon when he met a friend whom he had
not seen (since, during) summer. They "sj;dﬁpgq_f-{_i_n_f'}ront'af, arotind) the gymnasium and sat
down (in, on) thesteps. After they had talked (for, during) about ten minutes, Jim said, “I must
g0 (toward, to) Jeffers n Hall this semester. Why don't you drop by some afternoon (over,

after)classes?” | -

78



b) Tenses
Past Tense and its kinds

Subject + Past Participle (V2) + Object
Example
+ We met in front of the school.

* | bought a new phone. o '

Sub. + was/were + Present Participle ¢
Object

Example

s+ Thay were playing soccer
when it started to rain.

Sub. * had + Past Participls (V3)+ Object
Example

* We had taken a shower before
| woke up this morming

VAR

\J ’\\][\H J|
\ N
hitps:/Neverageedu.com/explore/learn-english/past-tense/

Activity: Use all four past tenses (Simple Past, Past Progressive, Past Perfect,
Past Perfect Progressive) to wrlte a short story about a memorable event in
your life.

Gather relevant information from multiple authentic available resources fol Iowing research
ethics to write and present their assignment A

- 1, Start with Reliable Sources: 15\ (C\O\

» Academic journals: Look for. peerareviewed jaumals in your ﬁeld thruugh library
databases or publisher webnt&s Theﬁe arg ﬁchblarly publications where experts review
research before it's puhliiheﬁ '

¢ Books by_\ ‘ wshed auﬂwrs Dpt fur books published by reputable presses and written
by re¢ ized experts in the field. Check author credentials and publication dates for
recent information.

T —

79



* Government websites: Utilize official websites of government agenuies research
institutions, and reputable NGOs for fa;tual data and statistics.. ~

*» Credible News Sites: Look fOI* astablished neiﬂs organizations with a reputation for
accuracy and fact‘checkmg L

2., Evaluate sourc credibility. -

. Autimi' eﬁbertise' Check the author's qualifications and background. Are they an expert in
the field?

¢ Publication date: Ensure the information is current. Depending on your topic, older
sources might not be relevant.

e Publisher reputation: Opt for publications by reputable publishers or universities known
for rigorous standards.

» Evidence and citations: Does the source provide evidence to support claims? Are sources
cited properly?

» Objectivity: Does the source present a balanced view or is it biased?
3. Use information ethically:

+ Quoting and paraphrasing: Always cite your sources when using another’s ideas or even
specific wording (quotations). Paraphrasing requires proper citation as well.

* Avoiding plagiarism: Present your own understanding of ihrinforma{inﬁ t‘.lnnt copy
someone else's work and claim it as your owm _ NN [ (0 o™=

'-.\ \II /\j

e Fair and balanced representatiﬁn;ﬁckﬁqwl?dg; dlfierent mewpoints on your topic and
present them fairly \ A )

. Permissions' If - yqure ustrig t:bpynghted material (images, videos, etc.), obtain
pemufsiqq ﬂwetépynght holder.
4. Toolstohelp:”

o (Citation generators: Use citation management tools like Zotero or Mendeley to organize
your sources and generate citations in different styles (APA, MLA, etc.).

« Library resources: Librarians are experts at helping you find reliable sources and
understand proper citation practices.

\ ~

(Activity: Gather relevant information from multiple authentic available resources
following research ethics about Drug Addiction, its causes, disadvantages and solution
o write and present their assignment.

_J
Teacher's Note
= Ask them to give an informed personal and analytical respu nse to 9 variety of Lentsand
provide a textual reference in support. . >\ (CAV)

« Let them demonstrate knowledge and application of p.arts ol’ speech m oral and written
communication in varying degrges of cdmpiexi y\\ LA

+ Ask them to use all t:ypes ofr tenses mrréctly in speech and writing

ather ielevantini’unnation from multiple authentic available resources following
et ics to write and present their assignment.

80



THE SER

James Reeves

After completing this lesson, you will be able to:

use complex questions for a range of audiences.

read with accurate pronunciation, appropriate pitch and voice variation suitable for fictional and
nonfictional texts.

read, view and analyse a variety of reading grade-appropriate and high-interest books and texts
from print and non-print sources:

a. Poetry (free vaefse, narrative and rhythmic

demonstrate understanding of figurative language, word relationships, and nuances in word
meanings.

a. Analyze nuances in the meaning of words with similar dem.')tatims, ;
demonstrate knowledge and appltcatinh cf parts of sperth in ura[ and written communication in
varying degrees of complexity | |
use all types of ten:‘.es correct{? ln speech and wﬂtinc
use par:?hraélng skills to paraphrase a poem.
suh'lmary skills to write an objective summary of the given text and poems.



¢ . ) ,-"'\': : \ ._ -,
et "szzﬁ. e ; AN (78 \ o
*f".‘.f“.“.‘i‘?m 3 Q Pre-Reading AN [ (edo=

| Theme _»

pars a) What makes nature pmmappealiugm the mader?

s 2 , b) Have W"-' QYEF moughwﬁcoﬁapaﬁng seawaveswithanobject? -

NNNA
\J N l'l'hlts| sea is a hungry dog,
Giant and grey.
He rolls on the beach all day.
with his clashing teeth and shaggy jaws
Hour upon hour he gnaws
The rumbling, tumbling stones,
And 'Bones, bones, bones, bones!’
The giant, sea dog moans, While-reading
Licking his greasy paws. What really makes the
stones move?

And when the night wind roars
And the moon rocks in the stormy cloud,
He bounds to his feet and snuffs and stiffs,
Shaking his wet sides over the cliffs, P A m,?\
And howls and hollos long and Loud N:_\_\\,\\\!. 2\ ﬁ.__\_-_\ _J)\v

J , 5\\ \\\“ .\,Ifl A
But on qgiet daysjn\ ll\( r\.[un},\‘ OR\B R &
When e«*c\pt 1gl'“as‘ii the dune

E%( r\aﬁbir reedy tune,
N J N \| hlﬁs head between his paws

NN He ties on the sandy shores,
So quiet, so quiet, he scarcely snores.

(James Reeves)

@ Post-reading

Recite the poem"” The Sea” with accurate pronunciation, appropriate pitch and voice for
demonstrating variation suitable for fictional and nonfictional texts

e

| Notes and Comments

' | James Morris Reeves (1st July, 1909 - 1st May, 1978) was a British writer, principally known for his
poetry, plays and contributions to children’s literature. His published books include poetry; stories

and anthologies for both adults and children. He was also kmwn asa titemnrmtic nndbmadtaster

wildpedia thefree encyclopedia o Nanr iy edo

J — 11\

1 '| -~ VAR A U L . = \

1L Vs G\ WA
Vi ) \ I \

WAL N \ ) ‘ \

The main theme of the p m “i’he ﬁea i¢ the power and playfulness of nature, represented here

m L

by the sea.\mgsqﬂ Bescribed as a hungry dog. The poet’s imaglnation and acute perception |,

) have transformed the seaintoa hungry dog.
*)

P —_——— 1] e TR NG




Figures of Speech inthe Poem 1\ NN (o \o~
‘The Sea” uses a number of ﬁgures of spEech tn b’ring the sea to life Here are some of the
most notable: 2\ \CA 0
" Metaphor The]mnst prnrninent ﬁgure uf speech in the poem is the metaphor that
ares. Hwe sea to a dog. The poem speaks of the sea’s "teeth,” its "hunger,” and how
it ‘moans” and "howls." This metaphor helps the reader to imagine the sea as a powerful
and sometimes dangerous creature.

* Personification: In addition to the metaphor, the poem also uses personification to give
the sea human-like qualities. The sea is said to be "restless,” "calm,” and "at peace.”
These qualities are not things that the sea literally possesses, but they help the reader
to understand the different moods of the sea.

+ Onomatopoeia: The poem uses onomatopoeia to create sounds associated with the sea.
Words like "rumbling," "tumbling," "clashing,” "moans," and "howls" all help the reader to
hear the waves crashing, the wind blowing, and the sea itself making noises. -

+ Simile: The poem also uses a simile to compare the calm sea to a dog that is "quiet, so
quiet, hardly snoring.” This simile helps to reinforce the image of the sea as a peaceful
creature.

o N { v

Nuances O A\ YN [~

It refers to the subtle d:ffe;emesand la)[ers Qf méanTng that cari be found in something It adds
depth and complexity mﬁommuﬂicatjqnf -

Here are some w Fﬂlngatorernember about nuances:

. \S : Nuances are not always obvious, They're the hidden details, the slight
variations in tone, or the underlying meanings that might not be immediately apparent.

* Importance: Even though theyre subtle, nuances can be very important. They can
shape how we understand something, how we react to it, and the overall impression we
get.

-« Across Different Fields: Nuances exist in many areas beyond language. You can find
nuances in art, music, emotions, social interactions, and even physical movements. A
painter might use subtle color variations to convey a mood, or a musician might play a
note with a slight bend to create a specific feeling.

Nuances in the poem “The Sea”
There are some interesting nuances in James Reeves'

Duality of the Sea: The poem portrays the sea with a fascinating duality. It'sa hungr:,- dog" with

"teeth," suggesting danger and power. Yet, it can also be "calm” and "at peace '@ source of
tranquility. This reflects the sea's abilfty to be bot.h heautifui and destructi!e, aforce that both
inspires awe and caution. , \

« Shifting Moods: Tiie poem doesn tpmsent the seaina static state. Through the use of
verbs like “restless," " calm," ‘and “roaring,” it captures the sea's ever- changing moods.
This dynamism reflects the unpredictable nature of the sea, constantly moving and

on ng 'toexternal forces.

o e e e e e e
83



* Sound and silence; The onomatopoeia highlights- the tbudness DF the sea when it's
restless, with “rumbling,” “tumbling;* and. “clashing.” However, the simile comparing the
calm sea to a "quiet., . hardly snoring” \dog suggests a contrasting silence. This creates a

sense of potential withln the catmness, a hint that the tranquility might not be
permanent. |\ N o\l

. Open-ended interpretation: The poem doesn't explicitly state the speaker's
relationship with the sea. Is it one of fear, respect, or even admiration? This ambiguity
allows the reader to project their own feelings onto the poem, creating a more personal

experience.
shaggy covered with or having long, rough hair bushy, hairy
gnaws to bite or chew on, especially persistently
rumblings | the first signs of dissatisfaction or grievance o
the act or practice of performing acrobpt'ic
tumbling \ o
tumbles,usu allynnamat or g;pund \RARANA 9
a prolonged, low 1nartfcula(e smmd as if f rom physncal
moans
or mental suﬂenng
snuff o [\[] ':w J:lraMn through nose by inhaling
sniff | todraw air through the nose in short, audio inhalation
' like a straight stalk of various tall grasses. A reedy
| marsh

Comprehension

“Giant and grey”. What two qualities of the sea fs the poet emphasizing?

Write down some common qualities of the sea and a dog.

‘Shaking his wet sides over the cliffs’---What is the sea doing?

‘And howls and hollos long and loud'----What aspect of the sea the poet is emphasizing?
Identify the time when the sea is calm and quiet. N o W W\
State the feelings of the dog in the third verse.- I\ N ¢ AL
Describe the plcture pf the sea as portrayed in the poem

Compare the -:hanges in the state of the sea when it is wild and when it is quiet.

& N 5o o W N



b) Choose the best answer. — (OB

i) Man can possibly control nature, by O
a) having generat knowledge af the woﬁd '
b) predicti earthquakes, hurricanes, volcanic eruptions and floods
c) Jprqgwsi j‘n science and technology
ii) Mentionlng the months of May and June means
a) the water tides are rough
b) the sea is tired like a dog
¢) these are hot months
iii) By calling the sea a hungry dog, the poet means
a) the sea is howling
b) the sea is alive
c) the sea, like a barking dog is making noise
iv) By describing the sea ‘clashing teeth’, the poet means
a) the sea is menacing and playful

230N ! [ },“‘ ~.|. ~.\d/:\‘ 7 R

c) the sea is calm o Tie \ \‘—«\ N (2o
V) ‘Resting with his head in hiiph\'(fmeans )\ x, \ ,\ W)

a) the sea is tlred‘anq Qélm\ LS

b) the Sqipwbt )i Bod mood

lhe] ais rough

Inference T_.»_ \ \ (%

B e e A ———— e

Read the poem loud. Remember that reading poems is different from prose. Like fiction,
poems mostly do not have many characters. Even if you do not understand the meanings, it

gives you pleasure while reading.

Discuss whatever you have understood and what you think is the message in the poem.

The teacher must explain that on one side Sea seems to be the focal point in the poem and
on the other hand words like ‘giant, grey, teeth, jaws, bones, dog', combine to reveal a

different side of nature, totally different from our imagination.

Divide the students in different groups. Description of the sea as a hungry dog. implicates
that the sea is alive. The students will discuss and come up with their; vim lt would create

more interest if they suggest more comparisons possible m the 'sea. AL
Discuss themessageof the poem W\ A9\ (0 W\ / \\\Y ]

i) Is nature trne best, mani‘festatwn of Allah Almighty? Give your opinion.
ii) How Moiild you describe your feelings on watching a rough sea?

85



o \ A AR
" | \ LA N -
\ RS W N | 7\ A
= v\ w AN I | s L
\ - ~ " \ \ \ \ b

a) Parts of Speech RN
Interjection Q\ \ X a\l »
An interjection is a gr phmse that Is grammatically independent from the words around
it, and mamlyj exp esses feeling rather than meaning. Oh, what a beautiful house! Uh-oh, this
looks bad.
Examples:

* Hurray! We won the match.

*

Ouch! That really hurt badly.

Wow! That is a beautiful dress indeed.
Oh my God! That was unexpected.
Whoa! That guy is unbelievably huge.

Interjection Types
Primary Interjection'

Words and phrases = Ohl
used to express sirong
amotions, such as * Wow!

surprise, joy, anger, of e Hurrah!
disgust.

* Awfull
They can stand alone %)
X ammeans ° Oh
sentence.

It's very common to use inlerectons specifically
for emations, 80 wa can diviaa English
intafjections by the kind of emation they display
and how sirong I is.

Let's first take a look at differont omations
wa might want t0 express.

| of

Joy and delight: of surprise
* Wowl = Oh

# Congratulations! * Anl

® Hurrah! *  Wow!
* Yah! & Whoa!
& Heoryl ®  Huhi
o Fanaslic! .

Secondary Interjection Volitive Interjection
Words and phrases  ® Ahl Words and express l;‘nms on!
used to express milder a desllg,n[ an urggn{
emotions, suchas  © H'“'" quw ANEE ._f ook out
dmnmb';' [\ & Hmm \ N m O "Yf " Help!
su or — Usually fou

_\\// ﬁfn! \ ”' m’[’b e beginningofa  Stop!
~THey can stand alone sentenae and followed
pr be a:md;‘%} * Ah well by an exclamation Goent
_uniunu._ ® Ahal mark. Let's gol

Intevjections of

of sorrow: of relief:

e Ouchl o Whow!

e Aww, e Phaw!

& Ohno. # Ahnt

& Alasl & Thank goodness!
& Shoot! * Yon!

& Qops!

rrAt:ti\irity: Match the interjection on the left with the emotion it expresses on h
the right.
Interjections Emotions
Wow Disappointment
Ouch Surprise
Yippee! Excitement N~
Alas! Agreement [ [ 75\ (o
. Bravol ‘ 'f-._ll.—l-lappiness et
Hey e
Uh-oh \ L Dlsappmval
Hush 1| N Encouragement
LGoodness gracf ousl Fear y

86



b) Tenses
Future tense and its kinds g

Structure’”

Examples

Will go.
He will go

I will be going.
You will be going.

They will have gone.
She will have gone.

S + will + V + Obj

ﬁfmﬂle- Ind.eﬂnte

Future
Continuous S + will be + V(ing) + Obj

Future
Perfect S + will have + V3 + Obj

Future Perfect S + will have been + V(ing) + They will have going.
Continuous Obj She will have been gone.

(Ac_tivlty: Complete the sentences with the correct future form of the verbs given. h

1. My father hasn't got much hair. He (lose) it all soon.

2.In 150 years, men (likely /be) bald,

3. When I've saved some money, | (buy)anewlpad.

4, Everybody expects the owners (sign) the agreemem: leﬂﬂ éates company.
5. Be careful, Geminis. o (have}*moﬁeﬁ problems this week.

6. Don't phone me this evening. l \ \ “”\ f ( ‘=. WD\ (study) for my English exam.

7. Let's have a snack gmw \ | “tnot be) ready for another hour.

8. What?OK, | o | WU (ﬁx) itinaminute.

9. I'tg q qb@ house before mum (come).

10. ﬂremteris already very hot. It (boil) in a minute.

11. Lucky you! At this time tomorrow, you

12. (swim) in the Caribbean!

13.If you (believe) that you will pass the test, you . (gei) it |
14.1 (g0 trekking) in Mexico next month.

\15.Ina hundred years, the ice caps (melt) unless we stop the global warming. )

a) Paraphrase the poem “The Sea” stanza wise.
b) Use summary skills to write the objective summary of this poem.

Teacher's Note
+ Motivate them to read, view and analyse a variety of reading grade-appropriate and high interest books
_and texts from print and non-print sources: B —~1A .. A
a. Poetry (free verse, narrative and rhythmic )
= Ask them to demonstrate understanding of flil.ntlve lqmuiﬂm wor# ml;tionshlps and nuancm in word
meanings.
* Analyze nuances in the meaning ol‘ wwds With unmardeno!auons
= Help them to demphstratﬂnwde@g nd ‘apptication of parts of speech in oral and written
communication in varying degrees of oomlﬂexity
+  Ask them tarurkeal{ types of tenses correctly in speech and writing.
. sﬁ? hqqn( paraphrasing skills to paraphrase a poem to use summary skills to write an objective
ry of the given text and poems. ;

87



. T

A

gwi

B Rsas

e

=

e im -
¥ _..,_....wma--\*_n&_«

First Year ﬁt Harmw

Sir Winston S. Churchill

After completing this lesson, you will be able to:
« listen totextsand critically analyse the situations/events.
» engage in extended discussions and critique taking into account other speakers’ viewpoints and
+  presenting one's own with clarity and coherence.
*» use pre-reading and while-reading strategies to analyse and explore different layers of meaning
within texts including biases and opinions.

« Ask and answer higher-order questions to guide:‘assess readlng(e.g Why is the author saying this
right now? Why did the author choose this word? How is this different from what | read somewhere

else?
* evaluate different points of view (e.g., first-person, third-person narrative) examine an author's
point of view or purpose in a text. Critique how the author distinguishes his or her position from that

of others.

« use gerunds, infinitives, and participles.
* demonstrate knowledge and application of parts of speech in ocaL m‘ld Mhiten comnmnlcatlon in

varying degrees of complexity. O RIS R
¢ write multiple paragraphs of free wrjting far ﬂuency, ereathﬂty. brainstonnlng or pleasure.

Proofread and edit texts forerrorsh‘l' 0\ :

+  sentence structure, 1 | || ||\ 2

. subjecum igrée oAt

. nounfﬁronoun agreement.

« reference words, connectives/transitional devices.

* punctuation and spelling.

__.“\ oy,




pu———

( @ Pre-Reading A e [ @S &,:.’__"_.
a) How do good educational fnstl tuttons gmom the studen ts?

l b) thtsortofquestfons areaskedby’your examiners?

| had scardely a W) my twelfth birthday when | entered the inhospitable regions of

examinations, through which for the next seven years | was destined to journey. These

examinations were a great trial to me. The subjects which were dearest to the examiners were

almost invariably those | fancied least. | would have liked to have been examined in history,

poetry and writing essays. The examiners, on the other hand, were partial to Latin and

mathematics. And their will prevailed. Moreover, the questions which they asked on both these

subjects were almost invariably those to which | was unable to suggest a satisfactory answer. |

should have liked to be asked to say what | knew. They always

tried to ask what | did not know. When | would have willingly [ while-reading

displayed my knowledge, they sought to expose my ignorance.

This sort of treatment had only one result; | did not do well in Wit were the sxamuers

partial to?
examinations.

This was specially true of the entrance examination to Harrow. The Headmaster, Mr. Welldon,
however, took a broad minded view of my Latin prose: he showed discernment judgim;my ﬁeneral
ability. This was the more remarkable, because | was found unableto ansy«dr a single question in
the Latin paper. | wrote my name at the top of the page I'wrote, dcwvh the number of the question
1", After much reflection | put-a bracket! rouoq it thm(ﬂ‘ But there after | could not think of
anything connected with it that was either relevant or true. Incidentally there arrived from now
herein particular a‘\';to and sewaral srnudges | gazed for two whole hours at this sad spectacle:
and then mer éﬁ collected my piece of foolscap with all the others and carried it up to the
Headmaster’s table. It was from these slander indications of scholarship that Mr. Welldon drew
the conclusion that | was worthy to pass into Harrow. It is very much to his credit. It shows that he
was a man capable of looking beneath the surface of things: a man not dependent on paper
manifestations. | have always had the greatest regard for him.

In consequence of his decision, | was in the course placed in the third, or the lowest division of the
Fourth, or bottom, Form. The names of the new boys were printed in the selected list in
alphabetical order and my correct name, Spencer-Churchill, began with an, 'S'. | gained no more
advantage from the alphabet than from the wide sphere of
letters. | was in fact only two from the bottom of the whole | While-reading

school; and these two, | regret to say, disappeared almost | What was Churchill's
immediately through illness or some other cause. position in the class?

”

| continued in this unpretentmus situation for nearly a year, by being so long in the lowest form |
gained an immense advantage over the cleverer boys. They all went on to learn Latin and Greek
and splendid things like that. But | was taught English, We wewcnnsldered such- dunces that we
could learn only English, Mr. Somervell---a most delightful mah, to \vhdm my debt is great----was
charged with the duty of teaching the stupidﬂt bdys the most disregarded thing---namely, to
write mere English. He knew how tordo it. \He taught it as r:o one else has ever taught it. Not only
did we learn English p: m tmrwghty, but we also practised continually English analysis. Mr.
Somervell had ¢ YS! em of his own. He took a fairly long sentence and broke it up into its

m
89




components by means of black, red, blue and green inks:(
Subject, Verb, Object, Relative Clauses, C&ndltiunal C{auses, ¥
Conjunctive and Disjunctive Clauses! Ear,h had rts colnur and'its’ |/
bracket. It was a kind of drill. Edjd italmastdalty. As1 remained
in the Third three times.as long as anyone else, | has three times
as much of it/ l¢<'rlm it thoroughly. Thus, | got into my bones the essential structure of the
ordinary Brit sh sentence---which is a noble thing. And when in after years my school fellows who
had won prizes and distinction for TR s il - 3
writing such beautiful Latin poetry
and pithy Greek epigrams had to
come down again in common
English, to earn their living or
make their way, | did not feel
myself at any disadvantage.
Naturally | am biased in favour of
boys learning English. | would make
them all learn English: and then |
would let the clever ones learn
Latin as an honour, and Greek as a
treat. But the only thing | would
whip them for is not knowing PFESessEsES
English. | would whip them hard for i

that. X & W

Whif'é#as Churchill indebted
“to Mr. Somervell?

......
¢

l \
(] lﬂc:rst'«-rpadtfafl"{hI N

Give your view point about learning English.

Notes and Comments

Sir Winston S. Churchill (30™ November, 1874---24thn January, 1965) was a British statesman,
soldier and writer who twice served as Prime minister of the United Kingdom, from 1940 to 1945
during the second World war, and again from 1951 to 1953. He is rated as the most famous
politicians of all, twice politician and an inspirational leader in time of war. He led Britain to
victory in World war Two. Churchill remains to this day one of the most popular and significant
figures in political history. .

Churchill's strength was his rhetoric. The exhilarating and rousing effect of his speeches was
always responded with cheers and applause by the public.

He addressed the nation after Germany surrendered in 1945, by saying, “This: -] your victory'.

The people replied, “No, it is yours”, Such was the relan onshfp nf the publig and their wartime
leader. !

He was awarded the Nohel prizein literatute ln 1953 for his many published works.

On 24" January, 1965 ]hls ailing heath took a toll on him and he pacced away. Six sovereigns, 13
heads of stpteland Imost 6000 people attended his state funeral.

90




v ond |

Theme

The main theme explored in "First ‘rear a<t Harrow" by Sir Winstﬁn Churchill is the experience of
a young boy entering @ pr&sttgwm hoarding school and the challenges of adapting to a new
environment., eqe qre some key aspects of the theme:

Culturejsnocid Churchlll ayoung and somewhat sheltered boy, finds himself in a world of strict
discipline, rigorous academics, and a social hierarchy different from anything he's known.

Self-discovery: Through his struggles and triumphs at Harrow, Churchill begins to understand
his strengths and weaknesses, forming the foundation for his future character.

Finding One's Place: The ‘essay explores the anxieties and uncertainties of fitting in at a new
school, making friends, and finding a sense of belonging.

The value (or lack thereof) of traditional education: Churchill reflects on the emphasis on
classics like Latin and Maths, which he disliked, contrasting it with his own interests in history
and storytelling, _

The theme can also be seen through the lens of perseverance and overcoming adversity.

Despite his initial struggles, Churchill eventually finds his footing at Harrow, demonstrating the
importance of resilience in the face of challenges.

inhosPitapln” ['|“-l.\ \ahinviting unwelcoming, hostile
invariably ' always

fancied liked

partial had a taste for

display make a show of

expose let light on, bring to view

broad-minded liberal

discernment. understanding

reflection thought

relevant “to the point

smudge dirty mark

usher door keeper a0
slender thin, small, poor I e n I
unpretentious unassuming ., \\ W |

dunce fodD\ \ 27\ c N\ N

camponents fprrning parts of something

|II | |I ‘I

e e

91




structure form ~N (72 \
pithy - | short, keeping to the poipt, full of fnrge‘-..,"'-.__ TS i
epigrams short, pninted spyings ' -
bias havea l:endency to favour
treat <2l | thing that gives great pleasure.
Comprehension

a)Answer the following questions.

Describe the significance of the First Year at Harrow.

Explain the way themes of resilience and self-discovery or explored.

Write down the reason Churchill could not do well in the examination.

Students can use this chapter for examination. Discuss.

Churchill was taught English at Harrow and not Latin and Greek. Was it a gain or loss?

Highlight the points to prove that ‘First Year at Harrow’ is a compelling read for
students.

7 Write an appreciation or criticism of Churchill s views in regard to'the study ﬂf\l,alin,
Greek and English. \CANY [ (el =
8 Relate Mr. Welldon's 1mportance at Hafrow"and ‘hls }u\:lgémer& about Churchill.
9 Analyze Mr. Somewelus érr‘inghsh tga):hg\‘
b) Choose the best i ,n for leach question.
1. What wa\é tﬁ[}rj:hi[l s general feeling about examinations?
(a) He excelled in them and found them enjoyable.
(b) He found them stressful and struggled to perform well.
(c) He viewed them as a necessary evil for learning.

(d) He had no strong opinion about them.

2. What subjects were considered most important by the examiners at Harrow?
(a) English and History
(b) Science and Mathematics
(c) Latin and Greek
(d) Art and Music

3. Why was Churchill placed low on the entrance exam list? _ A
(a) He cheated and was caught. o o~ (OB
(b) He excelled in all subjects; eucept English A\ § "; .I L
(c) He did poorly tn mnst suhjects, especially Latm

[« SRS R N PNUR N e

\,\\

W JI' _

92



4. In what subject did Churchill excel at Harrow? N2
(a) Latin )
(b) Mathemam:s
(). English
i) History
5 Why did Churchill believe leammg English was more valuable than Latin and Greek?
(a) He found English more interesting and enjoyable.
(b) English was necessary for success in all fields.
(€) He believed English was a more practical language.
(d) All of the above
6. What is the main point Churchill is trying to convey in “First Year at Harrow'?
(a) The importance of a good education at a prestigious school.
(b) The limitations of traditional examination systems.
(c) The value of hard work and perseverance in overcoming challenges.
(d) The importance of studying Latin and Greek for success in life, -

1 \ = Y b
) A \
o Al A T
\ \ ~ i. \ { |"_' ,‘ \ U '\ \

1. Divide the class, in grqﬂps to exct\ange views after listening the text to critically analyse
the situationsf é\f&hts \about-the previous knowledge regarding the personality of Sir S.

WInFtppq hurchill

gage students in extended discussions and critique taking into account other speakers'
viewpoints and presenting one’s own with clarity and coherence about Harrow, location,
country, weather and the living conditions. They should provide authentic information.
The use of a globe can be ideal for the better comprehension of the students.

3. Adebate can be arranged to know the interest of different students in different subjects
and by furnishing reason, it can be an interesting activity,

Inference
4. How difficult it is to settle in a new school, and adjusting with the new environment?
5. Doyouagree that struggle and determination can make things easier?

c) Evaluate different points of view (e.g., first-person, third-person narrative)
examine an author's point of view or purpose in the story. Crlthue how the author
distinguishes his position from that of others in this story s

\ \

93



a) Parts of Speech
Conjunctions

Ct:njunctions are- pﬁﬂq ﬂf spEECh 7that connect words, phrases, clauses, or sentences. English

has sevenc

JHatmg conjunctions—for; and, nor, but, or, yet, so—which you can remember

using the mnemonic FANBOYS: For indicates causation: “We left a day early, for the weather
was not as clement as we had anticipated.”

Conjunctions

Coordinating Conjunctions
Coordinating conjunctions
coordinate or join two or
more sentences, main
clauses, words, or other
parts of speech which are of
the same syntactic
Importance.

F=for

A=and C
B=but

0‘ \J \\] [\

S-sn

——
Subordinating Conjunctions
Subordinating conjunctions are
parts of speech that join
dependent clauses to
independent clauses. These
important word and phrases may
also introduce adverb clauses.

. becameﬂ.pefure, I!g‘l.he I.fme
b __G'Ye'ﬂ Ht m tm W‘i

oy Q) Ii‘ m‘ta_ﬁ nbwthat once
N=nor VAL ) \sihee, so that, than, the first

AR \.j| J_-i' -

time

+ unless, until, when,
whenever

= whether or not, while, why

after, although, a3, auoonas

=

Correlative Conjunctions
Correlative conjunctions
correlate, working in pairs to
join phrases or words that
carry equal importance within
a sentence. Like many of the
‘most irteresting parts of !
 correlative’
cnnjunctiﬁm are fun to use.
| J+ as/as, both /and
~ - gither / or, hardly / when
« if / then, justas / so
+ npeither / nof, not only /
but also
« no sooner / than, not / but
« rather / than, scarcely /
when
» what with / and, whether /
or

www.eslkidsworld.com

©® NS YA WD

'(A:tlvity: Identify the conjunction in each sentence and determine its type
(coordinating, subordinating, or correlative).

1. My friend and | are going to the park.
She will go to the store after she finishes her homework.
Neither my sister nor | like sushi.
He is both tall and athletic.

| wanted to go to the concert, but | couldn't get tickets. N
We can go to the beach if the weather fsnice. [ A\
She likes both chocolate and vanilta weﬂeam ALY
He went to the party akt.hough he\wasn't feeting weil
You can have ther cake or ice cream for dessert.
10. Tl'fey caﬁ blay outside when they finish thei r chores.

94




e \ IRIR R R
=\ | I\‘ <0 [ AV
~~5 N\ - \ A\
NN | e\
v \\, N | / < \O

b) Adverb O, \ 0 ‘.\ NS \¢
An adverb is a word that modifies Ldescribee“.]\a‘ve‘rb (‘“he»smgs lou d[y"), an adjective (“verytall”),
another adverb ("ended toc qmckly )* of even a whole sentence (“Fortunately, | had brought an

umbrella. "]

( Adverbs of Manner )  ( AdverbsofPlace ) ( AdverbsofTime )  (Adverbs of Froquuncy)

Specify when an action
takes place.
now, then, soon,
later, yesterday

{ Adverbs of Dagm }  {Adverbs of Certainty)  (Adverbs of Nngaliun (Adverbs oummuo_n)

Modify the intensity or Indicate the level of Express the absence Confirm the truth or -
degree of an adjective or certainty or probability. dmialnlanadiun validity of an action.
adverb, definitely, certainly, yes, certainly, -

lurdy. mblbly. not, never, no ndud, absolutely, ,
hardly, scarcly trg_rgb(\
(Adverbs of Conpuncm) (Ad«g@nafsmcm)

/ °. /> ~Show the order or
sequence of actions,

firstly, secondly,
finally, then, next

( Activity Go through the given sentences and identify the type of adverb

used in each sentence.

1. The boy practised his speech regularly.

2. The phone kept ringing constantly.
Those people have gone out.
| have heard this story before.
Are you quite sure?
You are driving too carelessly.
| always try my best.
You are quite right.
9. He solved the problem quickly.
10. | have heard enough. o~~~
11. The boy often makes the same mistake, .~ S o
12. Why are you still here? 0\ NN ‘., { \ \ “‘; -
13. 1 could hardly, recognise- Iﬂm_ QAR -
14. The little kid i$ tao, sh\y to \sing
15 The hoﬁ.ejgélmped away, )

A\ | s

© NG AW

95



c)Tenses

Gerunds, Infinitives, and Participles WY
\"-FUHB“ONQ

EXAMPLES

VERBALS DEFINITIONS
]___“- I I | as the subject of a verb | Reading improves comprehension skilis}
NINVAS -ing verb as the object of a verb He prefers swimming.
Gerunds acting as a as the subject nominative | Jogging Is a very good exercise.
sl as the predicate nominative | His favourite pastime Is gardening.
as the object of a preposition | His can't escape from leaming.
as a noun modifiers - Past
The injured man was waiting outside,
<ing or -ed/- Participle (-ed verb) :
en verb as a noun modifiers - Past The man with a broken hand waited
Participles acting as an | Participle (-en verb) outside.
adjective
as a noun modifiers - Present
Participle (-ing verb) Therwloaplog sog camed ¥ty
as anoun - the - subject of a To sleep was his greatest noed.
toanda W 7 —
verb acting | 35 2noun -the-object ofa Aneed 10 goto work.
Infinitives as a noun, | verb e —
adjective or as Yy ald]GCﬂVB, MUP \ ' ﬁ"ﬂytogo is through the woods.
adf{.%'fh asan,auvefbmdun ——

I 1 ' _.\' -

3) The college recommends sending applications early,
-4)  Mrs. Ali , showing more bravery than wisdom, invited 100_ guests to a party.

10)

The stude

\N

RN ,\1 ] |

r Acﬁwitf ﬁé&d ‘each of the following sentences to determine whether the sentence w
contains a gerund, participle, or infinitive. At the left of the number, write G, P, or I.

1)  Facing college standards, the students realized that they hadn't worked hard
enough in high school.

2)  Swimming in your pool is always fun.

5)  To be great is to be true to yourself and to the highest principles of honor.

6) He won the game by scoring during the overtime period.
7) Rayyan is expected to program computers at his new job.
8) Her most important achievement was winm ngther nattmat championship

9)  Going to work today- toak al( my energy e B
?t left m charge of the class was unable to keep order.

96



Commonly used Phrasal verbs

Learn and practice these commonly useol phrasal verbs in your daily routine. |

it o

Phrasal Verb Meanlng QL1 DU Example Sentence

Addup - [ Make'sense 'o'i' be logical His story doesn't add up.

Blowwp. |\ " | Explode or become very angry | The car blew up after the crash.

Bring out Highlight or publish "I1'he event brought out the best in

er.

Carry on Continue doing something She carried on with her studies
despite problems,

Carry out Perform or complete a task The experiment was carried out.
successfully.

Check out Examine or leave a place You should check out that hook!

Come across Find something by chance | came across an old photo.:

Come up with Think of an idea or solution She came up with a brilliant plan.

Cut off ' Stop or disconnect 1 Thﬁ phone was cut-off during the
ca

Drop off Leave someone or something i drop you off ab theqtatim

somewhere A~ [ 75\
Fall apart Break into pieces or becon'ie 'The chair fél l apart after years of
emationally. dnstahlo U\ \

Fall out Have a m_sqgrqg,hent They fell out over a trivial issue.

Fillin "--\['f‘-l“-lﬁ‘il‘] Complete a form Please fill in this application form.

Get along Have a good relationship They get along well with each other.

Get away Escape The thief managed to get away.

Give in Surrender or yield He finally gave in to their demands.

Go ahead Proceed You can go ahead with your plan.

Go over Review or examine something | Let's go over the report again.

Hang on Wait for a short time Hang onl I'l be right there.

Hang out Spend time socially They like to hang out at the mall.

Hold on Wait or grip tightly Hold on while | find the information.

Keep up Maintain the same level It's hard to keep up with him.

Let down Disappoint someone Don't let me down this time.

Look into Investigate | We nee:lto IWK il‘ltﬂ this matter

O\ ([ further.| (

Pass out Faint N\ 70\ (0 W\ O\ He passed out from exhaustion.

Pick up Collect : someone orsomethfng Il pick you up at 8 PM. . ;

Put up with -._] ,Tolerate She can't put up with her friend's

[N n VN behavior anymore.

Task: Search and learn more phrasal verbs with the1r meanings and {earn them for daily use.

97




_— — \ -t 1\
m 3 I I\ 3 2 \ I
o =~ \ L

TIPS FOR THE WRITER

Bealnstonm @ Think about what you want to say.

ideas and e Talk about your ideas with a friend
organize to find a main idea.
m'ﬂmlﬂ your topic @ Use a list or web to organize your

ideas.

e Write your ideas in order. -
° Read yourawprk /oUt loud' ar\d note
|\ places where yotstimble.
Il \ Ask a\friend for his or her feedback.

i‘ A \ \
\ ( ~
= \ |I \ M\ ‘|_ \'* \ \ -
TR EE \
W\ VL W

Create a rough
copy of your B
writing _,

p— \ ‘ x"
F l

e Try out different beginnings and

endings.
Improve your e Use quotes or add dialogue.
writing. e Include descriptive words,
@ Add detail to develop important
parts.

@ Make sure you have complete
2 sentences, correct spelling, and
Proofread

necessary capitalization and
your work. punctuation.
e Reread to see if each sentences
make sense,

@ Ask a friend to proofread your work.

O onto new paper.
| \"~@ Think of an interesting title.

o Share your writing.

98



Sentences structure O, T\~ O\ N[ (elo
A simple sentence structure has one, lm:lependent cdause "} rode my bike.” A compound

sentence has at least mo independerit clauses: “I got in my car, and | drove into town.” In that
sentence, both clausg: can'stand on their own as complete sentences.

Subjecqvérb]agreément

Verbs must agree with subjects in number and in person (1st/2nd/3rd). EXAMPLE: The dog
drinks his water every day. “Dog" is a singular subject; “drinks" is a singular present tense verb.
A common mistake in 5-V Agreement is to assume that present tense verbs ending in “s"” (ex:
drinks, runs, dances) are plural.

Noun/pronoun agreement

Pronoun/Noun (Antecedent) Agreement Pronouns always take the place of a noun. The noun is
referred to as the antecedent of the pronoun and the pronoun must agree with the noun that
the pronoun replaces. When we refer to agreement, we are referring to number, person, and
gender.

Reference words, connectives/transitional devices

Words or phrases used to create logical links between sentences, paragraphs, and sections of a
paper. For example: The proposed solution to the problem did not work: In'iﬁ&eﬁﬂ: we
attemptedasecnndsolution.ljmxg[.tms solutkgn ‘”=. 2 unmcuéssful, = '

=

f

\ 20\ O\ \., WAL =
"1. R \ .-’ f '.l \"\ / \ N
A At

Write multiple paragrap hs i{\ an 2553]13\'50\!‘11 “My Fl rst Day at College” of free writing for fluency,
creativity, br:alrrst;qrmi or pleasure. Proofread and edit text of this essay for errorsin;

sehtL’ncé structure.

subject/verb agreement.

noun/pronoun agreement.

reference words, connectives/transitional devices

Teacher's Note .
+ Help them to use gerunds, infinitives, and participles.

+ Ask them to demonstrate knowledge and application of parts of speech in oral and written -
communication in varying degrees of complexity.

+ Let them write multiple paragraphs of free writing for ﬂuency, creativity, bminstohﬂing or
pleasure,

+ Proofread and edit texts for errors .D,
" Ry U, '. MRS
= subject/verb agreement“ X\ LN
* noun/pronoun PsreemenL )

'_ N _;'-
I \ON—
L

[ "« rﬁ?l‘md W&'ds connectives/transitional devices.

99



After completing this lesson, you will be able to:

demonstrate attentive listening’ skills while working in a whole class setting and taking tums to ’
' speak with standard pronunciation.

respond to questions on a range of communicative purposes.

analyse organisational patterns in a text:
a. list/ sequence of ideas/ events comparison-contrast
b. cause-effect
c. problem-solution
d. reasons/ assumptions-conclusion

use pre-reading and while-reading strategies to analyse and explore different Iayérs Qf meaning
within texts including biases and opinions. Read and use mfarenqe -and\deduction to recognise
implicit meaning (e.g. look for suppoﬂing detarls w‘lthin a tﬁxtlparagraph) using prior
knowledge and contextual cues- eﬁet:ltva{?- .

distinguish cause from effett. fact from apiniun (e g., by noting outcomes, personal comments,
beliefs and ase#], and generalized statements from evidence-based information with specific
rel’qfehw infurmatlonal texts.

use the aspect of time correctly in speech and writing.
write a book review report



O Pre- Reading - ~N A2 \E
a) Doyou haveany knowledge of the pl aﬁets an;l hules in ozone laye |

b) How dowe beneﬁt wjth xfentlﬁc; advantement inour daily life?

e - _,_._LA_..._ .‘———-—»— ——

A computer; ger*uej"én:el:lI lmage of TrES 2. TrES-2 is a gas
planet hke anitel; but it is larger.

An international team of astronomers has discovered a
planet slightly larger than Jupiter that orbits a star 500
light years from Earth, A super-duper telescope was not
even required; they found the planet using several small
telescopes much like those used by amateur astronomers.
The new planet is named TrES-2 because it is the second
such planet found by scientists working on the Trans-Atlantic Exoplanet Survey (TrES). It is a
transiting planet, meaning it can be seen transiting, or moving, across the star it orbits.

Ted Dunham, an instrument scientist at Arizona's Lowell Observatory, says transiting planets are
special because researchers can answer a lot of questions about them. All it takes is some math and
some observations about the planet and its relationship to its star.

Some key questions: How big is it? How long is it's year (the tlme 11: t;kes l;o orbir around its star)?
How much would you weigh if you were there? ~ XV | .-"("; \ o2

“TrES-2 is a little bigger than Jupiter, has a 'yeai’ that isa li;tle less than two and a half days, andisa
little more massive than Jupfter, explhlns anham
From its mass and rTﬂus {the aistahce ‘across the planet) [ While-reading

scientists ca the density of the planet—whether it is How can scientists figure out
made of r gas, ‘or a combination of the two. (TrES-2 is made | the densi ty of the planet?

up mainly of gas}
They can also work out the surface gravity, says Dunham: “You would feel a little more than twice
as heavy as on Earthif you were on TrES-2.” :

There's a catch, though. “The temperature is about 1,500 degrees Celsius (2,732 degrees
Fahrenheit), and there is nothing solid to stand on. It isn't a likely place to look for life, ” he says.

Dunham says that to find smaller planets like Earth or Venus, scientists need to send instruments
on a mission to space. NASA sc1entists are planning “The Kepler Mission”, which could beginin two
years. _

TrES-2 is in the part of the sky that the Kepler Mission will study. Since astronomers already know
somuch about it, they can use it to help make sure their instruments are working.

“It's really a blast to be working on finding planets orbiting other stars,” says Dunham. “People
have wondered for millennia whether there are other planets like nurs., maybe wtth living things
on them. The next ten years should be fun. Stay tuned!" N\ [7

Year for Ozone hole . Y
Ozone, a gas that is produced, naturally up fn the stratosphe re whﬂg.readjng
surrounds the Earth like a protective blanket. This ozone layer
keeps us safe beﬁausel it absorbs many of the sun's harmful
ultraviolet (UV) rays.
m

101

T TR |
\ '.'. LWL R, T

How does Ozone layer keep
us safe?




But that protective blanket gets holes in it because of man-made-chemicals knawn as ozone-
depleting substances—0ODS for short—which destroy oznnearld our pmtectlon from UV rays.

Scientists report that this year the hole overAntarcttca is’a record-breaker: “From September 21
to 30, the average area of. the oZone hole-was thetargest ever observed at 10.6 million square
miles (27.4 million squ re kllometers) *said atmospheric scientist Paul Newman with NASA's
Goddard SpacFngght Center.

That's largef than the surface area of North America. The hole is also the deepest ever recorded.

Two things account for the record-breaking hole. The first is that even though more than 180
countries agreed to phase out ODS use in 1987, there are still a lot of these substances up in the
stratosphere from years past, That's because they last a long, long time, some of them more than
a hundred years.

The second factor has to do with clouds and cold temperatures over the South Pole.

“The polar stratosphere is a very cold, dry place,” explains Newman. “It is hard for clouds to form
there. But polar stratospheric clouds form when it gets extremely cold: minus 109 degrees
Fahrenheit (minus 78 degrees
Celsius).” Newman says that's when
some interesting chemistry takes
place: “The cloud releases chlorine
in a form that rapidly destroys
ozone."

The good news, however, is that the
situation would be a lo©warse if,
people hadn't started d mg thmgs to |
protect the o one B |By-the year
2070, the bi lozone holes will be a
thing of the past, predicts Newman.

& Post-reading
How do polar stratospheric clouds form?

Notes and Comments

Catherine Clark Fox is a graduate of the University of Virginia. She launched her career as a
researcher for National Geographic magazine, and earned a Publications Specialists Certificate
from George Washington University.

She is a freelance writer and editor, has composed fresh, dynamic newsletters, Press releases,
and fact sheets. This extract has been taken from National Geographnc \

17
F G2 VO~

Theme

To bring awareness of the latest smence diSCDYEﬁES IS the main theme. This report will enhance
students’ lntfregt ta knbw more about Planets and Ozone,
VAR

102



o ———— —_—
.

—

Mea..mp Synonyms

amateur _|ene who engages in a pursuit study or sport asa pastime | unprofessional
densiﬁ.yj' NN the cjuantity per unit volume, unit area or unit length

depleting to lessen markedly in quantity, content, power or value
| gravity gravity, serious situation or problem

Jupiter the largest planet, and fifth in order of the SUN

massive large, solid or heavy in structure

orbit acircular path,

stratosphere | the highest regionon a graded scale

transit process of passing through or over

ultraviolet | situated beyond the visible spectrum atits violetend | “

-~ _.\ I / | ~
~ ._"‘/,-__ '\‘-\ I O \O~

Comprehension A
a) Answer the following questians, | .\ |\~~~
1. Namethefo der of the new planet TrES-2.
2., The Qr&isihr; planets are special. Give reasons.
3 Menfwn the temperature on TrES-2.
4. According to the author, next ten years should be fun. Give reasons.
5. Howcan study of planets provide interesting information about Earth?
6
7
8
9.

Describe the source the earth is surrounded like a protective blanket,

Why is it difficult for clouds to form at the Polar Stratosphere?

Highlight the Newman's prediction about ozone by the year 2070.

Justify that ozone layer is important for human life. Distinguish cause from effect, fact
from opinion (e.g., by noting outcomes, personal comments, beliefs and biases), and

generalized statements from evidence-based information with specific reference to
effects of global warming on Ozone Layer.

b) Analyse organisational patterns in a text keeping in mind: -
a. list/ sequence of ideas/ events comparison-contrast :
b. cause- effect e AN
d. reasons/ assumptions-conc[umn A WU WY _
c) Complete the givensenteﬂceswlthsuitable words.
a) DarkBlanke gbt a holein
b) TrFS—?rlhaga planet like

103



c) TrEs-2ismade up mainly of

= A account for record-breaking hoge,
:e) Thesecondfactorhastouomm and
f It5—-—-fﬂ*”:lﬂl-ldstlai’t:urrtltherle

g) Thecloud relgpsg.vi in a form that rapidly destroys ozone.

h) By the ygar iﬂ?O the big ozone holes will be a thing of the
d. Astronomy is a branch of science which tells about moon, stars, etc. The word Star’ has
been used in the unit. Consult a dictionary and tell the difference between astronomy and
astrglogy.

Oral Communication

Respond to questions on a range of communicative purposes.

» Arrange a quizz activity by forming groups of four or five students.

» Theycap take help from Internet tg collect information about Suparco and Nasa.
What is the purpose of these organizations?

After sharing the views with others, a presentation will add to the knowledge of the
students.

Inference (
1 Doyou think study of Planets will give us mtera-sting Infnﬂniiti n ﬁl;ou& Earth?
2 Doyouthink ozone layerislmportant foHiuman l1ff.-?

Activity: "Discussion Circle’ 'stu;lemts sit "! a ct?cte tak: ng tums to add one sentence to a group
discussion about * Hu:ﬁ rgan.'i to Live on Mars’ , using clear pronunciation. After completmg the
discussion, Lﬁ\epr\\i arize it, emphasizing attentive listening and incorporating previous

details. \J
Grammar and Vocabulary
a) Aspect of time correctly in speech and writing
Grammar and usage Tense and aspect are different grammatical
Tense and Aspect categories, but they always come together in
_ Tenses: Present/Present perfect a given phrase.

Past/Past perfect

Future/Future perfect As a practical approach to language usage,
Aspects: Common we don’t mention tense or aspect, we rather

Peogressive speak of the following structures:

Present simple | always go out on Saturday everiings. /() |\
(present tense+common aspect) She never gets Up early in the mwning._ )
Present progressive A Tt stttlng  here and listening to you. S e
(present tense+progressive aspect) | Loak out, it’s raining. 1n severol textbooks.)
Pastsimple /| |\ Ch played tennis with Sheila yesterday..
(past tense+commoi i#pect Grandfather came home early last night.

104



Past progressive _ We were, playjng—foothailg dtfsiix yestemi:\y

(past tense+progressive aspect) A\ She was stud}wlnl English ﬂ'nm §ix to seven.

Present perfect simple il Sow, I've broken your glasses.

(present perfect tense*cnmmbn upect) | Have you done your homework (yet)?

Present perfect brdgéesshre We've been living here for ten years.

(present pe t-tense+progressive aspect) | She has been playing the guitar all this morning.
Past perfect simple She said she had written three letters the day before,
(past perfect tense+common aspect) We had lived in Oxford before we moved to London.
Past perfect progressive She said she had been playing tennis all that morning.
(past perfect tense+progressive aspect) How long had You been staying here when the rain startedy
Future simple | will be thirty years old next year.

(future tense+common aspect) Our train will leave at 7:30 tomorrow.

Future progressive This time tomorrow we'll be flying to Los Angeles,
(future tense+progressive aspect) What will you be doing at Six tomorrow?

Future perfect simple

(future perfect tense-common n | will have finished this work by the end of next week.

Future perfect progressive e e e T a
(future perfect tense+progressive aspect) We'|| have been starlng herqfor ;wwéehs hy next Friday,
-\ 2~ \ \. "‘,‘ \I\\I\‘ \ =
\& \ 7V A\ (D \\\'- Vo )
r’ r_‘- II". \l. \ (r‘_\\ll.g,. ‘| \‘ I)\( \. i k: -J.Nj - | B | _\
Activity: Read eacfr s&-nl;ence t&l*efully and choose the correct tense or time
marker. to/co mg léte the sentence accurately.

AVAS

1) Sarah_____ (read/reads) a book every night before bed.
2) Lastsummer,we ________ (go/went) camping in the mountains.

3) By the time | (get/got) home, the party had already started.

4) Nextyear,ourschool ______(celebrate/celebrates) its 50th anniversary.

5) He_____ (will finish/will be finishing) his homework when you arrive.

6) Right now, they ________ (watch/watches) a movie at the cinema,

7) Yesterday, Maria _________ (bake/baked) a delicious cake for her friend's blrthday
8) Intwoweeks,we _____ (will gofwill be gnlng) on vacatlon to Mq;ree

9) By the time you (arrivefarriuga], I will haye ‘aLr;eadyl le%t for the airport.

10) Every morning, :hebirds D\ tsifig/sings) outside my window.

VRN o

105



Book Report Outline-

Introductions:
(Title, author’s name, year published,
genre, overall theme)

Body Paragraphs:
(setting, time period, character description,
plot of the story)

N\ [ (_/X 'D\ -‘

Conclusion: T\
(overall im ression\p J:I;IO a\ﬁﬂbﬂeut
about ﬂ?u \{ \tfoolr. to others)

Book Report

Abook report is a written summary and analysis of a book that provides insights into its content,
themes, characters, and overall impact. It's commonly assigned in schools as a way for students to
demonstrate their understanding of a particular book and their ability to critically analyze its
elements. Here are the typical steps involved in writing a book report:

1. Reading the Book!

The first step is to thoroughly read the book from beginning to end. Take notes on important plot
points, characters, themes, and any significant quotes or passages.

2. Introduction;
* Provide basic information about the book, including its title, author, genre and
publication date. 1o ’r’\f)\\‘“ \
» Briefly introduce the main themesorjqeasu\a;thqwq}l\\e\%bwes &\
3. Summary: ‘\;?’T“ (0 \ \) WU

» Summarize the ma‘mplut pmnts“nf mEWthwt giving away the ending.
' :' on abwt fﬁe setting, major characters, and key events that drive the

106



» Focuson the most significant aspects of the plogand avmd unneCes.Sarydetails

4. Analysis: '
* Analyzethe themEs. ch;racters ar{d wnnng styte of the book
* Discuss how. e aulhor develers the plot and characters, and how these elements
.‘conﬁrllppte 10 the overall message or purpose of the book. :
. Cons1 der the book's strengths and weaknesses, and evaluate its effectiveness in conveying
its intended message or entertaining its audience.
5. Personal Reflection:
« Share your personal thoughts and reactions to the book.
« Discuss what you liked or disliked about the book, and why.
+ Reflect on how the book impacted you and whether it changed your perspective on any
issues or themes.
6. Conclusion:
« Summarize your main points and restate your overall impression of the book.
« Offer recommendations for who might enjoy reading the book and why.
e Endwith a final thought or reflection on the significance of the book

-’ AR Y \ I'._\'. |

7. Proofreading and Editing: \[] \/ >\ (CLOM
» Review your book report for spgl li ng, gramma;,\ and puﬁttuatm‘érmrs
» Ensure that your, wntingisdeantcnciae,and wiell-organized.
* Makeany necessém revisions to iHTprove the clarity and effectiveness of your report.
8. cmmwmmiarw
Make smie 'to properly cite the external sources or quotes from the book according to the required
citation style (e.g., MLA, APA).

(" Activity: Complete a ‘Book Report Worksheet: following the above mentioned points. 1
+ Title of the Book: h:
» Author: :
¢ Genre: : | B
+ Date Started: : ik
; * Date Finished: : \ : J

1. Basic information:

Provide the title and author of the book. 6

What genre does the book belong to? (e g., ﬁction, non-ﬁction, mystery, \‘aﬂtasy) _

2. Summary: ARECR\RSR\B Rl

Write a brief summary of{hebonk }nclude t,he main cha racters setting, and plot points.

s % Characters \[. ] \[] B!

List and ¢ crit I:he main characters Include their traits, motivations, and relationships with

107



other characters. 1)
4. Setting: o Nanto /e

Describe the setting(s) of the: sr.ory, Inc{ude tlme pérlOd; tocation, and any significant details
about the environment. \

5. Plot: (R N o\

( |
Summarize tHé maﬂl events of the story, What are the key turning points or conflicts?
6. Themes:

Identify the main themes or messages conveyed in the book. How are they developed throughout
the story?

7. Personal Response:

Share your personal thoughts and feelings about the book. What did you like or dislike? Would you
recommend it to others? Why or why not?

8. Favorite Quotes:

Select a few memorable quotes from the book and explain why they stood out to you.

9. Comparisons:

Compare this book to others you have read in the same genre or by the same author How does it
stand out? =)\

\ I\ 5 I"'. ( .\_.H\:\;_’_) )

10, Overall Evaluation: N e N/ CALN
Rate the book out of 5 stars and justify yourrating w1t]1 speciﬁc examples from the text.
11. Additional Activities (Opﬂpnnl)’ AN

e | Wﬂes you did alongside reading the book, such as research, discussions, or

12, Recommendations

Would you recommend this book to others? If so, who do you think would enjoy it and why?
13. Conclusion:

Sumup your thoughts on the book and conclude your report .

Teacher's Note:
« Ask students to respond to questions on a range of communicative purposes.
Motivate them to analyse organisational patterns in a text:
+ a. list/ sequence of ideas/ events comparison-contrast
+ b. cause-effect
« €. problem-solution
+ d. reasons/ assumptions-conclusion ~ A\

- Encourage them to distinguish cause from effect, fact from npinipri (e g., by notlng outcomes,
personal comments, beliefs and bfases), and generahzed ﬁatqments from evidence-based
information with specifici reference tainformational texts.

* Help them to use the asper.t bI tlme cﬂrrectly in speech and writing.

. Hotivate thelp tq write a'book review report on their own.

5 -4 y

108




HARVEST HYMN

John Betjeman (1906-1984)

After completing this lesson, you will be able to:

demonstrate attentive listening’ skills while working in a whole class setting and taking turns to
speak with standard pronunciation.

read with accurate pronunciation, appropriate pitch and voice variation suitable for fictional and
nonfictional texts.

analyse organisational patternsinatext:
a. list/ sequence of ideas/ events comparison-contrast
b. cause-effect
c. problem-solution
d. reasons/ assumptions-conclusmn

verify the preliminary determination of the rneaning of a ward ur phrase (e g by checking the
inferred meaning in context or in a dictiomry) ) |

identify and use eampqund prepositious and preposttional phrases in writing
use paraphrasi ing sl sknls ;:o paraphrase a poem.
use1 sumr#lhry skills to write an objective summary of the given text and poems.



& Pre-Reading
a) Ifyoutruly love nature, you will ﬁnd beauty everywhere? Co:nment
b) How would you rela;e t__hl_e. ha(v_es_:__nng season with prosperity?

Readiny

We spray the fields and scatter
The poison on the ground

So that no wicked wild flowers
Upon our farm be found.

We like whatever helps us
To line our purse with pence;

The twenty-four-hour broiler house
And neat electric fence.

All concrete sheds around us
And Jaguars in the yard,
The telly lounge and deep freeze

Are ours f rom workmg hard

We fire the ﬁelds for harvest
The hedges swell the flame,
The oak trees and the cottages

F which our fathers came.
- While-reading

We give no compensation, Why do we like whatever
The earth is ours today, helps us?
Andif we lose on the arable,
The bungalows will pay.

All concrete sheds around us
And Jaguars in the yard,
The telly lounge and deep freeze
Are ours from working hard.

(John Betjeman)

O Post-reading W\ o~ [N\ L
Recite the poem -Tnth accurate pronunmatton appropnate pitch and vaice variation

suttable [fnn itu

110



John Betjman (August 28, 1906 May 19, 1984) was a Bntish poet writer and broadcaster. He
studied at Oxford. A\ \ 0 €

During World W qabnjamm served as United Kingdom attaché to Dublin, as BBC broadcaster
and in the. Bﬁi  Council department. His two books revealed himas a sericus poet “Old Nights
for New Channels” (1940) and “New Bats in Old Fries” (1945). His poetry was enhanced by a
poem “Summoned by Bells' (1960).

In 1969, Benjamin was knighted and in 1972 was appointed poet Laureate of Britain. He
suffered from Parkinsons disease for a number of years. He suffered a stroke in 1981 and a heart
attack in 1983, He diedin 1984.

i —-.-. = ".__*ﬁ“. -."‘;- =

5 ' rlhiu'! for our material gains. The poet bitterly describes the way
the lmd‘lnwr pursuit of wealth. By burning trees to ashes, we give way

Words Meanings Synonyms

fence 1 N | ‘:Qéjeﬁt EHat blocks the way

concrete | construction based onstones and pebbles

telly television

arable land that can be cultivated

Comprehension

a) Answer the following questions,

1. Whose voices do we hear in the poem?

2. The first two lines of the poem forcefully convey the meaning. How? .
3. Why do you think the speaker in the poem regard wild flowers as "wid&ed? ~(0)\ \(\S\

4. “The hedges swell the flame”. The ﬂame is literal bumt a!so hasa Métaphori cal meaning. What
elsedoes it represent? \ \

5. “The earth is ours toda)f Inyourownwwds, expressthe speaker's attitudes to the land.
6. Atwhat cost does man get the luxury items?
F 2 Whictij_lii)_bﬁf ) icaie the destruction of land and houses of our ancestors?

m



8. How will the bungalows pay for the loss of cultivated land? N N\ (C
9. “All concrete sheds around us”. What is the pnet emphaiizlng through the use of the word "all?
10. What lesson do we learn from the puern Hawest Hymn’i‘ T
b) Analyse organisational pattEfnS in a poern while keeping the topic of environmental issue
inmind: - (NN o+

o list/ sehuehce of 1deas/ events comparison-contrast

» cause-effect

» problem-solution
* reasons/ assumptions-conclusion

Oral Communication

Demonstrate attentive listening' skills while working in a whole class setting and taking
turns to speak with standard pronunciation.

i)  Divide the class in groups of four or five students. Then share your views on different
natural resources that our country has.

ii) Discuss the benefits of the natural resources towards the progress of the country.

iify Audio visual aids can be of great help OR a documentary can be showa for better
comprehension. 2

iv) Read the poem aloud. Do not fnr:get a:o lay sl;re;s at propEr wnrds wh{ie readmg That is
known as Intonatlon . \

Focus on the following qualtlng :echmgum
i) Varythe sﬁd pﬂ your voice. ‘Slow down to emphasize key words and lines.
ii) Speaﬁ véry word clearly and distinctively.
iii) Make eye contact with your audience.
iv) Every student should be given a chance to read.

W N

Preposition

A preposition is a word that shows the relationship between a noun or a pronoun and some other
word in the sentence. It shows direction, time, place'and location.

a) Compound prepositions

A Compound preposition is a preposition that has two or more prepositional words. It can be said
as a combination of words. For example: amidst, above, across, below, between, beneath,
within, without etc. It can be said as a combination of words. It is prepared through the joining of
a prepositional or a non-prepositional word to a simple prepusition used wsitha noun adverb,
adjective, and pronoun. J

Compound prepositions are formed by joinmd twu or thkea mﬁds Thé ﬂrst word is generally an
adverb adjective or conjunction. The| second Wbrd 15 asimple preposition

Three-word compound prepﬂsftlms have a structure different from the two words compound
prepositions me[ﬂmt and-last words of such prepositions are simple prepositions while the
second word.hs eithera noun or an article.

i P ————

112



Unit 11: Harvest Hymn

Examples A O AN
-+ According toher principal she is agood student. ~ —
- Thegardenwas mtc[eanasidefromme cafeteria.
In the ﬁrs__t| septgpgé,l_fto"'-.i§ considered as a simple preposition. When combined with "according' it
becomesa compound preposition.
In the second sentence, ‘from'is said to be a preposition. When combined with ‘aside' it becomes a
combined preposition
TWO-WORD COMPOUND PREPOSITIONS-
According to Asfor Asto Dueto Insteadof Before Aheadof Asof Apart
from Owingto
As regards Regardlessof  Asidefrom Becauseof Regardlessof Exceptfor Owingto
In between : .
THREE WORD COMPOUND PREPOSITIONS- ‘
Aswellas Becauseof Byvirtueof Duringthe courseof Inaccordancewith Inconjunction
with Inexcess of
Infavorof Inorderto Inreceiptof Withrespectto Withregardto Withreferenceto In

termsof Intheimmediate I
1. Onbehalfof Inaidof Infrontof Inrelationto Bymeansof , Withrelationto Inline

with Ontopof Asfaras. , g

THREE WORD COMPOUND RREPOSITIONS- || () |\~
1. Heranaway from the cat as far as she could.
2, ng.uqﬂgﬁﬁ;&r_ﬁdédih"e"’c’efemony on behalf of her father.

3. TheJ:‘evs[» apizzastorein front of the park.

(Activity: Read each sentence carefully and identify the compound preposition(s) 1

in each sentence. Then, write the compound preposition(s) you identified.
1. ' The cat jumped over the fence and ran through the field.

She placed the keys under the mat beside the door.

We walked across the bridge onto the island near the shore.

The book is between the shelf and the desk in the library.

He stood behind the tree by the river near the park, -

The children played beneath the tree amidst the flowers around the garden.

They traveled throughout the country between the mountains along the river.

The treasure was hidden beneath the sand beyond the dunes near the shore.

. She found the letter inside the envelope along with the photographs. .

10. We walked along the path past the pond towards the forest,, 2\ 200) \Q\\ y

N WA wN

© ™

,

b) Prepositional phrase ' ' { (&0~
Prepositional phrase is a group of words comprising a prepasition, its object, and a modifier of
the object. Inalonger sentence, this phrase modifies verbs, nouns, clauses, and phrases.

Examples: NNARRISA
. \ \ le was the best thing that ever happened.

*  Yourworkiis going tofilla large part of your life.
Qi = ec—a e T

113



Use of prepositions. < \ (C(OWLY

N I

1. Usethe following prepusitinnalnhram in meaningful iehtences |

to let down, thuughtof mdedvdm xrewmgup, replaced by, grew up, got fired, trapped in.
2. Rewrite the sentenCQS\aﬁer replacmg the given word with the underline word in the first

sem:Tnce.l| N \[AR\=
Example:!|\| .

« My father hasalways liked football. Interested

« My father hasalways been interested in football.

1. This passport can be used in many countries. Valid
This .

2. AreyouandAhmad related? Relative
Is _ ?

3. Paynoattention to what she says. Notice
Take "

4, Hewas seventy-six when he died. Age
He

5. Acarcrashed into abus this tnoming.
Acar Aare \.\ ~

6. Wehave runout of the 1temsyopwa;1t 'i.';. W\ ~ \ Stock.
The items, “- n( r'\l O\ '-."\ \ ) "'I-j'u .

7. My boss seqq,sqq en joihmﬁtliating people. Pleasure

Mv&bs{

8. Ify youwant tounderstand Yeat's poetry, you need tostudy Irish history. Key

Irish history
9. Idon'tusually speak tostrange men. Habit
| i
10. All my friends have left me. Deserted

a) Write the objective summary of the poem “ Harvest Hymr."
b) Paraphrase this poem line wise.

Teacher's Notes :

turns to speak with standard pronunciation. =~ T 2O

nonfictional texts. \ L \ \‘
+ Help them to analyse organisational patl;em: rn atext \\ \ ,'- \\ 3
a. list/ sequence of idnasf e:tents :omparisqn contraat B, cause-effect
¢. problem-solution - d reasonsl assumptions-conclusion

I in context or in a dictionary).
. lb Identiiy and use compound prepositions and prepnsi’uonal phrases in writing
' As«thern to use paraphrasing skills to paraphrase a poem.
*  Help them to use summary skills to write an objective summary of the given text and poems.

+ Encourage students to demonstrate attentive listening’ skills while working In a whole class :ettim and taking

+ Ask them to read with accurate pronunciation appmprlate p:tdyand vqi;:e va;latlun suita‘ble Tor ﬁctional and

' Mntivate mem 0. fy the pre!immary determination of the meaning of a word or phrase (&.4., By checking

114



3z

Yt

IH; quy' .ﬂ ?figg fﬁffr’

After cqﬁplét{ﬁg this lesson, you will be able to:

! demonstrate attentive listening' skills while working in a whole class setting and taking turns to speak with

’ standard pronunciation.

) ¢ evaluate how authors use language, including figurative language, considering the impact on the reader.
Discuss others’ reading critically, taking account of their views. Express informed opinions, justify the
viewpoint and make recommendations and develop an interest in a variety of texts.

. * apply skimming and scanning strategies for relevant information and main points in texts to identify the
writer's purpose, and intended audience, Infer the theme/main idea of the text, distinguishing between fact
and opinion where necessary,

* summarise complex concepts, processes or information by paraphrasing them using correct language
:truch:re, transitional devices, own words and relevant punctual marks. Make inferences to draw conclusions
rome.g
a. contextual information
b. writer’'s viewpoint
¢. implied information
»_ interpret and integrate information from a variety of sources for comprehension (e.g., rnap& graphs. charts,
diagrams)
* acquire and use appropriate words and phrases for reading, writing, spea.king. and" ﬁstening* independently
gather vocabulary when considering a word or phrase, important for combn?het!sion oFexpression.
e demonstrate command of the conventions oEStandard I-'.nnush camtali-ti on, punctuation, and spelling when
writing in different varieties of texts, | /\
» Observe hyphena;mn cqnventionﬁ. NN :
. Pro?urie legible work th&l shqws the correct spelling of the conventions of punctuation and
capital 3\
o write and eritique tselffpcer checking) the final draft after complete editing and proofreading, Ensure each
paragraph develops the main idea of the essay/piece of writing and the topic sentence of each paragraph, Use
the technique of hook, and lead in sentences to develop the flow of thought.



‘ o Pre-Reading \ NN 175 \ o=
a) Whatare your feelings while plannmg artnp to the nort!iefrn are as7
b} Which other mountainqus areas E.ome to your ‘mind after reading the heading of the unit't}

Reading \ JI U 4
The Kaghan Valley is less thana _ ”ﬁ
day's drive from Islamabad, the
capital. The favourite route is
through Abbotabad, the
administrative capital of the
valley. It takes an hour from
Abbotabad to Mansehra and the ™%
road is good. Short of Mansehra [ 38
the road splits---the left goesto 1%
Shinkiari valley, and onwards to
Gilgit---the right fork goes
through the city of Mansehra and then on to Balakot, an hour away. Balakot is the gateway to the
Kaghan valley. x SN\

Balakot was the epicentre of the devastating qarthquake that sttucjr. in 2005 It completely
destroyed the town of Balakot, killing thﬁusa\rfds of\ pebnlg and also ccripletely destroying the
road to Kaghan. Massive amowt,sbf na\tiana\t and international aid was arranged to rehabilitate
the affected families 1nd the néwly \constructed shops and houses are now spread all over the
valley. RN NN

Naran is the most popular destination for the tourists. It is located at an altitude of 7000 feet and
is therefore cool in summer. The valley is heavily wooded and the Kunhar river flows through it. A
fishing license can be obtained in-Naran that maybe used throughout the valley. Rods, tackle and '
guides can be hired as well. If you are not up to fishing yourself, you can get a fishing guide to do it
for you. He will bring for you the fish he catches by the end of the day. Naran has postal, telephone
and medical facilities also, and is a good base for trips to the higher valleys.

The Kaghan and Naran valleys are blessed with plenty of veater.
There is adequate rainfall to feed its forests and ill the streams [ while-reading
and rivers that flow through it. There are a number of lakes in
the valley. One of the prettiest and most accessible is the lake
Saiful Muluk. It is close to the town of Naran and is a must-see
for everyone, who visits that area.

On way to Kaghan valley Shogran is the first stop. At over 8000 feet Shogran is cool even in the
middle of summer. The whole ridge is heavily wooded and there are. Lovely views fmrn the top. The
views are picture perfect, the Kaghan valley stretching mto the haz\,' ‘blue; fold after fold of
mountains interwoven by the Kunhar river, There are hi gh pastures above the hotels . At a distance
of 500-600 feet one gets to the top of the ru{ge and 1o open grassy meadow. There are a few giants
of fur trees here at Makra peak andastream of sparkling clean water flowing down the mountain.
Thisisa gref,t camﬂ p#te "The Makra peak is about 2000 feet above this point and an easy day's
climb.

How are the forests fed in
Kaghan and Naran valleys?

116



One fine day | decided to attempt it
along with my son and two nephews, all
about ten years of age. It was the end\of / |8
April and the peak was- covered with?
snow. After about thl{TY mmutes ¢limb
we got toa patch of stunted fur trees.
They were hke bushes but completely
covered the ground. The trunks of trees
were like thick ropes rolling on the
ground with small branches and leaves
sprouting all over. They covered the
ground so thickly that it was difficult to
walk through these patches. To
photograph the Alpine flowers and
savour the view, we decided to go to the top. | spent sometime taking photographs of the Alpine
flowers growing just below the snowing fields.

As tourists go whizzing along the metalled road to Kaghan and Naran, they scarcely sparea glance
at the semi-barrenridgeagross the river to the north-west. Little do they realize that behind the
ridge lies one of the most verdant, lush and charming forests in Pakistan, The forést department
has done a wonderful job of protecting the forests af Sharan and thmé of adjmmng valleys

Agood metallic road goes across and upand atong the r’ldgeon thenther side of the river. Terraced
corn fields and flowering bushes lined, the road, Farmers had carefully utilized every inch of land
that they possessed. Corn ﬁelds Were proteded by stone walls from passing herds of goats or the
occasional cow;. vmd a Meditetranean look to the narrow country track. Huge walnut trees
dotted the lﬂndHCape providing large areas of shade.

The road climbed quickly from 5000 feet by the river to the top of the ridge 9000 feet. The fields
came to an end at the top of the ridge and the forest began. It was sparse to start with but became
dense as we crossed the ridge into the Sharan-valley itself. All signs of habitation had ceased ant
there was nobody on the road, human or animal. The track continued twisting and turning its way
down the ridge and into the valley

Forty minutes later we got to a clearing in the forest. In the middle of this clearing was a small,
neat looking barrack with a sign saying Youth Hostel. We stopped to investigate. It was a Spartan
but clean dormitory, There were separate rooms for boys and
girls, Beyond the hostel, the path crossed a cluster of wild [ while-reading
junipers, through a crystal clear stream, and on to a meadow
sloping up to the forest rest house. White, yellow, purple and
pink flowers overwhelmed the lush green of the grass and —_—
" created a riot of colour, We had a comfortable mght stay at the _\ 2\
rest house. A ac~ NN (oo

Where did the path cross a
cluster of wild junipers?

Early next morning we set off towards the distant peak The watk was a wonderful experience. A
thick forest in full bloom-:--bafks, upan banks of flowers growing to a height of about 4 feet.
Every few hundred yards a stream would cross the path, its water icy cold, as it was melted snow.
Our guide exPlalnad that the authoritieshad been so strict in preserving the forest that no one
was allowed'to graze their sheep in the forest except for the ten odd families, who were old

residents of that area. Three hours of climbing got us to the top. From there we could see the little

117



white dots of sheep on their long journey to the I'ngh

peaks

The next day was spent in ex,plon ng the walks around the
rest house, One. plvilkl s to follow the jeep track leading
behind the rest house up to a natural spring which is the
source of water for the rest house, Beyond the spring is 2
narrow path leading up to a couple of huts belonging to a *-
local familyabout 800 feet up the ridge. Thereisawealthof .-~
wild flowers on the hill side. In fact, Sharan is probably one j_‘-- _- Z

of the best places to look for wild flowers. We were told e
that people come here to look for rare plants, for medical |

purposes.
Behind the rest house the road forks on to the right, across the stream, and up the right side.
There are magnificent ferns across the path and in the forest.There are good views of the main
Kaghan valley from there. The forest on the way is quite varied with pine trees of different
varieties. Apart from the pines there are walnut and other varieties of deciduous trees, flowers
and small clearings. The whole forest is empty except for birds and butterflies. AR

The forest is populated with quite a few varieties of birds. Usually at;mght. ﬂ'teoms exchange

voices, deeper in the forest. The beauty of gbeir bchuihg\ cﬁes‘ h a ' novel experience for city-
dwellers. _ ~( W\ U WU

_ \ "'f \ P RLS
." p \ LU T

\\ ( \ u < \ A
& Post-reading ]. AR\B\SS
Ca ny:od mfme the variety nf Db]ECtS one can see in the northern areas?

i‘. et

Notes and Comments

This travel account has been taken from the book “ATravel Companion to the Northern Areas of
Pakistan” written by Tahir Jahangir. It is an excellent book with sufficient information of the
Northern areas.

Tahir Jahangir got his early education from Aitchison College, Lahore, and graduated in
Economics from the University of Cambridge in 1967. His hobby is travelling and landscape
photography. He has been writing about his travel experiences in The Friday Times, a weekly
magazine, published from Lahore.

Travelling is the theme, as clear from the name of the bmk This ls to famitfanze the readers

with the picturesque valley, surraunded by majestic mountains, fascinating terrain with
forests, rivers and glaciers, Theraccqunt is a guide to travel in that areafor the experienced

people as well as tpegasonadtravellers

118



Meamng

Synaonyms

accessible that t:an be l‘eached entered used etc approachable

alpine treree ] \ \[| () plAhts that grow best on mountains

altltude height

cluster - group of things of same type appearing together

deciduous that loses its leaves every year (of a tree, bush,etc.)

-devastating causing a lot of damage and destruction

dormitory *| @ room for several people to sleep in {especially in a
school)

epicentre ?:litntgn earth's surface where effects of earthquake are

fern plant with large delicate leaves and no flowers

T to weave together two or more pieces of thread 5
wool,etc. ~ 12\ (L

junipers bush with purple bern ESJISE,d in mﬁ.'drp]nefor ﬂa\feur '

massive verylarge, hea\cy "~

meadow - éscovered ﬁeld used for hay water meadows (near a

.J I\ P T R . =

connected with Mediterranean sea or countries

mediterranean surrounding it

overwhelmed | suchstrong emotional effect that is difficult to resist

pastures . grass covered land suitable for feeding animals on

pine trees a tall forest tree with needle like leaves

rehablitate help someone to lead a normal, useful life again

ridge a high pointed area near the top of amountain

riot collection of a lot of different types of the same thing

savour enjoying to your full _
simple, lacki ng something that makes life easler or| __aa)

i pleasant B )\ (C\O)

sprouting producing new leaves of buds A T LN Yy S el |

stunted not able'to grow or de%lop asmuch asit should have

verdant

| fr?shand green (of grass plants, fields, etc.)

S\ .l_ N l'

19 )



a)Answer the following questions. 1 v Q. AN YA
1 Name the gateway to I(aghan‘ A~ \V
2 Describe the eplcenter of mezoos earthquake and how devastating it was.
3 Identify th?s!witidn of the lake Saiful Muluk.
4 Hfghffght the difficulties to walk through the patches.
5 Explain the measures that were taken to preserve the forests.
6 Tell reasons of not destroying the wild flowers.
7 Which other trees are grown there besides Pine trees?

8 Apply skimming and scanning strategies for relevant information and main points in texts to
identify the writer's purpose. Infer the theme/main idea of the text, dlstmgmshlng between fact
and opinion where necessary.

b) Encircle the correct option:
i) Elation means:

a) Great happiness b) depressed c) excitement d) honourable
ii) Dotted means: RN

a) covered by dust - b) hazy cj bright |/ y) c_gwéf@d by' dots
iif)  Sparkling means: 0\ (7 -.\ ; , \ \

a) shining _\ '\L,n \ﬂrm"bugrgd\ A o) burmng d) dividing

iv) Summit mea s. \ \ .f'!
a)| | quva;.(;‘bb ht - b) middle point ¢) highest point d) invisible

c) Evaluate how the author used language, including figurative language, considering the impact

on the reader in this blog. Discuss others' reading critically, taking account of their views. Express

informed opinions, justify the viewpoint and make recommendations and devetop aninterestina

blogs/articles regarding tourism.

d) Interpret and integrate information from a variety of sources for comprehension (e.g., maps,

graphs, charts, diagrams)

Interpreting and integrating information from a variety of sources for comprehension involves
several key steps. Here's a structured approach to effectively achieve this:
Identify and select sources:

a) Diversity: Choose sources from different perspectives, including scholarly artir:les,
news reports, expert opinions, and primary data. _ AR

b) Credibility: Prioritize reliable and reputable sources Ilmss-\:zheck factﬁrbm mulhple
sources to ensure accuracy. A AL

¢) Summarize key points! | & N _
Extract the main qeas from Each source Summanze these points succinctly to capture

the esser\cq of the information provided.

120



d) Compare and contrast: - ~NA\ s
Look for similarities and differenceé in the Information presented by different sources.
This helps in understandmg d:fferent vww;mints and ldentlfymg any biases or gaps.
e) Synthesize ormaﬂon.
{ ornbiné rtl‘ﬁ': summarized points to form a comprehensive understanding of the topic. |
1is may involve integrating various perspectives into a coherent narrative.
f) Evaluate and critique: _ ;
Assess the validity and reliability of the information. Consider the methodology,
evidence, and arguments used in each source, Critically evaluate any potential biases.
g) Draw conclusions:
Based on the integrated information, draw well-supported conclusions. Ensure that
your conclusions are logical and backed by evidence from the sources.
Example: Climate change
1-Identify and select sources: -
» Scholarly article: A peer-reviewed study on the impact of climate change on polar ice
caps. - !
» Newsreport: Arecent article on climate policy changes in me;ul‘opeﬂn U»‘ﬂm
« Expert opinion: A commentqry by a }eodinq dimate scnéntis”t on renewable energy
solutions, ALV
 Primary data: NASA‘s data on globattemperature changes over the last century.
2-Summari rize p;qy ppihu‘ ]
. Schoiar‘y article: Polar ice caps are melting at an accelerated rate due to rising global
temperatures, leading to sea-level rise.

¢ News report: The EU has introduced stricter emissions regulations to combat climate
change, aiming for carbon neutrality by 2050. :
* Expert opinion: Renewable energy adoption is crucial for reducing greenhouse gas
emissions, with solar and wind power being the most viable options.
* Primary data: NASA's data shows a steady increase in global temperatures, with the last
-decade being the hottest on record.
3-Compare and contrast:
* Both the scholarly article and NASA data highlight the ongoing increase in global
temperatures and its impacts.
* The news report and expert opinion focus on policy and solntlons emphasizmgthe need
forimmediate action and renewable energy R NIHZAN (@S
4-5)‘ntheslze information: L O AYATN AN A
* The rising global temperatures as conﬁrnuzdby NASA data and scholarly research,
necessitate urgent polk:y maasures like those adopted by the EU,

. Ren a?lq pmg}gy, advocated by the expert, is a key component of effective climate
cy, supporting the EU's regulatory approach. _

1



Evaluate and critique: B .,; \ A =

+ Thescholarly article uhlghly reliahle due toits peer-reviewed nature. The news report
provides current context but should be checked against other reports for confirmation.

¢ The e t]t Ppl;nihn adds practical insights into renewable energy solutions, though it |
mayc $ome bias towards certain technologies.

Draw conclusions.

Climate change is a pressing issue confirmed by multiple sources, Effective mitigation requires

‘a combination of strict emissions regulations and the adoption of renewable energy
technologies. Policymakers must act on scientific evidence and integrate diverse strategies to
address the multifaceted challenges of climate change. :

Maps, Graphs, Charts, Diagrams on Climatic Changes

Injuries, fatalities Asthma,
mental health impacts cardiovascular dlsﬁase

Malaria, dengue,
bieei- relatedllllnels?\ I\ B\ encephalitis, hantavirus,
\ rift valley fever,
fa Jlure lyme disease,

\ chikungunya,
e | West Nile virus

Forced migration,
civil conflict,
mental health impacts

. Respiratory
/ allergies, asthma

quality impacts

' Cholera, -
Malnutrition 52|
diarrheal disease. r.ryptosparidiasis,
\\ ~%) ,.-campylubacter, leptospirosus
' \\_. harmful algal blooms

122 :




_.__,_._.,_._
»

"Yiekt Bushels per Acro
o8 ass8EEEE

Demonstrate attentive listening' skills while working in a whole class setting and taking
turns to speak with standard pronunciation. .

« While making travel plans we need to focus on the following points.
a) location b)time c) distance d)duration / \

e\ ((

AWNAY
[ 75~ % W\ A"

Now you can ask questidns from your class\matesliktf. H' [ (8o~
a) Where are yougoing tostay and foa\-ﬁoyalong‘{w AU
b) Would yeu like to'take photographs?
. Describe y?uﬂq‘qTaﬂmgsafterreading the unit,
meﬂsibn\ sshuuld ask different questions like:
a) What inspired you most over there? _
b) Doyou want to travel to any other place in the country?
C) Has the travelling experience added to your previous knowledge?
* Change views about travelling with other groups in the class to know more about travelling.

* Students can take turns to speak with standard pronunciation about the role of Tourism
Department in our country.

Inference

1. Canyouimagine travelling by sea as people used to travel in the past?
1. Doyouthink travelling is an interesting experience?

- - \ (A 1\
i — (1) ( AV

N\ | 7o

a) Appropriate words and phrases fwreadms,wﬁtlng,smaking, and i"'iﬁtening; independently
gather vocabulary when considering./a’word orphrase important for comprehension or
expression. :
Enhancing vocabulary involves actively identifying, understanding, practicing, and using new
words an#ﬁhrébes across various contexts. Here's a brief discussion on this concept:

' | 123




Key steps to enhance vocabulary: (T \ @ T\
1-Ildentify key Words and phrases: A o L\ W D

* Reading and listening: While engagl ng wlth diFﬁerent texts and audw sources, take note
of unfamiliar or signiﬁcant wqrds \Context clues can often help deduce meanings.

2-Understand meanings

s chtloninJes' Look up deﬁmtlons synonyms, antonyms, and usage examples to fully
grasp the meaning of new words.

* Contextual examples: Observe how the words are used in sentences to understand
their connotations and appropriate contexts.

3-Practice usage;

* Writing: Incorporate new vocabulary into your writing through essays, stories, or
journals. Practice using new words in sentences.

¢ Speaking: Use new words in conversations and discussions to reinforce your learning
and improve recall.

4-Review and reinforce:

» Regular review: Use flashcards, vocabulary apps, or spaced repetition systems [SRS) to
review new vocabulary regularly. o\

.__._\f (‘ '. \

* Repetition: Repeated exposure and use of new wurds 1M|ﬁerentgnntexts\Help solidzfy
your understanding and retention. - O\ \

\ '. f-"_r LT

3-Engage in active learningt "\ | V {

= Diverse reading matetdals* Read books articles and journals across various genres and
topics to nchnte[ - wide- range of vocabulary.

. Listenldg o#aried sources: Listen to podcasts, lectures, and conversations to hear
new vocabulary in use.

'« Discussion and practice: Join discussion groups or language exchange programs to
practice and reinforce new vocabulary in real-life conversations.

Example:

Word: Ameliorate

Meaning: To make something bad or unsatisfactory better.

Contextual use: "The new policies are designed to ameliorate the effects of pollution.”
 Practice sentence: "Efforts to ameliorate the situation were successful.”
By systematically identifying and practicing new vocabulary, you can improve your language skills
and enhance your ability to communicate effectively in reading, writing, speaking, and listening.

Regular engagement with diverse sources and active usage of new words ensures, contmual
growth in your vocabulary. N AYGON

(“Activity : Read the following passage: AN A K

\ \

“In the midst of the bustlrng uty,iheré was a s»erene park that offered a respite from the

cacophony of urban life. The park was adorned with vibrant flowers and lush greanary,

creating an isis of tranguility. Visitors often found solace in the gentle rustle of leaves and
the melodiol r.l‘nh:mg of birds."

/

124



a) Identify and list five unfamiliar or signiﬁcant words fram ;he,pas“ AWUY

Word 1: _ - WordZy . Word 3:

Word 4; HOINTS =LA

b) Look up the meﬁnings of the words listed above and write them down:
Word* 1, ‘j 7 ]I l | I - Definition:

Word2: - Definition:

Word 3: - Definition:

Word 4: - Definition:

Word5: - - Definition:
c) Use each word in a sentence:

Word 1: :
Word 2: '
Word 3:
Word 4:

Word 5:

Demonstrate command of the conventions of Standard Englls\h capitalizgﬁtiqn‘ punctuatlon
and spelling when writing in different va,rﬂleties qf«tem Y (oo~

\ '\ .,-"'I."'-I '. -' { ‘\ "‘\ \/ I‘. \\'

T \, T

Activity: Write a shqﬂ: paragrapl\ of”éﬁa\,r using at least three of the new words you have
learned on a men prable\ énce in nature following command of the conventions of
Stand; rdFEligﬁih Ehpltalization punctuation, and spelling when writing in different varieties
of tem . ;

* - Observe hyphenation conventions

Fundamentally, the hyphen is a joiner. It can join several different types of things: two nouns to
make one complete word (house-plant) an adjective and a noun to make a compound word
(accident-prone) two words that, when linked, describe a noun (agreed-upon sum, two-
dimensional object

(Activity: Rewrite the following sentences with correct hyphenation: R

a. The editor in chief will review the article.

b. They bought a three bedroom house.

c. This is a user friendly website. :

d. We need a long term solution. - Jrar

e. She is a highly respected scientist. A PONBY

~ f.She bought a well furnished apartment. " __ NV [ (o=

g. The meeting will be held on! twent’y emht,\ DAV

h. He is a co founder of the, mmpany

i. The recipe calls for a two third cup o{ sugar ' ,
) 111¢ twentylf ryear old athlete won the race. )

125



= \ o IBIRRRR™
= [ IS\ [ ATV
¥ o v N T A A A\
\ ATANN [ (O, —
1 y \ \ )

Jc- Task. Write and. cﬁtiqUe)m :' Eer ec]ﬁng} the ﬂnal draft after complete editing and

""" pruofreading”on “Jmp urism l‘n a Country's Development”. Ensure each paragraph -
. .develops t| m idea ‘of the essay/piece of writing and the topic sentence of each
paragraph Use the technique of hook and lead in sentences to develop the flow of
thought.

Understanding the Writing Process

Look'at the process in a book that the writer uses. What you see in print might not be much like
the first plan for the book. The author might have rewritten many times.

The writing process is often divided into five stages. Most writers go back and forth through these
_ stages. There is no one correct way to write.

[ |\ \]| ] |

Teacher's “o

« Ask students to demonstrate attentive listening' skills while working in a whole class setting and
taking turns to speak with standard pronunciation.

+ Discuss with them to evaluate how authors use language, including figurative language,
considering the impact on the reader. Discuss others’ reading gritically, taking account of their
views. Express informed opinions, justify the viewpoint and make recommendations and develop
aninterest in a variety of texts. N

» Help them to apply skimming and scanning strategies for relevant information and main points in
texts to identify the writer's purpose, and intended audience. Infer the theme/main idea of the

. text, distinguishing between fact and opinion where necessary.

+ Encourage them to interpret and integrate information from a variety of sources for
comprehension (e.g., maps, graphs, charts, diagrams)

+ Let them acquire and use appropriate words and phrases for reading, writing, speaking, and
listening; independently gather vocabulary when considering a word or phrase important for
comprehension or expression.

+ Motivate them to demonstrate command of the conventions of Stand(a.rd English capltallzatmn,
punctuation, and spelling when writing in diﬂecentvmeties of texts.:

» Ask them to write and, cﬂtique (self! peer checkingj the final draft after complete editing and

* proofreading. Let them ensure each paragraph ‘develops the main idea of the essay/piece of
writing and the topic senteru:e of each paragraph and to use the techmque of hook, and [aad-in

' 126



AFTER TIWENTY YEARS

O’ Henry (1862-1910)

After completing this lesson, you will be able to:

speak confidently and fluently in a wide range of contexts, For example, (conflict resolution, panel
discussion, role-play, dialogue) etc.) to fulfil different purposes (exposition, argumentation etc.).

evaluate the particular elements of a story or drama (e.g., how the setting shapes the characters or
plot). Evaluate stages of plot development in a fictional text. (exposition, setting, climax, character
development, resolution)Examine how complex characters (e.g., those with multiple or conflictirig
motivations) develop over the course of a text, interact with other characters, and advance the plot
or develop the theme. '

cite strong and thorough textual evidence to support analysis of what the text says explicitly as well
asinferences drawn from the text.

examine and interpret the use of conjunctions and transitional devices in speech and writing to
create the effect. Recognize and use subordinating conjunctions to connect indqundent clause/s
to dependent clause/s.e.g., He could not attend the rneettng hecause hewas sick- W\

recognize and use correlative conjunctions inctuding palrs such as 'botn!and " “either/or,’
neither/nor,” “not/but” and "not; only.f but also etc.|

write a descriptive cnmposttiun (giving physical descnption and characteristics/traits of a
person/object/place moving from general to specific), using correct punctuation and spelling, by
using the: pro¢ess approach - brainstorming, mind mapping, and writing a first draft.

N |
\ aﬁply‘ know!edge of parts of speech, tenses, sentence structure and other features of grammar and
“vyocabulary to understand how language functions in different contexts, make effective choices for
meaning or style while reading, listening and writing.

-



@ Pre-Reading N0 Yo
a) Doyou believeinfulﬂllingprOmtSEs? WO
b) Are you excited to! read an unprecedented example’

— T - —

J
J_J ]||| N

The policeman on the beat moved up the avenue impressively. The
impressiveness was habitual and not for show, for spectators were few.
The time was barely 10 O'clock at night, but chilly gusts of wind with a
taste of rain in them had well deployed the streets.
Trying doors as he went, twirling his club with many intricate and artful
movements, turning now and then to cast his watchful eye down the
pacific thoroughfare, the officer with his stalwart form and slight
swagger, made a fine picture of a guardian of the peace.
The vicinity was one that kept early hours. Now and | While-reading

;?:;ty:lunll\;ghtsei the Eﬁrt::f a ciga:isttor:ro[;ef a;o:)l:; What was the policeman doing while

unch counter; e majority 3

belonged to business places that had long since been strolling = the thoro»ghfare
closed. ~ :

| o
e R, \ | A\ A
\ A\ \ -
\ ! T T -
./ "

When about midway of a certain bloclﬂ‘.he iczemar’i suddén ly sluwed his walk. In the doorway of
adarkened hardware store a man lear\ed 'with'the unlighted cigar in his mouth. As the policeman

walked up to htmth?maﬁ spoke quickly.

“it's alnghl, officer, “he said, reassuringly. “I'm just waiting for a friend, It's an appointment
made twenty years ago. Sounds a little funny to you, doesn't it? Well, I'll explain if you would

like to make certain it's all straight. About that long ago there used to be a restaurant where this
store sands "Big Joe Bardy's” restaurant. “Until five years ago”, said the policeman. “It was
torn down then.” The man in the doorway struck a match and lit his cigar. The light sowed a pale,
square-jawed face with keen eyes, and a little white scar near his right eyebrow. His scarf pin was
alarge diamond set.

“Twenty years ago tonight,” said the man. “| dined here at “Big Joe Bardy's” with Jimmy Wells, my
best chum, and the finest chap in the world. He and | were raised here in New York, just like two
brothers, together. | was eighteen and Jimmy was twenty. The next morning | was to start for the
West to make my fortune, You couldn't have dragged Jimmy out of New York. He thought that it
was the only place on earth. Well, we agreed that night that we would meet here again exactly
after twenty years from that date and time, no matter what our conditions might be or from what
distance we might have to come. We figured out that in twenty ears each of us ought to have our
destiny worked out and our fortunes made, wh«‘nver they wem AR

§ongrobe, | A2 LAV While-readln!

“It sounds pretty interesting”, said. the pﬂli’ceman "Rather a Why did the friends depart

long time between meets, thOugh itﬁeems to me. Haven't you bk el
heard from ycu.lur fnmdglﬁceyouleft"? wenty years bac

128 .



Ut 13 Afted l\--r-nlvh'ln

“Well, yes, for a time we corresponded”, saidtl'le otherq "But after a year or two we lost track of
each other. You see, the West tspretty big propcrsltlon and kept hustling around over it pretty
lively. But | know Jimmy; wiu meetme hereif he is alive, for he always was the truest, staunchest
ld chap in d: He'll never forget | came a thousand miles to stand in this door tonight and
it's worth it if. mﬁ)ld partner turns up.”

The waiting man pulled out a handsome watch, the lid of it set with small diamonds. “Three
minutes to ten,” he announced. “It was exactly ten O'clock when we parted here at the

restaurant door.
“Did pretty well out West, didn't you?” Asked the policeman.
“You bet! | hope Jimmy has done half as well. He was a kind of plodder, though, good fellow as he
was. I've had to compete with some of the sharpest wits going to get my pile. A man gets ina
groove in New York. It takes West to put a razor edge on him.”
The policeman twirled his club and took a step or two.
“I'll be on my way. Hope your friend comes around alright. Going to call time on him sharp?”
* “I should say not!” said the other. I'l give him half an hour at least. If jimmy is alive on earth, he'll
be here by that time. So long, officer.”
“Good night, sir,” said the policeman, passing on along his beat, try1ng doors ashqw‘ent.
There was now a fine, cold drizzle fatling, and the wind had riseh ffurn its uncertain puffs into a
steady blow. The few foot passengers. astirin this quarter hurried dismally and silently along with
coat collars turned high-and pocketed hatkds \And.in thé door of the hardware store the man who
had come a thousand miles to fill an appointment, uncertain almost to absurdity, with the friend
of his youth, smcrkefl his ngar and waited. About twenty minutes he wz .ced, and then a tall manin
a long mrhoét, with collars turned up to his ears, hurried acrosz {,om the opposite side of the
street. He went directly to the waiting room.
- “Is that you Bob?” he asked, doubtfully.

“Is that you Jimmy Wells?” cried the man in the door.

“Bless my heart!” explained the new arrival, grasping both the other’s hands with his own.
- “It's Bob, sure as fate. | was certain I'd find you here if you were still in existence.

Well, well, well__twenty years are a long time. The old restaurant is gone, Bob; | wish it had
lasted, so we could have had another dinner there. How has the West treated you, old man?”

“Bully; it has given me everything | had asked for. You've changed lots, Jimmy. | never thought you
were so tall by two or three inches.
While-reading

“0Oh, | grew a bit after | was twenty.” e i P . ;
P i ow much interest does the meeting
Doing \Iﬂell in New York, Jimmy? of the two f'?"?“ ds §r‘_‘-'§t_¢3--.j N

“Moderately, | have a position in one of the city ﬁepartments Come on Bob we'll go around to a
place I know of, and have a good lung talk about ald times.” '

The two men started up the street arm inarm. The man from the West, his egotism enlarged by
success, was beg nn]nﬂ tooutline the history of his career. The other, submerged in his overcoat,
listened with int

129



At the corner stood a drug
store, brilliant with electric
lights. When they came into
this glare each of them)| \r
turned simultaneously to |\ |\ 4
gaze upon the Ptlyel’s faci:

The man from the West ,
stopped suddenly and
released his arm.

“You are not Jimmy Wells”
he snapped. “Twenty years
is a long time, but not long
enough to change a man’s
nose from a Roman to a

pug.”
“It sometimes changes a good man into a bad one,” said the tall man.

“You've been under arrest for twenty minutes, “Silky" Bob. Chicago thinks you may have dropped
over our way and wires us she wants to have a chat with you. Going quietly are you? That's
sensible, Now, before we go to the station here's a note | was asked to hand you 'mu May read it
here at the window. It's from Patrolman wells" N e N [ (0. \o~=

The man from the West unfolded the little plece of paper handed h|rn His ha nd was steady when
he began toread, but it tremhleda lﬂtle by the timehe had finished. The note was rather short.

Bob: | was at the appoinqed place on time. When you struck the match to light your cigar I saw it
was the face o{ Mg man wanted in C hicago. Somehow I couldn't do it myself, so | went around and
got a plain elbthes man to do the job Jimmy.

O Post-reading
How does the writer prepare for the end of the story?

Notes and Comments

OHenry (1862-1910) is the pen name of William Sydney Porter. As a champion of the
ordinary city people, he evoked their tragedies and aspirations with humour and
artistry. The arresting opening, and twist of the plot in the end, characteristically mark
his stories. In fact, he perfected the art of surprise ending. O'Henry pubhshed over
three hundred stories from 1899-1909, and gained worldwide acclaim._ \

Theme -
Honesty towards duty, truthfutness. canng for law and sincere frlendsmp is the
theme. The man did not let,his friendship and love come in his way to fulfill his duty
and responquw VivEche

130



Words

Meanings

{')'\,' Nonyims

abswﬂ[ﬁ'i-.'ij]._|'L_l_ ' \J ."tdn'i'pletely ridiculous; not logical and sensible stupidity
avenﬁé astreetinatownorcity

bully one who uses strength or power to hurt or rrighten others

chum friend

club heavy iron stick with a thicker end used as a weapon

dismally miserably, in a gloomy state

| egotism vanity, too much pride in yourself

’_ﬁgured to think and decide

groove along narrow cut n something hard

| gusts sudden strong increase in the speed of blowin _gvdnd f &J
hustling making somebody mm(e qmcklyhymsﬁmgjgm_ b
intricate havtng diffemnt parts andsma!jetaﬂs to ﬁttq-gether
moderately f_afrly butnptverweasonably, to an average exten:

plodder(| \| A [ I\ N J 'i[a péffs:on‘who works slowly, steadily but withcut maginatior
propusitiol\i an idea or a plan of action as suggested

puffs an act of breathing in something like a cigarette or cigar
| pug a small dog with short hair and a wide flat face

reassuringly making feel less worried or uncertain about something

scar mark left on the skin after a wound

simultaneously | at the same time i

spectators people who ae watching an event

stalwart loyal supporter of an organization or a political party

staunchest (superlative of staunch) strong in one's opinion
submerged togounder the surface of water or liquid_ '_-_f' \ _:
swagger towalkinan extremely p;wd gnd conﬁderlt way" il

twirled to move orﬂance mund a‘ndmund

twirling 1 movigg rounefand round like dancing

vicinity.| N NN Sreaarounda particular place

Tl




a) Answer the following questions. | \//| |( () |\ 0~ &

1 Describe thescenein the beninning uf thestory

2 Wasthe placeq 1hess centre only?

3 Explam tﬂé réasun of the street's emptiness at that time.

4 What kind of characters does the story “After Twenty Years” have?
5 Analyze the most significant happening in the story.
6
F 4
8
9

Describe the climax of the story “After Twenty Years”.
Give an account of Jimmy and Bob's personalities in the story.
The ending of “After Twenty Years” fills the reader with poignancy. Discuss.

In the second line the word 'spectator’ is used. In what context the author has used the word
inthe story?

10 Evaluate stages of plot development in the story heading wise : exposition, setting, climax,
character development, resolution

11 Examine how complex characters in the story (e.g., those with multiple or conflicting
motivations) develop over the course of the text, interact mth other characters, and
advance the plotor develop the themeof thestory. . /<> | (! SIS

v \ ||/

12 Cite strong and thorough textual evi@lce to; sLtpport anqu.f»is of what the story tells
explicitly as well as mfecences dra\vn ﬁ;bmthe text L

b) Read the followm# spptements and enc!rcle the most appropriate option:
i) Poli gﬁﬁaﬁ[ Walks an isolated beat at night.
a) He will meet someone.
b) He may arrest someone.
¢) He may help someone in need.
i) The man in the doorway struck a match and lit his cigar.
a) He wanted to reveal a secret.
b) He wanted to show his diamond fitted scarf pin.
c) He wanted to see the other person in that dim light.
iii)“Haven't you heard from your friend ever since you left™?
a) The man waiting was trying to gain time by asking questions.
b) He wanted to be sure that he has found the man he was looking for. - .
c) The man waiting wanted to show his diamond studded ymst watﬂh ......
iv)Bob calls Jimmy a plodder. \\ T\ ) \ CAL
a) Does he mean Bobis cgnceitad? \CAL
b) Does he think Boh i forgetful?
c). qus hé ‘think Bob works slowly?

132



c) On achart like this, analyze the last four paragraphs qf "After Wenty Years
What Happens What is Surprising .. ©) 1 | \
* Man lets go off his fnends anms It seerrls that sornething has gone wrong.

» When they came mtﬁ this gtare “Each of them turned simultaneously to gaze the
otheq fage, -

N M twenty minutes he waited. Then a tall man in an over coat turned up to his
ears, hurried across from the opposite side of the street.

d) Breaking down sentences:
i) What are the two subjects of this sentence? How do you know?

* The time was barely 10 O'clock at night, but chilly gusts of wind with a taste of rain in
them had well-nigh deported the streets.

ii) Which part of the following sentence tells what the man is doing?

¢ And in the door of the hardware store the man who had come a thousand miles to fill an
appointment, uncertain to almost absurdity, with the friend of his youth, smoked his
cigar, and waited.

iif) Restate the main action of this statement in your own words:

his career

Ai‘raiige the class in groups. Tell each group to comment on the arrest of 'Silky Bob'. Each
“group leader should loudly relate it to the other groups.

» The words should be spoken clearly, carefully and with correct pronunciation.
¢ The voice should be rai_sed and lowered for dramatic effect.

» |t should be spoken slowly enough for the audience to understand, but not so slowly that
they get bored.

» Make a three column chart. Use one column for jimmy’s words and expressions. Use the
other column for Bob's. Write the review of their conversation in the third column.

Inference
1 Name three skills that a policeman must have.
1 Isn't it a great satisfaction to perform your duty with honesty?

133



Grammar and Yocabulary

(¢ For ﬁ‘.é*bééihning J

First.| JI N I l' Accordingly In the first place
As well as Here Opposite
Likewise Before At the beginning
The first At first An important
Yet . Moreover Generally
Besides To begin One important
( For the middle ]
Therefore That is In short At the same time
Particularly Including That is Correspondingly
Otherwise However Furthermore Except
Moreover In addition Secondly . Suddentyr\ \\
Along with After  (later. _1\ 2\ (Infact
“’ /= \' ‘- '\ \\ \ Y "
af\ { , ‘Pénthe end J
\ |\ -. "
In brief ( AR Q\ j| JOmeuSIy\! 2 The final The last
The wo rs!; N N Ultimately To sum up To conclude
Then Lastly Finally To summarize
Clearly Last of all - Undoubtedly On the whole
In fact Thus Since Hence
Transitions Words for Essays
Contrast Persuasion llfustration
However Of course For example
Nevertheless Clearly Such as
Alternatively Evidently For instance
Despite this Surely Such as
On the contrary Indeed In other words
Yet Undoubtedly __—An instance (\|
Whereas Decidedly if-.j\ | [ (hs reveated by
Apart from | Certalnly DY/ “To show that
Even 50 \l fl"'-"".-'--_.,_"‘.,_Fnr fhts reaSon In the case of
Although N U Besides As an example
Iy spitejof " Again For one thing
While

134




Cause & Effect

C’-‘mparison s

‘A&d‘ﬂﬂﬂ _-_-.-'~'_1;,__;..

Because
Since

=\

}:Dnsequently
Therefore
Thus
Hence
Owing to
As a result of
Causes
As a consequence of
Leads to

W N N VLY

Contributes of

3\ Clearly
Evidently

Surely
Indeed
Undoubtedly
Decidedly
Certainly.
For this reason
Besides

Again

Also
In addition
Further
Furthermore
Besides
In addition to
Moreover
Additionally
Not only ... but also
Then
Again
Finally

a) Examine and interpret the use of conjunctions and transttional devices in spge:h

Conjunctions and transitional devices are the unsung: ‘hé

of ckea:r and impactful

communication. They act like bridges, smoothlya necting 1deasza|1d guiding your audience
through your message. Let's delxe ‘ihtﬁ how (they. cteaté specific effects in both speech and

writing:

|.\ f\

‘,‘\\ \.

Conjunctions; Ml NI ]4 \ ) /\ =

O\ U~
\

Ao

. Ud:rdihating con]unctlons (FANBOYS): These workhorses (For, And, Nor, But, Or, Yet, So).
They show simple relationships like sequence ("She woke up, and then made coffee”) or

contrast ("l wanted coffee, but there weren't any beans”).

* Subordinating conjunctions: These introduce dependent clauses, which rely on an
independent clause for complete meaning. They signal a variety of connections between

ideas:

+ Time: "When the storm hit, the power went out.” (When shows the timing)
» Reason: "He exercised regularly because he wanted to stay healthy.” (Because

shows cause and effect)

+ Condition: "If you practice, you'll improve.” (If shows a hypothetical situation)

Transitional devices:

Transitional devices go beyond basic conjunctions, offering a broader toolkit to shnw the flow of

ideas. They come in various categories:
» Sequencing: First, next, then, ﬁnally (shﬂwmderj

« Cause and effect: Because, therefﬂ{e, hence 1show causeor result]

Contrast: However. qonversety cm the other hand (show opposing ideas)
Similari y plgemse, simrtarly, inthe same way (show connections)
. Embhais 2 fact, irueed, moreover (add weight to a point)

135



e Example: For instance, for examp{e, spec |ﬁcally ( mtroduce illustrative Exaniplmi
Effects created: > \ \ |

« Clarity and flow: By using. l:oruunctions and translhons effectwely, you guide your
audience through yuur\rnessage _making it clear and well-organized. They act like
signposts, indic: timg howideas relate to each other.

s Retﬂldﬁséﬂps. These tools signal the connections between your points. Did you add new
information? Contrast an idea? Show a cause and effect? Choosing the right transition helps
- your audience understand how these ideas fit together.

+ Emphasis and tone: Transitions can add emphasis or create a specific tone. For example,
- "Frankly” sets a more direct tone than"In conclusion.”

The takeaway:
Effective use of conjunctions and transitions takes practice. Here are some tips:

* Read actively: Pay attention to how these elements are used in your reading to understand
theirimpact.

* Experiment: Try incorporating different transitions into your writing and speech to see
how they affect the flow and impact.

» Listen closely: Notice how effective speakers use transntiunal phrases tu connect their
ideas during presentations or speeches. —~ 1o\ (U

PN \\! | / (, I'. __’; -

Activity: Write a short paragraph (S*f sentent:es) abeut a recent experience. Use a
variety of conjunctionsand transftimil devices to create a clear and well- organized
message. Be su.{rg tq ]dentit‘y the type of conjunction or transitional device you used for

L each mﬂamd g., for contrast - however).
‘\\II“-,- )

b) Use subordinating conjunctions to connect independent clause/s to dependent clause
Subordinating Conjunctions
Subordinating conjunctions are words that connect two clauses in a sentence, making one

clause dependent on the other. It shows the relationship between the clauses, such as time,
cause and effect, contrast, or condition.

coneosro i o W

» because « when « if « whereas
» since « before + unless « while

» 5o that + after + even if « in contrast
« in order that « until + in case .

although

Comparison

« so that |\ just as) .'j \ » where

+ in order that | - \'than! \ + even though » wherever
. lesé NN rather than + though + everywhere
. rd& . asif « whereas + anywhere

136



Clauses and Conjunctions

Independent Clauses | | (| V. - Dependent Clauses
Can stand alone as a sentence and _r: Can Not stand alone as a sentence and
express a co I]eﬂe thwght DOES NOT express a complete thought.
T bl s as on adult Think of these as on baby
We are going to label our independent We are going to label our dependent
clauses with a capital I, clauses with a capital D.
Coordinating Conjunctions Subordinating Conjunctions
(FANBOYS) - (A WHITE BUS)
These appear between two independent These usually appear at the beginning of a
clauses, Sometimes.a semicolon : may dependent clause
appear instead of a FANBOY
A - after, although, as
For W - when, while, where
And H - how
Nor I-if e = (o) \\\\%
But T than; then T ( I"j .;'3"\" i
Or O A || E\- leven though
Yet ~\WZ\\ D \&- ‘because; before
So ., \ '\.,"-., D 1] U - until, unless
) S - since
We are goiqpiqb b&k and cross thnse
We are going to squiggly line these

Some examples of how subordinating conjunctions can be used to connect independent and
dependent clauses;

Time:
* Independent clause: The party started.

e Dependent clause: After the guests arrived. (This clause tells us when the party
started)

* Complete sentence: The party started after the guests arrived.
Reason:
* [ndependent clause: | went to bed early.

« Dependent clause: Because | was feeling tired (This clause hells us why I Went to bed
early) A\

* Complete sentence lwent to bedearly Bgcauselwasfeeung tired
Condition: AN\ ¢ \ $
. IndePenf!er,ttlause. We can go to the beach
*-ii:.‘..
ﬁ
137




¢ Dependent clause: If the weather is nice. ('_I'his clause tells us uﬁder what canditmn we
can go to the beach) \ (A
« Complete sentence: We can go to the beach if the weaﬂ\er is nice.
Other examples: 1AL U
» Contrast Shf.' ted coﬁ'ee, while he preferred tea. (Connects contrasting preferences)

. Placé. e found a hidden cave, where there were ancient paintings. (Connects the

location of the cave)
» Concession: Although it was raining, we decided to go for a walk. (Connects despite a
challenge)
[ g

Activity: Match the independent clause in Column A with the dependent clause in Column
B that best creates a complete and grammatically correct sentence using a subordinating
conjunction. Write the letter of the matching dependent clause on the line next to the
independent clause.

Column A (Independent clauses)
1. The baker decorated the cake .
2. Wewenttothepark . e\ coF
3. | finished my homework . *-I | \
4. If you practice g.fourjmt.-um.o,J,ﬁh AR\NSAN=
5. Because t!)e__wgﬁthér was fice, o
Column g (Peperident Clauses)

a. when the sun was shining. b. so she could add the finishing touches. c. as long as it

\Lwasn't raining. d. you will improve your skills, e. after I finished eating dinner. r

c) Use of correlative conjunctions including pairs such as “both/and,” “either/or,” either/nor,”
“not/but" and "not only/but also

( # L]
Activity: Write three sentences using different correlative conjunctions. Remember to
maintain balance and clarity in your use.

1

138




Correlative Conjunctions A ~ » \
Correlative conjunctions are pairs of werés that wOrk tagether to connect word, phrases, or
clauses in a sentence. They jotnstmilargnammaﬂcal elements (such as nouns, verbs, adjectives,
or adverbs) to create a balarmed and parallel structure in a sentence.

\ |." J I.'.\_’ C I"" 3\

Functions

\'\ ‘_I |

FEIES

Both...and Used to join two similar elements, inciusion. | She is both intelligent and hardworking.
Either...or Presents a choice between two altemalives, | Neither the car nor the bicycle is working.
Neither...nor Used to connect two negative altematives. | She speaks French as fluently as Spanish.

No sooner...than | Used io suggest a quick sequence of events. | He works so hard that he deserves a break.
Hardly...when ] Ntindicates a near-simultaneous occurence, | He is just as excited as | am about the trip.

As much...as It compares quantities, qualities, or degrees. | She is so fired that she falls asleep instantly.
Just as...so It highlights a cause-and-effect relationship. | | can visit you either on Saturday or Sunday.
If...then Itis used to express a conditional relationship] I'll finish my work eltl'larmdayorwnm
Not...but Emphasizes a contrast between two elements Youaqﬂmmmmh for dinner.
Whether...or ﬂtﬂhﬂdumﬁmmﬂ%ﬂma’amﬂ:ﬂ, thmhaﬂﬁdpersonumryomadmes
Not only...but also nlsmégﬁsl‘m tha pmshqqe‘df mqmlmes He is not only my friend but also my colleague.

Correlamyd p:Qh)‘Un&ioﬁS'add a specual touch to your writing and speech, creating balance and
ernphasis Let's e vplore some common pairs and how to use them effectively:

1. Bath/And: This pair emphasizes the equal importance of two things.

* Example: The restaurant offered both delicious food and excellent service. (Highlights
two positive aspects) .

2, Either/Or: This pair introduces.a choice between two options .
« Example: You c¢an either pay now or later. (Clearly pres_ents two possibilities)
3. Neither/Nor: This pair negates both options in a choice. '
s Example: She neither likes to_ swim nor does she like to sunbathe. (Shows dislike for

both activities)

4. Not/But: This pair introduces a contrast between two ideas.
¢ Example: The movie wasn't scary, but it was suspenseful (Highlights opposmg

qualities)

5. Not Only/But Also: This pair emphasizes noLj ust one thing hut élso annther
« Example: The trip was nql: anly eqw:atianal but'also very enjoyable (Highlights two

beneﬁts)

139




Writing A N]REP
Descriptive composition O A WU\ Y )
Descriptive essay outline. | A\
1. Introduction \ L= =

» Ahook to grab *reai'ief H attention

» Brief Jeipldn‘a ion of the topic or subject

« Thesis statement that previews the main points to be described
2. Body paragraph

« Topic sentence that introduces the aspect to be described

» Detailed description of the aspect, including, sensory detail (sight, sound, smell, taste,

touch)

» Explanation of the significance @& importance of this aspect to the overall subject
3. Conclusion

» Restate the thesis and summarize the main points of the essay

« Leave the reader with a final impression or thought

A descriptive composition, also known as a descriptive essay, is a type of writing that focuses on
using vivid language to create a mental picture for the reader. It goes beyond simply stating facts
or opinions, instead aiming to immerse the reader in a specific experience, person, place, or
object.

Here are some key features of a descriptive composition: <\ )

 Sensory details: The writer employs vivid dﬁcﬁpt‘uons that aﬁp&alm all ﬁ\re senses (sight,
smell, touch, taste,-and heaﬂﬁg), Thfs he‘lps “the ‘reader feel like they are actually
experiencing whatas be{ngdescﬁhet}

. Flgurative lqnggage* Techniques like similes, metaphors, and personification are often
usedtda pth and creativity to the descriptions.

v Organlzatinn Descriptive compositions are typically well-organized, with a clear focus
and a logical flow of ideas. The writer might use spatial organization (describing something
from a specific vantage point), chronological order (describing events in sequence), or
another structure to guide the reader's imagination.

» Emotional impact: The goal is not just to describe something objectively, but to evoke an
emotional response in the reader. The writer may use descriptive language to create a
sense of wonder, awe, fear, excitement, or any other emotion that aligns with the subject
matter.

Task: Write a descriptive composition (giving physical description and characteristics/traits of a
person/object/place moving from general to specific) on “sincere friendship” using correct

punctuation and spelling, by using the process approach - brainstorming, mind mapping, and
writing a first draft. ‘

f'-'\‘.'.'\
P {','. \\
\

Task: Write a descriptive composition (giving physical descriptionand chu&fteﬁ:tlﬁsl- traits
of a person/object/place moving from general to specific) on "sh-[r:erefriendship"_f ng-
correct punctuation and spelling,| by, using the| proms approach brainstorming, mi_ncl

mapping, and writing a first draft, It also. 'needs to apply knowledge of parts of speech,
tenses, sentence structure \and other features of grammar and vocabulary to und.-.

mmaﬁ? fot




The Sofitary Reaper

William Wordswprth (1770 - 1850)

After completing this lesson, you will be able to:

use pre-reading and while-reading strategies to analyze and explore different layers of meaning
within texts

demonstrate attentive listening skills while working in the whole class setting and taking turns to
speak with standard pronunciation

listen to texts and critically analyze the situations/events

evaluate two or more central ideas of a text and analyze their development over the course of the
text, including how they interact and build on one another to provide a complex analysis.

Use summary skills to

1. extract salient points and develop a mind map to summarize a variety of
informational texts.

2. transfer the written text to a table, diagram, flowchart or work plan.
cite strong and thorough textual evidence to support analysis of what the text says expllcitly as
well as inferences drawn fromthetext ~ _ ~C~ 0 (L)WY
demonstrate understanding of ﬁguratwe language, wnrd relauonshlps, and nuances in word
meanings.
produce clear and cohérent wﬁtmg in’ whuch the dcvetapment organization and style are
appropriate to the €ask,\ purpose and audience
use paraphr‘aslnq skills to paraphrase a poem
provide.a| cdncludmg statement or section that follows from and support the argument
présented
write formal letters and emails to people in extended academic (professional) environments for

various purposes



Unit 14: The Solitary Reaper

lQPr-e-Re:a::llna \ 7§ (O R\B R
a) Canyou thinkn{ any other poenmf Wordmorth in comparison to this poem? Discuss.

b) Is it true that Wnrd_sworths poetry brings appreciation of nature to the mind of the
. (feader?De scribe;

i Behold her, single in the field,
Yon solitary Highland Lass!

S Reaping and singing by herself;
Stop here, or gently pass!

Alone ghe cuts and binds the grain,
And sings a melancholy strain;

0 listen! for the Vale profound While-reading
Is overflowing with the sound.

Who is the woman in the poem and #
what is she doing? - '

No Nightingale did ever chaunt & of i
More welcome notes to weary bands - Ry 5y
Of travellers in some shady haunt, : e
Among Arabian sands: _ 1)\ [
A voice so thrilling ne'er was heard .\ _ (Y f, \oZ
In spring-time from the Cuckoo-bird j

Breaking the silencé Of the's seas
Among the farﬁhett Hebrides
\Mlilhoéne tell me what she sings?— a o . LofRd s
Perhaps the plaintive numbers flow CENEE s e
For old, unhappy, far-off things,
And battles long ago:

Or is it some more humble lay, While-reading
Familiar matter of to-day?

Some natural sorrow, loss, or pain,
That has been, and may be again?

Sl g
el " -

Does the poet understand the reaper’
song in The Solitary Reaper”?

Whate'er the theme, the Maiden sang
As if her song could have no ending;

| saw her singing at her work,

And o'er the sickle bendingj= = .
| listened, motionless and still; *~
And, as | mounted up the hill,
The music in my heart | bore, i
Long after it was heard no morev 7

V- L wWiltiam Wordsworth

O Post-reading | || |||\
D“l!f““ ‘““i‘ thﬂ music of the song has given infinite consolation to the poet?



v

R R

P B g
\‘\|. &

Notes and Comments N TN [ (8do=T

William Wordsworth (1770-1850) was bom in the laké Qiktrict of Northem England. Wordsworth
was one of the leading ﬁgums of Er\ghsh ﬁomantiasm, an artistic and intellectual movement
that swept across El ope at the end of the 18" century. The classical poets did not have much
Tespect fi nﬂmre d the common man, but Wordsworth took up new subjects of poetry. His
adoratibh of nature and common simple life were things of Romantic character.

His poetry is for common people, reading it, people feel that it is happening to us too, and can
relate it to their own lives. '

The year 1793 saw the first publication of poems by Wordsworth, in the collections An Evening
Walk and Descriptive Sketches.

Together Wordsworth and Coleridge produced Lyrical Ballads (1798), an important work in the
English Romantic Movement.

Most famous poems, “Tintern Abbey”, published in this collection, along with Coleridge’s “The
Rime of the Ancient Mariner”,

William Wordsworth was the central figure in the English Romantic revolution. His contribution
to it was that he formulated in his poems and essays a new attitude towards nature. This was
more than a matter of introducing nature imagery into his verse. Secondly, Wordsworth placed
poetry at the centre of human experience. In impassioned rhetoric he prunmmed pOEtry tobe
nothing less than “the first and last of all knowtedge---ltd:;‘as Wll‘ﬂdﬂil as the heart of man”.
Thenhe went on to create some of the greatest fnahsh Roetryof his century.

He died of Pleurisy on April Zl“rlaﬁoatth\eageoiﬂsmumted Kingdom
Http: //www.bri tannjca mm W\ U

[ \ \ ] | I...I'\I___"- S

Themes\! AV s
Themes of the poem The Solitary Reaper” by William Wordsworth revolve around the power of
nature, the beauty of simplicity, and the significance of solitary experiences.

Isolation and solitude: The poem highlight the solitary existence of the reaper in the field,
emphasizing. her separation from society. This solitude can be seen as both a source of
tranquility and a cause for loneliness.

Connection to Nature: The reaper’s song, which is an unknown language to the speaker, is a
direct expression of her connection to nature. The poem suggests that nature has a profound
and universal language that transcends cultural and linguistic barriers.

Transient Moments of Beauty: Wordsworth captures a fleeting moment of beauty in nature,
emphasizing the transient nature of human existence. The beauty of the reaper's song is
compared to that of a nightingale or a cuckoo, evoking a sense of wonder and admiration.

The Power of Memory: The speaker reflects on the experience-long after, ‘lt hars passed,
suggesting the enduring power of memory to evoke emotions.and sensations. The memory of

the reaper’s song continues to resonate with tha Speaker. demwstratlng the lasting impact of
solitary moments in nature:, \

Overall: “The Solital Reaper" celehrates the slmp licity and beauty of solitary experiences in
nature while 1{:9 exploring themes of isolation, connection, and the passage of time.

143




: - \ A WN [ ©\NO~

solitary *\/\.!| '|'/alone, without companions alone
lass an unmarried girl or a young woman
melancholy depression, gloomy state of mind-
strain stress, anxiety
vale valley
profound deep, penetrating
chaunt chorus
plaintiv expressing sorrow, sad
sickle nourish
Oral Communication

Demonstrate attentive listening skills while working 1n the whule ’class sal:tini and taking
turns to speak with standard pronunciation) -\ ||
1. Group discussion can be held armug the students for better understanding of the
poem.
The word suhtary' F FLH indicates the lanehness in the atmosphere; the Scottish girl singing
all alone while cu thng the grain.

2. Discuss the singing of the cuckoo-bird/nightingale in the Arabuan desert. What possibly
can be the significance?

3. Give your views that what is the song of the girl about.

4, It looked like her song would never end, as she was singing while bending over to cut
the wheat with a sickle. Comment if you think she was more absorbed in cutting wheat
or singing a song.

5. What possibly could be the reason that the narrator kept listening her song without
moving; specially when he was not understanding the language.

Inference
a) How would you justify that music and song enhance the mood of the listener?
b) Does the silence of the sea create silence in the atmosphere?

1. Who s the solitary reaper? Where dnesthe puet ermu nter the solitary reaper?
2. Howdoesthe speaker describe the giris song? What emotions does it evoke in him?
3. Whatinspired th? poet ta write “The Solitary Reaper™? '
4

. Give rhasoﬂ of Wordsworth's comparison.of the solitary reapers song to that of the
nightingale in the poem “The Solitary Reaper”.

w

144



5. Whois the poet addressing when he says: stop here, or ggntlvpaSST -----

6. Give reasons of the narrator not understandina ﬂ'le SOng suﬁgby the Scuttish girl

7. Doyou think the speaker, suggefsts that pa-etry's power lies less in its content and rhore inits
rhythm? Relateit Mth the content. -

8 In whaq Wayis the mghtingales song 'welcome' and the cuckoo's song 'thrilling?

9.\ D&L&: the central theme of the poem.

10. How does the poet show the reaper’s song had a lasting effect on him?

11. Evaluate two or more central ideas of this poem and analyze their development dver the
course of the text, including how they interact and build on one another to provide a

complex analysis.
12. Extract salient points and develop a mind map to summarize a variety of information in
the poem.
13. Transfer the written text of the poem into a flowchart or work plan.

1. Circle the correct option.
The speaker describes the Highland girl as:
a)  Joyful and carefree b Soli;aryanp melantholic
c)  Energetic and enthusiastic - d) \ { Corqtent and peaceful
The speaker uses the word WEfﬂa'Mnn to dEsm'ibef
a) The amouht of hraln‘ the girt has harvested
b) 'th Héauty of the surrounding landscape
)I ) [The abundance of wildlife in the valley
d] The volume of the girl's song
The speaker mentions 'the farthest Hebrides' to emphasize;
a) The vastness of the ocean b) The girl's isolation and loneliness
c) The power of music to travel far and wide
d) The cultural diversity of Scotland
The phrase’ the plaintive numbers flow’ suggests that the girl's song is:
a) Upbeat and cheerful b)  Slow and mournful
) Loud and passionate d) Fast and lively
The speaker says he listened to the song 'motionless and still’ to:
a)  Show respect for the girl's talent
b)  Avoid disturbing the girl's concentration
c) Focus all his attention to the song
d) Show his own fatigue from the joumey .
The speaker's final statement, ‘Long)af ter! It was heard nomﬁre implies that;
a)  He forgot thes song qufckly 'b)  He missed the girl's singing dearly
) :]e was grateful. for the temporary experience
| He Was disappointed by the song's ending

N "-\I |

145



Grammar and Language N
The poetic devices used in the poem 'The Solitary Reaper
e Hyperbole and Allitmﬂoq LB
Hyperbole is an exaggeption f‘or effect whlle alliteration is the repetition of initial sounds.
Examples . of I,EiterHﬁbn in'the poem The solitary Reaper’ are in the phrases, 'No Nightingale”,

'‘Among Arabian ‘Silence of the Seas'.In each of these phrases, the initial sound is repeated, which
is the technique of alliteration.

According to the poet, solitary reaper’s song can be heard ‘breaking the silence of the seas, Among
the farthest Hebrides. The Hebrides are an island along the northern coast of Scotland, which
means that her voice was travelling for miles and miles, which is exaggeration of hyperbole.

* Metaphor

The poet uses metaphors to compare the reaper's song to the nightingale’s and cuckoo’s song,
highlighting the beauty and impact of her singing.

¢ Enjambment

The poet uses enjambment to create a flowing, continuous feel to the poem, much like the
unbroken song of the reaper.

* Imagery - :-.-/:?.'_'-\"""

||\- . U

Imagery used in a literary work enables the rea.dersfﬂ percﬂ?e ﬂ\‘inds ‘lﬁvelJWHg%:hew ﬁve Senses.

Example: 'Reaping and singing, by herself' & lsaw herslngiﬂ‘gat her WOrk and 'More welcome notes
to weary bands, gives a pic;qnal descﬁ pﬁim of the young woman at wark.

erling N [\[|

a) Questions related to the poem
1. How do you think the reaper’s song creates a connection across linguistic and cultural
boundaries?
2. Describe the reason the speaker imagines what the reaper might be singing about?
3. Write the summary of the poem The Solitary Reaper'.
4. Write in detail how does the atmosphere of the poem and the song of the girl leave a
lasting impression on the mind of the poet.
b) Formal letters and emails to people in extended academic (professional) environments for
various purposes
Email Writing
Writing professional emails in the workplace ._
What s email communication? ~ SN\
Electronic mail (e-mail) is a computer-based\ aPpIicatlon Fof the exchange of messages

between users, A worldwide e-mail’ networl-c al{ows people to exr:hange e-mail messages very
quickly. E-mail is the e[ectrontc equwalant Qf a létter but with advantages in timeliness and

flexibility. .
Whento s}endin éinail?
Email is one of many available communication technologies in the workplace.In general,

146



email is good for positive or neutral news and sharing. tnfannaﬂoﬂ Someﬂmas other methods
of communication (face-to face;phone. mstant messaging, video conferencing, etc.) may be
more appropriate. , \\ L

Types of emailin the wnrkplac.e
Thereare t pri'nary types of emaﬂ inthe workplace:

Requebbﬁné-l!eply Emails: Most emails in the workplace fall into this category. Request
emaﬂs usually expect a reply. This kind of email could ask questions, specify tasks people
need to complete, or ask colleagues to acknowledge or comment on policies, meetings, or
projects.

Confirmation Emails: This kind of email creates a permanent, written record of a
conversation that has taken place. For example, if you and a colleague discussed
collaborating on a project over lunch, you might send them an email with the details of that
conversation. This gives you both a record of the conversation and allows for the conversation
to continue, if needed.

Essential email components

Subject line

The subject line of your email should offer your reader the purpose of the email, but it

should also be brief. If your subject line is vague, people may ignore your emall, or itmay

be sent to the junk/spam folder. _ &\ ([ .\__, ) NI\ \)

Vague: Budget ~ Dantaly/ e o2

Specific: Budget Revision Request 700 WUV

Greeting OV
Choosing a greetﬁng may agpeal“ tu Ee an easy task, but you have to select the appropriate

lev ¥ aiity Emailing a coworker with whom you are friends to ask a brief question is

rent “from emailing your supervisor with a work-related request. Below are some
greetings that straddle different levels of formality:

More formal;

Dear [Name],

Hello [Name],

Good morning/afternoon [Name],

Less formal:

Hi [Name],

Hey [Name],

Body

Depending on how your audience will react to the information in your email, you will
need to decide whether to structure your email body using the direct or indirect method

\

should be clear and concise. They are generally- much shorxer tham paragraphs in an
academic essay, for example. The iréct Method of Cummunicaffon Except in the cases listed
below, use the direct method of conwnumcatmn when constructing an email, This method is
used when your r&ader is\ already informed about the subject and/or will already be
supportive of ‘the information provided. The content of your email will provide the following
pICCFSJGf" wformation, in this order:

147



+ Main point/decision/request < [H
« Background or context for the main point of the email (if requlred)
» Closing paragraph - summary, action items, polite closing :
The Indirect Method of Communication
While you want to avoid gelivenng rEally bad news by email (face-to-face is the preferred method
for sensitive subje tsi if you are delivering information that your reader may not immediately
support or that they need to be educated about, your email should be structured according to the
indirect method of communication. This gives the reader time to consider rationale or
background before encountering the main message:
+ Background or context for the main point of the email (always included in the indirect
method)
» Main point/decision/request
* Closing paragraph - summary, action items, polite closing
= Sign-off
As with the greeting, you need to choose an appropriate sign-off for your audience:
More formal:
Sincerely,
Thanks/Thank you,
Best,
All the best,
Best regards, A\ \r
Kind regards O\ AN v
Less formal: e VUL
Tatk soon, _ ([N [NV
Cheers, /- =
See you,
The Direct Method of Com rnunlcatlon

1 gy o oty o el iy b [ Faragh i S
e e et s gt e § Bt i e

I. LAt VL ol -
This In o e Al N .y
L - ¥

Task: Write an email tothe mania _of a
well-reputed bank and apply agslnst the
vacant post of cashier in this bnnk Jell
him briefly about yanr vﬁrk g:perience

W

and future aims,” © 5

Teacher's Note:
. Ask students to evaluate two or more central ideas of a text and analyze their development over
the course of the text, including how they interact and build on one another to pmvide a complex

analysis.

. Encoy:rage them to cite strong and thorough textual evidence to support analysisaf what the text
says explicitly as well as inferences drawnfrom the text.|

= Helpthemto demonstrate understanding af ﬂgurative language. word relatmnships. and nuances
inword meanings. |

- Moativate them to 'T'"te emailsto people in extended academic (professional) environments for

vanous]purjplydses

148



After completing this lesson, you will be able to:

evaluate how authors use language, including figurative language, considering the impact on the
reader. Discuss others' reading critically, taking account of their views. Express informed opinions,
justify the viewpoint and make recommendations and develop an interest in a variety of texts,

analyse how an author’s choices concerning how to structure specific parts of a text (e.g., the
choice of where to begin or end a story, the choice to provide a comedic or tragic resolution)
contribute toits overall structure and meaning as well as its aesthetic impact.

evaluate the particular elements of a story or drama (e.g., how the setting shapes the characters or
plot).ldentify rhyme schemes and figurative language in poems. Evaluate stages of plot
development in a fictional text.(exposition, setting, climax, character development,
resolution).Examine how complex characters (e.g., those with multiple or conflicting motivations)
develop over the course of a text, interact with other characters, and advance the plot or develop
the theme. K >

analyze multiple interpretations of a story, drama, or. poem {e‘.g mcﬁrded Gr lwe pmduction ofa
play or recorded novel or poetl')'). eva!uatiﬂg hqw éach Yensibn intgrprets the source text.

read, view and analyse a variety of réad{ng grade-appropnate and high-interest books and texts
from print and non- pﬁntsourtes* Drama (play scripts)

write fT“"Fl [gtﬁg&anﬂemaﬂs to people in extended
. dcademic (professional) environments for various purposes.




re-Reading A D AYEOL
a) Haveyouever readanovel? "'. ) BIRER RN |

b) Tell the theme of thi; nm'el whidryou have read recently?
l N \ I
"In the tou/n they teu the story of the great pearl- how it was found and how it was lost
again. They tell of Kino, the fisherman, and of his wife, Juana, and of the baby, Coyotito.
And because the story has been told so often, it has taken root in every man's mind. And, as

with all retold tales that are in people’s hearts, there are only good and bad things and
black and white things and good and evil things and no in-between anywhere.

"If this story is a parable, perhaps everyone takes his own meaning from it and reads his own
lifeintoit. In any case, they say in the town that...”

Chapter 1

Kino awakened in the near dark. The stars still shone and the day had drawn only a pale wash of
light in the lower sky to the east. The roosters had been crowing for some time, and the early
animals were already beginning their ceaseless turning of twigs and bits of wood to see whether
anything to eat had been overlooked. Outside the brush hnuse in the tuna clump’, a aovey of little
birds chittered and flurried with their wings ~ MNarilTa "5 \\ [ (¢ G, \ o2~

Kino's eyes opened, and he logked first at: ﬂwlighfenhgsqua:e wtuch was the door and then he
looked at the hangmg box’ whére Ibyptgtastepﬁ, And-last he turned his head to Juana, his wife,
who lay on the mat r blle. head shawl over her nose and around the small of her back. Juana's
eyes were | n&eoutd never remember seeing them closed when he awakened. Her dark
eyes made lit tle reﬂected stars. She was looking at him as she was always looklng at him when he
awakened.

Kino heard the little splash of morning waves on the beach. It was very good- Kino closed his eyes
again to listen to his music. Perhaps he alone did this and perhaps all of his people did it. His
people had once been great makers of songs so that everything they saw or thought
or did or heard became a song. That was very long ago. The songs remained; Kino knew them, but
no new songs were added. That does not mean that there were no personal songs. In Kino's head
there was a song now, clear and soft, and if he had been able to speak of it, he would have called it
the Song of the Family.

His blanket was over his nose to protect him from the dank air. His eyes flicked to a rustle beside
him. It was Juana arising, almost soundlessly. On her hard bare feet she went to the hanging box
where Coyotito slept, and she leaned over and said a little reassuring word.

Coyotito looked up for a moment and closed his eyes and slept again. ~2\

Juana went to the fire pit and uncovered a coal and fanned it alwe wmle sfne br—oke httle piesh
overit. ( \L L OV \|

Now Kino got up and wrapped his blanket abau;, his head and nose and shoulders. He slipped his
feet into his sandals and went OutSicle towatch the dawn.

Outside the doof | te dqdbtteﬂ down and gathered the blanket ends about his knees. He saw the
specks of Gulf clouds flame high in the air. And a goat came near and sniffed at him and stared with

150



its cold yellow eyes. Behind him Juana's fire leaped into flame and- threw spears bf light through
the chinks of the brush-house wall and threw a wavering sguare of light out the door. A late moth
blustered in to find the fire, The Song of theé Farmly Camenmfrom behind Kino. And the rhythm of
the family seng was the grlndmgsmne whefe.]uana worked the corn for the morning cakes.

The dawn came qulqdy now, awash a glow, a lightness, and then an explosion of fire as the sun
arose out of the! Gulf. Kino looked down to cover his eyes from the glare. He could hear the pat of
the corncakes in the house and the rich smell of them on the cooking plate. The ants were busy on
the ground, big black ones with shiny bodies, and little dusty quick ants. Kino watched with the
detachment of God while a dusty ant frantically tried to escape the sand trap an ant lion had dug
for him. A thin, timid dog came close and, at a soft word from Kino, curled up, arranged its tail
neatly over its feet, and laid its chin delicately on the pile. It was a black dog with yellow-gold
spots where its eyebrows should have been. It was a morning like other mornings and yet perfect
among mornings.

Kino heard the creak of the rope when Juana took Coyotito out of his hanging box and cleaned
him. Kino could see these things without looking at them. Juana sang softly an ancient song that
had only three notes and yet endless variety of interval. And this was part of the family song too.
It was all part. Sometimes it rose to an aching chord that caught the throat, saying this is safety,
this is warmth, this is the Whole.

Across the brush fence were other brush houses, and the smoke came from- them too, and the
sound of breakfast. Kino was young and strong and his black hair hung ovér his brown forehead.
His eyes were warm and fierce and brightand his, mustache was thin-and coarse. He lowered his
blanket from his nose now, for the dark ppisanws airwas gone and the yellow sunlight fell on the
house, Near the brush fmmethronsteGWed and feinted at each other with squared wings and
neck feathers ru_ffed Fut 1t wmh:l be'a clumsy fight. They were not game chickens. Kino watched
them for.a:more nt, and then his eyes went up to a flight of wild doves twinkling inland to the
hills., Thb was awake now, and Kino arose and went into his brush house.

As he came through the door Juana stood up from the glowing fire pit. She put Coyotito back in his
hanging box and then she combed her black hair and braided it in two braids and tied the ends
with thin green ribbon. Kino squatted by the fire pit and rolled a hot comncake and
dipped it in sauce and ate it. And he drank a little tea and that was breakfast. That was the only
breakfast he had ever known outside of feast days and one incredible fiesta on cookies that had
nearly killed him. When Kino had finished, Juana came back to the fire and ate her
breakfast. They had spoken once, but there is no need for speech if it is only a habit anyway. Kino
sighed with satisfaction- and that was conversation.

The sun was warming the brush house, breaking through its crevices in long streaks. And one of
the streaks fell on the hanging box where Coyotito lay, and on the ropes that held it. It was a tiny
movement that drew their eyes to the hanging box. Kino and Juana froze in their
positions. Down the rope that hung the baby's box from the roof support a scorplon moved slowly.
His stinging tail was straight out behind him, but he could whip it up in-a flash.of hme.

Kino's breath whistled in his nostrils and he opengd his.mouth to ﬁop it ,And then the startled look
was gone from him and the rigidity from hﬁ body ln his mind anew song had come, the Song of
Evil, the music of the|enemy, “of any\foe of the family, a savage, secret, dangerous
melody, and underneath, the, Song of the Family cried plaintively. The scorpion moved delicately
down the rope toward.the-box. Under her breath Juana repeated an ancient magic to guard
agai nstwd:h éh’l and on top of that she muttered a Hail Mary between clenched teeth. But Kiro

151



was in motion. His body glided quietly across the room, noiselessly and smoothly Hfs hands were
in front of him, palms down, and his eyes were on the scorpibn Beneat.h it in the hanging box
Coyotito laughed and reached up his hand toward lt \It sensed' danger when Kino was almost
within reach of it. It stopped and its tail mse up over its back in little jerks and the curved thorn
on the tail's end glistened. .

Kino stood perfe ylsnﬂl‘ PJIE cou[d hear Juana whispering the old magic again, and he could hear
the evil music of the enemy. He could not move until the scorpion moved, and it felt for the source
of the death that was coming to it. Kino's hand went forward very slowly, very
smoothly. The thorned tail jerked upright. And at that moment the laughing Coyotito shook the
rope apd the scorpion fell.

Kino’s'K:nd leaped to catch it, but it fell past his fingers, fell on the baby's shoulder, landed and
struck. Then, snarling, Kino had it, had it in his fingers, rubbing it to a paste in his hands. He threw
it down and beat it into the earth floor with his fist, and Coyotito screamed with pain in his box.
But Kino beat and stamped the enemy until it was only a fragment and a moist place in the dirt.
His teeth were bared and fury flared in his eyes and the Song of the Enemy roared in his ears.

But Juana had the baby in her arms now. She found the puncture with redness starting from it
already. She put her lips down over the puncture and sucked hard and spat and sucked again while
Coyotito screamed.

Kino hovered; he was helpless, he was in the way. W\

.....
\

blocked the entrance, while behind- thEm dthers tried to Iouk in, and one small boy crawled
among legs to have a look Aﬂd ﬂ"\me in ‘front passed the word back to those behind- *Scorpion.
The baby has been. stunm AL

Juana stopped chk ng the puncture for a moment. The little hole was slightly enlarged and its
edges whitened from the sucking, but the red swelling extended farther around it in a hard
lymphatic mound. And all of these people knew about the scorpion. An adult might be very ill
from the sting, but a baby could easily die from the poison. First, they knew, would come swelling
and fever and tightened throat, and then cramps in the stomach, and then Coyotito might die if
enough of the poison had gone in. But the stinging pain of the bite was going away.
Coyotito's screams turned to moans.

Kino had wondered often at the iron in his patient, fragile wife. She, who was obedient and
respectful and cheerful and patient, she could arch her back in child pain with hardly a cry. She
could stand fatigue and hunger almost better than Kino himself. In the canoe she was like a strong
man. And now she did a most surprising thing.
“The doctor,” she said. "Go to get the doctor.”

The word was passed out among the neighbors where they stood close packed in the little yard
behind the brush fence. And they repeated among themselves, "Juana wants the ‘doctor.” A
wonderful thing, a memorable thing, to want the don:!;or To get him would be a remarkable
thing. The doctor never came to the cluster of, brush hovses ershould he, when he had more
than he could do to take careof the rich peaple who lived-in the stone and plaster houses of the

town.
“"He would not mpm1 'peop\e {n the yard said.
"He would not come,” the people in the door said, and the thought got into Kino.

152




“The doctor would not come,” Kino said to Juana. -\ (C .' O\ U\
She looked up at him, her eyes as cold as the eyeso‘f a honess Thl; was Juana 5 ﬁrst baby this was

nearly everything there was in Juana's world, And Kine saw her determination and the music of
the family sounded in his head with a steely tone.

“Then we will go to-him,” Juana saiﬂ and with one hand she arranged her dark blue shawl over her
head and, de« lon&e endofita sling to hold the moaning baby and made of the other end of it a
shade over his eyes to protect him from the light. The people in the door pushed against those
behind to let her through. Kino followed her. They went out of the gate to the rutted path and the
neighbors followed them.

The thing had become a neighborhood affair. They made a quick soft-footed procession into the
center of the town, first Juana and Kino, and behind them Juan Tomas and Apolonia, then all the
neighbors with the children trotting on the flanks. And the yellow sun threw their black shadows
ahead of them so that they walked on their own shadows.

They came to the place where the brush houses stopped and the city of stone and plaster began,
the city of harsh outer walls and inner cool gardens where a little water played and the
bougainvillea crusted the walls with purple and brick-red and white. They heard from the secret
gardens the singing of caged birds and heard the splash of cooling water on hot flagstones. The
procession crossed the blinding plaza and passed in front of the church. It had grown now, and on
the outskirts the hurrying newcomers were being softly informed hpw the balayhaﬂ been stung by
a scorpion, how the father and mother were takmg itto thedm:tm )

And the newcomers, particularly the heggam fmmthe fmnt of the church who were great experts
in financial analysis, looked qlmkw at, Juana\‘s oldblue skirt, saw the tears in her shawl, appraised
the green ribbon on her braids, reacl the age of Kino's blanket and the thousand washings of his
clothes, and set mk!mwn 'as poverty people and went along to see what kind of drama might
develop. Th%r fdl.lrbeggars in front of the church knew everything in the town. They were students
of the expressions of young women as they went in to confession, and they saw them as they came
out and read the nature of the sin.

They knew every little scandal and some very big crimes. They slept at their posts in the shadow
of the church so that no one crept in for consolation without their knowledge. And they knew the
doctor. They knew his ignorance, his cruelty, his avarice, his sins.

They knew his clumsy attitudeThey had seen his corpses go into the church. And, since early Mass
was over and business was slow, they followed the procession, these endless searchers after
perfect knowledge of their fellow men, to see what the fat lazy doctor would do about an indigent
baby with a scorpion bite.

The scurrying procession came at last to the big gate in the wall of the doctor’s house. They could
hear the splashing water and the singing of caged birds and the sweep of the long brooms on the
flagstones. And they could smell the frying of meat from the doctor’s house. .

Kino hesitated a moment. This doctor was not of his people. This doctor was of a ratewhid-u for
nearly four hundred years had beaten and-starved and robbed and despised Kino's race, and
frightened it too, so that the indigene came humbly to tl‘lé door. And as always when he came near
to one of this race, Kino felt wealt and afréid and angry at the same time. Rage and terror went
together. He could kill the doctor more easily than he could talk to him, for all of the doctor's race
spoke to all of Kino's rpée as though they were simple animals. And as Kino raised his ri ght hand to
the iron dnghn&ker in the gate, rage swelled in him, and the pounding music of the enemy beat

e ha e e L T i —
153




in his ears, and his lips drew tight against his teeth- but mth his‘l\eft hand he reaﬂted to take off
his hat. The iron ring pounded against the gate. . [\ . ¢ WY [ (8¢

Kino took off his hat and stood waiting. cwot‘ito moaned ahtﬂe in Juana s arms, and she spoke
softly to him. The prncessnoutmwded close Nwebetterto see and hear.

After a moment the hlg te Qperted afew inches. Kino could see the green coolness of the garden
and little sp *‘bmitain through the opening. The man who looked out at him was one of his
own race. ‘Kino spoke to him in the old language. “The little one- the first born- has
been poisoned by the scorpion,” Kino said. "He requires the skill of the healer.”

The gate closed a little, and the servant refused to speak in the old language. "A little moment,”
he said. "I go to inform myself,” and he closed the gate and slid the bolt home. The glaring sun
threw the bunched shadows of the people blackly on the white wall.

In his chamber the doctor sat up in his high bed. He was dressed ina gown of red watered silk that
had come from Paris.On his lap was a silver tray with a silver chocolate pot and a tiny cup of
eggshell china, so delicate that it looked silly when he lifted it with his big hand,
lifted it with the tips of thumb and forefinger and spread the other three fingers wide to get them
out of the way. He was growing very stout, and his voice was hoarse with the fat that pressed on
his throat. Beside him on a table was a small Oriental gong and a bowl of cigarettes. The
furnishings of the room were heavy and dark and gloomy. The pictures were religious, even the
large tinted photograph of his dead wife, who, if Masses willed and paadfor out othrnwn estate
could doit, was in Heaven. The doctor had once for a short time- bgen a.pagt qf Llle greét world and
his whole subsequent life was memory and longm f?r Fran e.|"That," he said, "was civilized
living™- by which he meant thaton a small income he had beenable to live and eat in restaurants.
He poured his second cup of cbo;qlat\e aﬁcfnrhmbted a sweet biscuit in his fingers. The servant
from the gate came R‘ﬁh@ pperhdoor and stood waiting to be noticed.

"Yes?" the doqﬁér\aﬂ
"Itis alittle Indian with a baby. He says a scorpion stung it.”

The doctor put his cup down gently before he let his anger rise.
"Have | nothing better to do than cure insect bites for little
Indians? | am a doctor, not a veterinary.”

“Yes, Patron,” said the servant.

"Has he any money?" the doctor demanded. "No, they never have any money. |, | alone in the world
am supposed to work for nothing- and | am tired of it. See if he has any money!”

At the gate the servant opened the door a trifle and looked out at the waiting people. And this
time he spoke in the old language.

"Have you money to pay for the treatment?”

Now Kino reached into a secret place somewhere under his blanket. He brought out a paper
folded many times. Crease by crease he unfolded it, until at last there came to view r.wght small
misshapen seed pearls, as ugly and gray as little ulcers, ﬂattenea anﬂ almast valueless. The
servant took the paper and closed the gate again, hut thﬁ nme e \yas not gone long. He opened
the gate just wide enough to pass thﬂ Paper Back‘ \ «_ )

“The doctor has gone oug he 5ﬂ1d. He was called to a serious case.”
And he shut :We gaw qu ckly-out of shame.

And nowa #ave o* shame went over the whole procession. They melted away. The beggars went

154



back to the church steps, the stragglers moved nff and the nelghhurs departed 50 that the public
shaming of Kino would not be in thelreyes T\ O\

Fora long time Kino stood in front of the gate Wiih Ju arla besfde him

Slowly he put his suppliant hatr on, hls hea& 'l‘hen ‘without warning, he struck the gate a crushing
blow with his fist. He lopked 'down in wonder at his split knuckles and at the blood that flowed
down betvfeen ﬁnis ﬁngers

Chapter 2

The town lay on a broad estuary, its old yellow plastered buildings hugging the beach. And on the
beach the white and blue canoes that came from Nayarit were drawn up, canoes preserved for
generations by a hard shell-like waterproof plaster whose making was a secret of the fishing
people. They were high and graceful canoes with curving bow and stern and a braced section
midships where a mast could be stepped to carry a small lateen sail.

The beach was yellow sand, but at the water's edge a rubble of shell and algae took its place.
Fiddler crabs bubbled and sputtered in their holes in the sand, and in the shallows little lobsters
popped in and out of their tiny homes in the rubble and sand. The sea bottom was rich with
crawling and swimming and growing things. The brown algae waved in the gentle currents and the
green eel grass swayed and little sea horses clung to its stems. Spotted botete, the poison fish, lay
on the bottom in the eel-grass beds, and the brlght-colored swummmg ;rabs SOampered over

'\ 3
them. N\t

On the beach the hungry dogs and thehunw pigs Qf the tbwn seanched endlessty for any dead fish
or sea bird that might haveﬂoatedm uﬂaﬁsingtfde

Although the mornin was ybul\g, the hazy mirage was up. The uncertain air that magnified some
things and bl tﬁsdj t others hung over the whole Gulf so that all sights were unreal and vision
could mt ‘trusted; so that sea and land had the sharp clarities and the vagueness
of a dream. Thus it might be that the people of the Gulf trust things of the spirit and things of the
imagination, but they do not trust their eyes to show them distance or clear outline or any optical
exactness. Across the estuary from the town one section of mangroves stood clear and
telescopically defined, while another mangrove clump was a hazy black-green blob. Part of the
far shore disappeared into a shimmer that looked like water. There was no certainty in seeing, no
proof that what you saw was there or was not there. And the people of the Gulf expected all
places were that way, and it was not strange to them. A copper haze hung over the water ,and the
hot morning sun beat on it and made it vibrate blindingly.

The brush houses of the fishing people were back from the beach on the nght -hand side of the
town, and the canoes were drawn up in front of this area.

Kino and Juana came slowly down to the beach and to Kino's canoe, which was the one thing of
value he owned in the world. It was veryold.

Kino's grandfather had brought it from Nayarit, and he had given it ta King's fathen and so it had
come to Kino. It was at once property and source of foad; for.a man wlth a boat can guarantee a
woman that she will eat something, Jt is t\\e bulwark aghfnst starvation. And every year Kino
refinished his canoe with the hard shell like pl&ster by the secret method that had also come to
him from his father. Now he came to t:hecanoe and touched the bow tenderly as he always did. He
laid his diving bﬂqk and 'his basket and the two ropes in the sand by the canoe.
And he fgtdedl nket and laid it in the bow.

155




Juana laid Coyotito on the blanket, and she placed her shawl over him | S0 rhat the hotsun could
not shine on him. He was quiet now, but the swelting on hisshoulder had contintied up his neck and
under his ear and his face was puffed and feverish (uana'went to the water and waded in. She
gathered some brown seaweed and made a flat.damp poultice of it, and this she applied to the
baby's swollen shoulder, ich was'as good a remedy as any and probably better than the doctor
could have done; ut| t.l‘l remedy lacked his authority because it was simple and didn't cost
anything. The stom ch cramps had not come to Coyotito.

Perhaps Juana had sucked out the poison in time, but she had not sucked out her worry over her
first-born. She had not prayed directly for the recovery of the baby- she had prayed that they
might find a pearl with which to hire the doctor to cure the baby, for the minds of people are as
unsubstantial as the mirage of the Gulf.

Now Kino and Juana slid the canoe down the beach to the water, and when the bow floated, Juana
climbed in, while Kino pushed the stern in and waded beside it until it floated lightly and trembled
on the little breaking waves. Then in coordination Juana and Kino drove their double-bladed
paddles into the sea, and the canoe creased the water and hissed with speed. The ather pearlers
were gone out long since. In a few moments Kino could see them clustered in the haze, riding over
the oyster bed.

Light filtered down through the water to the bed where the frilly pearl oysters lay fastened to the
rubbly bottom, a bottom strewn with shells of broken, opened oysters. This was the bed lﬁhat had
raised the King of Spain to be a great power in Europe in past years; -had hélped to payfor his wars,
and had decorated the churches for his sout’s sake. The gray oxslers wwh ruffles like skirts on the
shells, the barnacle-crusted oysters with h‘tﬁle;bits of weed clinging to the skirts and small crabs
climbing over them. An acmdent ::outd happen.\tﬂ these oysters, a grain of sand could lie in the
folds of muscle and ir [l',he flesh until in self-protection the flesh coated the grain with a layer
of smooth ce ;\ ! started, the flesh continued to coat the foreign body until it fell free
in some tidal ﬂurry or until the oyster was destroyed. For centuries men had dived down and torn
the oysters from the beds and ripped them open, looking for the coated grains of sand. Swarms of
fish lived near the bed to live near the oysters thrown back by the searching men and to nibble at
the shining inner shells. But the pearls were accidents, and the finding of one was luck, a little pat
on the back by God or the gods or both.

Kino had two ropes, one tied to a heavy stone and one to a basket. He stripped off his shirt and
trousers and laid his hat in the bottom of the canoe. The water was oily smooth. He took his rock in
one hand and his basket in the other, and he slipped feet first over the side and
the rock carried him to the bottom. The bubbles rose behind him until the water cleared and he
could see. Above, the surface of the water was an undulating mirror of brightness, and he could
see the bottoms of the canoes sticking through it.

Kino moved cautiously so that the water would not be obscured with mud or sand. He hooked

his foot in the loop on his rock and his hands worked quickly, tearing the oysters loose, some
singly, others in clusters. He laid them in his basket. In some places the oysters ctung to\one

another so that they came free in lumps, ~ AT .
Now, Kino's people had sung uf everythmg that happened or existed.
They had made songs to the ﬁshes, tothe seann angerand to the sea in calm, to the light and the

dark and the sun and the moon, and the songs were all in Kino and in his people- every song that
had ever been mpda A é\mJn he ones forgotten. And as he filled his basket the song was in Kino, and

156



the beat of the song was his pounding heart as it ate the oxygen from Ms held breath and the
melody of the song was the gray-green water and the lfttle scut;li ng ahimals and the clouds of fish
that flitted by and were. gone. But \in thel song there was a secret little inner song, hardly
perceptible, but always there. sWeet and 'secret and clinging, almost hiding in the counter-
melody, and this was the Sohg of the Pearl That Might Be, for every shell thrown in the basket
might conp:alq a pearl. Chance was against it, but luck and the gods might be for it. And in the
canoe above him Kino knew that Juana was ma king the magic of prayer, her face set rigid and her
muscles hard to force the luck, to tear the luck out of the gods' hands, for she needed the luck for
the swollen shoulder of Coyotito. And because the need was great and the desire was great, the
little secret melody of the pearl that might be was stronger this morning. Whole phrases of it
came clearly and softly into the Song of the Undersea.

Kino, in his pride and youth and strength, could remain down over two minutes without strain, so
that he worked deliberately, selecting the largest shells. Because they were disturbed, the oyster
shells were tightly closed. A little to his right a hummock of rubbly rock stuck up, covered with
young oysters not ready to take. Kino moved next to the hummock, and then, beside it, under a
little overhang, he saw a very large oyster lying by itself, not covered with its clinging brothers.
The shell was partly open, for the overhang protected this ancient oyster, and in the lip-like
muscle Kino saw a ghostly gleam, and then the shell closed down. His heart beat out a heavy
rhythm and the melody of the maybe pearl shrilled in his ears. Slowly he forced the oyster loose
and held it tightly against his breast. He kicked his foot free from themcl{ loup, and his body rose
to the surface and his black hair gleamedin t!‘:? wnlight I-Ie l‘eachedﬁver the side of the canoe
and laid the oyster in the bottom. | | /71 \( ( U\ L

Then Juana steadied the boat whﬂé he clihbed in. His eyes were shining with excitement, but in
decency he pul un his i'ock~ and then he pulled up his basket of oysters and lifted them in.
Juana sqlmd ddtement and she pretended to look away. It is not good to want a thing too
much. It-sometimes drives the luck away. You must want it just enough, and you must be very
tactful with God. But Juana stopped breathing. Very deliberately Kino opened his short strong
knife. He looked speculatively at the basket. Perhaps it would be better to open the oyster last.
He took a small oyster from the basket, cut the muscle, searched the folds of flesh, and threw it in
the water.

Then he seemed to see the great oyster for the first time. He squatted in the bottom of the canoe,
picked up the shell and examined it. The flutes were shining black to brown, and only a few small
barnacles adhered to the shell. Now Kino was reluctant to open it. What he had
seen, he knew, might be a reflection, a piece of flat shell accidently drifted in or a complete
illusion. In this Gulf of uncertain light there were more illusions than realities.

But Juana's eyes were on him and she could not wait. She put her hand on Coyotito's covered head,
"Open it," she said softly.

Kino deftly slipped his knife into the edge of the shell. Through the knife he coutd feel the muscle
tighten hard. He worked the blade lever-wise and the closing muscle partﬁd‘ and the shell fell
apart. The lip-like flesh writhed up and then subsi ded. Kfno lifted the flesh, and there it lay, the
great pearl, perfect as the-moon, It captyred thb llght -and refined it and gave it back in silver
incandescence, It was as large a@s a'sea-gull's egg. It was the greatest pearl in the world. Juana
caught her brea /moaned a little. And to Kino the secret melody of the maybe pearl broke
clear and beaut f ul, "rich and warm and lovely, glowing and gloating and triumphant. In the
surface of the great pearl he could see dream forms. He picked the pearl from the dying flesh and
S e am e e e i

157




held it in his palm, and he turned it over and saw that its curve waspa?eqt Juana came near to
stare at it in his hand, and it was the hand he had smashed against the doctor’s gate, and the torn

flesh of the knuckles was turned grayish whité by the sea water. ~

Instinctively Juana went to Coyotito where he ay on his father's blanket. She lifted the poultice
of seaweed and looked 2k the shotder.

"

"Kino,” sh\cried shrilly.

He looked past his pearl, and he saw that the swelling was going out of the baby's shoulder, the
poison was receding from its body. Then Kino's fist closed over the pearl and his emotion broke
over him. He put back his head and howled. His eyes rolled up and he screamed and his body was

rigid. The men in the other canoes looked up, startled, and then they dug their paddles into the
sea and raced toward Kino's canoe.

Chapter 3

Atown is a thing like a colonial animal. A town has a nervous system and a head and shoulders and
feet. Atown is a thing separate from all other towns, so that there are no two towns alike. And a
town has a whole emotion. How news travels through a town is a mystery not easily to be solved.

News seems to move faster than small boys can scramble and dart to tell it, faster than women
can call it over the fences.

Before Kino and Juana and the other fishers had cometolsino:sbnisb?hmum,me nerves of the
town were pulsing and vibrating with the q@gpkjhg‘hqq"mﬂpd‘the ‘Pearl of the World. Before
panting little boys could strangle out the words, their mothers kriew it. The news swept on past
the brush houses, and it w(é\hé@ﬂiﬁ-.ta\,fpa's\@nﬁrﬁvéve’lﬁtu the town of stone and plaster. It came to
the priest walking jn his'garden, and it put a thoughtful look in his eyes and a memory of certain
repairs necessary i« the church. He wondered what the pearl would be worth. And he wondered
whether he' had baptized Kino's baby, or married him for that matter. The news came to the
shopkeepers, and they looked at men's clothes that had not sold sowell.

The news came to the doctor where he sat with a woman whose illness was age, though neither
she nor the doctor would admit it. And when it was made plain who Kino was, the doctor grew
stern and judicious at the same time. “He is a client of mine,” the doctor said. "l am treating his
child for a scorpion sting." And the doctor’s eyes rolled up a little in their fat hammocks and he
thought of Paris. He remembered the room he had lived in there as a great and luxurious place,
and he remembered the hard-faced woman who had lived with him as a beautiful and kind girl,
although she had been none of these three. The doctor looked past his aged patient and saw
himself sitting in a restaurant in Paris and a waiter was just opening a bottle of wine.

The news came early to the beggars in front of the church, and it made them giggle a little
with pleasure, for they knew that there is no almsgiver in the world like a poor man who is
suddenly lucky. 7\

Kino has found the Pearl of the World. In the town, in Little offices, 54t the meén who bought pearls
from the fishers. They waited in their chairs until the'pearls came in;-and then they cackled and
fought and shouted and threatened until\they reached the lowest price the
fisherman would stand. But thére was a price below which they dared not go, for it had happened
that a fisherman {n despair had-given his pearls to the church. And when the buying was over,
these buyers sat alone and their fingers played restlessly with the pearls, and they
wished they owned the pearls. For there were not many buyers really- there was only one, and he

158



kept these agents in separate offices to give a semblance of competition. The news came to these
men, and their eyes squinted -and (their fingertips burned a little, and each one
thought how the patron could not live farever and someone had to take his place. And each one
thought how with some Capital he could get a new start.

All manner of pFPpH grew interested in Kino- people with things to sell and people with favors to
ask. Ki'rs\n;ﬂadﬁdund the Pearl of the World. The essence of pearl mixed with essence of men and a
curious dark residue was precipitated. Every man suddenly became related to
Kino's pearl, and Kino's pearl went into the dreams, the speculations, the schemes, the plans, the
futures, the wishes, the needs, the lusts, the hungers, of everyone, and only one person stood in
the way and that was Kino, so that he became curiously every man's enemy. The news
stirred up something infinitely black and evil in the town; the black distillate was like the
scorpion, or like hunger in the smell of food, or like loneliness when love is withheld. The poison
sacs of the town began to manufacture venom, and the town swelled and puffed with the pressure
of it.

But Kino and Juana did not know these things. Because they were happy and excited they thought
everyone shared their joy. Juan Tomas and Apolonia did, and they were the world too. In the
afternoon, when the sun had gone over the mountains of the Peninsula to sink in the outward sea,
Kino squatted in his house with Juana beside him. And the brush house was crowded with
neighbors. Kino held the great pearl in his hand, and it was warm.and alive in his hand. And the
music of the pearl had merged with the music of the family so.thatone beattified the other. The
neighbors looked at the pearl in Kme!\hpnd \and;hey wondecedhuw such luck could come to any

"

"'"-.';’-\ . T LA At
man. AR AR\ B
\ || |

And Juan Tomas, who squatted onKing's right hand because he was his brother, asked, "What will
youdo novﬁqt@:& Have become a rich man?*

Kino looked into his pearl, and Juana cast her eyelashes down and arranged her shawl to cover her
face so that her excitement could not be seen. And in the incandescence of the pearl the pictures
formed of the things Kino's mind had considered in the past and had given up as impossible. In the
pearl he saw Juana and Coyotito and himself standing and kneeling at the high altar, and they
were being married now that they could pay. He spoke softly, "We will be married- in the church.”

In the pearl he saw how they were dressed- Juana in a shawl stiff with newness and a new skirt,
and from under the long skirt Kino could see that she wore shoes. It was in the pearl- the picture
glowing there. He himself was dressed in new white clothes, and he carried a new hat- not of
straw but of fine black felt- and he too wore shoes- not sandals but shoes that laced. But Coyotito-
he was the one- he wore a blue sailor suit from the United States and a little yachting cap such as
Kino had seen once when a pleasure boat put into the estuary. All of these things Kino saw in the
lucent pearl and he said, "We will have new clothes.” .

And the music of the pearl rose like a chorus of trumpets in hisears. . A\

Then to the lovely gray surface of the pearl came the littlethfng.s Kimwanteda 'ii'afpbon to take
the place of one lost a year ago, a new harpaon of iron with a ring in the end of the shaft; and- his
mind could hardly make the leap- arifle- but why hot; since he was so rich.

And Kino saw Kino in the peart, Kino holdinig a Winchester carbine. It was the wildest daydreaming
and very pleasant. His lips moved hesitantly over this- "Arifle," he said. "Perhaps arifle.”

It was Hiehﬂe' that broke down the barriers. This was an impossibility, and if he could think of
having a rifle whole horizons were burst and he could rush on. For it is said that humans are never

159



satisfied, that you give them one thing and they want somethmg mﬂrq &

And this is said in disparagement, whereas it as oneﬂf the gréatest talents the species has and one
that has made it superior t.o animats that aresatisﬂhd with what they have.

The neighbors, close pre sed ahd snlent in the house, nodded their heads at his wild imaginings.
Andaman In ?he re{ar rmured, Arifle.

He will haVE anﬂe

But the music of the pearl was shrilling with triumph in Kino. Juana looked up, and her eyes were
wide at Kino's courage and at his imagination. And electric strength had come to him now the
horizons were kicked out. In the pearl he saw Coyotito sitting at a little desk in a school, just as
Kino had once seen it through an open door. And Coyotito was dressed in a jacket, and he hadona
white collar, and a broad silken tie. Moreover, Coyotito was writing on a big piece of paper. Kino
looked at his neighbors fiercely. "My son will go to school,” he said, and the neighbors were
hushed. Juana caught her breath sharply. Her eyes were bright as she watched him, and she
looked quickly down at Coyotito in her arms to see whether this might be possible.

But Kino's face shone with prophecy. "My son will read and open the books, and my son will write
and will know writing. And my son will make numbers, and these things will make us free because
he will know-he will know and through him we will know." And in the pearl Kino saw himself and
Juana squatting by the little fire in the brush hut while Coyotito read &nm a _grsat buok “This is
what the pearl will do," said Kino. And he had never said sa«manywbrds tpgether in his life. And
suddenly he was afraid of his tb;l)kiﬂs A\ H\ -\ hqrid\ closed down over the
pearl and cut the light away! fromite- Kmd wa: afraid asa 'man is afraid who says, "I will,” without

|||| M\

\ L W TR
knowing. R

Now the neighbars knew the;v hﬁd witnessed a great marvel. They knew that time would now date
from Ki nd'ﬁ\l and that they would discuss this moment for many years to come. If these things
came to pass, they would recount how Kino looked and what he said and how his eyes shone, and
they would say, "He was a man transfigured. Some power was given to him, and there it started.

You see what a great man he has become, starting from that moment. And | myself saw it.”

And if Kino's planning came to nothing, those same neighbors would say, “There it started. A
foolish madness came over him so that he spoke foolish words. God keep us from such things. Yes,
God punished Kino because he rebelled against the way things are. You see what has become of
him. And | myself saw the moment when his reason left him."

Kino looked down at his closed hand and the knuckles were scabbed over and tight where he had
struck the gate.

Now the dusk was coming. And Juana looped her shawl under the baby so that he hung against her
back, and she went to the fire hole and dug a coal from the ashes and broke a few twigs over it and
fanned a flame alive. The little flames danced on the faces of the neighbors.

They knew they should go to their own dinners, but they werereluctant to leavm """

The dark was almost in, and Juana's fire threw shadows an t.he btush wal[s wh enthe whisper came
in, passed from mouth to mouth. "The Father is, comnng -the priestis coming.” The men uncovered
their heads and stepped I;tack frqm the| docr and the women gathered their shawls about their

faces and cast down their. eyes. Kino and Juan Tomas, his brother, stood up. The priest came in- a

graying, agihh m an with an old skinand a young sharp eye. Children, he considered these people,
and he treated them like children.

160



T L T T —— T T

Urmit 15 The Pearl

“Kino," he said softly, “thou art named after é'jféa't man- and/a great Father of the Church.” He
made it sound like a benediction. "Thy hamesake tamed the desert and sweetened the minds of
thy people, didst thou kniow that? It isiin the books.”

Kino li:ﬂ:)l_-_:T.u_:!.__J u;i#k{l_yl_dnwﬁ at Coyotito's head, where he hung on Juana's back. Someday, his mind
said, that _bbji#ould know what things were in the books and what things were not. The music had
gone out of Kino's head, but now, thinly, slowly, the melody of the morning, the music of evil, of
the enemy, sounded, but it was faint and weak. And Kino looked at his neighbors to see who might
have brought this song in.

But the priest was speaking again. "It has come to me that thou hast found a great fortune, agreat
pearl.”

Kino opened his hand and held it out, and the priest gasped a little at the size and beauty nf' the
pearl. And then he said, "I hope thou wilt remember to give thanks, my son, to Him who has given
thee this treasure, and to pray for guidance in the future.”

Kino nodded dumbly, and it was Juana who spoke softly. “We will, Father. And we will be
married now. Kino has said so.” She looked at the neighbors for confirmation, and they nodded
their heads solemnly.

Thé priest said, "It is pleasant to see that your first thoughts are good thoughts. God bless you, my

children.” He turned and left quietly, and the people la_t himt_hfopgh( (M

But Kino's hand had closed tightly on the pearl again, and he was gtaricing about suspiciously, for
the evil song was in his ears, shrilling agajnst the music of the pearl.

The neighbors slipped away td go to their houses, and Juana squatted by the fire and set her clay
pot of boiled beans overithe little flame.

Kino stépped to the doorway and looked out. As always, he could smell the smoke from many
fires, and he could see the hazy stars and feel the damp of the night air so that he covered his nose
from it. The thin dog came to him and threshed itself in greeting like a windblown flag, and Kino
looked down at it and didn't see it. He had broken through the horizons into a cold and lonely
outside. He felt alone and unprotected, and scraping crickets and shrilling tree frogs and croaking
toads seemed to be carrying the melody of evil. Kino shivered a little and drew his blanket more
tightly against his nose. He carried the pearl still in his hand, tightly closed in his palm, and it was
warm and smooth against his skin.

Behind him he heard Juana patting the cakes before she put them down on the clay cooking
sheet. Kino felt all the warmth and security of his family behind him, and the Song of the Family
came from behind him like the purring of a kitten. But now, by saying what his future was going to
belike, he hadcreatedit. Aplan is a real thing, and things projected are experienced. A plan once
made and visualized becomes a reality along with other realities- neverto be destroyed but easily
to be attacked. Thus Kino's future was real, but having set it up, other forces were set up to
destroy it, and this he knew, so that he had to prepare to meet the attack. And this Kino knew also-
that the gods do not love men's plans, and the gods do not love success unless it comes by
accident. He knew that the gods take their revenge on a man if he be successful through his own
efforts. Consequently Kinowas afraid of plans, but having made one, he could never destroy it.
And to meet the attack; Kino was already making a hard skin for himself against the world, His -
eyes and his mind prqPied for danger before it appeared.

Standiqg if]ithﬁhﬂtlilr, he saw two men approach; and one of them carried a lantern which lighted

161



the ground and the legs of the men. They turned in through the Qpening of Kind 5 brush fence and
came to his door. And Kino saw that one was the. doctar and the other ‘the servant who had opened
the gate in the mommg Ihe split knuckles uu Kanas right hand burned when he saw who they
were. AW\ O .

The doctor said, ] wyas nnt in when you came this morning. But now, at the first chance, | have

come. I:npebtﬁe

Kino stood in the door filling it, and hatred raged and flamed in back of his eyes, and fear too, for
the hundreds of years of subjugation were cut deep in him.

"The baby is nearly well now,” he said curtly.
The doctor smiled, but his eyes in their little lymph-lined hammocks did not smile.

He said, "Sometimes, my friend, the scorpion sting has a curious effect. There will be apparent
improvement, and then without warning-pouf!” He pursed his lips and made a little explosion to
show how quick it could be, and he shifted his small black doctor’s bag about so that the light of
the lamp fell upon it, for he knew that Kino's race love the tools of any craft and trust them.
"Sometimes,” the doctor went on in a liquid tone. “sometimes there will be a withered leg or a
blind eye or a crumpled back. Oh, | know the sting of the scorpion, my friend, and | cancureiit.”

Kino felt the rage and hatred melting toward fear. He did not know, and perhaps this doctor did.
And he could not take the chance of putting his certain lgnorance against. thfs mans possible
knowledge. He was trapped as his people were, alwaﬁmﬁped and WOutd be until, as he had
said, they could be sure that the things ir in the bpdks were raally in the books. He could not take a
chance- not with the lt!enr with the ﬁtralgf\tness oitwﬁtito He stood aside and let the doctor
and his man enter the b(ush‘hut (LS

Juana st Fo Hwe ﬁre and backed away as he entered, and she covered the baby's face with
the fring e f shawl. And when the doctor went to her and held out his hand, she clutched the
baby tlght and looked at Kino where he stood with the fire shadows leaping on his face.

Kino nodded, and only then did she let the doctor take the baby.

"Hold the light," the doctor said, and when the servant held the lantern high, the doctor looked
for amoment at the wound on the baby's shoulder. He was thoughtful for a moment and then he
rolled back the baby's eyelid and looked at the eyeball. He nodded his head while
Coyotitostruggled against him.

"It is as | thought," he said. “The poison has gone inward and it will strike soon. Come look!" He
held the eyelid down. “See- it isblue.”

And Kino, looking anxiously, saw that indeed it was a little blue. And he didn't know whether or
not it was always a little blue. But the trap was set. He couldn’t take the chance.

The doctor’s eyes watered in their little hammocks. "I will give him somethlng to try to turn the
poison aside,” he said. And he handed the baby to Kino. _

Then from his bag he took a little bottle of white powder arid a Icapsulé of ge‘tah ne. He filled the
capsule with the powder and closed lt and thEn around the ﬁrst capsule he fitted a second
capsule and closed it.

Then he worked ver deftly He tmk the baby and plnched its lower lip until it opened its mouth.

His fat ﬁn? glpd {the capsule far back on the baby's tongue, back of the point where he could
spit it out, 'and then from the floor he picked up the little pitcher of pulque and gave Coyotito a

162



Unit 15: The Pnarl

drink, and it was done, He looked again at the baby's eyeball and he pursed his lips and seemed to
think. A e

At last he handeq the baby back to Juana and he turned to Kino. "l think the poison will attack
withm the| hour he'said. "The medicine may save the baby from hurt, but | will come back in an
hour. Perhaps | am in time to save him." He took a deep breath and went out of the hut, and his
servant followed him with the lantern.

Now Juana had the baby under her shawl, and she stared at it with anxiety and fear. Kino came to
her, and he lifted the shawl and stared at the baby. He moved his hand to look under the eyelid,
and only then saw that the pearl was still in his hand. Then he went to a box by the wall, and from
it he brought a piece of rag. He wrapped the pearl in the rag, then went to the corner of the brush

: house and dug a little hole with his fingers in the dirt floor, and he put the pearl in the hole and
covered it up and concealed the place. And then he went to the fire where Juana was squa tting,
watching the baby's face.

The doctor, back in his house, settled into his chair and looked at his watch. His people brought
: him a little supper of chocolate and sweet cakes and fruit, and he stared at the food
discontentedly.

In the houses of the neighbors the subject that would lead all conversations fora long time to
come was aired for the first time to see how it would go. The neigbbors showed one another with
their thumbs how big the pearl was, and they | made. little” caressing gestures to show
how lovely it was. From now on they would watch kino and Juana very closely to see whether
riches turned their heads -as’ richi:stum all people's heads. Everyr:ie knew why the doctor had
come, He was not / at dlssemblmg and he was very well under<.ood.

Out in t e ‘. a tight -woven school of small fishes gliiteied and broke water to escape a
: school ¢ eat fishes that drove in to eat them. And in th houses the people could hear the swish
' of the small ones and the bouncing splash of the great ones as the slaughter went
: on. The dampness arose out of the Gulf and was deposited on bushes and cacti and on little trees
) in salty drops. And the night mice crept about on the ground and the little night hawks hunted
them silently.

The skinny black puppy with flame spots over his eyes came to Kino's door and looked in. He nearly
shook his hind quarters loose when Kino glanced up at him, and he subsided when Kino looked
away. The puppy did not enter the house, but he watched with frantic interest while Kino ate his
beans from the little pottery dish and wiped it clean with a corncake and ate the cake and washed
the whole down with a drink of pulque.

Kino was finished and was rolling a cigarette when Juana spoke sharply.

"Kino." He glanced at her and then got up and went quickly to her for he saw fright in her eyes. He
stood over her, looking down, but the light was very dim. He kicked a ptle of twigs into the fire hole
to make a blaze, and then he could see the faceof Coyotite. _ — 7|}

The baby's face was flushed and his throat was working and a Iittle thick dronl. of saliva issued
from his lips. The spasm of the stamach rnustles began and the baby was very sick.

Kino knelt beside his wife “So'the doctm‘ Icnew, he said, but he said it for himself as well as for his
wife, for his mind was hard and suspicious and he was remembering the white powder. Juana
rocked frorn| Isuﬁ to-side and moaned out the little Song of the Family as though it
could wﬁrdbﬁ the danger, and the baby vomited and writhed in her arms. Now uncertainty was in

163



Kino, and the music of evil throbbed in his head and nearly drove out Juana's song IR

The doctor finished his chocolate and nibbled the iittle [allen p!eces of sweet cake He brushed
his fingers on a napkin, looked at his watch, arasa, and tocikup his little bag.

The news of the babys illness. tmfeled qui::kly‘amnng the brush houses, for sickness is second only
to hunger as the en df pcorpeople And some said softly, "Luck, you see, brings bitter friends.”
And they| rthdd ‘and got up to go to Kino's house. The neighbors scuttled with
covered noses through the dark until they crowded into Kino's house again. They stood and gazed,
and they made little comments on the sadness that this should happen at a time of joy, and they
said, "All things are in God's hands."” The old women squatted down beside Juana to try to give her
aid if they could and comfort if they could not.

Then the doctor hurried in, followed by his man. He scattered the old women like chickens.

He took the baby and examined it and felt its head. "The poison it has worked,” he said. “I think |
can defeat it. | will try my best." He asked for water, and in the cup of it he put
three drops of ammonia, and he pried open the baby's mouth and poured it down. The baby
spluttered and screeched under the treatment, and Juana watched him with haunted eyes. The
doctor spoke a little as he worked. "It is lucky that | know about the poison of the scorpion,
otherwise-" and he shrugged to show what could have happened.

But Kino was suspicious, and he could not take his eyes from the doctor's open bag;-and from the
bottle of white powder there. Gradually the spasms subsided and the bahy celaxe& under the
doctor’s hands. And then Coyotito sighed q;eply and went I;o« sleeﬁ.» for he was very tired

with vomiting. \VZAV\LO

The doctor put the baby in Juana s arms. “I-'ibwikl get well now," he said. "l have won the fight.” And
Juana looked at hi mthladoratwn .

The doctor ﬁh& éi\osmg'; his bag now. He said, “When do you think you can pay this bill?" He said it
evenki ndiy

"when | have sold my pearl | will pay you," Kino said.
“You have a pearl? A good pearl?” the doctor asked with interest.

And then the chorus of the neighbors broke in. “He has found the Pearl of the World,” they cried,
and they joined forefinger with thumb to show how great the pearl was.

"Kino will be a rich man," they clamored. "It is a pearl such as one has never seen.”

The doctor looked surprised. "l had not heard of it. Do you keep this pearl in a safe place?
Perhaps you would like me to put it in my safe?”

Kino's eyes were hooded now, his cheeks were drawn taut. "I have it secure,” he said.
“Tomorrow | will sell it and then | will pay you.”

The doctor shrugged, and his wet eyes never left Kino's eyes. He knew the pearl. wuutd be buried
in the house, and he thought Kino might look toward the place wherd itwas buned “It would be a
shame to have it stolen before you could sell it," the doctor smd 'and he saw Kina's eyes flick
involuntarily to the floor near the side poSt Of the brush house. — [

When the doctor had gone and all the neigthrs had reluctantly returned to their houses, Kino
squatted beside the lqttle glowing coals in the fire hole and listened to the night sound, the soft
sweep of th& Htﬂe waves on the shore and the distant barking of dogs, the creeping of the breeze

164



through the brush house roof and the soft speechof his nelghbors in :heir houser. in f.he village For
these people do not sleep soundly allnight; theyaWaken at Intewals‘ and talk a little and then go
tosleep again. And aftera whlle Kino got,up and went tothe door of his house.

He smelled the breeze and he listened for any foreign sound of secrecy or creeping, and his eyes
searched the dar e*sl 'for the music of evil was sounding in his head and he was fierce and afraid.
After he. hn& p the night with his senses he went to the place by the side post where the
pearl was buried, and he dug it up and brought it to his sleeping mat, and under his sleeping mat
he dug another little hole in the dirt floor and buried his pearl and covered it up again.

And Juana, sitting by the fire hole, watched him with questioning eyes, and when he had buried
his pearl she asked, "Who do you fear?”

Kino searched for a true answer, and at last he said, "Everyone.” And he could feel a shell of
hardness drawing over him.

After a while they lay down together on the sleeping mat, and Juana did not put the baby in his
box tonight, but cradled him on her arms and covered his face with her head shawl. And the last
light went out of the embers in the fire hole.

But Kino's brain burned, even during his sleep, and he dreamed that Coyotito could read, that one
of his own people could tell him the truth of things. And in his dream, Coyotito was reading from a
book as large as a house, with letters as big as dogs, and tﬁe words \galloped
and played on the book. And then darkness spread over the page, amdwiththe darkness came the
music of evil again, and Kino stirred in-his sleep; and when he stirred Juana's eyes opened in the
darkness, And then Kino awakened wlth I:bq &vil mum‘.’ pulsing inhim, and he lay in the darkness
with his ears alert. [\BBLRN '

Then from the ner H the hwse came a sound so soft that it might have been simply a thought,
a little furt éhev&ment a touch of a foot on earth, the almost inaudible purr of controlled
hreathing Kino held his breath to listen, and he knew that whatever dark thing was in his house
was holding its breath too, to listen. For a time no sound at all came from the corner of the brush
house. Then Kino might have thought he had imagined the sound. But Juana's hand came creeping
over to him in warning, and then the sound came again! the whisper of a foot on dry earth and the

scratch of fingers in the soil,

And now a wild fear surged in Kino's breast, and on the fear came rage, as it always did. Kino's
hand crept into his breast where his knife hung on a string, and then he sprang like an angry cat,
leaped striking and spitting for the dark thing he knew was in the corner of the house.

He felt cloth, struck at it with his knife and missed, and struck again and felt his knife go through
cloth, and then his head crashed with lightning and exploded with pain. There was a soft scurry in
the doorway, and running steps for amoment, and then silence.

Kino could feel warm blood running down from his forehead, and he could hear Juana calling to
him. "Kinol Kino!" And there was terror in her voice. Then cnldness cqme over himas quickly as the
rage had, and he said, "l am all right. The thmg has gone cANY [ (o)

He groped his way back to the sleeping mat; Alreadyduana wasworking at the fire, She uncovered
an ember from the ashes and shredded littlepieces 'of cornhusk over it and blew a little flame into
the cornhusks so that a tiny light danced through the hut. And then from a secret place Juana
brought a little ppgcq of consecrated candle and lighted it at the flame and set it upright on a
ﬁreplacestoh . She worked quickly, crooning as she moved about, She dipped the end of her head

R s e s ke e e b o —

165



A -." \\
r ‘|

shawl in water and swabbed the blood from Kino's bruised forehead:. ‘lms npthing! l(ino sald but
his eyes and his voice were hard and cold ancl a brmdmg hate was gruomng inhim.

Now the tension which had beeri groMngin Jugna bmted up to the surface and her lips were thin.
“This thing is evil,” she cried harshly, Thisipearl is like a sin! It will destroy us,” and her voice rose
shrilly. “Throw it away . Let'us ‘break it between stones. Let us bury it and forget the place.
Let us throw it bick &hi é sea. It has brought evil. Kino, my husband, it will destroy us.” And in
the firelight her lfps and her eyes were alive with her fear.

But Kino's face was set, and his mind and his will were set. "This is our one chance,” he said. "Our
son must go to school. He must break out of the pot that holds usin.”

"It will destroy us all,” Juana cried. "Even our son.”

"Hush," said Kino. "Do not speak any more. In the morning we will sell the pearl, and then the evil
will be gone, and only the good remain. Now hush, my wife.” His dark eyes scowled into the little
fire, and for the first time he knew that his knife was still in his hands, and he
raised the blade and looked at it and saw a little line of blood on the steel. For a moment he
seemed about to wipe the blade on his trousers but then he plunged the knife into the earth and so
cleansedit.

The distant roosters began to crow and the air changed and the dawn was coming. The wind of the
morning ruffled the water of the estuary and whispered through the mangroves, ,and Fﬁhe little
waves beat on the rubbly beach with an increased tempo Kino ralse(ﬂhq ‘sjéepmg mat/and dug up
his pearl and put it in front of him and stared@t it 1\ [ \ e

And the beauty of the pearl, wlnkmgand g!uﬁ’lméﬁng m tr\efight of the llttle candle, cozened his
brain with its beauty. So lovely (it WS so soft@na*its own music came from it- its music of promise
and delight, its_gu: Ea tﬁe \of. the future, of comfort, of security. Its warm lucence
promised a pqqltitajéz tillness and a wall against insult. It closed a door on hunger. And as he
stared at it Kino's eyes softened and his face relaxed. He could see the little image of the
consecrated candle reflected in the soft surface of the pearl, and he heard again in his ears the
lovely music of the undersea, the tone of the diffused green light of the sea bottom. Juana,
glancing secretly at him, saw him smile. And because they were in some way one thing and one
purpose, she smiled with him.

And they began this day with hope.

Chapter 4

It is wonderful the way a little town keeps track of itself and of all its units. If every single manand
woman, child and baby, acts and conducts itself in a known pattern and breaks no walls and differs
with no one and experiments in no way and is not sick and does not endanger
the ease and peace of mind or steady unbroken flow of the town, then that unit can disappear and
never be heard of. But let one man step out of the regular thought or the known) and trusted
pattern, and the nerves of the townspeople ring with uervnusness and’ ‘communication travels
over the nerve lines of the town. -.'I'hen every \unit\ Commumcates to the whole.

Thus, in La Paz, it was known(in the tfér[y mum mg through the whole town that Kino was going to
sell his pearl that day Itrz/as kl'lOWl'l among the neighbors in the brush huts, among the pearl
fishermen,; it wa: among the Chinese grocery-store owners; it was known in the church, for
the altar boys. Whispered about it. Word of it crept in among the nuns; the beggars in front of the

166



The little boys knew about it with excitement, I:iut most qf all the pearl buyers knew about it, and
when the day had come, in theoffices of the pearl, buyers, each man sat alone with his little black
velvet tray, and each man m’itsed the pearis about with his fingertips and considered his part in the
picture. ] .

It was sul:puseﬂ tﬂajc the pearl buyers were individuals acting alone, bidding against one another
for the pearls the fishermen brought in. And once it had been so. But this was a wasteful method,
for often, in the excitement of bidding for a fine pearl, too great a price had been paid to the
fishermen. This was extravagant and not to be countenanced.

Now there was only one pearl buyer with many hands, and the men who sat in their offices and
waited for Kino knew what price they would offer, how high they would bid, and what method
each one would use. And although these men would not profit beyond their salaries, there was
excitement among the pearl buyers, for there was excitement in the hunt, and if it be a man's
function to break down a price, then he must take joy and satisfaction in breaking it as far down as
possible. For every man in the world functions to the best of his ability, and no one does less than
his best, no matter what he may think about it. Quite apart from any reward they might get, from
any word of praise, from any promotion, a pearl buyer was a pearl buyer, and the best and
happiest pearl buyer was he who bought for the lowest prices.

The sun was hot yellow that morning, and it drew the moisture from the. estuary and, fmm the Gulf
and hung it in shimmering scarves in the air so that the air mbraléd and wsioh was insubstantial. A
vision hung in the air to the north of the ¢ity- I;he vislon of a (hountatn that was over two hundred
miles away, and the high slopes of J:hls INU"’@{I\ wsereﬁvadﬂled with pines and a great stone peak
arose above the timber line.|

And the momirr,gqf gMﬂ gythe canoes lay lined up on the beach; the fishermen did not go out to
dive for pearls i'aH Ehere would be too much happening, too many things to see, when Kino went
tosell the great pearl.

In the brush houses by the shore Kino's neighbors sat long over their breakfasts, and they spoke of
what they would do if they had found the pearl. And one man said that he would give it as a
present to the Holy Father in Rome. Another said that he would buy Masses for the souls of his
family for a thousand years. Another thought he might take the money and distribute it among the
poor of La Paz; and a fourth thought of all the good things one could do with the money from the
pearl, of all the charities, benefits, of all the rescues one could perform if one had money. All of
the neighbors hoped that sudden wealth would not turn Kino's head, would not make a rich man of
him, would not graft onto him the evil limbs of greed and hatred and coldness. For Kino was a
well-liked man; it would be a shame if the pearl destroyed him. "That good wife Juana,” they said,
"and the beautiful baby Coyotito, and the others to come. What a pity it would be if the pearl
should destroy themall.”

For Kino and Juana this was the morning of mornings of their lives, comparable, only tq the day
when the baby had been born. This was to be the day,from which:all other, days would take their
arrangement. Thus they would say, "It was two years before we sold the pearl,” or, "It was six
weeks after we sold the pearl.” Juana, considenng the matter, threw caution to the winds, and
she dressed Coyotito in the ctothes she had prepared for his baptism, when there would be money
for his baptism. And .luanq combed and braided her hair and tied the ends with two little bows of
red ribbon, and ]she|put dn her rnamage skirt and waist. The sun was quarter high when they were

167



For tomorrow, or even this afternoon, he would have new clothes. < | 12\ G0

The neighbors, watching Kino's door through the trEVicas in their hﬂJSh hbuses were dressed and
ready too. There was no self- qunscwusness hbout \their jonning Kino and Juana to go pearl selling.
It was expected, it was an Iﬁstbnc moment. tﬁey would be crazy if they didn't go. It would be
almost a sign of unfnfnqsﬁip \Bi=

Juana put on h@r héad shawl carefully, and she draped one long end under her right elbow and
gathered it with her right hand so that a hammock hung under her arm, and in this little hammock
she placed Coyotito, propped up against the head shawl so that he could see
everything and perhaps remember. Kino put on his large straw hat and felt it with his hand to see
that it was properly placed, not on the back or side of his head, like a rash, unmarried,
irresponsible man, and not flat as an elder would wear it, but tilted a little forward to show
aggressiveness and seriousness and vigor. There is a great deal to be seen in the tilt of ahat on a
man. Kino slipped his feet into his sandals and pulled the thongs up over his heels. The great pearl
was wrapped in an old soft piece of deerskin and placed in a little leather bag, and the leather bag
was in a pocket in Kino's shirt. He folded his blanket carefully and draped it in a narrow strip over
his left shoulder, and now they were ready.

Kino stepped with dignity out of the house, and Juana followed him, carrying Coyotito. And as
they marched up the freshet-washed alley toward the town, the netghbors joined them. The
houses belched people; the doorways spewed out children. But becausgnf theseﬁausngss of the
occasion, only one man walked with Kino, and that was his brntlje?‘ .luan Tm;nas- -

Juan Tomas cautioned his brother. "You mqsl; bgcqr’eful;o see theydo not cheat you," he said.
And, "Very careful,” Kino agﬁeﬁdw r\'-.,;l\ \ U=

"We do not know wh Mt;e:‘. are paid in 6ther places,” said Juan Tomas.

"How can welr.ﬁ [wi'\at is a fair price, if we do not know what the pearl buyer gets for the
pearl in another place.”

"That is true,” said Kino, "but how can we know? We are here, we are not there."

As they walked up toward the city the crowd grew behind them, and Juan Tomas, in pure
nervousness, went on speaking.

"Before you were born, Kino," he said, "the old ones thought of a way to get more money for their
pearls. They thought it would be better if they had an agent who took all the pearls to the capital
and sold them there and kept only his share of the profit.”

Kino nodded his head. "l know," he said. "It was a good thought.”

"And so they got such a man," said Juan Tomas, “and they pooled the pearls, and they started him
off. And he was never heard of again and the pearls were lost. Then they got another man, and
they started him off, and he was never heard of again. And so they gave the whole thmg up and
went back to the old way." -

andtheFathermadethatveryclear \RRRIRS
The loss of the pearl was a pumshmem visitecl on tho;e who tned ta leave their station. And the

Father made it clear that eath ma,n and 'woman s like a soldier sent by God to guard some part of
the castle of thf iverse./And'some are in the ramparts and some far dee:p in the darkness of the
walls. But ehthhne must remain faithful to his post and must not go runnirig about, else the castle

is indanger from the assaults of Hell.”

168



- e
-

"I have heard him make that sermon,” said Juan Tomas "He makes(:t every year

The brothers, as they walked along, squinted their eyes a Iittle, as they and their grandfathers
and their great- grandfathers had done for. Fom hundred years, since first the strangers came with
argument and authority and gunpowder to back up both. And in the four hundred years Kino's
people had Leanpgd phly one defense- a slight slitting of the eyes and a slight tightening of the lips
and a retrrémént Nothing could break down this wall, and they could remain whole within the
wall.

The gathering procession was solemn, for they sensed the importance of this day, and any
children who showed a tendency to scuffle, to scream, to cry out, to steal hats and rumple hair,
were hissed to silence by their elders. So important was this day that an old man came to see,
riding on the stalwart shoulders of his nephew., The procession left the brush huts and entered the
stone and plaster city where the streets were a little wider and there were narrow pavements
beside the building. And as before, the beggars joined them as they passed the church; the
grocers looked out at them as they went by; the little saloons lost their customers and the owners
closed up shop and went along. And the sun beat down on the streets of the city and even tiny
stones threw shadows on the ground.

The news of the approach of the procession ran ahead of it, and in their little dark offices the
pearl buyers stiffened and grew alert. A\

They got out papers so that they could be at work when Kino appeargd and ihﬂ*f Put their pearls
in the desks, for it is not good to let an infeﬁor pearl be seen bdside” a beauty. And word of the
loveliness of Kino's pearl had come- to bhem The pEarLbUyers offices were clustered together in
one narrow street, and thesl were harredat the windows, and wooden slats cut out the light so
that only a soft glgorn ﬁntered the offices.

Astout stpwrnﬁ Larl in an office waiting. His face was fatherly and benign, and his eyes twinkled
with f nendship He was a caller of good mornings, a ceremonious shaker of hands, a jolly man who
knew all jokes and yet who hovered close to sadness, for in the midst of a laugh he could
remember the deati of your"aunt, and his eyes could become wet with sorrow for your loss. This
morning he had placed a flower in a vase on his desk, a single scarlet hibiscus, and the vase sat
beside the black velvet-lined pearl tray in front of him. He was shaved close to the blue roots of
his beard, and his hands were clean and his nails polished.

His door stood open to the morning, and he hummed under his breath while his right hand
practiced legerdemain. He rolled a coin back and forth over his knuckles and made it appear and
disappear, made it spin and sparkle. The coin winked into sight and as quickly slipped
out of sight, and the man did not even watch his own performance. The fingers did it all
mechanically, precisely, while the man hummed to himself and peered out the door. Then he
heard the tramp of feet of the approaching crowd, and the fingers of his right hand worked faster
and faster until, as the figure of Kino filled the doorway, the coin flashed and disappeared

"Good morning, my friend,” the stout man said. "What can | do l’oryau?‘

Kino stared into the dimness of the little ofﬁce, fqr l'ris eyes wefe squeezed from the outside glare.
But the buyer’s eyes had become as steady and'cruel and unwinklng as a hawk’s eyes, while the
rest of his face smilgd ih greenng _And secretly, behind his desk, his right hand
practiced with tf t;uiq'l

"I have'a ﬁeaﬂ said Kino And Juan Tomas stood beside him and snorted a little at the
understatement. The neighbors peered around the doorway, and a line of little boys clambered

169




on the window bars and looked through. Several little boys, on their:handsahd knees, watched
the scene around Kino's legs. A O A\N\\ j = o

"You have a pearl,” the dealer said. "Sometimes a‘manbﬁngsj\‘n a dozen. Well, let us see your
pearl. We will value it and give you the best price."And his fingers worked furiously with the coin.
Now Kino inst_inct_i\ve;yj-miw-‘iﬁ‘is_ ow dramatic effects. Slowly he brought out the leather bag,
slowly took fron‘ijt‘-ﬂ_hé-édft and dirty piece of deerskin, and then he let the great pearl roll into the
black velvet tray, and instantly his eyes went to the buyer's face. But there was no
sign, no movement, the face did not change, but the secret hand behind the desk missed in its
precision. The coin stumbled over a knuckle and slipped silently into the dealer’s lap. And the
fingers behind the desk curled into a fist. When the right hand came out of hiding, the
forefinger touched the great pearl, rolled it on the black velvet; thumb and forefinger picked it up
and brought it near to the dealer's eyes and twirled it in the air.

Kino held his breath, and the neighbors held their breath, and the whispering went back through
the crowd. "He is inspecting it- No price has been mentioned yet- They have not come to a price.”

Now the dealer's hand had become a personality. The hand tossed the great pearl back in the tray,

the forefinger poked and insulted it, and on the dealer’s face there came a sad and contemptuous
smile. '

“lamsorry, my friend,  said, and his shoulders rose a little to indicate that the misfortune was
no fault of his. c(O)WVY

o \
— [~ ) { (
— 'Q. IR |

AN\ [ 75 \ A
s \ A\ [l 1ll_v'-", .\I\\ N || '; C’;\_:'l O~
"It is a pearl of great va.. -," Kino said. 0\ Q AN .\,\ VYN
7 "'. 'l,\ : ( \“ '.‘\.\ U :‘. I'-__'_ ke IIT_,_-' .
The dealer’s fingers spurn..d the;gﬁf&i“(l,;sqthaﬁt‘ ol nced d rebounded softly from the side of the

"~

=A \ N
velvet tray. BIRRLRANE

"You have heard of Qﬂtqgﬁlﬂ@ﬂ"&é dealer said. "This pearl is like fool's gold. It is too large. Who
would buy it? Ther "Js‘nﬁmarket for such things. It is a curiosity only. | am sorry. You thought it was
a thing of value, and it is only a curiosity.”

Now Kino's face was perplexed and worried. "It is the Pearl of the World," he cried. "No one has
ever seen such a pearl.”

"On the contrary,” said the dealer, "it is large and clumsy. As a curiosity it has interest; some
museum might perhaps take it to place in a collection of seashells. | can give you, say, a thousand
pesos.”

Kino's face grew dark and dangerous. "It is worth fifty thousand,” he said. "You know it. You want to
cheat me."

And the dealer heard a little grumble go through the crowd as they heard his price. And the dealer
felt alittle tremor of fear.

"Do not blame me,” he said quickly. “| am only an appraiser. Ask the others. Go to their offices
and show your pearl- or better, let them come here, so that you can see there is na-coflusion.
Boy,” he called. A ANV (oo

(O \O~—
(

And when his servant looked through the rear\dogr, 'Boy, g0 to such a one, and such another one
and such a third one. Ask themi to step.in-here.and do not tell them why. Just say that | will be
pleased to see them.” And his, nght hand went behind the desk and pulled another coin from his
pocket, and thecci}nrﬁtlledl ackand forth over the knuckles.

Kino's neighbor‘sij-ﬁﬁisbefed together. They had been afraid of something like this. The pearl was

170



— r-\.\ ". \ ."

large, but it had a strange color. They had been suspicious of it ﬁrpm the ﬁfst And after all, a
thousand pesos was not to be thrown, away It was| mmparative ]wealtﬁ to a man who was not

wealthy. And suppose Kino taok a thousand nesm Only yesterday he had nothing.

But Kino had grown tight and hard He fﬁlt the creeping of fate, the circling of wolves, the hover
of vultures. He fel bhpl evil coagulating about him, and he was helpless to protect himself, He
heard in his; éar4| e evil music. And on the black velvet the great pearl glistened, so that the
dealer could not keep his eyes from it.

The crowd in the doorway wavered and broke and let the three pearl dealers through. The crowd
was silent now, fearing to miss a word, to fail to see a gesture or an expression. Kino was silent and
watchful.

He felt a little tugging at his back, and he turned and looked in Juana's eyes, and when he looked
away he had renewed strength.

The dealers did not glance at one another nor at the pearl. The man behind the desk said, “I| have
put a value on this pearl. The owner here does not think it fair. | will ask you to examine this- this
thing and make an offer. Notice,” he said to Kino, "I have not mentioned what |
have offered.”

The first dealer, dry and stringy, seemed now to see the pearl for the first time. He took it up,
rolled it quickly between thumb and forefinger, and then cast it contemptuously hack into the
tray. "Do not include me in the discussion,” he said dryly. "I mjlmake ho ffer agall 'do not want
it. Thisis not a pearl- it is amonstrosity. " His t.hjn hps tur{ed, [ A=

Now the second dealer, a littte maqmth @ shy soft).rotce took up the pearl, and he examined it
l:arefully He took a glass fmm h‘IS poi;ket and‘lnspected it under magnification. Then he laughed
“Better peaq\ireijihade of paste," he said. "I know these things. This is soft and chalky, it will lose
itscolor and die ina few months.

Look-" He offered the glass to Kino, showed him how to use it, and Kino, who had never seen a
pearl’s surface magnified, was shocked at the strange-looking surface.

The third dealer took the pearl from Kino's hands. "One of my clients likes such things," he said. "I
will qffer five hundred pesos, and perhaps I can sell it to my client for six hundred.”

Kino reached quickly and snatched the pearl from his hand. He wrapped it in the deerskin and
thrust it inside his shirt.

The man behind the desk said, "I'm a fool, | know, but my first offer stands. | still offer one
thousand. What are you doing?" he asked, as Kino thrust the pearl out of sight.

"I am cheated,” Kino cried fiercely. "My pearl is not for sale here. | will go, perhaps even to the
capital.”

Now the dealers glanced quickly at one another. They knew they had played too hard;\ they knew
they would be disciplined for their failure, and the man at theﬁdesls said quickly, “I'might go to
fifteen hundred.” But Kino was pushing his way through the Crowd The- hum of talk came to him
dimly, his rage blood pounded ln hls ears, Iand he burSt thmugh ‘and strode away. Juana fo llowed,
trotting after him, 2\ \Th

When the evening came, Fhe naighbm 1‘ n the brush houses sat eating their corncakes and beans,
and they di #eqﬁte great theme of the morning. They did not know, it seemed a fine pearl to

them, but tsfuh_ez had never seen such a pearl beff.:'reI and surel: the dealers knew more about the

171

\
\




Each of the three knew the pearl was valueless AW WAWY
"But suppose they had arranged it befo:e"’ G
"If that is so, then all of u have beancheated all of our lives.”

Perhaps, some- qrgugﬂ berhaps it would have been better if Kino took the one thousand five
hundred pesos. That is a great deal of money, more than he has ever seen. Maybe Kino is a fool.

Suppose he should really go to the capital and find no buyer for his pearl. He would never live that
down.

And now, said other fearful ones, now that he had defied them those buyers will not want to deal
with him at all. Maybe Kino has cut off his own head and destroyed himself.

And others said, Kino is a brave man, and a fierce man; he is right.
From his courage we may all profit, These were prmid of Kino.

In his house Kino squatted on his sleeping mat, brooding. He had buried his pearl under a stone of
the fire hole in his house, and he stared at the woven tules of his sleeping mat until the crossed
design danced in his head. He had lost one world and had not gained another. And Kino was afraid.
Never in his life had he been far from home. He was afraid of strangers and of strange places. He
was terrified of that monster of strangeness they called the capital. It lay over the water and
through the mountains, over a thousand miles, and every strange- terrible milqms frightening.
But Kino had lost his old world and he must claml;}er on to a hewon& #or his'dream of the future
was real and never to be destroyed and hq had*.-‘.ald I wﬂl ,"\and thatmade a real thing too.

To determine to go and to s.::wl it wa;s to bﬂ m&way there.

Juana watched him. ?he buned h‘ls peart and she watched him while she cleaned Coyotito
and nursed him,. hn&ll anamade the corncakes for supper.

N

Juan Tomas came in and squatted down beside Kino and remained silent for a long time, until
at last Kino demanded, "What else could | do?

They are cheats.”
Juan Tomas nodded gravely. He was the elder, and Kino looked to him for wisdom. "It is hard to
know," he said. "We do know that we are cheated from birth to the overcharge on our coffins. But

we survive. You have defied not the pearl buyers, but the whole structure, the whole way of life,
and | am afraid for you."

"What have | to fear but starvation?” Kino asked.

But Juan Tomas shook his head slowly. "That we must all fear. But suppose you are correct-
suppose your pearl is of great value- do you think then the game is over?”

“What do you mean?”
"| don't know," said Juan Tomas, "but | am afraid for you. It is new grgund yom 'Ma[lung on,
you do not know the way." T S I _r_.,..:__\

I'._.‘. _.-I': \ "-ﬁ". I“. \\ I'-. L \‘. |

"l will go. | will go soon," said Kmo, W\ A\ A\ V\WY ]
"Yes," Juan Tomas agreed. That ypu must do, But I w‘onder 1f you will find it any different in the
capital. Here, you have fn?nd'sa!;rn;ln'n“l'l yourbrather. There, you will have noone.”

“What can | dq?'l Kmo'éﬁed "Some deep outrage is here. My son must have a chance. That is what
they are striking at. My friends will protect me.”

T~ e e e e e e W e e

172



L

"Only so long as they are not in danger or discomfart from i !;, smd Juan Tornas Hearase saying,
"Go with God." = ,

And Kino said, "Go with God, and dld not even lnok up} ft;r the words had a strange chill in them.

Long after Juan Tomas! had gdne Kinb sathrooding on his sleeping mat. A lethargy had settled on
him, and a littl g[a!.' hopelessness. Every road seemed blocked against him. In his head he heard
only the dark usic of the enemy. His senses were burningly alive, but his mind went back to the
deep participation with all things, the gift he had from his people. He heard every little sound of
the gathering night, the sleepy complaint of settling birds, the love agony of cats, the strike and
withdrawal of little waves on the beach, and the simple hiss of distance.

And he could smell the sharp odor of exposed kelp from the receding tide. The little flare of the
twig fire made the design on his sleeping mat jump before his entranced eyes.

Juana watched him with worry, but she knew him and she knew she could help him best by being
silent and by being near. And as though she too could hear the Song of Evil, she fought it, singing
softly the melody of the family, of the safety and warmth and wholeness of the family.

She held Coyotito in her arms and sang the song to him, to keep the evil out, and her voice was
brave against the threat of the dark music.

Kino did not move nor ask for his supper. She knew he would ask when he wanted it, His eyes were
entranced, and he could sense the wary, watchful evil outside the brush hgusp he could feel the
dark creeping things waiting for him to go out intg. the ﬂlght Ut-was shadowy and
dreadful, and yet it called to him and thrgalened him, anq ahalleng@d him. His right hand went
into his shirt and felt his knife; his eyeswere widg hestood up and walked to the doorway.

Juana willed to stop him; she raised her hand to stop him, and her mouth opened with terror. For a
long moment Kﬂ\q lébkmi out into the darkness and then he stepped outside, Juana heard the
little ‘rush, ° grunting struggle, the blow. She froze with terror for a moment, and
then her lips drew back from her teeth like a cat's lips. She set Coyotito down on the ground. She
seized a stone from the fireplace and rushed outside, but it was over by then. Kino lay on the
ground, struggling to rise, and there was no one near him. Only the shadows and the strike and
rush of waves and the hiss of distance. But the evil was all about, hidden behind the brush fence,
crouched beside the house in the shadow, hovering in the air.

Juana dropped her stone, and she put her arms around Kino and helped him to his feet and
supported him into the house. Blood oozed down from his scalp and there was a long deep cut in
his cheek from ear to chin, a deep, bleeding slash. And Kino was only half conscious. He shook his
head from side to side. His shirt was torn open and his clothes half pulled off, Juana sat him down
on his sleeping mat and she wiped the thickening blood from his face with her skirt. She brought
him pulque todrink in a little pitcher, and still he shook his head to clear out the darkness.

"Whot" Juana asked. o

“I don't know," Kino said. "I didn't see.” N\ RO\ \

Now Juana brought her clay pot of water and she washed the cut on hls-face white he stared dazed
ahead of him,

"Kino, my husband," she cned, and his eyes stared past her. "Kino, can you hear me?"

"I hear you," he ﬁaid ;Iully

"Kino, this. bedﬂ is evil. Letus destroy it before it destroys us. Let us crush it between two stones.
Let us- let us throw it back in the sea where it belongs. Kino, it is evil, it is evill"

173



And as she spoke the light came back in Klno s eyes 50 that they glowed ﬁercely and his muscles
hardened and his will hardened. O

"No," he said. "I will fight this thing. | will win m*er lt Wewill have our chance." His fist pounded
the sleeping mat. "No one'shall take our‘ good fortune from us,” he said. His eyes softened then and

he raised a gentltf hanq to Juana‘s shoulder. "Believe me," he said. | am a man." And his face grew
crafty. o N[NNI

“In the mormng we will take our canoe and we will go over the sea and over the mountains to
the capital, you and I. We will not be cheated. | am a man.”

"Kino," she said huskily, "I am afraid. A man can be killed. Let us throw the pearl back into the

sea.

"Hush," he said fiercely. "l am a man. Hush." And she was silent, for his voice was command.

"Let us sleep a little,” he said. "In the first light we will start. You are not afraid to go with
me?’

"No, my husband.”

His eyes were soft and warm on her then, his hand touched her cheek.
“Let us sleep a little,” he said.

Chapter 5 i ,’-,-\", ) .:H_’ Wt L)

||/ '|\

The late moon arose before the first roostérfcm%d Kmo aﬂened h‘s eyes in the darkness, for he
sensed movement near hirm bl.lj;tl&ﬂ‘ld ot lmve. Gnhrhzs eyes séarched the darkness, and in the

pale light of the moon tha‘t r(ire;pt thro\ugh the holes in the brush house Kino saw Juana
arise silently fro bﬁ&ﬁde him. He saw her move toward the fireplace.

So caremn}fdla 'she work that he heard only the lightest sound when she moved the fireplace
stone. And then like a shadow she glided toward the door. She paused for a moment beside the

hanging box where Coyotito lay, then for a second she was black in the doorway, and then she was
gone.

And rage surged in Kino. He rolled up to his feet and followed her as silently as she had gone, and
he could hear her quick footsteps going toward the shore. Quietly he tracked her, and his brain
was red with anger. She burst clear out of the brush line and stumbled over the little boulders
toward the water, and then she heard him coming and she broke into a run. Her arm was up to
throw when he leaped at her and caught her arm and wrenched the pearl from her. He struck her
in the face with his clenched fist and she fell among the boulders, and he kicked her in the side. In

the pale light he could see the little waves break over her, and her skirt floated about and clung to
her legs as the water receded.

Kino looked down at her an® his teeth were bared. He hissed at her like a snake, and Juana stared
at him with wide unfrightened eyes, like a sheep before the butcher. She knew the*re was murder
in him, and it was all right; she had accepted-it;’ “and\ 'she ,_wpuld not resist or even
protest. And then the rage left himand a sick disgust toak its plaa:e -

He turned away from her and walked up\the beach and through the brush line. His senses were
dulled by his emoti \ VU

He heard the A-pLh got his kmfe out and lunged at one dark figure and felt his knife go home, and
then he was swept to his knees and swept again to the ground. Greedy fingers went through I'ns

174



clothes, frantic fingers searched him, and the pearl, knogked \‘mm his hand Iay wmkl ng behind a
little stone in the pathway. It glmted lrrthe mft moonhght 3

Juana dragged herself up from the rocks on the edge of the water. Her face was a dull pain and her
side ached. She steadied herself on herknees for a while and her wet skirt clung to her. There was
no anger in&\ar fgr Kino. He'had said, "l am a man,” and that meant certain things to Juana. It
meaqt\y.hau e was half insane and half god. It meant that Kino would drive his strength against a
mountain and plunge his strength against the sea. Juana, in her woman's soul, knew that the
mountain would stand while the man broke himself; that the sea would surge while the man
drowned in it. And yet it was this thing that made him a man, half insane and half god, and Juana
had need of aman; she could not live without a man.

Although she might be puzzled by these differences between man and woman, she knew them and
accepted them and needed them. Of course she would follow him, there was no question of that.
Sometimes the quality of woman, the reason, the caution, the sense of preservation, could cut
through Kino’s manness and save them all. She climbed painfully to her feet, and she dipped her
cupped palms in the little waves and washed her bruised face with the stinging salt water, and
then she went creeping up the beach after Kino.

Aflight of herring clouds had moved over the sky from the south. The pale moon dipped in and out
of the strands of clouds so that Juana walked in darkness for a moment and in light the next. Her
back was bent with pain and her head was low. She went throughthe line, af, Mwhen the moon

was covered, and when it looked through she saw ﬂ]e glmimérgﬁ the’ great pearl in the path
behind tie rock. She sank to her l(nepsind’ plcked\)t up, and the moon went into the darkness of
the clouds again. Juana remau‘ied unhqr« Knees while she considered whether to go back to the sea

and finish her job, and as' shetonsideréd the light came again, and she saw two dark figures lying
inthe aneap]dlf her:She leaped forward and saw that one was Kino and the other a stranger

withda shiny fluid leaking from his throat.

Kino moved sluggishly, arms and legs stirred like those of a crushed bug, and a thick muttering
came from his mouth. Now, in an instant, Juana knew that the old life was gone forever. A dead
man in the path and Kino's knife, dark-bladed beside him, convinced her. All of the time Juana had

been trying to rescue something of the old peace, of the time before the pearl. But now it was
gone, and there was no retrieving it. And knowing this, she abandoned the past instantly. There

was nothing to do but to save themselves.

Her pain was gone now, her slowness. Quickly she dragged the dead man from the pathway into
the shelter of the brush. She went to Kino and sponged his face with her wet skirt. His senses were

coming back and he moaned.
"They have taken the pearl. | have lost it. Now it is over,” he said.

"The pearl is gone.” _
Juana quieted him as she would quiet a sick child. "Hush,” she said. =G

"Here is your pearl. | found it in the path Can you hear\ mel now? Here is your pearl Can you
understand? You have killed a man, We must, goaway They wjll come for us, can you understand?
We must be gone beforg the dayltghttnrnes

"I was attacked,” I'Tlno mld Uneamly “| struck to save my life."

"Do you reme \ber yesterday?' Juana asked. "Do you think that will matter? Do you remember the
men of t ecity7 Do you think your explanation will help?"

175



Kino drew a great breath and fought off his weakness No, he salql '\You are nght And his will
hardened and he was a man again. e IR =

"Go to our house and bring Coyutita, he .'.ald,l and bn ngall the corn we have. | will drag the canoe
into the water and we will g0." \\ |

He took his knife aqq lef{ her. He stumbled toward the beach and he came to his canoe. And when
the light brol%z ﬂrwgh again he saw that a great hole had been knocked in the bottom. And a
searing rage came to him and gave him strength. Now the darkness was closing in on his
family; now the evil music filled the night, hung over the mangroves, skirled in the wave beat. The
canoe of his grandfather, plastered over and over, and a splintered hole broken in it. This was an
evil beyond thinking. The killing of a man was not so evil as the killing of a
boat. For a boat does not have sons, and a boat cannot protect itself, and a wounded boat does
not heal. There was sorrow in Kino's rage, but this last thing had tightened him beyond breaking.
He was an animal now, for hiding, for attacking, and he lived only to preserve himself and his
family. He was not conscious of the pain in his head. He leaped up the beach, through the brush
line toward his brush house, and it did not occur to him to take one of the canoes of his neighbars.

Never once did the thought enter his head, any more than he could have conceived breaking a
boat.

The roosters were crowing and the dawn was not far off. Smoke of the first fires seeped out
through the walls of the brush houses, and the first smell of cooktngmmcai(es was in the air.
Already the dawn birds were scampering in the bushes.ﬂ?ev{eak mbon w,abbosing its light and the
clouds thickened and curdled to the swthward The wind blew ‘ffes,hly into the estuary, a nervous,
restless wind with the smet} of sm“!i on ﬁ.sbreath -and there was change and uneasiness in the.

'.\r

air. | “. \ Y

Kino, hurryi (Q]-T{éfdl iﬂ hﬁuse felta surge of exhilaration. Now he was not confused, for there

was only one thing to do, and Kino’s hand went first to the great pearl in his shirt and then to his
knife hanging under his shirt.

He saw a little glow ahead of him, and then without interval a tall flame leaped up in the dark with
a crackling roar, and a tall edifice of fire lighted the pathway. Kino broke into a run; it was his
brush house, he knew. And he knew that these houses could burn down in a very
few moments. And as he ran a scuttling figure ran toward him- Juana, with Coyotito in her arms
and Kino's shoulder blanket clutched in her hand. The baby moaned with fright, and Juana’s eyes
were wide and terrified. Kino could see the house was gone, and he did not question Juana. He
knew, but she said, "It was torn up and the floor dug- even the baby's box turned out, and as |
looked they put the fire to the outside.”

The fierce light of the burning house lighted Kino's face strongly.
“Who?" he demanded.
"I don't know," she said. "The dark ones.” A\

The neighbors were tumbling from their houses now, and. they watched the falhng sparks and
stamped them out to save their own houses, Silddlznl“y Kino Was ‘afraid The light made him afraid.

He remembered the man lying dead in the bmsh beside the path;, ‘and he took Juana by the arm
and drew her into the| shadnw \of “a>‘house away from the light, for light was
danger tohim, Fora Adment he considered and then he worked among the shadows until he came
to the housd of Jua |‘rrorm:\s his brother, and he slipped into the doorway and drew Juana after
him. Outside, he could hear the squeal of children and the shouts of the neighbors, for his friends

176



thought he might be inside the burning house. __ R ;' [\ -

The house of Juan Tomas was almost, exaetly ltke Kinu‘s house nearly all the brush houses were
alike, and all leaked light and air, 50 hhat Juana. and’ Kino, sittlng in the corner of the brother’s
house, could see the Ieapfng ﬂamm “through the wall. They saw the flames tall and
furious, they sa hé; roof fall-and watched the fire die down as quickly as a twig fire dies. They
heard tI]QJq: bf Jvarning of their friends, and the shrill, keening cry of Apolonia, wife of Juan
Tomas. —

She, being the nearest woman relative, raised a formal lament for the dead of the family.
Apolonia realized that she was wearing her second-best head shawl and she rushed to her
house to get her fine new one. As she rummaged in a box by the wall, Kino's voice said quietly,
“Apolonia, do not cry out.

We are not hurt.”
"How do you come here?” she demanded.

"Do not question,” he said. "Go now to Juan Tomas and bring him here and tell no one else,
This is important to us, Apolonia.”

She paused, her hands helpless in front of her, and then, "Yes, my brother-in-law," she said.

In a few moments Juan Tomas came back with her. He lighted a candle and came tg them where
they crouched in a corner and he said, "Apolonia, see to the door,-and do not let anyone enter.” He
was older, Juan Tomas, and he assumed the authmrity ”Nm mybrdthgr}. “he'said. "l was attacked
in the dark," said Kino. "And in the fight |fpfa§e k;ﬂ@a man.t )

"Who?" asked Juan Tomazs dmcﬁ[m\ W\ podi=
"I do not know. lg F ﬂl darkhESsVal[ darkness and shape of darkness.”

"Itis the| aﬂ A sath Juan Tomas. “There is a devil in this pearl. You should have sold it and passed
on the devil. Perhaps you can still sell it and buy peace for yourself."

And Kino said, "Oh, my brother, an insult has been put on me that is deeper than my life. For on the
beach my canoe is broken, my house is burned, and in the brush a dead man lies. Every escape is
cut off. You must hide us, my brother.”

And Kino, looking closely, saw deep worry come into his brother’s eyes and he forestalled himina
possible refusal. “Not for long," he said quickly. "Only until a day has passed and the new night has
come. Then we will go."

"I will hide you," said Juan Tomas.

“| do not want to bring danger to you," Kino said. "I know | am like a leprosy. | will go tonight and
then you will be safe.”

"I will protect you," said Juan Tomas, and he called, Apuloma close up the donr Do not even
whisper that Kino is here."” R\

They sat silently all day in the darkness of the house, and they cqutdhear rhe rterghbors speaking
of them. Through the walls of the house they could' watch their neighbors raking through the
ashes to find the bones. Crauchingin the hoLlSe of Juan Tomas, they heard the shock go into their
neighbors' minds at the'riews of the' bmken boat. Juan Tomas went out among the neighbors to
divert their suSpicion and he gave them theories and ideas of what had happened to Kino and to
Juana and Eot baby. To'one he said, "I think they have gone south along the coast to escape the
evil that was on them.” And to another, “Kino would never leave the sea. Perhaps he found another

177



boat."And he said, "Apolonia fs ill with grief." 12\ ([CONUBE

And in that day the wind rose up to beat the Gulf- and ture the kelps and weeds that lined the
shore, and the wind cried through the brush hquses and 'no boat was safe on the water. Then Juan
Tomas told among the neigﬁbdfs "Kino is gme If he went to the sea, he is drowned by
now."” And after each triP qmong the neighbors Juan Tomas came back with something borrowed.

He brought a uqu ' - straw bag of red beans and a gourd full of rice. He borrowed a cup of
dried peppersand ablock of salt, and he brought in a long working knife, eighteen inches long and

heavy, as a small ax, a tool and a weapon. And when Kino saw this knife his eyes lighted up, and he
fondled the blade and his thumb tested the edge.

The wind screamed over the Gulf and turned the water white, and the mangruves plunged like -
frightened cattle, and a fine sandy dust arose from the land and hung in a stifling cloud over the
sea. The wind drove off the clouds and skimmed the sky clean and drifted the sand of the country
like snow.

Then Juan Tomas,. when the evening approached, talked long with his brother. "Where will you
gol" '

"To the north,” said 'Kinb "I have heard that there are cities in the north."

“Avoid the shore,” said Juan Tomas. They are making a party to search the shore. The men in the
city will look for you. Do you still have the pearl?” -

"I have it,” said Kino. “And | will keep it. | might have given it as agxft,lﬁut now ftis nhy m’lsfortune
andmy life and | will keep it." His eyes were har@andtmat and b‘tter. | (EA0

Coyotito whimpered and Juana: mut;ered Iime magics \over him to make him silent.
"The wind is good said Juam 'Tbl‘rias "’Jhere vﬁll be no tracks.”

They left quiet| Nlpﬂ befal‘e the moon had risen. The family stood formally in the house of
Juan Tomas. J acarﬁed Coyotito on her back, covered and held in by her head shawl, and the
baby slept, cheek turned sideways against her shoulder. The head shawl covered the baby, and
one end of it came pcro'ss Juana's nose to protect her from the evil night air. JuanTomas embraced
his brother with the double embrace and kissed him on both cheeks. “Go with God," he said, and it
was like a death. "You will not give up the pearl?”

“This pearl has become my soul,” said Kina. “If | give it up | shall lose my soul. Go thou also with

Chapter 6

The wind blew fierce and strong, and it pelted them with bits of sticks, sand, and little rocks.
Juana and Kino gathered their clothing tighter about them and covered their noses and went out
into the world.

The sky was brushed clean by the wind and the stars were cold in a black sky. The two walked
carefully, and they avaided the center of the town where some sleeper-in a doorway, might see
them pass. For the town closed itself in against the-night, and anyone, '-yha moved’ about in the
darkness would be noticeable. Kino threaded his wav around the' etlge of the city and turned
north, north by the stars, and found, the mttgd sandy road that led through the brushy country
toward Loreto where the miratulous V\rgin has her station.

Kino could feel th Mpﬂn sand'against his ankles and he was glad, for he knew there would be no
tracks. The: ii:tile tight from the stars made out for hllTl the narrow road through the brushy

178



country, And Kino could hear the pad of Juana's feet beh md hnn. He went qmtkty and qmetly. and
Juana trotted behind him ta keep up. ¥

Some ancient thing stirred in Kino. Thrmgh his feamf dark and the devils that haunt the night,

there came a rush of exhilaratlon, some animal thing was moving in him so that he was cautious
and wary and d ‘aus; some ‘ancient thing out of the past of his people was alive in him. The
wind was at his Back and the stars guided him. The wind cried and whisked in the brush, and the
family went on monotonously, hour after hour. They passed no one and saw no one. At last, to
their right, the waning moon arose, and when it came up the wind died down, and the land was

still.

Now they could see the little road ahead of them, deep cut with sand-drifted wheel tracks. With
the wind gone there would be footprints, but they were a good distance from the town and
perhaps their tracks might not be noticed. Kino walked carefully in a wheel rut, and Juana
followed in his path. One big cart, going to the town in the morning, could wipe out every trace of
their passage.

All night they walked and never changed their pace. Once Coyotito awakened, and Juana shifted
him in front of her and soothed him until he went to sleep again. And the evils of the night were
about them. The coyotes cried and laughed in the brush, and the owls screeched and hissed over
their heads. And once some large animal lumbered away, rackling the undergrowth as it W'El'lt And
Kino gripped the handle of the big working knife and took a sense of pmtectioufrom A

The music of the pearl was triumphant in Kino's head, andthe qq}et mglpdyofthe farmly underlay
it, and they wove themselves into the spﬂ: padd1n§ of. Sanda[ed feet in the dust. All night they
walked, and in the first daWn King searthgd\(he roadside for a covert to lie in during the day. He
found his place near to the ruad, a little tléaring where deer might have lain, and it was curtained
thickly with ! dmrhnﬁle trees that lined the road. And when Juana had seated herself and had
settled toni ihe baby, Kino went back to the road. He broke a branch and carefully swept the
footprints where they had turned from the roadway. And then, in the first light, he heard the
creak of a wagon, and he crouched beside the road and watched a heavy two-wheeled cart go by,
drawn by slouching oxen. And when it had passed out of sight, he went back to the roadway and
looked at the rut and found that the footprints were gone. And again he swept out his traces and
went back to Juana.

She gave him the soft corncakes Apolonia had packed for them, and after a while she slept a little.
But Kino sat on the ground and stared at the earth in front of him. He watched the ants maving, a
little column of them near to his foot, and he put his foot in their path. Then the column climbed
over his instep and continued on its way, and Kino left his foot there and watched them move over
it.
The sun arose hotly, They were not near the Gulf now, and the air was dry and hot so that the brush
cricked with heat and a good resinous smell came from it. And when Juana awakened when the
sun was high, Kino told her things she knew already. . - ‘
"Beware of that kind of tree there," he said, pointing, "Danat touch it fdr ifyotrdo and then touch
your eyes, it will blind you. And beware of the tfee that bleeds. See, that one over there. For if
you break it the red blood will flow from lt and it is evil luck.” And she nodded and smiled a little
- athim, for she knew these thmgs.

“Will they foll P&r e asked. “Do you think they will try to find us?

“They will try," sald Kino. "Whoever finds us will take the pearl, Oh, they will try."
M e —

179




And Juana said, "Perhaps the dealers wére right and the pearl has novalue Perhaps thrs has
all been an illusion.” 5

Kino reached into his clothesand brought aut the pearl Helet the sun playon it until it burned in
his eyes. "No," he said, ‘theywould not havétﬁed tosteal it if it had been valueless.”

"Do you know who at§a¢!(ed you? Was it the dealers?”
"I do not I\np\b “e said "l didn’t see them."

He looked into his pearl to find his vision. "When we sell it at last, | will have a rifle,” he said, and
he looked into the shining surface for his rifle, but he saw only a huddled dark body on the ground
with shining blood dripping from its throat. And he said quickly, "We will be married in a great
church.” And in the pearl he saw Juana with her beaten face crawling home through the night.

"Our son must learn to read,” he said frantically. And there in the pearl Coyotito's face, thick and
feverish from the medicine.

And Kino thrust the pearl back into his clothing, and the music of the pearl had become sinister in
his ears, and it was interwoven with the music of evil,

The hot sun beat on the earth so that Kino and Juana moved into the lacy shade of the brush, and
small gray birds scampered on the ground in the shade. In the heat of the day Kino relaxed and

covered his eyes with his hat and wrapped his blanket about his face to keep the ﬂies off and he
slept. oG\

But Juana did not sleep. She sat quiet as a stone and her face was le:t,1 Hﬂr mouth was still
swollen where Kino had struck her, anqhig flies bmed qrw nd tha cut of her chin. But she sat as
still as a sentinel, and whgnﬁovotitnawnkened she plafed him on the ground in front of her and
watched him wave his arms and kitk hts fééb, and he smiled and gurgled at her until she smiled

too. She picked up a little twig from the ground and tickled him, and she gave him water from the
gourd she ﬁa[ﬁediH herbundle.

Kino stirred in a dream, and he cried out in a guttural voice, and his hand moved in symbolic
fighting. And then he moaned and sat up suddenly, his eyes wide and his nostrils flaring. He
listened and heard only the cricking heat and the hiss of distance.

“What is it?" Juana asked,

"Hush," he said.

“You were dreaming."

"Perhaps.” But he was restless, and when she gave him a corncake from her store he paused in his

chewing to listen. He was uneasy and nervous; he glanced over his shoulder; he lifted the big knife
and felt its edge. When Coyotito gurgled on the ground Kino said, "Keep him quiet.”

"What is the matter?” Juana asked.
"| don't know."

He listened again, an animal light in his eyes. He stood up then, silently; and croﬂched low, he
threaded his way through the brush toward the road. But he did mt step into the road; he crept
into the cover of a thorny tree and peered uut along tha way he had come. And then he saw them
moving along. His body stiffened and he dnew ‘down his head and peeked out from under a fallen
branch, In the distance he cﬂuld see three figures, two on foot and one on horseback. But he knew
what they were; qvpdq chill of fear went through him. Even in the distance he could see the two on
foot movirug EloJ;ty along, bent low to the ground. Here, one would pause and look at the earth,

180



while the other joined him. They were the trackers, they could follow the triltil‘df a big horn sheep
in the stone mountains. They were as sepsitive as. ht)unds Here, he and Juana might have stepped
out of the wheel rut, and these people from the inland, these hunters, could follow, could read a
broken straw or a little turnbled pile of dust. Behind them, on a horse, was a dark man, his nose
et, and across his saddle a rifle gleamed in the sun.

Kino lay as ﬁgi&hslthe tree limb. He barely breathed, and his eyes went to the place where he had
swept out the track. Even the sweeping might be a message to the trackers. He knew these inland
hunters. In a country where there was little game they managed to live because of their ability to
hunt, and they were hunting him. They scuttled over the ground like animals and found a sign and
crouched over it while the horseman waited.

The trackers whined a little, like excited dogs on a warming trail.

Kino slowly drew his big knife to his hand and made it ready. He knew what he must do. If the
trackers found the swept place, he must leap for the horseman, kill him quickly and take the rifle.
That was his only chance in the world. And as the three drew nearer on the road, Kino dug little
pits with his sandaled toes so that he could leap without warning, so that his feet would not slip.
He had only a little vision under the fallen limb.

Now Juana, back in her hidden place, heard the pad of the horse's hoofs, and Coy!atitu gurgled.
She took him up quickly and put him under her shawl and he was silent._ s

When the trackers came near, Kino could see only their |egs and nnlsrfthe legs of the horse from
under the fallen branch. He saw the dark hﬂny feet of the men and their ragged white clothes,
and he heard the creakof leather of’the saddle ‘and the clink of spurs. The trackers
stopped at the swept place am:k studled it) and the horseman stopped.

The horse flur l-;i;\hpad up agalnst the bit and the bit-roller clicked under his tongue and the
orted. Then the dark trackers turned and studied the horse and watched his ears.

Kino was not breathing, but his back arched a little and the muscles of his arms and legs stood out
with tension and a line of sweat formed on his upper lip. For a long moment the trackers bent over
the road, and then they moved on slowly, studying the ground ahead of them, and the horseman
moved after them. The trackers scuttled along, stopping, looking, and hurrying on. They would be
back, Kino knew. They would be circling and searching, peeping, stopping, and they would come
back sooner or later to his covered track.

He slid backward and did not bother to cover his tracks. He could not; too many little signs were
there, too many broken twigs and scuffed places and displaced stones. And there was a panic in
Kino now, a panic of flight. The trackers would find his trail, he knew it. There was no escape,
except in flight, He edged away from the road and went quickly and silently to the hidden place
where Juana was. She looked up at him in question.

"Trackers,” he said. "Come!"

And then a helplessness and a hopelessness swept mrer hIm v am;I hls faee went black and his eyes
were sad. "Perhaps | should let them take me.” \ \

Instantly Juana was on her feet and her hand lay on his arm. "iou have the pearl,” she cried
hoarsely. "Do you think they would take ynu back alive to say they had stolen it?"

His hand strayed LYmp}yd to theplace where the pearl was hidden under his clothes, "They will find
it," he said whaﬂly

"Come,” she said. "Come!"

181



And when he did not respond. "Do you think they wauld let me lwe'-‘ Do you thmk they would let the
little one here live?"

Her goading struck into his brain; his ups snarled and his eyes were*ﬁerce again. "Come," he said,
"We will goiinto the mnuntmm Maybe we can lose them in the mountains.”

Frantically he gatn:tgd the' gouirds and the little bags that were their property. Kino carried a
bundle in. htsf (e d, but the big knife swung free in his right hand. He parted the brush for
Juana and they hurried to the west, toward the high stone mountains. They trotted quickly
through the tangle of the undergrowth. This was panic flight.

Kino did not try to conceal his passage he trotted, kicking the stones, knocking the telltale leaves
from the little trees. The high sun streamed down on the dry creaking earth so that even the
vegetation ticked in protest. But ahead were the naked granite mountains, rising
out of erosion rubble and standing monolithic against the sky. And Kino ran for the high place, as
nearly all animals do when they are pursued.

This land was waterless, furred with the cacti which could store water and with the great-rooted
brush which could reach deep into the earth for a little moisture and get along on very little. And
underfoot was not soil but broken rock, split into small cubes, great slabs, but none of it water-
rounded. Little tufts of sad dry grass grew between the stones, grass that had sprouted with one
single rain and headed, dropped its seed, and died. Horned toads watched the family, go by and
turned their little pivoting dragon heads. And now and then a greatjackrabbi’t, disturbed in his
shade, bumped away and hid behind the nearest rock: The ﬁnﬂing theat tay over this desert
country, and ahead the stone mnuntainsluoked Cqu Hnd Svelmmﬂg,

And Kino fled. He knew what wdulahapﬂemlllttleway along the road the trackers would become
aware that they had mifsed thQ path ‘and they would come back, searching and judging, and ina
little while t!"e)ﬁ w}ould nd the place where Kino and Juana had rested. From there it would be
easy for thém- these little stones, the fallen leaves and the whipped branches, the scuffed places
where a foot had slipped. Kino could see them in his mind, slipping along the track, whining a
little with eagerness, and behind them, dark and half disinterested, the horseman with the rifle.
His work would come last, for he would not take them back. Oh, the music of evil sang loud in
Kino's head now, it sang with the whine of heat and with the dry ringing of snake rattles.

It was not large and overwhelming now, but secret and poisonous, and the pounding of his heart
gave it undertone and rhythm.

The way began to rise, and as it did the rocks grew larger. But now Kino had put a little distance
between his family and the trackers.

Now, on the first rise, he rested, He climbed a great boulder and looked back over the shimmering
country, but he could not see his enemies, not even the tall horseman riding through the brush.
_ Juana had squatted in the shade of the boulder. She raised her bottle of water to Coyotito's lips;
his little dried tongue sucked greedily at it. She looked up at Kino when he came back; she saw
him examine her ankles, cut and scratched from the stones and bmsh. and she'covered them
quickly with her skirt, Then she handed the: bottle to mm, but\ he shook his head. Her eyes were
bright in her tired face. Kino moistened his cracked lips with histongue.

“Juana," he said, "I will g& on and you wflt hide. Twill lead them into the mountains, and when

they have gone past you will go'narth to Loreto or to Santa Rosalia. Then, if | can escape
them, | will.come N you, It is the only safe way."

She looked full into his eyes for a moment. "No," she said. "We go with you."

182



"l can go faster alone," he said harshly 'Yau mll put the {ttt!.e one in rmrg danger if you go with
me."

"No," said Juana. DT At A
"You must. It is the rnsethmg and it is my wish,” he said.

"No," salq Juaﬂa =

He looked then for weakness in her face, for fear or irresolution, and there was none. Her eyes

were very bright. He shrugged his shoulders helplessly then, but he had taken strength from her.
When they moved on it was no longer panic flight.

The country, as it rose toward the mountains, changed rapidly. Now there were long outcroppings
of granite with deep crevices between, and Kino walked on bare unmarkable stone when he could
and leaped from ledge to ledge. He knew that wherever the trackers lost his path they must circle
and lose time before they found it again. And so he did not go straight for the mountains anymore;
he moved in zigzags, and sometimes he cut back to the south and left a sign and then went toward
the mountains over bare stone again. And the path rose steeply now, so that he panted a little as
he went.

The sun moved downward toward the bare stone teeth of the mountains, and Kino set his
direction for a dark and shadowy cleft in the range.

If there were any water at all, it would be there where he coutd :ae,mru lnme dIStance, a hint of
foliage. And if there were any passage through thE" srnooth stone raf'lge it would be by this same
deep cleft. It had its_danger, for /the | trackers’ ) would” think of it too, but the empty
water bottle did not lét t:hat cbrmdwr\a;ion enter. And as the sun lowered, Kino and Juana
struggled wearily uqthe stegp'slope toward the cleft.

High in pa#gfay §t5ne mountains, under a frowning peak, a little spring bubbled out of a rupture
in the ‘stone. It was fed by shade-preserved snow in the summer, and now and then it died
completely and bare rocks and dry algae were on its bottom. But nearly always it gushed out, cold
and clean and lovely. In the times when the quick rains fell, it might become a freshet and send its
column of white water crashing down the mountain cleft, but nearly always it was a lean little
spring. It bubbled out into a pool and then fell a hundred feet to another pool, and this one,
overflowing, dropped again, so that it continued, down and down, until it came to the rubble of
the upland, and there it disappeared altogether. There wasn't much left of it then anyway, for
every time it fell over an escarpment the thirsty air drank it, and it splashed from the pools to the
dry vegetation. The animals from miles around came to drink from the little pools, and the wild
sheep and the deer, the pumas and raccoons, and the mice- all came to drink. And the birds which
spent the day in the brushland came at night to the little pools that were like steps in the
mountain cleft. Beside this tiny stream, wherever enough earth collected for root-hold, colonies
of plants grew, wild grape and little palms, maidenhair fern, hibiscus, and tall pampas grass with
feathery rods raised above the spike leaves. And in the pool lived frogs and water-skaters, and
waterworms crawled on the bottom of the poal. Everything, that/ tﬁved water came to these few
shallow places, The cats took their' prey, ther& and strewed feathers and lapped water through
their bloody teeth. The [ittle pools We're places of lifé because of the water, and places of killing
because of the water, too., L

The lo ye qtdp,lh-)bere the stream collected before it tumbled down a hundred feet and
disappeare into the rubbly desert, was a little platform of stone and sand. Only a pencil of water

fell into the pool, but it was enough to keep the pool full and to keep the ferns green in the

183



underhang of the cliff, and wild grape climbed the stone mountain and au manner of little plants
found comfort here. The freshets had made a small sandy beach through which the pool flowed,
and bright green watercress grew in the damp sand The beachwas cut and scarred and padded by
the feet of animals that had co:m to dnnk and tohunt.

The sun had passed- yer) the stone mountains when Kino and Juana struggled up the steep broken
slope and came at. last to the water, From this step they could look out over the sunbeaten desert
to the blue Gulf in the distance. They came utterly weary to the pool, and Juana slumped to her
knees and first washed Coyotito's face and then filled her bottle and gave him a drink. And the
baby was weary and petulant, and he cried softly until Juana gave him her breast, and then he -
gurgled and clucked against her. Kino drank long and thirstily at the pool. For a moment, then, he
stretched out beside the water and relaxed all his muscles and watched Juana feeding the baby,
and then he got to his feet and went to the edge of the step where the water slipped over, and he
searched the distance carefully. His eyes set on a point and he became rigid. Far down the slope
he could see the two trackers; they were little more than dots or scurrying ants and behind them a
larger ant.

Juana had turned to look at him and she saw his back stiffen.
"How far?" she asked quietly.

"They will be here by evening," said Kino. He looked up the long steep chimney of the cleft where
the water came down. "We must go west," he said, and his eyes. sparched the 'stone 'shoulder
behind the cleft. And thirty feet up on the grayshouhdar he saw a seﬁek of little erosion caves. He
slipped off his sandals and clambered up tb them, Bﬁppmg the baré stone with his toes, and he
looked into the shallow cave; RENSA

They were only a deqp, wind hollowed scoops, but they sloped slightly downward and
back. Kino wleymo the largest one and lay down and knew that he could not be seen from the
outside. Quickly he went back to Juana.

“You must go up there. Perhaps they will not find us there,” he said.

Without question she filled her water bottle to the top, and then Kino helped her up to the shallow
cave and brought up the packages of food and passed them to her. And Juana sat in the cave
entrance and watched him. She saw that he did not try to erase their tracks in the sand.

Instead, he climbed up the brush cliff beside the water, clawing and tearing at the ferns and wild
grape as he went. And when he had climbed a hundred feet to the next bench, he came down
again. He looked carefully at the smooth rock shoulder toward the cave to see that there was no
trace of passage, and last he climbed up and crept into the cave beside Juana.

"When they go up," he said, “we will slip away, down to the lowlands again. | am afraid only that
the baby may cry. You must see that he does not cry.”

“He will not cry,” she said, and she raised the baby's face to her own and looked 1nto hiseyes and he
stared solemnly back at her. __a[1e) CON

"He knows," said Juana. o A\ TN [

Now Kino lay in the cave entrarnce, ruschin braced oh his cmssed arms, and he watched the blue
shadow of the mountain move, Dut acmss the ﬁrushy desert below until it reached the Gulf, and
thelong tmllg tof tﬂeqlﬁddw was over the land.

The trackers were tong in coming, as though they had trouble with the trail Kino had left. It was
dusk when they came at last to the little pool. And all three were on foot now, for a horse could

184



not climb the last steep slope. From above they were thin ﬂgums in thg evemng

The two trackers scurried about onthe little beach and they) saw Kino's progress up the cliff
before they drank. The manwith the rlﬂe sat down and rested himself, and the trackers squatted
near him, andin the evening the p-mnts of their cigarettes glowed and receded.

And then Kir'no ;ouldl séé that they were eating, and the soft murmur of their voices came to him.

Then darkr fell deep and black in the mountain cleft. The animals that used the pool came
near and smelled men there and drifted away again into the darkness.

He heard a murmur behind him. Juana was whispering, "Coyotito.” She was begging him to be
quiet. Kino heard the baby whimper, and he knew from the muffled sounds that Juana had
covered his head with her shawl,

Down on the beach a match flared, and in its momentary light Kino saw that two of the men were
sleeping, curled up like dogs, while the third watched, and he saw the glint of the rifle in the

match light. And then the match died, but it left a picture on Kino's eyes. He could see it, just how
each man was, two sleeping curled up and the third squatting in the sand with the rifle between

his knees.
Kino moved silently back into the cave. Juana's eyes were two sparks reflecting a low star.
Kino crawled quietly close to her and he put his lips near to her cheek.

“There is a way," he said. IR . 'c d YVL™

"But they will kill you.” A 2 ATUWWNY

"If | get first to the one wibh thenﬂc,‘l(lnoxaid [mUst get to h1m first then | will be all right. Two

aresleeping.”

rher han;l '&fm tfrem under her shawl and gripped his arm. "They will see your white clothesin
estar

"No,” he said. "And | must go before moonrise.”

He searched for a soft word and then gave it up, "If they kill me," he said, "lie quietly. And when
they are gone away, go to Loreto.”

Her hand shook a little, holding his wrist.
"There is no choice,” he said. "It is the only way. They will find us in the morning.”
~ Her voice trembled a little. "Go with God," she said.

He peered closely at her and he could see her large éyes. His hand fumbled out and found the
baby, and for a moment his palm lay on Coyotito’s head. And then Kino raised his hand and touched
Juana's cheek, and she held her breath.

Against the sky in the cave entrance Juana could see that Kino was taking off his white clothes, for
dirty and ragged though they were they would show up against the dark night. His own brown skin
was a better protection for him. And then she saw how e hooked his amulet
neck-string about the horn handle of his gréat knife), so that it hung down in front of him and left
both hands free. He did not come back to\her. For-a-moment his body was black in the cave
entrance, crouched and sﬂent and then hewas gone.

Juana moved. ﬁ.ehg émrance and looked out. She peered like an owl from the hole in the
mountafn, and baby slept under the blanket on her back, his face turned sideways against her

neck and shoulder, She could feel his warm breath against her skin, and Juana whispered her

185



combination of prayer and magic, her Hail Marys and her ancxent mpertession againn the black
unhuman things. 4

The night seemed a little (ess darltwhen shelookedout, and to the east there was a lightening in
the sky, down near the horizon Where the moon would show. And, looking down, she could see the
cigarette of the rnqq hn 'katch

"Kino edged 23 slow lizard down the smooth rock shoulder. He had turned his neck- -string so that
the great knife hung down from his back and could not clash against the stone. His spread fingers
gripped the mountain, and his bare toes found support through contact, and even his chest lay
against the stone so that he would not slip. For any sound, a rolling pebble or a sigh, a little slip of
flesh on rock, would rouse the watchers below. Any sound that was not germane to the night
would make them alert. But the night was not silent; the little tree frogs that lived near the
stream twittered like birds, and the high metallic ringing of the cicadas filled the mountain cleft.
And Kino's own music was in his head, the music of the enemy, low and pulsing, nearly asleep. But
the Song of the Family had become as fierce and sharp and feline as the snarl of a female puma.
The family song was alive now and driving him down on the dark enemy. The harsh cicada seemed
to take up its melody, and the twittering tree frogs called little phrases of it.

And Kino crept silently as a shadow down the smooth mountain face. One bare foot moved a few
inches and the toes touched the stone and gripped, and the other foot a few inches, and then the
palm of one hand a little downward, and then the other ham},, untit’ the\ \whole body,
without seeming to move, had moved. Kino' srmouth was Dpem so that éven his breath would make
no sound, for he knew that he was not mvmbie [ A\ "\; WY

If the watcher, sensing moyement lqoked atfbhé daﬁi place against the stone which was his body,
he could see him. Kino must | mave so slowly he would not draw the watcher's eyes. It took him a
long time (6 hk s bottom and to crouch behind a little dwarf palm. His heart thundered in his
chest and his hands and face were wet with sweat. He crouched and took great slow long breaths
to calm himself.

Only twenty feet separated him from the enemy now, and he tried to remember the ground
between. Was there any stone which might trip him in his rush? He kneaded his legs against cramp
and found that his muscles were jerking after their long tension. And then he looked
apprehensively to the.east. The moon would rise in a few moments now, and he must attack
before it rose. He could see the outline of the watcher, but the sleeping men were below his
vision. It was the watcher Kino must find- must find quickly and without hesitation. Silently he

drew the amulet string over his shoulder and loosened the loop from the horn handle of his great
knife.

He was too late, for as he rose from his crouch the silver edge of the moon slipped above the
eastern horizon, and Kino sank back behind his bush.

It was an old and ragged moon, but it threw hard light and hard shadow into the mulmtain cleft,
and now Kino could see the seated figure of the watcher on the lLtLLe;beach hes‘ide the pool. The
watcher gazed full at the moon, and then he hghted another ugarette and the match illumined
his dark face for a moment; There cauld be no. wajtingnow' when the watcher turned his head,

Kino must leap. His legs were aﬁ tight as woufrdspﬁﬂ85

And then froga abqyei ;imea little murmunng cry. The watcher turned his head to listen and then

he stooduj:- ndone of the sleepers stirred on the ground and awakened and asked quietly, "What
isit?

186



"I don't know,” said the watcher. "It sounded like a cry,. aimost like a humaﬂ like a baby
The man who had been sleeping said, %u cant tell Ive heard a coyote pup cry like a baby.”

The sweat rolled in drop,s downl King sforehead and fell into his eyes and burned them. The little
cry came again and Fhe wabchertooked up the side of the hill to the dark cave.

'Coyote mayp& “he said, and Kino heard the harsh click as he cocked the rifle.
"If it's a coyote, this will stop it," the watcher said as he raised the gun.

Kino was in mid-leap when the gun crashed and the barrel-flash made a picture on his eyes. The
great knife swung and crunched hollowly. It bit through neck and deep into chest, and Kino was a
terrible machine now. He grasped the rifle even as he wrenched free his knife. His
strength and his movement and his speed were a machine. He whirled and struck the head of the
seated man like a melon. The third man scrabbled away like a crab, slipped into the pool, and
then he began to climb frantically, to climb up the cliff where the water penciled down,

His hands and feet threshed in the tangle of the wild grapevine, and he whimpered and gibbered
as he tried to get up. But Kino had become as cold and deadly as steel. Deliberately he threw the
lever of the rifle, and then he raised the gun and aimed deliberately and fired. He saw his enemy
tumble backward into the pool, and Kino strode to the water. In the moonlight he could see the
frantic eyes, and Kino aimed and fired between the eyes.

And then Kino stood uncertainly. Something was wrong, some smnal was, trying tb g#.-t through to
his brain. Tree frogs and cicadas were silent now An& ;hen Kino's-brain cleared from its red
concentration and he knew the sound the hﬁéning, \moaning, rising hysterical cry from the
little cave in the side of thest,unemnuntai‘n thecry of death.

Everyone(in L,a[ Pz& remembers the return of the family; there may be some old ones who saw it,
but tho#ewhose fathers and whose grandfathers told it to them remember it nevertheless. Itis an
event that happened to everyone.

It was late in the golden afternoon when the first little boys ran hysterically in the town and
spread the word that Kino and Juana were coming back. And everyone hurried to see them. The
sun was settling toward the western mountains and the shadows on the ground were long.
And perhaps that was what left the deep impression on those who saw them.

The two came from the rutted country road into the city, and they were not walking in single file,
Kino ahead and Juana behind, as usual, but side by side. The sun was behind them and their long
shadows stalked ahead, and they seemed to carry two towers of darkness with them. Kino had a
rifle across his arm and Juana carried her shawl like a sack over her shoulder. And in it was a small
limp heavy bundle. The shawl was crusted with dried blood, and the bundle swayed a little as she
walked,

Her face was hard and lined and leathery with fatigue and with the tl,ghtrress with which she
fought fatigue. And her wide eyes stared inward on herself; Shelwaa as| remote and as removed as
Heaven. Kino's lips were thin and his jaws tight, and the peoﬁle 'say that he carried fear with him,
that he was as dangerous as a fising sto(m The people say that the two seemed to be removed
from human experience; that they had gone through pain and had come out on the other side;
that there was almost a magical protection about them. And those people who had rushed to see
them chwqded‘ écﬂ and let them pass and did not speak to them.

Kine and Juana walked through the ity as though it were not there.

187



Their eyes glanced neither right nor left nor up nor down, but stared on’cy stralght ahead Their
legs moved a little jerkily, like well-made wooden dotls and they carried pillars of black fear
about them. And as they walked through the stnne and plaster city brokers peered at them from
barred windows and servants put one eye to, ' slitted gate and mothers turned the faces of their
youngest children inward qgamst thew skirts. Kino and Juana strode side by side through the stone
and plaster. it}q }and ‘down among the brush houses, and the neighbors stood
back and let ihem pass. Juan Tomas raised his hand in greeting and did not say the greeting and
left his hand in the air for a moment uncertainly.

In Kino's ears the Song of the Family was as fierce as a cry. He was immune and terrible, and his
song had become a battle cry. They trudged past the burned square where their house had been
without even looking at it. They cleared the brush that edged the beach and picked their way
down the shore toward the water. And they did not look toward Kino's broken cance.

And when they came to the water’'s edge they stopped and stared out over the Gulf. And then
Kino laid the rifle down, and he dug among his clothes, and then he held the great pearl in his
hand. He looked into its surface and it was gray and ulcerous. Evil faces peered from it into
his eyes, and he saw the light of burning. And in the surface of the pearl he saw the frantic
eyes of the man in the pool. And in the surface of the pearl he saw Coyotito lying in the little
cave with the top of his head shot away. And the pearl was ugly; it was gray, like a malignant
growth. And Kino heard the music of the pearl, distorted and insane, Kino's hand shook a
little, and he turned slowly to Juana and held the pearl out to-her. Shi: ;tood bsside him, still
holding her dead bundle over her shoulder. Shelooked at|the(pearl in hishand for a moment
and then she looked into Kino's.eyes and sajd/ softly,)ﬂo, your

And Kino drew back his arm and ﬂuhg the péarl\with all his might. Kino and Juana watched it go,
winking and ghmmeq Ju:}derthesetting sun.

They saw tha llt*lein{ash in the distance, and they stood side by side watching the place for a long
time.

And the pearl settled into the lovely green water and dropped toward the bottom. The waving
branches of the algae called to it and beckoned to it. The lights on its surface were green and
lovely. It settled down to the sand bottom among the fern-like plants. Above, the surface of
the water was a green mirror. And the pearl lay on the floor of the sea. Acrab scampering over the
bottom raised a little cloud of sand, and when it settled the pearl was gone.

And the music of the pearl drifted to a whisper and disappeared.

About the Novelist:

John Steinbeck (February 27, 1901 - December 20, 1968) was an American writer. He won the
1962 Nobel Prize in Literature *for his realistic and imaginative writings, combining as they do
sympathetic humor and keen soclal perception”. He has been called "a glant of American letters.”

During his writing career, he authored 33 books, with one book coauthored alongside Edward
Ricketts, including 16 novels, six non-fiction books, and two collections of short stories. He is widely
known for the comic novels Tortilla Flat (1935) and Cannery Row (1945}, the multi semtion epic L
East of Eden (1952), and the novellas The Red Pony (1933) and Of Mice. andm {ﬁiﬂ. The Pulltzer— i
Prize-winning The Grapes of Wrath (1939)is considered Steimi!d{s mutbrpiece and part of the
American literary canon. By the ?Stb anniversaryof ‘luptblishingdlte fthad sold 14 mitlion copies.

Most of Steinbeck's work is set in mtral Wilomla, paﬁicdarly in the Salinas Valley and the California Coast Ranges
reglon. His works lrequently exq:lored l,t-e themes of fate and injustice, especially as applied to downtrodden or everyman
protagonists. ] \|

| N\

(mmmﬂmmmm

188



Summary: The Pearl takes place in a small village on the outSkirt‘sof La Paz Califomia It begins
in the brush house of Kino, Juana, and their haby, Covotito, a family of Mexican Native Americans.
In the midst of Kino and Juanas mdmmg rouline, Coyotito is stung by a sr.orp:on that has fallen
intohishangingbox. =\ \{ " (!
Aware of how poiso aus t,he scorpion s stmg is, Juana orders that the doctor be gotten and when
the doqtdr es to come to them, insists they go to the doctor themselves, Kino, Juana,
Coyotito, and their neighbors proceed together to the city. When the servant reports their arrival
at his gate, the doctor, lounging indulgently in bed, is insulted by the mere notion that he would
“cure insect bites for 'little Indians™ without compensation. The servant informs Kino that the
doctor will not be able to see them and Kino punches the gate, infuriated by the doctor’s evident
discrimination.

Kino and Juana set off in their canoe to search for pearls, Kino dives down to the seafloor and finds
one oyster lying alone, gleaming from within. Upon returning to the canoe, Kino opens this oyster
last and finds within it the most perfect pearl in the world.

News of Kino's pearl spreads rapidly through the town, inspiring desire and envy in everyone who
hears of it. When Juan Tomas asks Kino what he will do as a rich man, he responds that he and
Juana will be married in a church, that they will have new clothes, that he will have a rifle, and
that his son will receive an education.

The priest visits the brush house to remind Kino and Juana to thank God. Then t.he doctor, inspired
by the news of the pearl, arrives in order to treat the ba?by He hﬂmfniﬁttrs a first treatment and
predicts that the poison will strike Mthirrfhé hour. Within the hour, Coyotito indeed becomes ill
and the doctor administers asecond't re nt to cure him. Kino promises to pay the doctor after
selling the pearl, which the doctor feighsnot to have heard about.

That nigl'( ﬁéf daljﬂ Kino hears noises in the house and manages to strike a thief looking for the
pearl with his knife, but is also struck in return. Juana begs, to no avail, that they get rid of the

pearl.

The next day, Kino and Juana, followed by their neighbors, go to visit the pearl dealers. The first
dealer Kino visits assesses the pearl at a mere 1000 pesos, declaring it too big and clumsy to be
worth anything more, though it is clearly more valuable than he lets on. Kino accuses the dealer of
cheating him, so the dealer instructs Kino to ask around for other appraisals, which are even
worse than the first. Kino concludes that he's been cheated and decides to go to the capital for a
better estimate.

That night, Kino fights off another attacker. Juana tries to throw the pearl into the ocean, but Kino
follows her, rips the pearl away from her, and beats her to the ground. Some minutes later, Juana
rises to discover that Kino has been attacked yet again, and, this time, has killed his attacker. Now
that Kino is guilty of murder, Kino and Juana truly must leave the town.

As Kino approaches the canoe to prepare for their departure, he sees that someone has made a
hole in its bottom. Then, upon seeing that their house is engulfed -in flames, the family seeks
refuge in Juan Tomas's house. They ﬂee north ac nfghttime pum;ed by trackers who have
followed them from the v1llage -

The family retreats into a cave on é innuntainnde under whlch the trackers come to rest at night.

When it's cumpletely rk, Kino prepares to attack them but, as he is about to, Coyotito lets out a

cry, provoking jone of the trackers to shoot at what he assumes to be a coyote. Though Kino

succeeds inkilling the men, Coyotito has already been shot dead.

T T e e e e e
189




Juana and Kino, united and beleaguered, walk back to the village side bywside with Coyotitos

dead body in Juana's shawl. Kino throws the peart back mto the sea

[O Post-reading

* Howwould

"-.r..-"" -\

accompany ihose values?
« DPearlsare seen as symbol of purity, wisdom, wealth, and status. Discuss.

C\ \ vl Sl |
;kisnfy that the pearl reflects its owner’s idea of what sacrifices might |

Glossary
avarice extreme greed for wealth or material gain greed
indigent poor; impoverished
consolation comfort or solace in a time of distress or sadness
detachment | the state of being objective and impartial
bulwark a defensive wall or embankment
estuary the tidal mouth of a large river, where the tide meets ugmr ;um (SIS
gloating to exult or revel rnahaouslswr tnumphantly 3
incandescence| the emissim afﬂlight as amgult of being heated
lateen referring to, a trianrgutar sail set on a long yard at
. ghan ahgié of 45 degrees to the mast
poulticé "[“a soft, moist mass, typically of herbs or vegetables, applied
to the body to relieve inflammation and promote healing
telescopically | in a manner that slides or extends like a telescope
almsgiving the act of giving money or food to the poor
edifice a building, especially a large, imposing one
exhilaration | a feeling of great excitement and happiness
léprosy a chronic infectious disease that affects the skin,
nerves, eyes, and mucous membranes
skirled to utter a shrill, piercing cry
stifling | oppressively hot or close
cleft a narrow opening made by splitting or cleaving something
escarpment a steep slope or cliff _ &\ O\
malignant (of a tumor or disease) tendingto spread w other parts uf the body
monolithic (of an omanizatmn or systemj large. and powerful and having no rivals
apprehensively| |q an epnxlm:s or fearful way
QUN NN Y

190



o s T 7

monotonously | in a tedious and repetitive way _ (" "\ /(0o

i1 —

outcroppings | a rock or group of mcks protrudihg from the

earth’s surface
threshed [_‘:beﬁ( or strike repeatedly
I:ommlianslnn

a) Answer the following question,
1. What does Kino mean by, “This pearl has become my soul. “If | give it up | shall lose my
soul...” Do you agree with him?
2. Describe the setting of the novel "The Pearl”

3. Asympathetic character is a character that you can identify with and care about.
Which character in the pearl do you think is the most sympathehc and why?

4. What forces might be set up to destroy Kino's future?

5. Describe the part of the book that you found most interesting, then explalnl why this part was so
- interesting to you. N

{2
/'j_"-\_l'-lf \ '.

6. Discuss the characters, conflict and settings of the novgl p\ )\

7. Discuss the various animal imagery that /fungtipnﬂ\thrbugl!out fﬁe’ novel the ants, the
scorpion, the htssmg;nakes the sEhodIs 05 ﬁsh/thewsters the dogs, and the pearl

buy&l‘ﬁ as OCtOPUS?S, e‘t:C; \ II";. \I \\ \ \ ~. A
8. Describe u-! dgfa{l Kinund Juana's simple life before and after the discovery of the
pea(lJ I\ \\]

9. How does Steinbeck characterize the doctor? How does he let the reader know that
the white powder which the doctor administers to Coyotito is actually a poison which
would kill the baby if the doctor did not return?

10. How does the priest function as a travesty of religion? Discuss.

11. Why are the pearl buyers referred to as “fatherly” and "benevolent™? How does this
contradict their real purposes? Are they also victimized?

12. Why are the “dark ones” and the trackers never identified? What is gained by
Steinbeck’s not identifying them? -

13. A symbol can change its meaning during the course of a novel How does the pearl
change its meaning during the course of this novel?

14. Kino believes that it would be better to kill a person than to kill a canoe > because a
canoe has no relatives to revenge it. What types of value,s arg opgraqqum such a
statement? N ta N

15. Kino and Juana function more or bess on a pnrhitfye leve1 i’ thelr lives and in their
religion, yet they both want a chumh\ang and a christening for Coyotito. How are
these values confiste nt with their lives? How are they contradictory?

16. Wha; 1$ hhe %&dm of the many songs that Kino hears during the course of the novel?

_—_-——-—_—ln___
191




-~ I-.
v\ =\ —~ A5 Y

Formal Letter Writing \WALLY

Formal Letter Q\ o2\ s
Formal Letters, refer to as commercial enterpnse Letters or |

professional ke ;. ﬁens, |whlch are written in a strict and precise ',
layout. Forhl | letters are clearly a lot extra formal in fashion than

casual/friendly letters. Formal letters can be written for someof '+ Ak
reasons whichinclude, R ST pa n.m

To express your issues at the same time as operating in a professional setup
Toprovide reliable facts across your workspace
Toorder items, to use for employment, and so forth.

To the Editor of a newspaper addressing the problems confronted by using diverse
groups of human beings in distinct areas, and so forth.

Structure of a formal Letter

To write a formal letter, first you have to understand the reason to write it. Formal letters are
concerned on their structure of the letter adjustments relying on the type of letter. There are
sure policies to be followed with a purpose to draft a proper letter. Each sentence should be
nicely noted out and laid down in a manner that the message you need to ;:GI‘WY should be
particular and clean to the reader. [N\ (G

Always address these letters to The Editor’ and enﬂ wlth 'thrs f almfulty'”Letters to the Editorare
letters that express concerns that shonld be addremd to the higher authorities. These letters
should be professional anﬁf authentiC‘ Ho newspaper would publish anonymous letters, so make
sureyou are writi ‘itm [etter fora'cause and provide your name and address correctly.

Writinga Enﬂmii tter - Parts of a Formal Letter

When wnting a formal letter, always be respectful and conscious of your language, no matter
what the subject of the letter might be. To write a formal letter, there are some points to be
remembered.
o Alwaysstart with the sender’s address
+ Thisis followed by the date.
+ The receivers address comes next. The receiver can be the name of the firm or the one
who represents the firm.
« The subject of the letter is very important. It is a statement of the purpose of the letter. It
should be writtenina single line.
» Thesalutation can be Dear Sir/Ma'am. If it is a person you know well, you can address them
by their name, 'Dear Sara khan'.
« The body of the letter can be written in 3 paragraphs.
« The first paragraph should be aimed at introducing yourself and stating the purpose of your
letter. The second paragraph should furnish all the information aboutthematter.
» The third paragraph can be a concluding paragraph whe{e you lay-out your expectations
regarding the matter._ \
» To close the letter, you can use a\ complimeﬂtary closing like Yours faithfully', "Yours

sincerely'etc.

* Unlike infﬁmia! ietters, the signature should include your name (in block letters) and
des gnatfon below your signature.

192



Ali A_h"md \ - ‘,,,_ - \\.\—\‘ |I I:]\If;;..) \ (( \\JJu™-
House#23-B ,St# 6 O AN\ Y

F-10/2, Islamabad 44000
8th September. 2023 %

uev#

Islamahad
Subject: Repair of the road in Rawalpindi
Sir, .

| would like to bring to your notice that the people in and around Rawalpindi have been facing
difficulties in travelling back and forth because of the bad condition of the roads there. We have
appealed to the Municipality, but there has not been any response on the issue so far.

As our appeals to their office have had no effect, we believe that perhaps a mention in the media
would be of great help. Since the beginning of the last month, the roads in Rawalpindi have been
almost impassable. The surface is badly broken up by the heavy rains, and on a dark night, it is
positively dangerous for vehicles to pass that way. Moreover, there are heaps of road metal on both
sides of the road, which leave very little room in the middle. The residents of the area have been
inconvenienced in this way for weeks.

The situation is becoming worse. There have been multiple accidents happening due to this
condition. | request you to highlight the seriousness of the mpl%er \in q(uﬂﬂieﬁpaper so that the
road may be properly repa1redvnthou;furtherde{a1\ ALY c o=

\ A A WU \ W)
Thankingm o\ — \‘ \\,: / I"\ \\ \ \ \\\. K/_, \ BRI
|r-“i I" \ - . i - \ IJ_-'»--" bt
Yours sincerely, ‘- \ "k"‘-ﬂ/f‘ 0\ \\ NS
Signature o \_ WAL VLW
= [\ TR T L
= '|\\\J | l o U B

Ali Ah

Task: Write a letter to newspaper editor tell him about the increasing street crimes rates in
your city and suggest him some steps to control these crimes as soon as possible.

Teacher'sNote:

= Encourage students to perform a drama/ role play/play script showing different roles and scenarios
through deliberate choice of dialogues/ speech, gestures and movements.

e  Ask them to evaluate how authors use language, including figurative language, considering the impact on
the reader. Discuss others’ reading critically, taking account of their views. Express informed opinions,
justify the viewpoint and make recommendations and develop an interest ina variety of texts,

* Motivate them to analyse how an author's choices concerning how to structure specific parts of a text (e.g.,
the choice of where to begin or end a story, the choice to provide a comedic or tragic resolution) contribute
toits overall structure and meaning as well as its aesthetic impact.

* Let them to evaluate the particular elements of a story or drama (e.g., how the setting shapes the
characters or plot).ldentify rhyme schemes and figurative language in poems.Evaluate stages of plot
development in a fictional text.(exposition, setting, climax, character dwel.qpﬂ'hnt iresolution).Examine
how complex characters (e.g., those with-multiple ar conflicting motiv&tﬁui course of a text, interact
with other characters, and adyameme plat or Mmhemme

*  Askthem to analyze multiple interpretations, of astory, drurna. or poem (e.g., recorded or live production
of aplay or recorded povel or N wa!uaﬂnghnw each version interprets the source text,

* Let them read) Hew and' anallysé a ty of reading grade-appropriate and high-interest books and texts

from prin? and non:print sources: Drama (play scripts)
~Mativate 'them-to write formal letters and emails to people in extended academic (professional)
nts for various purposes.

193




Ruhi Zaka Maljk, {A A Engllsh therature and B.ed has 27 years of teaching
experience ta her credit. She retired as Head of English Dept from ICB as
Associate Professor. She has authored number of books for various Textbook
Boards;PTB, KPK, Baluchistan and NBF.

Amber Kashif excels in crafting and compelling written material after a deep
research to structure information in a clear and engaging manner. She
received her Master's degree in English Literature from The University of
Punjab, Lahore and started her career in 2003 from IMCG F-8/1. Later on
joined Federal Directorate of Education in 2007 as JLT. Now a days she is
serving as SST in IMCG F-7/4, Islamabad. She reviewed number of English
books in National Curriculum Wing from 2010 till 2013.She develoﬁéﬂ English
text books not only for the private sector but alsoshalred her expertise in NBF's
English Text Books. N\ A~ A LU\ L

QRN



